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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the calendar year ended December 31, 2015

2. SEC ldentification Number 026126 3. BIR Tax Identification No. 900-121-507-000

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter Holcim Philippines, Inc.
5. Republic of the Philiopines | e | (SEC Use Only)
Province, Country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code:

incorporation or organization

7. 7" Floor, Two Werld Square, McKinley Hiil, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City 1634
Address of principal office Pastal Code
8. {632) 459-3333
fssuer's telephone number, including area code
9. Not applicable

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report,
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and § of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Coammon Stock
Qutstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common Stock, P1 par value 8,452,099,144
11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes[X] No {]
if yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange, Ing. Common Shares

12. Check whether the issuer:
{a} has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of

The Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes [X] No [ ]
{b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (20) days.

Yes [X] No [ ]

SEC Form 17-A CY2015
February 2016



13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-afiiliates of the registrant.

Php13.108,391.031 (920,533,078 common shares @ PhP14.24 per share, the closing price at
which stock was sold on December 28, 2015}

14. Check whether the issuer has fited all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 17 of
the Code subsequent te the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court or the

Commission.
Nat Applicable

Yes [ ] No [ ]

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

15. The following documents are incorporated by reference, briefly describe them and identify the part
of SEC Form 17-A into which the document is incorporated:

{a) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 - Exhibit 1

(b} Staternent of Management's Responsibility for Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015
— part of Exhibit 1

(c) Supplementary Schedules to the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements — Exhibit 2

(¢} SEC Form 17-Q — Exhibit 3

(e) Legal Proceedings and Pending Legal Cases — Exhibit 4

(f) SEC Form 17-C — Exhibit 5
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1 Business

Hoicim Philippines, Inc. (HPI or the “Company”}, is one of the premier cement manufacturers
in the Philippines and is a member of the LafargeHolcim Group, one of the world’s leading suppliers of
cement, as well as aggregates, concrete and construction-related services. HPI is mainiy engaged in
the manufaciure, sale and distribution of cement and clinker.

The Company and its subsidiaries own four production facilities, one cement grinding mill, five
ports, as well as multiple storage and distribution points across the country. HPl has the most
extensive sales and distribution network in the Philippine cement industry.

The consolidated operations of the four cement production facilities have fortified HPI's
premier position in the Philippine cement industry with a total installed clinker production capacity of
6.2 million metric tons per year (MTPY) and cement production capacity of 10.2 million MTPY.

HP| was the first in the Philippine cement industry to receive 150 9002 certification {Quality
Management System Standards) from the International Qrganization for Standardization (1SO).
Additionally, all four plants are ISO 14001 certified (Environment Management System Standards)
and OH&S 18001 {Occupational Health & Safety Management} certified.

"Holcim” is one of the top selling brands and quality leaders in the Philippines.
{1) History and Business Development

HPl was incorporated and registered with the Philippines Securities and Exchange
Commission {(SEC) on November 12, 1964 under the name Hi-Cement Corporation (HCC).

On February 8, 2000, the SEC approved the merger of HCC, Davao Union Cement
Corporation (DUCC), and Bacnotan Cement Corporation (BCC), with HCC as the surviving entity.
Simultaneously, the SEC also approved the request for a change of corporate name from HCC to
Union Cement Corporation (UCC).

On January 11, 2001, the SEC approved the merger of Atlas Cement Marketing Corporation
(ACMC), Davac Union Marketing Corporation (DUMC) and Bacnotan Marketing Corporation (BMC)
into UCC.

On July 17, 2002, the Board of Directors of UCC approved the acquisition of 88% of the
issued and outstanding commen shares of Alsons Cement Corporation (ACC) from Cemco Holdings,
fnc. {Cemco). In consideration of such shares, new shares of UCC were issued fo Cemco, at the
exchange ratio of one (1} UCC share for every 3.7 ACC shares owned by Cemco, thus, making ACC
a subsidiary of UCC.

Pursuant to the Securities Regulation Code {(SRC) and its implementing rules and regulations,
HPI undertook a tender offer in favor of the remaining 12% ncn-controlling sharehoiders of ACC to
exchange their holdings in ACC for new shares of UCC at the same exchange ratio, with the aption to
accept cash at a price of Php0.28 per ACC share, in lieu of HP1 shares. The foregoing fransactions
were approved by shareholders of UCC on September 4, 2002. The Company acquired additional
ACC shares representing 0.02% equity interest in ACC after the end of the tender offer period.

On September 19, 2002, the Board of Directors of ACC approved a resolution for the detisting
of the shares of stocks of the company from the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The PSE
approved the resolution for the delisting on December 15, 2002.

On August 17, 2004, the SEC approved ACC's reverse stock split, increasing the par value of
ACC's shares to PhP1,000 per share from PhP0.50 per share. As a result of additionaf purchases
from the remaining non-controlling shareholders of ACC in 2004 and the effect of the reverse sfock
split, UCC equity interest in ACC increased from 98.74% to 89.6%.
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On November 30, 2004, the SEC approved the request for change in corporate name from
UCC o HPI. On January 19, 2005, the SEC also approved the change in corporate name of ACC o
Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corp. (HPMC).

On June 30, 2006, the SEC likewise approved the merger of HPMC with its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Nerthern Mindanao Transport Co., Inc. (NMTC).

As of December 31, 2015, HPI is 60.55% owned by Union Cement Holdings Corporation
(UCHC), 18.11% owned by Holderfin B.V. {Holderfin), and 7.08% owned by Cemco while the
remainder of its shares is owned by the public. HPl commen shares are listed in the Philippine Stock
Exchange (PSE).

The Company’s Subsidiaries and Associates

Holcim Phifippines Manufacturing Corporation (HPMC)

HPMC was incorporated and registered with the SEC on February 7, 1968 under the name of
Victory Cement Corporation.

HPMC has two dry process lines in Northern Mindanao, giving HPMC a combined rated
clinker capacity of 1.8 million MTPY. Of these two, the larger 1.2 million MTPY line was successfully
commissioned in 1998 and started commercial operation in January 1989. HPMC's terminal located in
Calaca, Batangas, which had been idle for several years, was rehabilitated in 2010 and resumed

operations beginning January 2011,

tn 2004, HPMC stockholders approved the lease contract with HP| covering substantially ail
of HPMC's cement manufaciuring assets. The lease contract was extended up to December 31,
2015 and renewed for ancther six menths until June 2016.

HPMC's subsidiary, Calamba Aggregates Company, Inc. (CACI), was incorporated and
registered with the SEC on October 15, 19982, that operated an aggregates plant in Laguna. CACI
ceased operations effective December 31, 2013. CACI is in the process of completing regulatory
requirements for its eventual dissolution.

NMTC, a then wholly owned subsidiary of HPMC, was incorporated and registered with the
SEC on February 4, 1972. In addition to chartering vessels, NMTC owned a fleet of vessels that
nrovided the sea transport requirements of HPL. On June 30, 2006, the SEC approved the merger of
NMTC and HPMC, with HPMC as the surviving company.

HPMC’s wholly owned subsidiary, Bulkcem Philippines, Inc. (BPI}), was incorporated and
registered with the SEC on April 5, 1995. Today, BP! has a bulk terminal located in Hoilo.

Alsons Canstruction Chemicals, Inc. {ALCHEM), another subsidiary, ownad a cement and
mineral admixture plant in Lugait, Misamis Oriental, was incorporated in the Philippines and was
registered with the SEC on December 23, 1998. The operation of ALCHEM was discontinued since
July 1898.

Holeim Mining and Development Corporation (HMDC)

Holcim Mining and Development Corporation {formerly Sulu Resources Development Corp.)
was incorporated and registered with the SEC on Octaber 5, 1987. Sulu Resources holds a Mineral
Production Sharing Agreement covering certain mineral claims in Rizal. On August 21, 2008, HMDC
was acquired by the Company.

On March 15, 2010, the SEC approved the request for change in name of Sulu Resources to
Holcim Aggregates Corporation (HAC). In 2011, the Company started to engage in the business of
trading aggregates. On July 14, 2011, the SEC approved the request for change from HAC to Holcim
Mining and Development Corporation (HMDC). On November 13, 2013, the Board of Directors and
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shareholders of HMDC approved the increase in the authorized capital stock of HMDC to make way
for additional subscription by HPI, in consideration of properties such as parcels of land, mining claims
and foreshore leases. On March 8, 2014, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock
of HMDC from P250,000,000.00 to P1,065,000,000.00.

HMDC's wholly owned subsidiary, Holcim Resources Development Carporation (HRDC) is
engaged in mining, processing and sale of quarry resources. HRDC was incorporated in the
Philippines and registered with the SEC on May 8, 2005.

in July 2014, HMDC acquired a new subsidiary, Lucky One Realty Ventures, Inc. (LORVI),
which owns a port facility and foreshore lease in Mabini, Batangas. LORVI was incorporated and
registered with the SEC on June 23, 1998,

On August 2015, HMDC acquired the following new subsidiaries: Lafarge Republic
Aggregates, Inc. {LRAI), Quimson Limestones, Inc. (*QLI"}, Sigma Cee Mining Corporation {SCMC),
and APC Properties, Inc. ("“APC”). LRAI was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the
SEC on January 16, 2008 as Batong Angono Aggregates Corp., and operates an aggregates quarry
in Rizal. On October 2015, the SEC approved the request for change of name from LRAI to
LafargeHoicim Aggregates, Inc. (LHAI). QLI was incorperated in the Philippines and registered with
the SEC on January 16, 1992 and is engaged in the business of quarry operations. SCMC was
incorperated in the Philippines and registered with the SEC on August 3, 1994 and is engaged in the
business of exploration, mining and processing of minerals. APC was incorporated in the Philippines
and registered with the SEC on August 22, 1997 and is engaged in the business of purchasing and
selling of properties.

in Qctober 2015, HMDC, its shareholders HPl and HPMC, together with the Holcim
Philippines, Inc. Retirement Fund {RF}, executed a Shareholders Agreement governing HMDC, in
relation to the subscription by the RF of shares in HMDC. HPI and HPMC waived their respective
pre-emptive rights allowing the RF to subscribe to 60% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of
HMDC. HMDC's application for increase in capital stock to cover RF's subscription is pending with
the SEC.

Pursuant to the subscription by the RF to 80% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of
HMDC, HPI and HPMC appointed and designated RF as their proxy for their respective 60% voting
shares in HMDC, which proxy is irrevocable until SEC approves the increase in capital stock, and
threa nominees of RF were elected to the five-member Board of HMDC, As of December 31, 2015,
the RF has effectively taken over the control of HMDC.

Excel Concrefe Logistics, Inc. (ECLI)

Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc. was incorporated and registered with the SEC on August 8, 2012.
On January 1, 2013, ECLI started its full operation servicing the distribution, transport and placing of
concrete, cement and other similar products of the ready-mix sub-segment of HP1.

Holicim Phitippines Business Services Center, Inc. (HPBSCI)

Holeim Philippines Business Services Center, Inc. was incarporated and registered with the
SEC on February 4, 2014. HPBSCI was set up to engage in the business of providing business process
outsourcing and other information technology-enabled services to the Holcim Group. On February 13,
2015, HPBSCI transferred and sold its intellectual property rights and leasehold improvements to Holcim
East Asia Business Service Centre B.V. — Philippine ROHQ.

HuBB Stores and Services Inc. (HSS)
HuBB Siores and Services inc. was incorporated and registered with the SEC on June 2, 2014,

HSSI was set up to engage in the business of buying, selling and distributing construction or building
materials, and to operate, maintain and franchise stores for the sale and distribution of said materials.
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Mahini Grinding Mill Corporation (MGMC)

Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation was incorporated and registered with the SEC on September
29, 1989. In August 2013, the rehabilitation of the MGMC's grinding station in Mabini, Batangas was

completed and commenced operation.

Bankrupicy Proceedings

The Company is not a party {0 any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings.

Material Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation

Other than the ahove-mentioned reclassification, merger, acquisition and consolidation, the
Company is not a party to any merger or consolidation for the period ending December 31, 2015.

(2) General Business Description

HPI is engaged in the manufacture, sale and distribution of cement, dry mix mortar products,
clinker, ready mix concrete and, through HMDC, has an interest in the aggregates business of LHAL
with the Company’s production facilities, ports, storage and distribution terminals, sales offices and
channet partners, HPI has the most extensive sales and distribution network in the Philippine cement
industry. The Company's product quality and operational capability are geared towards meeting the
customers' needs here and abroad.

{a) Product Lines

HP] manufactures four main cement product brands namely: Holcim Premium (Type 1
Porttand cement), Holcim 4X {Type 1 high performance Portland cement), Holcim Excel (Type
1P Blended cement), and Holcim WallRight {Type S Masonry cement). its products are scid
in bags, tonner bags, jumbo bags and in bulk. HPI also sells to cement producers a semi-
finished product called clinker, which is sold onty in bulk.

HPI also has a ready-mix concrete business. With HMDC’s acquisition of LHAI, the Company
gained interest in the aggregates business. HPI also sells dry mix mortar products as
follows: Holcim Tile Adhesive, Holeim Skim Coat and Holcim Cementitious Waterproofing.

All HP! products meet Philippine National Standards (PNS) and American Society for Testing
and Materials {(ASTM) product quality standards.

Below is a brief description of HPI's various products:
Holcim Premium

Holcim Premium is an ASTM Type | Portland Cement. It is used for general concrete
construction. To make Portland cement, powdered limestone, sifica and iron-rich materials
are homogenized and burnt at 1500°C. The resulting material is called clinker. Portland
cement is produced by grinding clinker with a small amount of gypsum, a set retarder. When
Portland cement is mixed with water and aggregates to make concrate, the mixture is initially
flowable and easy io place, mold and finish. Eventually, the concrete sets, hardens and
produces a strong and durable construction material.

Holcim 4X

Holcim 4X is an ASTM C150 high performance Portland cement, It is specially formulated
for ready mix concrete applications. It has high compressive strength, high workability and is
corpatible with commonly available admixtures. Supplied in bulk, Holcim 4X is mainly used
for high-rise buildings and vertical structures that require high-strength cement. it is ideal for
construction that requires optimized concrete mix designs and fast construction cycles. With
the high 28-day compressive strength of Holeim 4X, tower cement factor is needed resulting
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in lower construction costs. Longer setting time results in hetter slump retention and
pumpability of concrete.

Holcim Excel

Holcim Excel Cement is an ASTM Type [P Cement, which is Portland cement combined with
advanced mineral additives. It is sold mainly in 40-kg. bags and used for general concrete
consiruction. Advanced mineral additives (including granufated blast furnace slag) are inter-
ground with Portland cement clinker and gypsum to improve the workability and early
strength. The product is used for the same applications as the Portland cement described
above but is preferred by many customers because the additives improve its performance.

Holcim WallRight Cement

Holcim WallRight Cement is an ASTM C81 Type S Masonry Cement designed for block
laying, plastering and finishing use. It is made by inter-grinding mineral additives and an air-
entraining additive with Portland cement clinker during the finish milling operation. The
resulting cement will produce smoother, more cohesive and more cost-effective mortars and
plasters which are preferred by masons.

Clinker

Clinker is an intermediate product in cement production. It is produced by grinding and
burning a proportioned mixture of limestone, shale and silica. When clinker is further
subjected to grinding and added with gypsum, Portland cement is produced.

Ready Mix Concrete

Ready mix concrete (RMX) is an engineered construction material produced by mixing
cement, admixtures, water, coarse aggregates and fine aggregates. [t is produced in an RMX
batching plant under controlled conditions and delivered by transmit mixer to a customer. A
producer can make concrete of various strength grades and performance characteristics by
adjusting the proportions of the different raw materials. The manner. in which ready mix
concrete is purchased, produced and delivered is defined by ASTM C94 Standard
Specification for Ready-Mix Concrete.

Aggregates

Aggregates are granular materials of mineral compositions used for varicus construction
applications. It is used with a binding medium to form Portiand cement concrete, bituminous
concrete, precast concrete, martar, plaster and other concrete and asphalt applications. It
can be used alone for road bases, structural beddings, railroad ballast, filter beds, backfills,
etc.

The grading and quality conforms to the ASTM C33 Standard Specifications for coarse and
fine aggregates.

Holcim Tile Adhesive
Holcim Tile Adhesive is a premium cement-based adhesive for tiles specially formulated for

thin-bed vertical and horizontal application. lts unique formulation combined with Holcim
cement provides a faster, stronger adhesion, with excellent non-slip properties.

Holcim Skim Coat

Holcim Skim Coat is a cementitious plaster specially designed to smoothen vertical structures
suitable for both indoor and outdoor use, Skim Coat is used for rendering and smoothening
surfaces prior to application of sealants or decorative paints.
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Holgim Concrete Waterproofing

Holcim Waterproofing is a ong-component cement-based waterproofing specially formulated
using Holcim cement, high-quality potymers and chemical admixtures to provide superior

flexivle waterproofing of struciures.

The following table shows the breakdown of sales revenues by product line of the Company
for the periods indicated:

Tabie 1 — Revenue by Product Line

Calendar Year Calendar Year Calendar Year
Ended Ended Ended
(in Thousand Pesas) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Cement and P35,562,583 B31,774,849 R28,195,862
cemenfitious materials
Others 1,963,472 873,810 697,407
Total P37,526,0565 R32,648,659 p28,893,369

(b)) Confribution of Export Sales

The amounts and percentages of revenue attributable to export sales, including breakdown
per region, for the calendar years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Table 2 - Export Revenue

Calendar Year Calendar Year Calendar Year
Ended Ended Ended
{In Thousand Pesos) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 Becember 31, 2013
Total Export Revenues NEL B25 052 B45,767
% to Total Revenues NIL 0.08% 0.16%

B

f B

{c) Marketing and Distribution

The Company’s major domestic cusiomers are traders, wholesalers, retailers, contractors
serving private and public profects, real-estate developers and concrete producers. Notably,
HPI has suppiied a number of big commercial and government flagship projects in the entire
country.

With increasing domestic demand and HPl's customer base, there was no export sale
transaction in 2015.
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{d} New Product

Other than aggregates produced by LHAI, the Company has not formaily launched new
products in 2015. The Company, nonetheless, continuously develops and seeks to innovate
its product lines.

{e} Compestition

There are nine cement manufacturers in the Philippines, inciuding: Holcim, Republic, Cemex,
Taiheiyo, Northern, Eagle, Pacific, Goodfound and Mabuhay. According to data from the
Cament Manufacturers Association of the Philippines (CeMAP), these manufacturers operate
a total of 17 plants all over the cauntry.

Among the local players, HPI has the widest market reach spanning the three main islands of
the country with two cement manufacturing plants in Luzon, and two in Mindanao. HPI also
operates cement terminals in Manila, Calaca, Batangas, and lloilo and a grinding plant in
Mabini, Batangas, as well as warehouses in the different geographic markets. The
Company’s principal method to be competitive is to gain an in-depth understanding of
custorner needs and create value for them through superior praduct and service offerings.

HPI's products are well regarded in the construction industry. They are used in many of the
major national infrastructure projects. The four HPI cement plants are certified to meet the
1SO 9002 (Quality Management}, 1SOC 14001 {(Environmental Management) and OH&S 18001
(Occupational Health and Safety Management) standards.

() Sources and Availability of Raw Materials and Supplies

Below is a summary of the existing Mineral Production Sharing Agreement (MPSA) entered
into by HPI and its subsidiaries with the Republic of the Philippines represented by the
Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) allowing the quarrying of raw
materials required for cement production. All of these MPSAs have been assigned fo HMDC
and/or its subsidiary, HRDC. As of December 31, 2015, about haif of the applications for
transfer of said MPSAs have been approved by the DENR.

L.a Union Plant

The sources of limestone are MPSA-238-2007-1, MPSA 236-2007-1 and MPSA 043-1995-,
and silica are MPSAs 042-1985- and 295-2009- located in the provinces of La Union and
Pangasinan. The plant also sources silica from Ayungon, Negros Oriental.

Bulacan Piant

Bulacan plant's limestone sources are located in Norzagaray and Dofia Remedios Trinidad,
Bulacan, covered by MPSA 140-1999-1ll and MPSA 027-1994-Hll. The silica requirements of
the plant are sourced from third-party suppliers.

Davao Plant

Davao Plant's limestone requirement is sourced from MPSAs 08G-97-XI, 274-2008-XI and
187-2002-Xi. Silica reguirement of the plant is sourced from Ayungon, Negros Oriental.

Lugait Plant

The shale and limestone requirement of Lugait Plant are sourced from quarries covered by
MPSA 038-96-X located in Barangay Paoblacion, Lugait, Misamis Oriental, MPSA No. 047-96-
X situated in Barangay Lower Talaccgon, Lugait and Dalipuga, lligan City, and MPSA 281-
2009-X located in Barangay Pobiacion, Lugait and Barangay Dalipuga, lligan City. The silica
requirement of the plant is also sourced from Ayungon, Negros Oriental.

SEC Form 17-A CY2015 9
February 2001



Others

HMDC is the hotder of MPSA 108-98 IV located in Antipolo, Rizal, with known aggregates
resources. QLI a subsidiary of HMDC, is the holder of MPSA No. 137-98-1V.

Energy Requirement

Being an energy-intensive process, cement production requires a reliable and competitively
priced power supply for uninterrupted and cost-effective production.

The Bulacan Plant's peak demand is currently at 35 megawatts ("MW") while La Union plant’s
peak demand is currently at 15 MW. On August 12, 2011, a 15-year Energy Supply
Agreement (ESA) was signed with TA Oil on for the supply of both Bulacan Line 2 and La
Union Plants commencing in 2014, In the new ESA, electricity supply will be coming from the
135 MW Puting Bato coal-fired power plant in Calaca, Batangas owned by South Luzon
Thermal Energy Corporation, a joint venture company of TA Oil and Ayala's AC Energy
Heldings. Included in the agreement is the provision of back-up supply from the diesel power
plants in Bulacan (TA Power) and in Bacnotan {CIP/TA Oil).

In essence, power supply for the Company’s Bulacan and La Union Plants is assured over a
long-term period notwithstanding the uncertainties of how the Luzon Grid supply situation will
move. Electricity fee is structured according to time-of-use (TQU) rate with provisions for rate
increases based on fuel purchased for the power plant.

The Davao Plant's total power requirement is 22 MW. The plant primarily sourced its
electricity from the National Power Corporation (NPC) through the Mindanac Grid which
generates a substantial porfion of its power through hydroelectric power plants. Effective
September 26, 2013, Davao Plant became a “captive customer” of Davao Light and Power
Company, the Distribution Utility {DU) which holds the franchise for power distribution in the
area pursuarnt to Energy Regulatory Commission Resolution No. 27, Series of 2010.

The Lugait Plant's total power requirement is 33 MW for both lines or 27 MW with Line 2 only.
After the expiration of the Power Supply Agreement with the National Power Corporation
{NPC) on December 25, 2012, Misamis [ Oriental Electric Cooperative (Moresco 1) took over
as the power supplier of Lugait Plant pursuant to Energy Regulatory Commission Reselution
No. 27, Series of 2010. Currently, only Line 2 is operating.

Since grid supply in Mindanao is currently deficient resulting from El Niro, reduced hydro
capacities, privatization of NPC assets, new coal-fired power plants coming on line in 2018,
back-up power supply from private generators for Davao and Lugait has been put in place to
augment power supply during curtailment periods.

Mabini Grinding Plant, being a "Contestable Customer” signed a 10-year Power Supply
Agreement with TA Qil which started last June 26, 2014.

Coal and Fuel Requirements

HPI uses coat for heating the Company's kilns in La Union, Bulacan, Lugait and Davao.

HPI's Indonesian coal requirements are currently covered by yearly supply contracts. These
contracts form part of the Asia Pacific (APAC) volume pooling strategy of the LafargeHolcim
Global/Regional Category Management Team in which HP! is an active member. The said
strategy helped APAC operating companies to leverage in both product and freight resulting
in more competitive rates, Spot purchases shall remain as an option to have a healthy
balance of supply reliability and market competitive prices.

For iocal coal requirements, the Company's five-year contract with Semirara expired
December 31, 2014. Negotiations were concluded for a one-year fixed price contract with
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Semirara for 2015. Negotiations are ongoing for the 2016 supply in coordination with
LafargeHolcim Energy Solutions.

The Company also has a five-year supply contract with Petron Corporation, effective July 1,
2010 to June 30, 2015, to cover its bunker and diesel fuel requirements. This was extended
to October 31, 2015 undil the bidding was finalized. Supply of bunker and diesel has been
awarded to SL Harbor and Petron, respectively, and is valid from November 1, 2015 to
October 31, 2017.

The Company has not experienced any disruption in its solid and liquid fuel supply.
{q) Dependence on a Single or a Few Customers

The Company employs a multi-level distribution strategy in serving the market. This covers
wholesaler and retailer intermediaries, traders, ready mix companies, concrete products
manufacturers, international and local contractors, and real-estate developers. At the same
time, HP1 supports numerous [arge- and medium-scale government infrastruciure projects.
The aim is for the business not {o be dependent on a single or a few customers but rather
achieve a well-balanced customer portfolic. The loss of one or more customers will have no
material adverse effect on the Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole.

(h) Related Party Transaclions

Please see Note 25 — Related Party Transactions to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for details.

(i) Trademarks, Licenses, Concessions, Labor Conlracts

As discussed in ltem {f) above, HPt andfor HMDC and its relevant subsidiaries hold MPSAs
that grant exciusive rights to the exploration, development and commercial use of certain
limestone, shale and other mineral deposits existing within contracted areas based on an
agreed revenue-sharing arrangement with the government. Alt MPSAs have been assigned to
HMDC and/or its subsidiary, HRDC. As of December 31, 2015, about half of the applications
for transfer of said MPSAs have been approved by the DENR.

On labor contracts, please see the discussion on employees under [tem m.

The Philippine Intellectual Property Office has issued a Notice of Allowance for the trademark
registration of HSSI for its Hubb logo.

() Governmental Approval of Principal Froducts

The Bureau of Product Standards {BPS) granted HPI the license to use the Philippine
Standard Quality Certification Mark for its principal products. The license took effect from the
date of issue and continues to be in full force unless otherwise revoked or cancelled by the
BPS.

All other necessary licenses and permits required for the continuous production and sale of
HPI products have been secured by the Company, including licenses that have to be renewed
periodically.

(k) Research and Deveiopment
The Company is engaged in research and development for improving the production process

used in its plants and for improving the quality and strength of its products. The Company
spent a total of R80.5 million research and development costs in last three years as follows:
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Table 3 —~ Research and Development Costs

Amount [ Percentage

Period Covered (‘000 Pesos)|to Revenues

CY ended December 31, 20156 R27 578 0.07%

CY ended December 31, 2014 20,023 0.09%

CY ended December 31, 2013 23,894 G.08%
Total R80,495

(f} Costs and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws

in support of LafargeHolcim Group initiatives on Sustainable Environmental Performance, HPI
is committed to comply with environmental regulations both lacally and internationally.

Cement dust emission is targeted at lower emission levels as compared to the Philippine
Clean Air Act dust emission limit of 150 mg/ Nm3. The Company maintains and operates
modern electrostatic precipitators, bag houses, multi-cyclone and bag filters to mitigate dust
emissions. With these modern dust control systems in place, HPl's cement plants keep dust
emission levels befow the prescribed government standards.

Installing and operating the Continuous Emission Monitoring System (CEMS) in all four plants
ensures real time monitoring of the overall performance of the plants. Infermation provided by
this state-of-the-art system which includes monitoring of NOx and SO2 emissions confirms
that afl HPI piants are compliant with the existing government standards.

The Company engages a third party service provider, accredited by the Environmental
Management Bureau {EMB), to conduct periodic source emission testing for dust, gaseous
emissions, heavy metals and Dioxin/Furan (DF). In addition, Relative Accuracy Test Audit
(RATA) and Cyilinder Gas Audit (CGA) are regularly conducted to ensure data reliability of the
installed CEMS.

Quarry areas, now assigned to HMDC and/or HRDC, undergo progressive rehabilitation
activities as an integral component of the Annual Environmental Protection and Enhancement
Program (AEPEP). As the first Philippine company o have a DENR-approved Final Mine
Rehabititation and Decommissioning Plan, all plants are compiiant not only with the local
regulations but also with LafargeHolcim Group directives. The progressive rehabilitation plans
of HMDC and HRDC are not limited to active quarry areas; the ptan also includes degraded
areas covered by MPSA.

The Company also complies with DENR regulations on environmental funding. Each plant
has established depository accounts called Mine Rehabilitation Funds; maintained in two
forms namely Rehabilitation Cash Fund (RCF) and Monitoring Trust Fund (MTF). The RCF is
at least B5 million earmarked for rehabilitation programs approved by the DENR; while the
MTF is at least P150,000 to serve as the quarterly operating budget for the muliipartite
monitoring team.

With HPI's emission monitoring system, HMDC and HRDC's quarry rehabilitation plans, and
strict compliance with the reportorial requirement on actual performance validated by regular
guarterly monitoring by multi-stakeholders and government audit, the Company is
continuously compliant with Phitippine regutations,

{m) Employees

As of December 31, 2015, HPl and subsidiaries had a total of 1,662 officers and regular
employees broken down as follows:
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Table 4 — Officers and Employees

Location HP1 Subsidiaries TOTAL
Head Office* 472 195 687
Bulacan Plant 271 271
La Union Plant 226 226
Davao Plani 264 264
Lugait Plant 4 174 178
Calumpit 45 : 45
Calaca 11 - 11
Total 1,293 369 1,662

* Inciudes ECLS, RMX, HSSI and Mabini planis

The Company does not expect a significant increase in the number of employees in the next

12 months.

HPI cement plant employees are unionized and all labor unions have a Collective Bargaining
Agreement {CBA) signed with the Company. The rank and file employees of HPI's bag plant
and subsidiary ECLI have also organized their respective unions. The Company maintains a
positive relationship with its workers by implementing policies that are fully cognizant of the
workers' rights and needs through open communication and adherence to agreed grievance

procedures.

The foliowing table shows the respective fabor unions of HPI and is subsidiaries and the

expiry dates of their CBAs:

Table 5 —~ Labor Unions

Lacation of Cement Plant

Labor Union

CBA Expiry Date

Norzagaray, Bulacan

Holcim Philippines Employees
Association {(HPEA formerly Hi

Cement Worker's Union)

UCC Bufacan Supervisory
Employees Union

December 31, 2015
{negotiation ongoing as of the
date of this report)

February 28, 2018

Baenotan, La Union

La Union Cement Workers Union

Holcim La Union Supervisory
Employees Union

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2019

Davao City

Davao Helcim Employees Workers
Union (DAHEWU formerly Southern
Phil. Federation of Labor)

Holcim Davao Supervisory
Independent Union

March 31, 2015 — {negotiation
onhgoing as of the date of this
report)

March 31, 2020

Lugait, Misamis Oriental

Holcim Lugait Employees Labor
Union (HOLELU, All Workers Trade

|Uniors All AWATU)

Holcim Lugait Supervisors
independent Union

July 31, 2016

March 31, 2018
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Calumpit, Bulacan Holcim Paper Bag Plant Employees |December 31, 2018
Association — FFW Chapler

Quezon City Excel Concrete Logistics, March 31, 2018
incorporated Workers Union —
National Union of Building and
Construction Workers

(n) Risk Facfor

Political and £conomic Factors

The Company and its subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the manufacture of clinker and
cement in the Philippines. Generally, cement sales are highly dependent on the ecohomic
and political conditions in the couniry.

One of the principal factors that may materially affect financial performance is the level of
construction activity in the public and private sectors. Public sector construction activity has
always been a significant part of cement demand. However, government spending on
construction-related activities (e.q., infrastructure and housing) is dependent on various
factors: budgetary consfraints, political considerations and the stage of economic
development in the country,

On the other hand, private sector spending is primarily driven by investors’ confidence in the
country, which in turn, is dependent on the country's economic and politicat conditions.  Any
perceived politicat instability or lower-than-expected economic growth could have an adverse
effect on the Company's financial performance.

Availability of Stable Power Supply

Since cement manufacturing is an energy-intensive process, adequate power is vitat for HPI's
continuous operations. Curtaitment of power supply will materially affect the operation of HPI
plant operations.

La Union and Bulacan Plants source their toftal power requirements from the Luzon Grid. An
assessment of the Luzon market indicates that there will be adequate supply in the area until
2014 assuming all power plants are operating at their capabilities and committed capacity
additions are realized. The Company signed a 15-year Energy Supply Agreemant on August
12, 2011 with TA Qil for both plants starting 2014. The newly commissioned CIF Diesel
Power Plant owned by TA Oi! will provide back-up to La Union Plant in case of grid failures,
the arrangement of which was structured after that of Bulacan’s.

Davao and Lugait Plants’ power reguirements are now supplied by the distribution utitity of
their respective franchise area pursuant to Energy Regulatory Commission Resolution No. 27,
Series of 2010. Mindanao's supply mostly comes from hydroelectric power plants comprising
approximately 40% of the total generation capability. With the increasing demand and
dwindiing hydropower generation capacity, power curtailment is expected to persist untif the
completion and operations of various coal-fired power plants starting 2016.

The shift from hydropower to coal-fired power plants to cover baseload requirements is
expected to generally result in increased electricity cost. For its current needs, the Company
has entered into contingency arrangements with private generators to provide back-up power
in case of forced power curtailment.

The Company is currently evaluating all available options for a reliable and sustainable power
supply portfolio for its Mindanac plants.
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Compliance with Financial Covenants

The Company's long-term lcan agreements, if any, provide certain restrictions and
requirements with respect to, ameng others, maintenance of financial ratios, incurrence of
new long-term debt, investment in any corporation or person, material changes in character of
the Company’s business, material change in ownership or control of the Company, disposal
of assets and properties, and merger or consolidation with other parties without prior
creditors’ consent.

HPI complied with all the financial ratios requirement of its lean covenants as of December
31, 2011. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company has no outstanding long-term
loans.

Dependence on Key Facilities

Substantially all of HPI's income has been, and will be derived from the sale of products
manufactured at its preduction facilities in l.uzon and Mindanao. Any prolonged breakdown of,
or significant damage to, the Company's production facilities or quarries could have an
adverse effect on the results of its operations. HPIl maintains comprehensive property and
casualty insurance policies covering its production facilities and key assets under an Industrial
All-Risk policy. However, there can be no assurance that the proceeds from HPI's insurance
claims would be sufficient to compensate the Company for all the effects of possible loss
and/or damage. Notwithstanding that, the Company has appropriate processes and measures
in place to further mitigate the risk of any possible loss or damage.

Impact of the Exchange Rate Fluctuations

The Philippine Peso was generally stable during the year. From the exchange rate of B44.72
against the US Dollar as of December 31, 2014, it closed at B47,17 as of December 31, 2015.
The depreciation of the peso increases cost of production inputs such as imported fuel and
supplies but may result in an increase in the peso value of its export revenues. Conversely, a
significant appreciation of the peso will reduce production costs but will also reduce revenues
from export sales.

Environmental and Regulatory Matters

Cement manufacturing invalves heavy use of fossil fuel {coal and bunker fuel) and efectric
power, and possible emission of dust in the atmosphere, factors that may adversely affect the
environment.

HP conforms with rules and regulations defined under the following: The Philippine EIS
System (PD 1586), The Philippine Mining Act of 1995 (RA 7942}, The Philippine Clean Air Act
1999 (RA 8749}, Philippine Clean Water Act of 2004 (RA 9275), Ecological Solid Waste
Management Act of 2000 (RA 9003), and Toxic Substances & Hazardous & Nuclear Waste
Control Act of 1990 {RA 6969). Other Applicable Laws & Regulations are also identified in the
Company’s Integrated Management System Manual.

In a group-wide program, the Company decided to reduce dust emissions below the
prescribed 150 mg/ Nm3 level that the government allows cement plants to emit under the
Philippine Clean Air Act (RA 8749). The Company maintains and operates modern
electrostatic precipitators, bag houses, multi-cycione and bag filters for mitigating the dust
coming from its plants’ pre-heater towears, kiins and cement milt grinding systems. With these
modern dust control systems in place, HPl's cement plants kept dust emission levels below
the prescribed government standard. Moreover in 2003, the Company installed a state-of-
the-art Continuous Emission Monitering System (CEMS) in all its four plants. The system
provides all information required to measure the Company's overall environmental
performance and has confirmed that HPI's plants are compliant with the existing government
standards, :
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Based on the assessment made on the existing facilities, the Company helieves it complies
with the provisions of the Clean Air Act and its implementing rules and regulations.

Under the Philippine Environmental Impact Assessment taw, quarrying, an activity required
for the supply of raw materials for cement production, is classified as an Environmentally
Critical Project. As such, it is subject to all applicable local environmental regulations. This
includes the environmental impact assessmenis and the consequent environmental
management programs mandated under the Philippine Clean Air Act, the Environmental
Compliance Certificate (ECC), and the complementary environmental provisions of the Mining
Act's implementing ruies and regulations. The status of compliance on the conditions stated
in the ECC is regularly reported to DENR through the submission of Self-Monitoring Reports
(SMR), Compliance Monitoring Reports (CMR), and Compliance Menitoring and Verification
Reports (CMVR).

For 2015, before the approval of the transfers of the MPSAs to HMDC and HRDCGC, HPI's four
plants continued to be recognized by the relevant national government agencies for its
environmental programs and natural resource stewardship. The Company's La Union
Plani bagged the Platinum award in the Presidential Mineral Industry Environmental Award
(PMIEA)} for the Quarry Category while the Davao Piant and LHAPs aggregate plant won
the Titanium PMIEA.

Lugait Plant was also recognized with the Best Mining Forest Program under Non-Metallic
Category and declared as winner with the La Union and Pavao Plants adjudged as 2nd and
3rd runner-up, respectively.

LHAI's aggregates plant was also deciared runner-up for the Safest Quarry Operations Award
for 2015.

Executive Order (EQ} 79

On July 6, 20112, the Philippine Government issued EO 79, Institutionalizing and Implementing

Reforms in the Philippine Mining Secior. Providing Policies and Guidelines to Ensure

Environmental Protection and Respensible Mining in the UHilization of Mineral Resources also

known as the Revised Mining Act, EO 79 provides for the following, among others:

= restriction of applications of mineral contracts an agreements in critical areas and pending
naw legislation;

= review of performance of existing mining operation and cleansing of non-moving mining
rights holders;

= review of existing mining contracts and agreements for possible renegotiation of terms
and conditions:

* establishment of mineral reservations and opening areas of mining through competitive
public bidding; )

= disposition of abandoned ores and valuable metals in mine wastes and mill tailings; and,

= creation of the Mining Industry Coordinating Councit with powers and functions granted by
this EC.

On October 8, 2012, the DENR published Administrative Order Mo. 2012-07-A containing
guidance for the implementation of EG 79.

Management continuously monitors the implementation and impact of EO 78 on the industry
in general.

ftem 2 Froperties

The Company’'s major items of property, plant and equipment are located in Norzagaray,
Bulacan; Bacnotan, La Union; Bo. Hang, Davao City; Lugait, Misamis Oriental; Mabini, Batangas;
Calaca, Batangas; and Manila. The table shows the consolidated properties of HPI as of December
31, 2015 compared to Becember 31, 2014,
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Table 6 — Plant, Property and Equipment (Consolidated)

December 31, | December 31,

(in Thousand Fesos) 2015 2014
Land and land improvements R469,007 B1,863,433
Machinery and equipment 22,636,586 21,231,883
Buiidings and instaitations 12,321,982 12,134,485
Furniture, vehicles and tools 1,060,142 1,206,519
Construction in progress 2,499,329 2,674,532
38,987,046 39,110,852

Less: Accumulated depreciation, depletion

and allowance for impairment loss 22,968,398 21,506,416
Total #16,018,648 R17,604,436

In connection with the principal properties of the Company, there are no material existing

mortgages, liens or encumbrances nor limitations in the usage or ownership.

There are no imminent acquisitions of property of significant amount that cannot be funded by

the Company's working capital and debt.

The table below summarizes the significant lease agreements entered into by the Company

as a lessee.
Description Start Date Expiration Date 2015 Lease Renewal Options
Payments (in ‘000}

HO Office 01.12.2G08 30.11.2018 Php38,153 The lease may be renewed upon the
written agreement and under such terms
and conditions as maybe acceptable o
both pariigs.

Betonval iot 27.08.2008 26.08.2018 6,564 Renewable as may be mutually agreed by
the parties

Industrial - 16.01.2013 15.01.2018 4,167 The contract may be renewed or

Warehouse extended upon the mutual agreement of

ftem 3 Legal Proceedings

the Parties.

The Company is either a defendant or plaintiff in several civil, criminal and labor cases

primarily invalving coilection and claims for damages. Based on the representation of management
and the opinion of the Company’s external legal counsels, the resolution of such cases will nof result
in any significant liability or loss of assets.

Pending material legal proceedings involving the Company are described in Exhibit 4.
Item 4 Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Excapt for the matters taken up during the fast annual meeting of the stockholders covered by

the Company's SEC Form 20-18 report, no matter was submitted to a vote of security holders through
salicitation of proxies or otherwise during the calendar year covered by this report.
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PART 1l - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 5 Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market Information

(1)

HPI common shares are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange {PSE). The high and low
rarket prices of HPI shares for each quarter of calendar year 2015, and that of the past two calendar
years, as reported by the PSE, are shown below:

Table 7 ~ Market Prices of HPI Shares

Quarter Period cY 2015 Y 2014 CY 2013

High Low High Low High Low
January — March 14.50 14.50 13.24 12.80 13.72 13.70
April — June 13.88 13.02 13.30 13.26 14.00 13.50
July — September 13.74 12,90 14.10 14.00 12.70 12.70
October — December 14.24 14.24 14.98 14,82 16.50 15.20

Source! Philippine Stock Exchange, inc,

As of February 29, 2018, the closing price of the Company's common shares at the PSE is P14.0 per

share.

(2)

Stockholders

As of December 31, 2015, HPI has 6,452,099,144 shares outstanding held by 5,527
stockholders. The list of the top twenty stockholders of the Company as recorded by Stock Transfer
Service, Inc., the Company’s stock fransfer agent, is as follows:

Table 8 — Top Twenty (20} Stockholders

Rank Name Citizenship Shares (Sum) %
1 UNION CEMENT HOLDINGS FILIPINO 3,906,425,500 60,55%
CORPORATION
2 B. V HOLDERFIN PUTCH 1,168,450,997 18.11%
3 SUMITOMO OSAKA CEMENT CQ., LTD, | JAPANESE 584,852,725 9.22%
4 CEMCO HOLDINGS, INC. FILIPINO 456,689,560 7.08%
5 PCD NOMINEE CORP. (NON-FILIPINQ) | FOREIGN 175,713,831 2.72%
8 PCD NOMINEE CORP. (FILIPINO) FILIPINO 113,205,793 1.76%
7 FEDERAL HOMES, INC. FILIPINO 4,054,054 0.06%
8 ANTONIO M, DUMALIANG &/OR FILIPINO 922,363 0.01%
ROSALINDA S, DUMALIANG
9 LEONCIO TIU FILIPINO 705,000 0.01%
10 | KAKUGARA AKIHIKO JAPANESE 559,580 0.01%
11 | LIS CO CHI KIAT FILIPINO 511,242 0.01%
12 | JOAQUIN Q. TAN FILIPINO 380,000 0.01%
13 | LUIS ROLANDQO GARCIA FADRIGO FILIPINO 294 085 0.00%
14 | AMERICAN WIRE & CABLE CO., INC. FILIPINO 290,993 0.00%
15 | CIPRIANO VILLANUEVA AMANDO FILIPINO 282,137 0.00%
16 | CORAZON V. DOMINGUEZ FILIPINO 221,081 0.00%
17 | UNIVERSITY OF SANTO TOMAS FILIPINO 180,760 0.00%
18 | RAMON C. CHAN FILIPINO 189,189 0.00%
19 | FRANCIS L. ESCALER FILIPINO 186,935 0.00%
20 | ISABELA CULTURAL CORPORATION FILIPINO 156,439 0.00%
Total 6,424,472,243 99.57%
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{3) Dividends

The Company is authorized to pay cash or stock dividends, or & combination thereof, subject
to approval by the Company’s Board of Directors and/or its shareholders. Dividends paid in the form
of additional shares are subject to approval by the Company’s Board of Directors, the SEC and the
stockholders of at least two thirds of the outstanding shares of the Company. Holders of outstanding
shares on a dividend record date for such shares will be entitled to the full dividend declared without
regard to any subsequent transfer of shares,

Other than the provisions in the loan covenants agreed to by the Company, there are no other
lirnitations for the Coampany to declare dividends to its common stock.

Cash dividends were declared in for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Cash Dividend Per Share (PhP) RC.82 RO.70 R0.55
Amaount Declared (PhP} R5.3 billion | R4.5 billion | B3.5 billion
Declaration Date 18-May-15 | 16-May-14 | 23-May-13
Record Date 15-June-15 | 13-June-14 | 21-June-13

{4) Sales of Unregistered Securities Within the Last Three (3) Years

There are no other securities sold for cash by the Company within the last three years that
were not registered under the Securities Regulation Code (SRC).

ltem 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis

Review of CY 2015 Operations vs. CY 2014

In 2015, the Country’'s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew by 5.8%*. While lower compared with
the 6.1% growth in 2014, the Philippine economy is still regarded as among the fastest growing
economies in Asia. The growth in GDP was primarily driven by the growth in the Service sector
despite slower realized growth in the Industry sector, contraction in the Agriculture sector brought
about by the onset of Ef Nino, and adverse weather conditions during the latter part of the year.

Similarly, the cement industry grew by 14.3%** year on year boosted by robust developments in
private and public construction, particularty the accelerated government infrastructure spending in H2
2015,

Driven by the strong demand from both pubiic and private sector, the Company’s revenue increased
to Php37.5 Bic, or 14.8% higher compared to that of last year. As a result of the Company’s cost
management initiatives, and manufacturing and distribution excellence with a strong sales
performance, EBITDA amounted to Php9.5 Bio or 8.6% higher against that of last year. Net income
on the other hand, amounted to Php8.1 Bio compared with Php5.1 Bio, or 58.8% higher against that
of last year. The increase was mainly due to the Php2.6 Bic one-time gain on re-measurement of
retained equity in a subsidiary. Without the one-time gain, net income stood at Php5.5 Bio.

*Source: Phifippine Statistics Authority _
*Source: Cement Manufacturer's Association of the Philippines
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Key Performance Indicators {“KP1")

The comparative financial KPI for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as
follows:

For the Calendar Year

Financial KPI Definition ended December 31
2015 2014
Profitahility
Net Income
A A% 49
Return on Assets (ROA) Ave. Total Assets 25.1% 17.4%
: Net income
R Equity {ROE - 34,69 23.6%
eturn on Equity (ROE) Ave. Total Equity % °
. . QOperating EBITDA
BITD .39 26.59
QOperating E A Margin Net Sales 25.3% Ya
Liquidity
Gearing Ratio Net Financial Debt 4.1% -0.6%
Total Equity
Operating EBITDA
EBITDA Net Interest Cover {times) Net Interest 161.4 282.14
Profitabitity

ROA and ROE for CY 2015 grew as a result of higher profitability of the business. This was
also impacted by the re-measurement of retained equity in a subsidiary from the deconsolidation of
HMDC group in Becember 2015.

Licuidity

The Company shows a strong liquidity base with a low gearing ratio, much below the 100%
target level.

Significant Disciosures

Please refer to Exhihit 5 of this report for the significant disclosures made by the Company
during the year. Other than those mentioned in Exhibit 5, the Company is not aware of the following:

1. Unusual items that materiaily affect the Company's consolidated assets, liabilities, equity,
net income or cash flows because of their nature, size or incidents.

2. Changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the current financial
year or changes in estimates of amounts in prior financial years that have a material
effect in the current period.

3. Issuances and repurchase of equity securities.
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4. Material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual
balance sheet date.

5. Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that are material to
an understanding of the current period.

6. Known trends, demands, commitments, events and uncertainties that will result in or likely
decrease its liquidity in a material way, The Company does not anticipate having within
the next 12 months any cash flow or liquidity problems nor does it anticipate any defauit
or breach of any of its existing notes, loans, leases, other indebtedness or financial
arrangements requiring it to make payments. With the improvement in the Company’s
operating performance, it expects to meet all financial loan covenants for the next interim
period.

7. Events that will trigger direct or contingent material financial obligations to the Company.

8. Material off-batance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations {direct or contingent),
and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons
created during the year,

9. Material commitmants for capital expenditures.

10. Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to
have a material favorable impact on net sales, revenues, net income from continuing
operations.

11. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's continuing
operations.

12, Material events subsequent to end of the reporting period that have not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements
Accounting Policies and Frinciples

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and the consolidated statements of income, statements of
comprehensive income, statemends of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards applied on a consistent basis. The detailed accounting
policies are disclosed in Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Consclidated
Financiat Statements.

Seasonality Aspects of the Business
Like any other company in the construction industry, the operations of HP1 are affected by
seasonality or cyclicality. During the months starting December to May, demand for cementi is greater

than in the rainy months from June to November.

General Risk Management Approach

The Company is expesed to various financial risks, which inciude the effect of changes in
debt structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The
Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. The
Company uses derivative instruments such as cross-currency swaps io hedge the interest and foreign
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exchange risks from its foreign currency-denominated debt. The Company does not enter into other
derivative or financial transactions which are unrelated to its operating business as a risk-averse
approach is pursued.

Financial risk management of the Company is governed by policies approved by
management. It provides principtes for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific
risk areas such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidity requirements.

The Company's principal financial instrurments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and
cash equivalents and notes payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
funds for the Company’'s operations. The Company also has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade and other receivables, advances to employees, guarantee deposits, restricted
cash and trade and other payables which arise directly from cperations.

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are market risks (which
include foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of
Directors {BOD) reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below. The Company’s accounting policies in relation to financial instruments are set out
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Market Risks

The Company is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency, interest rate and equity
price risks. To manage volatility relating to these exposures, the Company enters into derivative
financial instruments, when necessary. The Company's objective is to reduce, where appropriate,
fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency, interest rate and

equity price.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company has foreign exchange exposures, arising primarily from sales, purchases of
goods and services and debf servicing requirements in currencies other than the Philippine Peso that
leads to currency translation effects. Of the Company’s revenues, approximately NIL in 2018 and
0.1% in 2014 and 0.2% 2013 are denominated in currencies other than the Philippine Peso. The
Company may hedge cerfain foreign currency-denominated borrowings or other instruments by
entering into derivative transactions.

Bue to the tocal nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited. However, income
may primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount of capital
expenditures may be in foreign currencies. As a consequence thereof, the Company may enter into
derivative contracts whenever necessary, which may be designated either as cash flow hedges or fair
value hedges, as appropriate.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument {cash flow
interest rate risk) or its fair value {fair vaiue interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in
market inferest rates.

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements of its
debt porffolia related to changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest rate exposure is
mainly addressed through the steering of the fixed/floating ratio of net debt. To manage this mix, the
Company may enter into derivative transactions, as appropriate. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
the Company has minimal exposure to interest rate risk.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed.
To manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers.

The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial
instruments consist of a large number of major financial institutions. The Company does not expect
any counterparties to fail in meeting their obligations, given their high credit ratings. In addition, the
Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of
ceunterparties,

The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. It is the Company's
policy that all third-party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to reduce the
Company's exposure to bad debts to minimal.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which
consist of due from related parties, advances to employees, available for sale (AFS) financial assets,
and guarantee and refundable deposits, the Company's exposures arise from default of the
counterparty, with & maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

The Company’s exposure o credit risks arising from outstanding financial assets is disclosed
in Note 15 — Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation exposes the
Company to shortage of funds during stack season and may result in payment defaults of financial
commitments. The Company monitors this risk using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tcol
considers the maturity of both its financial assets and prejected cash flows from operations. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank credit facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts. |t is responsible for its own cash

surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject to policies and guidelines approved
by management and in cerfain cases at the BOD level.

The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-
term in nature, unused credit lines and readily available marketable securities to meet its liquidity
requirements at all times. In addition, the strong credit worthiness of the Company allows it to make
efficient use of the financial markets for financing purposes. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
Company has unutitized credit facilities of B8.1 billion and R10.4 billion, respectively.

The Company's financial assets and liabilites as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are
disclosed in Note 15 — Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consalidated
Financial Statements.

Capital Management Policy

The Company considers equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company as its
capital. The Company's objectives when managing capital are to secure the Company’s ongoing
financial needs to continue as a going concern as well as to cater to ifs growth targets to provide
returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a cost-efficient and risk-
optimized capital structure.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjusiments to it in light of the
changes in economic conditions, its business activities, investment and expansion program and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
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may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capitat fo shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio. Gearing is
calculated as net financial debt divided by total equity in the parent company bafance sheets as
shown in the table below:

2015 2014
Notes payable R999,831 B2,100,105
Customers’ deposits 505,987 468,823
Financial debt 1,505,818 2,568,928
Less cash and cash equivalents 2,540,198 2,698,207
Net financial debt (asset) {1,034,380) {129,279)
Total equity 24,969,466 22095277
Gearing ratio (4.1%) (0.8%)

The Company's target is to maintain a gearing in the range of no more than 100 percent.
Total equity grew by 13.0% in 2015 as a result of improving operating resulis for the year.
Material Changes in Balance Sheet Accounts

Cagh and cash equivalents

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents were mainly due te the acquisition of PPE and higher
dividends payment. :

Trade and other receivables

Receivables increased as a result of higher sales made in December 2015 as compared fo
the same month of last year and higher DSO.

Investments

increase was mainly driven by the re-measurement of retained equity in an asscciate that
was previously 100% owned subsidiary after the deconsolidation in December 2015.

Property, Plant and Eguipment

Decrease was mainly driven by disposals, retirementimpairment and result of
deconsolidation.

Intangibles assets - net

Decrease was due io the deconsciidation of the carrying values of the foreshore Iease
agreement in Mabini, Batangas and mining rights of the HMDC group.

Beferred income tax assets — net

Increase was attributable to the additional provisions/ accruals for allowance of doubtful
accounts, decline in value of inventories and. impairment losses on property, plant and equipment in
2015.

Nateg Pagable'

Decrease was mainly due to the payment of Php 1.0 billion loan from Union Cement Holdings
Corporation,
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Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables increased by Php0.8 million, mainly driven by higher payables
related to clinker and fuel importation.

income Tax Payable

Increase was due to the higher taxable income for the Q4 as compared with that of the same
period of 2014.

Retirement Benefit Liabilities

Decrease was mainly due to arganizational effictency and impact of deconsolidation.

Deferred income tax liabilities-net

The increase was mainly attributable to unrealized foreign exchange gain.

Reserves

Decrease is mainly due to payment of share-based rémuneration during the year.

Re-measurement loss on retirement banefits — net

The decrease was due to the updated assumptions and adjustments which are considered in
the retirement liability calculation.

Retained Earnings

Increase was due to higher realized net income.

Non-controlling interests

Decrease was due to higher share in dividends declared than the share in realized net
income during the year.

Material Changes in Income Statement Accounts
Revenues
Increase was mainty driven by higher volume sold brought about by strong demand.

Cost of Sales -

The increase was mainly due to higher volume produced and sold as a result of robust
demand and higher usage of imported clinker and cement.

General and administralive expenses

The increase was due to higher expenditure on third-party services related to corporate
initiative projects and impairment provisions as compared to that of the prior year.

Selling Expenses

The increase was mainly due to higher costs related to third-party services and personnel
cost,
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Interest and Other Financial Income

The increase was due to higher interest earned on short-term deposits.

Interest and Financing Charges

The increase was due to higher interests realized for loans availed within the year.

Forelagn Exchange Gains (Losses) — net

Increase was due to increase in dollar-denominated assets which were revalued at year-end.

Gain on re-measurement of retained equity in a subsidiary

This pertains to the unrealized gain on the retained equity in HMDC.
QOthers — net
Increase was mainly due to gain on sale of assets during the year.

Provisian for Income Tax

The increase was mainly due to the higher realized taxable income in 2015 compared to that
of the previous year, and the taxes incurred from the fransfer of land assets to HMBC.

Review of CY 2014 Operations vs CY 2013

tn 2014, the Country's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew by 6.1%*. While lower compared
with the 7.2% growth in 2043, this has been the third consecutive year where more than 6% growth
was realized. Robust performance in manufacturing and construction and also from the services and
agricuiture sectors fueled such growth.

Similarly, the cement industry grew by 9.5% on the back of strong public and private
infrastructure spending.

Driven by the strong demand from both public and private sector, the Company's revenue
increased to Php32.6 Bio, or 13% higher compared to last year. As a result of the Company's cost
management initiatives and manufacturing and distribution excellence with strong sales performance,
EBITDA and net income for 2014 amounted to Php8.8 Bio and Php5.2 Bio, respectively. An increase
of 15.1% and 12.9% as compared to last year, respectively.

*Source: Nationat Stafistical Coordination Board _
*Saurce: Cement Manufacturer's Association of the Fhilippine
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Key Performance Indicators (“KPL’)

The comparative financial KP! for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as

follows:
Financiat KPI Definition For the Calendar Year
ended December 31
2014 2013
Profitability
Return on Assets (ROA) Net Income 17.4% 16.8%
Ave. Total Assets ' '
Return on Equity (ROE) Net Income 23.6% 21.7%
autty Ave. Total Equity : '
- . Operating EBITDA
A M 26,5% 3%
Qperating EBITDA Margin Net Sales 6.5% 26.3%
Liquidity
. , Net Financial Debt -
G - 0.6% - 3.6%
earing Ratio Total Equity 0.6% Y%
Operating EBITDA
EBITDA Net Interest Cover (times) Net Interest 2821 Nil
Profitability
ROA, ROE and EBITDA margin for CY 2014 grew as a result of higher profitability of the
business.
Liquidity

The Company shows a strong liquidity base with a lower gearing, much below the 100%

target level.

Significant Disclosures

Please refer to Exhibit 5 of this report for the significant disclosures made by the Company
during the year. Other than those mentioned in Exhibit 5, the Company is not aware of the following:

1. Unusual items that materially affect the Company's consolidated assets, liabilities,
equity, net income or cash flows because of their nature, size or incidents.

2. Changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the current financial
year or changes in estimates of amounts in prior financial years that have a material

effect in the current period.

3. lIssuances and repurchase of equity securities.

4, Material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annuai

halance sheet date.
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5. Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that are material to
an understanding of the current period.

6. Known trends, demands, commitments, events and unceriainties that will result in or
likely decrease its liquidity in a material way. The Company does not anticipate having
within the next 12 months any cash flow or liquidity problems nor does it anticipate any
default or breach of any of its existing notes, loans, leases, other indebtedness or
financial arrangements requiring it to make payments. With the improvement in the
Company's operating performance, it expects to meet all financial loan covenants for the
next interim period.

7. Events that will irigger direct or contingent materiat financial obligations to the Company.

8. Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations {direct or contingent),
and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons
created during the vear.

9, Material commitments for capital expenditures.

10. Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to
have a material favorable impact on net sales, revenues, net income from continuing
operations.

11, Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.

12. Material events subsequent to end of the reporting period that have not been reflected in
the consolidated financiat statements.

13, Material changes in the composition of the company, including any business
combination, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments.

Notes to Financial Statements
Accounting Poiicies and Principles

The consociidated financial statements of the Company, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the consolidated statements of income, statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards applied on a consistent basis. The detailed accounting
policies are disclosed in Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Seasonality Aspecits of the Business
Like any other company in the construction industry, the operations of HPI are affected by
seasonality or cyclicality. During the months starting December to May, demand for cement is greater

than in the rainy months from June to November.

General Risk Management Approach

The Company is exposed to various financiat risks, which include the effect of changes in
debt structure, equity market prices and foreign currency exchange rates. The Company’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
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potential and adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. The Company uses
derivative instruments such as cross-currency swaps to hedge the foreign exchange risks from its
foreign currency-denominated debt. The Company does not enter into other derivative or financial
transactions which are unrelated to its operating business as a risk-averse approach is pursued.

Financial risk management of the Company is govemned by policies approved by
management. It provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific
risk areas such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidily requirements.

The Company's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and
cash equivalents, notes payable and long-term debt. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise funds for the Company’s operations. The Company also has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, due from related parties, advances to employees,
guarantee deposits, restricted cash and trade and other payables, which arise directly from
operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market risks credit risk
and liguidity risk. The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarized below. The Company's accounting policies in relation to financiat instruments
are set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial staterments,

Market Risks

The Company is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency and interest rate. To
manage volatility relating to these exposures, the Company enters into. derivative financial
instruments, when necessary. The Company’s objective is to reduce, where appropriate, fluctuations
in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency, interest rate and equity price.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company has foreign exchange exposures arising primarily from sales, purchases of
goods -and services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Philippine Peso that
leads to currency transtation effects. Of the Company’'s revenue, approximately 0.1% in 2014 and
0.2% in 2013 and 2012 are denominated in currencies other than the Philippine Peso. The Company
may hedge certain foreign currency-denominated borrowings or other instruments by entering into
derivative transactions.

Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited. However, income
may primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount of capital
expenditures may be in foreign currencies. As a consequence thereof, the Company may enter into
derivative contracts whenever necessary, which may be designated sither as cash flow hedges or fair
value hedges, as appropriate.

The Company's expesure to foreign currency risk is disclosed in Note 16 — Financial Risk
Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to seftle their obligations as agreed.
To manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers.

The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterpaities to financial
instruments consist of a large number of major financial institutions. The Company does not expect
any counterparties to fail in meeting their obligations, given their high credit ratings. In addition, the
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Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of
counterparties.

The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. It is the Company’'s
policy that alt third party customers whao wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to reduce the
Company's exposure to bad debts to minimal.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which
consist of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL), available for sale(AFS) financial
assets, due from related parties, advances to employees, advances to subsidiaries and guarantee
deposit, the Company's exposures arise from default of the counterparty, with 2 maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amount of these instruments,

The Company's exposure to credit risks arising from outstanding financial assets is disclosed
in Note 15 — Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the rigk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation exposes the
Company to shortage of funds during slack season and may result in payment defaults of financial
commitments. The Company menitors this risk using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial assets and projected cash flows from operations. The
Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between centinuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank credit facilities, finance leases and purchase contracis. If is responsible for its own cash

surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject to policies and guidelines approved
by management and in certain cases at the Board of Directors (BOD) level.

The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-
term in nature, unused credit lines and readily available marketahle securities to meet its liquidity
requirements at all times. In addition, the strong credit worthiness of the Company allows it to make
efficient use of the financial markets for financing purposes. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
Company has unused credit facilities of B10.4 billion and B3.0 billion, respectively.

The Company's financial assets and liabiliies as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are
disclosed in Note 15 — Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Capital Management Policy

The Company considers total equity in the parent company balance sheet as its capital, The
Company's objectives when managing capital are to secure the Company’'s ongoing financial needs
to continue as a going concern as well as o cater for its growth targets to provide returns fo
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a cost-efficient and risk-optimized
capital structure. ’

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the
changes in economic conditions, its business activities, investment and expansion program and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio. Gearing is
calculated as net financial debt divided by total equity in the parent company balance sheets as
shown in {he table beiow:
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2014 2013

Notes payable R2,100,105 E893,000
Custormers’ deposits 468,823 480,249
Financial debt 2,568,928 1,373,249
Less cash and cash equivalents 2,698,267 2,149,104
Net financial debt (asset) (129,279) (775,855)
Total equity 22,095,277 21,476,327
Gearing ratio {0.6%) (3.6%)

The Company's target is to maintain a gearing in the range of no more than 100 percent.
Total equity grew by 2.8% in 2014 as a result of improvement in operating results for the year.
Material Changes in Balance Sheet Accounts

Cash and cash eaquivalents

Increase in cash and cash equivalents were mainly due to the higher cash generated from
operations during the year.

Trade and other receivables

Receivables increase due to the higher sales made in December 2014 as compared to that of
the same period of last year, DSO remains to be at 21 days.

Inventories

Increase in inventories in preparation for the anticipated higher demand in the first quarter of
the succeeding year.

Other Current Assets

Decrease was driven by lower down payment, prepaid expenses and creditable withholding
taxes as a result of tax application.

intangibles assets — net

Increase was mainly driven by the new foreshore lease agreement resulting from the
acquisition of the port facility in Mabini, Batangas.

Deferred income tax asset — net

Atiributable to the additional provisions/accruals for allowance for doubtful accounts,
retirement and other accruals in 2014,

Other non-current Assets

The decrease was mainly due to deposits to vendors amounting to R96.7 Mio reclassified to
other current assets.

Notes Payable

increase was due to the availment of a short-term loan for working capital requirements and
for the purchase of the port facility in Mabini, Batangas.
Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables increased mainly due fo higher group payables related fo
importations.
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Income Tax Payable

Increase was due to higher income tax recorded for the pericd.

Retirement Banefit Liabilities

Increase was mainly due to higher employee pension liability for the Company's defined
benefit incentive for its employees.

Deferred income tax liabilities — net

The decrease was mainly attributable to the reduction in depreciation expense, amortization
of site restoration costs and unamortized capitalized interests which are nondeductible expense.

Remeasurement Joss on retirement benefits — net

The decrease was due to the updating of the assumptions and experience adjustments
considered in the retirement liabilify calculation.

Retainad Earnings

Increase was due to higher realized net income.

Non-controliing interests

Decrease due to change in ownership in 2014.
Material Changes in Income Statement Accounts
Revenues
Increase mainly due to 12% higher volume scid for 2014 compared to that of last year.

Cost of Sales

The increase was mainly due to increase in input costs such as raw materials and electricity
charges to support the increase in sales volume.

General and administrative expenses

The increase was due to higher personnel costs and expenditure on corporate initiative
projects.

Interest and Other Financial Income

The lower realized interest income was due o lower interest rates for short-term deposits.

Interest and Financing Charges

The increase was due to higher loans availed within the year.

Foreign Exchange Gains {l.osses) — net

Recognized gain was due to the Peso depreciation in 2014 as compared to 2013 closing
rates.
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Gain on sale of investment in joint venture

There was no investment sold in 2014,

Others — net

Increase driven by gain on sale of other properties sold during the year.

Provision for Income Tax

The increase was mainly due to the higher realized taxable income in 2014 as compared to
previous year.

Item 7. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements and supplementary schedules listed in the accompanying Index
to Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are filed as part of this annual report under
ftem 3.1 and 13.2

Information on independent Accountant

External Audit Fees

The aggregate fees hilled for each of the last two (2) years for professional services rendered
by Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co (SGV) was P11.4 million for 2015 and P10.4 million for 2014. These
fees, inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses, cover services rendered by the external auditor for audit of
the financial statements of the Company and cther services in conneciion with statutory and
regulatory filings for years 2015 and 2014. .

Tax Fees & All Other Fees

The Company engaged SGVY for tax services, due diligence audit and advisory services
amounting to P13.1 million and P0.5 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Audit Cammittee’s Approval Policies and Procedures for the Above Services

Upon recommendation and approval of the Audit Committee, the appointment of the externat
auditor is proposed for confirmation by the shareheolders at the annual sfockholders’ meeting. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements are approved by the Board of Direciors before its
release.

ttem 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosures

There was no event in the past five years where SGV and the Company had any
disagreement with regard to any maiter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial
statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.,

The audit findings are presented to the Company's Audit Committee, which reviews and
makes recommendations to the Board on actions to be taken thereon. The Board passes upon and
approves the Audit Committee’s recommendations.
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PART lit - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer
{1) The Board of Directors

The Company's Board of Directors {the Board} is responsible for the overall management and
direction of the Company. The Board meets regularly every quarter, or as often as required, to review
and manitor the Company’s financial position and operations. Each Board member serves for a term
of one year or until his successor is duly elected and qualified. None of the members of the Board of
the Company own maore than 2% of outstanding common shares of HPL.

As of December 31, 2015, the following are the members of the Board:

Table 9 — The Board of Directors

Office Name Nationality
Chairman Tomas |. Alcantara Filipino
Vice Chairman tan 8. Thackwray British
Birector Paniel N, Bach Swiss
Director Eduardo A. Sahagun Filipino
Independent Director Simeon V. Marcelo Filipino
independent Director Yasuo Kitamoto Japanese
tndependent Direcior David Lucas B. Balangue Filipino

Set forth below are the business experience of the Board during the last five years:

Tomas I. Alcantara, 68, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Ecoromics from Ateneo de
Manila University, a Masters in Business Administration degree from Columbia University,
USA and attended the Advance Management Program of the Harvard Business School. He is
presently the Chairman and President of Alsons Consolidated Resources, Inc., and of several
power and property development companies in the Alcantara Group. He is Chairman of the
Eagle Ridge Golf & Country Club, Inc. and Philweb Corporation, Mr. Alcantara was
Undersecretary for the Industry & Investment Group of the Department of Trade and Industry
and the Vice Chairman and Managing Head of the Board of investments from July 1986 to
March 1995. He was also Special Envoy of the Philippine President to APEC in 1996. He was
elected Director of the Company on July 4, 2003.

fan 8. Thackwray, 57, holds an MA {Hons) in Chemistry from Oxdord University and is also a
chartered accountant. After his studies, he joined Price Waterhouse and handled major
corporate accounts in Europe. In 1985, he started a career with a major multinationat in the
chemicals industry, serving in various management roles in Europe, Morth America and
particularly in Asia. From 2004 to 2008, he served the Asian/Pacific President based out of
Shanghai. In 2006, he joined Holcim and was elected COO and director of the Company. in
2010, the Board of Directors of Holeim Ltd appointed him a member of the Executive
Committee with regional responsibility for countries in East Asia, including China, as well as
the Philippines, and Oceania. In July 2015, Mr. Thackwray was appointed Regional Head for
Asia Pacific.

Daniel N. Bach, 52, was formerly @ member of the Board of Directors and the Company's
Senior Vice President for Manufacturing in 2007 until his assignment as CEQ of Holcim
Romania in 2011. In January 2014, he took on a new rcle as Holcim's Area Manager for
South East Asia. He graduated with a Mechanical Engineering degree and a doctoral degree
in Technical Sciences, both from the Swiss Federal Institute of Technology in Zurich,
Switzertand. In July 2015, Mr. Bach was appointed Area Manager for South East Asia (East).

Eduardo A. Sahagun, 58, is the Company’s President and Country Chief Executive Officer.
He was the Senior Vice President for Sales, Marketing and Distribution & Technical Services
(now called Commercial) from 2007 to 2012. He was the Chief Financial Officer of the
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Company until his current appointment. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Commerce degree
and is a Certified Public Accountant. He also holds a Masters in Management Science
degree from the Arthur D. Litle Management Education Institute in Boston, Massachusetts
and a Masters in Business Administration degree from Ateneo Graduate School of Business.
in November 1989, he was elected as Assistant Vice President — Comptroller of Davao Union
Cement Corporation and has since then been appointed to occupy various key executive
positions in the PHINMA Cement Group. He was elected as director of the Company in July
2010

Simeon V. Marcelo, 62, graduated among the top of his class at the University of the
Phitippines - College of Law and placed 5thin the 1979 bar examination. He served as
Solicitor General from February 2001 to October 2003 and was Ombudsman from October
2003 to November 2005. From 2007 to 2010, Mr. Marcelo served as Executive Secretary of
the Asian Development Bank Administrative Tribunal and from 2008 to June 2014, was a
member of the World Bank's Independent Advisory Board (on good governance and anti-
corruption matters). Mr. Marcelo was also elected as the President of the Philippine Bar
Association from 2009 to 2010. During its Centennial Year 2013, the University of the
Philippines Alumni Association conferred upon him the Distinguished Aturmni Award in Public
Service. He is the Chief Executive Officer of Cruz Marcelo & Tenefrancia Law Offices. Mr.
Marcelo was elected as independent director of the Company in 2014.

Yasuo Kitamoto, 55, holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Doshisha University in
Kyoto, Japan. He is currently General Manager responsible for International Business of
Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co., Ltd. Prior to his current position, he was Deputy General
Manager, General Affairs Department in 2005 and General Manager, Corporate Planning
Department in 2008 of Sumitoma Osaka Cement Co., Lid.

David Lucas B. Balangue, 64, is a certified public accountant with a Bachelor's Degree in
Commerce in Commerce, major in Accounting, Magna Cum Laude, from Manuel L. Quezon
University and a Master of Management degree, with distinction, from the Kellogg Graduate
School of Management. He placed second highest in the 1972 Philippine CPA  Board
Examinations. Mr. Balangue's career in the accounting and auditing professions spanned 38
years at SGV & Co., where he was Chairman from January 2004 to January 2010 and
Managing Partner from January 2004 to February 2009, aiter being admitted to partnership in
1982. He is currently the Chairman of the Philippine Center for Population and Development,
the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council, the National Citizens Movement for
Free Elections (NAMFREL) and Coalition Against Corruption and a non-executive
independent director of the following listed companies: Trans-Asia Oil and Energy
Development Corp.; Roxas Holdings, Inc., Philippine Bank of Communications and Manulife
Financial Corp.

The Executive Officers
The officers are likewise elected annually by the Board and serve for cne (1) year and until

their respective successors have been elected. None of the officers of the Company own more than
2% of the total outstanding shares of the Company.
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The Company’s executive officers are set out below:

Table 10 — Executive Officers

Office Name Nationality
President and Country Chief Executive | Eduardo A. Sahagun Filipino
Officer

Senior Vice President — Manufacturing Andre Caluori Swiss
Head — Sales William C. Sumalinog Filipino
Head - Human Resources Araceli E. Gonzales Filipino
Head —Communication and Corporate Affairs | Nerissa V. Ronquillo Filipino
Head — Corporate Occupational Health & | Carmela Dolores S. Calimbas | Filipino
Safety

Treasurer Shirley S. Go Filipino
General Counsel/ Corporaie Secretary/ | Kristine N.L. Evangelista Filipino
Compliance Officer

The business experience of Mr, Eduardo A. Sahagun during the last five years is provided
above, Set forth below are the business experience of the Company’s other executive officers
during the last five years:

Andre Caluori, 58, is the Senior Vice President for Manufacturing. Andre holds a degree in
Chemical Engineering specializing in process engineering from the University of Applied
Sciences, Chur, Switzerland. Starting out as a cement technolegy frainee in Holcim Spain, he
went on to assume key positions in Holcim operating companies around the globe, including
QA Manager and deputy Plant Manager in Apasco, Mexico; AFR & Environment Manager in
Untervaz, Switzerland; Plant Manager in Eclepens, Switzerland and in Holcim Romania. Prior
{0 his assignment in the Company, he was the General Manager for Manufacturing in Cement
Australia for the past five years.

William C, Sumalinog, 46, is the Head of Sales. William holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Computer Engineering from the University of Cebu where he graduated with leadership
honors in 1992. He started his career in sales as a sales representative in Market Developers,
Inc.,, where he went on to assume other sales positions. He joined Alsons Cement
Corporation in 1998 where he occupied various key positions in sales. Prior to assuming his
current position, he was the Company's Regional Operating Head for various areas in
Mindanao and Visayas since 2005,

Araceli E. Gonzales, 53, is the Head of Human Resources. She is a graduate of Psychology
from Ateneo de Manita University with a Masters degree in Industrial Relations with focus on
Human Resources Management from the University of the Philippines. She has more than 25
years of HR experience honed in consumer, manufacturing, pharmaceutical, agro-industrial
and telecommunication industries covering both domestic and international HR services. She
alsa has 8 years of consulting work in HR and leadership development. Before joining HPI,
she was VP for HR Sclutions of Smart Communications.

Nerissa V. Rongquilio, APR, 58, is the Head of Communication and Corporate Affairs. She
obtained her Bachelor of Aris degree in Broadcast Communication at the University of the
Philippines as an entrance scholar of the Kapisanan ng mga Brodkaster ng
Pilipinas/Broadcast Media Council. A coemrmunications and an accredited public relations
professionat, she has over 35 years of experience in the profession. She was Head of
Publications and Communications, then Advertising and Special Events, and General Public
Programs of the Manila Electric Company {Meralco). From 2009 to 2013, she was Regional
Director for North Asia of the San Francisco-based International Association of Business
Communicators (JABC), President of IABC Phifippines in its 30™ year, and currently Chairman
of its Board of Trutees. In 2013, she became the first Filipina to be named as Director of the
International Executive Board of IABG and Trustee of the IABC Foundation.
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Carmela Dolores S. Cafimbas, 5%, is the Head of Corporate Occupational Health and
Safety. She holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering from the University
of San Carlos in Cebu, Before joining the Company in May 2008, she was the Manager for
Environment, Health and Safety of James Hardie Philippines from November 2004 to May
2008. Prior to this, she had ten years of work experience in the field of safety, health and
environment.

Shirfey 8. Go, 39, is the Treasurer and the Head of Group Tax of the Company. She earned
her Bachelor of Science degree in Accountancy from De La Salle University, and is a Certified
Public Accountant. Prior ta joining the. Company in 2010, she worked with Punongbayan and
Araulic for 12 years.

Kristine Ninotschka L. Evangelista, 42, is the Corporate Secretary, General Counsel and
Compliance Officer of the Company. She holds a Bachelor of Science Major in Legal
Management degree from the Atenec de Manila University and obtained her Juris Doctor
degree from Ateneo Law School. In 1999, she joined SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan
Law as an associate. She joined the Company in 2008 as Senior Legal Counsel. She was
elected as Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company and its subsidiaries. She assumed
her current role and was elected Corporate Secretary in 2014,

(2) Significant Employees

The following managers in the Company’s Finance department are responsible for
financial planning, control, reporting, as well as accounting and tax.

Head, Graup Controlling and Planning___ ‘Glenn A. Agustin 42 Filipino

Head, Group Tax and Treasury Shirley S. Go 39 Filipino

Set forth below is the husiness experience of the above individuals during the last five years:

Glenn A. Agustin, 42, is the Head for Group Controlling and Planning. He graduated from
the University of Santo Tomas with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Commerce, major in
Accounting. He is a Certified Public Accountant and Certified Internal Auditor. Before joining
the Company, he worked with various companies including SGV and Co. and Bacnotan
Consolidated Industries Inc. He joined the Company in 2004 as an internal auditor and started
to work in Finance as Plant Controller in 2008, and Area Finance Manager in 2009 and
Manager of Finance and Reporting in 2011. He assumed his post as Head-Group Controller
on December 1, 2013, from his earlier position as Book-to-Report Service Delivery Head.

The business experience of Ms. Shirley S. Go is provided above.
{3) Family Relationships

None of the members of the Board of Directors nor any Executive Officer of the Company is
refated by affinity or consanguinity.

(4) involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the present members of the Board of
Directors or the Executive Officers are not, presently, or during the last five {5) years, involved or have
been involved in criminal, bankruptcy ar insolvency investigations or proceedings except for the
pending legal proceedings involving certain directors and executive officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries described in Exhibit 4 hereof,
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item 10. Executive Compensation

The Company has local and expatriate executives. Expatriates are holding positions that are
technical and advisory in nature. The compensation of focal executives is benchmarked against the
established Target Market Group (TMG™). At 100% performance attainment of the Company’s
financial and business goats, the executive compensation is targeted to be at median (P50} of the
TMG and at the 3 quartile for performance attainment of 110% and above. Expatriates are paid in
accordance with the International Assignment compensation guidelines of LafargeHolcim.

The compensation received by the Executive Officers represents salaries, bonuses and

benefits.
* The Company's Target Market Group (TMG) is composed of local and mutti-national companies with annual gross revenues
of PHP 5 - 50 biliion and 500 to 5,000 employees.

Table 11 — Executive Compensation {in Php)

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Benefits

The CEO and four most highly compensated | 2g16* 53,266,776 | 11,910,120 | 6,136,558
Executive Officers:
2015 53,266,776 111,910,120 | 6,136,558

= Eduardo A. Sahagun — President &
Country CEO

= Andre G. Caluori - 8VP, Manufacturing

= Carmela Calimbas — Head, Corporate
Occupational Health & Safety

=  Araceli Gonzales — Head, HR

»  William Sumalinog — Head, Sales

2014 52,136,086 | 16,110,756 | 1,605,024

2016* 45,022,140 | 8,878,561 9,219,130

All other Executive Officers and Directors as
& group unnamed 2015 45022 140 | 8,878,561 9,219,130

2014 45,024,811 | 10,199,264 | 9,135,874

*Estimated compensation of execulive officers for the ensuing year is assumed to approximate the 2015 level. Bonuses given
are driven by actual performance of the company; hence, estimate may vary from actual

Other than directors’ per diem, the directors of the Company do not receive any other compensation
from the Company, including any of the following arrangements:

a. Standard arrangement and any other material arrangements;

h, Employment contract (between the Company and named executive officers);
¢. Compensatory plan or arrangement;

d. Qutstanding warrants or options; and

e. Adjustments or amendments on the price of stock warrants or options.

Warrants and Options Qutstanding

There are no warrants or options granted by the Company to any of its Directors or Executive
Officers. :

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The table below shows persons or groups known to HPL as of December 31, 2015 to be
directly or indirecily the record or beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company’s voting
securities:
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Tabie 12 — Beneficial Ownership of Voting Securities

Title of
Class

Name & Address of Record
QOwner & Relationship with
Issuer

Name of Beneficial Owner
And Relationship with
Record Owner

No of Shares
Held

% of
Ownership

Common

Union Cement Holdings
Corporation

7th Floor, Two World
Square, McKinley Hill, Fort
Bonifacic, Taguig City
(Filipino)

Stockholder

Union Cement Haldings Corp.
(same as record owner)

3,908,425,509

60.55%

Common

Holderfin B.V.

De Lairessestragt 129Hs
1075 HJ Amsterdam, the
Netherlands

(Dutch)

Stackholder

Holderfin B.V.
{same as record owner}

1,168,450,097

18.11%

Common

Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co.,
Ltd.

1, Kanda Mitoshiro-cho
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 101-8677,
Japan

{Japanese)

Stockholder

Sumitomo Osaka
Cement Co., Lid.
(same as record owner)

594,852,725

9.22%

Common

Cemco Holdings, Inc.
815/816 Tower One &
Exchange Plaza

Ayala Triangle

Ayala Avenue, Makati City
(Filipine)

Stockholder

Cemco Holdings, Inc.
(same as recard owner)

456,689,560

7.08%

The respective Board of Directors of each of UCHC, Holderfin, Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co.,
Lid. and Cemco has the power to decide how their shares in the Company are to be voted.

(1)

Security Ownership of Management

The table below shows the securities beneficially owned by all directors, nominges and
executive officers of HP1 as of December 31, 2015;

Table 13 - Security Ownership of Management

Registered
Title of Name and Address of Amount/Nature (R} or % of
Class Beneficial Owner of Ownership Beneficial | Ownership
(B)
Common Tomas |. Alcantara 1D} R 0.00%
Common lan S. Thackwray 1{D) R 0.00%
Common Daniet N. Bach 1{D) R 0.00%
Common Eduardo A. Sahagun 1{D) R 0.00%
Common Simeon V. Marcelo D) R 0.00%
54,262{)
Comimon Yasue Kitamoto 1{D) R 0.00%
Commaon David Lucas B. Balangue (D) R 0.00%
84,000 (1)
Total 148,269 (.00%
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Directors and officers as a group hold a total of 148,269 common shares, equivalent to approximately
0.00% of the Company's issued and outstanding capital stock.

{2) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

No person holds five percent (5%) or more of the issued and outstanding shares of stock of
the Company under a voting trust ar simitar agreement,

(3) Changes in Control

There were no material changes in the conirel of the Company since the beginning of the
Company’s last calendar year. UCHC still holds the controlling interest in the Company.

itemn 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On January 1, 2013, the implementation of industrial Franchise Fee (IFF) eliminated the
practice of separate charge for certain services provided by Holcim Group Support Lid (HGRS) and
Holcim 1P Ltd (HIPL) over and above the trademark agreément and technical support agreement,
under the previous system. The basis for the fee is different from the previous agreement and a direct
comparison is not possible. The new agreement is aligned with Organization for Economic Co-
operation and Development (OECD) principles and takes into account arm’s length transfer pricing
principles.

IFF is an annual charge payable quarterly and is based on fair assessment of economic value
of intellectual property and value adding sclutions derived by the Company from HIPL and HGRS.
The implementation of IFF eliminated the practice of separate charge for services provided by HGRS
and HIPL over and above the Trademark Agreement and Technical Support Agreement, under the
previous system. The IFF, however, is separate from the existing agreement with HSEA for
information technology related service. The IFF provides opportunity for the Company to obtain more
value-adding services from Holcim Technology Lid related to the improvement of many operational
aspects of the Company without getting separate charges therefor.

In 2013, HIPL and HGRS were merged to form HTSX. All outstanding balances in the books
of HIPL and HGRS as of December 31, 2012 have been reflected in the books of HTSX.

On January 1, 2014, the Company entered into an agreement with Holcim Technology
(Singapore) Pte Ltd, the *Service Provider’, for support services. This Service Agreement is
complimentary to the existing Franchising Agreement and provides additional services outside the
scope of the Franchise Agreement. The service shall be based on all costs and expenses incurred by
the Service Provider plus mark-up. This agreement will be in effect unless and until supersaded.

For a detailed discussion of the material related party transactions, please see Note 25 —
Related Party Transactions to the accompanying consolidated financial statements in Item 13.1.

Except for the fransactions discussed in Note 25 — Related Party Transactions to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements in ltem 13.1, there were no other material related
party transactions during the last three financial years, nor are there any material transactions
currently proposed between the Company and any: (i) director, officer, direct or indirect owner of 10%
or more of the outstanding shares in the Company; (ii} close family member of such director, officer or
owner; (iii) associates of the Company; (iv) enterprises controiling, controlled by or under common
control with the Company,; or {v) enterprises in which a substantial interest in. the voting power is
owned, directly or indirectly, by any director, officer or owner of 10% or more of the outstanding
shares in the Company or any close family member of such director, key officer or owner, or
collectively, the Related Parties.

There was no outstanding indebtedness at any time during the last three {3} financial years
that was owed to the Company and/or its subsidiaries by any Refated Party.
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PART IV - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

ltem 13. Exhibits and Repoirts
13.1 Consolidated Finangcial Statements

The audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended December
31, 2015 and 2014 are attached as Exhibit 1:

Statement of Management's Responsibility to the Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Balance Sheets as at December 31, 2015 and 2014

Consolidated Staternents of Income for the years ended December 31,

2015, 2014 and 2013

« Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive income for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

» Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

« Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December
31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

+ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

13.2 Supplementary Schedules

s Supplementary Schedule of Retainad Earnings Available for Dividend
Deglaration

« lliustration of relationships between the Company,
its Ultimate Parent Company, Middie Parent, and its Subsidiaries

s Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and interpretations Effective as
of December 31, 2015 :
Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators

« The supplementary schedules of the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015 are attached as Exhibit 2.

13.3 SEC Form17 -G

During the year 2015, the Company has filed the following SEC quarterly
reports pursuant to Section 17 of SRC Rule 17 {2) (b} hereto attached as

Exhibit 3.
Pate of Filing Quarter Ending
Aprit 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
August 10, 2015 June 30, 2015
October 28, 20156 September 30, 2015

134 Legal Proceedings and Pending Cases (See Exhibit 4}
13.5 Reports on SEC Form 17-C

Reports on SEC Form 17-C filed during the year ended December 31, 2015
are attached together with this report as Exhibit 5:
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13.6

SEC Form 17-A CY2015
February 2001

Date Filed

Description

February 10, 2015

An advisory on the results of BOD Meeting held on
February 9, 2015: postponement and setting of
annual stockholders meeting date, change of
principal office address in the Article of
Incorporation, reflecting SEC issuance in the
ByLaws, nomination of external auditor, approval of
audited financial statements

March 18, 2015

An advisory on the Notice and Agenda of the
Annual Stockholders Meeting

May 19, 2015 An advisory on the results of HPI's Regular Board
Meeting, Annual Stockholders Meeting and
Organizational Board Meeting held on May 18,
2015

July 13, 2015 An advisory on the results of BOD Special Meeting

held on July 10, 2015: authority to make an offer
for the acquisition of certain Lafarge group assets

August 3, 2015

An advisory on the purchase of the following
assets: (a) shares of stock of Lafarge Republic
Aggregates, Inc., Quimson Limestones, Inc.,
Sigma Cee Mining Corporation, and APC
Properties, Inc., (b) Star Terminal assets located in
Harbour Centre, Manila, and (c) certain parcels of
land

October 27, 2015

An advisory on the results of BOD Meeting held on
October 22, 2015: execution of a Shareholders
Agreement governing Holcim  Mining and
Development Corporation (HMDC) with HMDC, the
Holcim Philippines Inc. Retirement Fund (RF) and
Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation in
relation to the proposed subscription by the RF of
shares in HMDC

December 4, 2015

An advisory on the results of BOD Meeting held on
December 4, 2015: appointment of new heads of
functions subject to issuance of permits

December 10, 2015

Attendance on Corporate Governance Seminar
held on December 4, 2015

Annual Corporate Governance Report (See Exhibit 6)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code, this
report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned; thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Taguig on February 23, 2016.

- % 7

By:

Eduardo A. Sahagun Kristine N.L. Evangelista
President and Chief Executive Officer Corporate Secretary
/i '
Glenn A. Agustin hirieyi o
Head, Group Controlling and Planning Treagurger

MAR 0 1 2016 TAGuUIG CITY
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this __day of ____ 2016 affiants exhibiting to me
the following documents:

Name Res. Cert. Date of Place of
Issuance Issuance
Holcim Philippines, Inc. 00206054 January 8, 2015 Taguig City
Name Passport No. Date of Place of
Issuance Issuance
Eduardo A. Sahagun EC3944235 April 15, 2015 Manila
Kristine N.L. Evangelista EB8978388 August 24, 2013 Manila
Glenn A. Agustin EC3551295 February 28, 2015 Manila
Shirley S. Go EB7455382 February 22, 2013 Manila

o a— /\

otary lic

Doc. No. 9€ (’ :
PageNo. _&3? ;
Book No. ¥ -
Series of 2016.
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED DINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE

FORM 17-A

Consclidated Financial Statements Exhibit i

Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Consolidated Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Income
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for each of the three years in the peried ended December 31, 2013

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Eqguity
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for each of the three vears in the period ended Decemnber 31, 2013

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Supplementary Schedules Exhibit 2

Independent Auditors’ Report on Supplementary Schedules
Supplementary Schedule of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
[llustration of relationships between the Company and its Ultimate Parent Company,
Middle Parent, and its Subsidiaries
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations Effective as of December 31, 2015
Schedule A. Financial Assets N/A
Schedule B, Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees,
Schedule C, Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated
Schedule D, Intangible Assets - Other Assets

Schedule E. Long-Term Debt N/A
Schedule F. Indebtedness to Related Parties N/A
Schedule G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issners N/A

Schedule H. Capital Stock



Exhibit 1

Consolidated Financial Statementis
For the years ended

December 31, 2015 and 2014

SECForm 17-A CY2015

February 2001



COVER SHEET

for
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEC Reglstration Number
216111216

COMPANY NAME
H{O|LICIT M PHIILIT|PIP|[T|N|E[S IIN|Cy. AINID SiU

BIS|T|IDII{A|R|I

wn

PRINCIPAL OFFICE (No./ Sircat/ Barangay / Clty { Town / Pravince )
7(t|h Fillo|lel¥], Tlw|o Wloefr|l|d Slqilujajr|e]|,

Mlc[K|ifn|l]e}y H{i[1]}H], Fio|rit Blo|nfifflalelilo}f,

Form Type Diepariment requiring the report Secondary License Type, If Applicable

| COMPANY INFORMATION |

Company's Email Address Company's Tefephana Number Aabite Number
lafargeholcim.com. ph 459-3333 N/A
No. of Stockholders Annual Meeting (Month / Day) Fiscal Year {iMonth { Day}
| 5,527 | | May 16 | | December 31

| CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION I

The designaled contact person MUST be an Gfficer of the Corporation
Name of Contact Person Email Address Tetephone Number/s Mobile Number

shirlev.go@lalaregeholei
M. COM

Shirley S. Go 459-3333 $9175337410

CONTACT PERSON'’s ADDRESS I

7F VENICE CORPORATE CENTER, 8 TURIN STREET, MCKINLEY TOWN CENTER,
MCKINLEY HILL, FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY

NOTE 1: Incase of death. resignation or cessation of affice of the officer designated as contact person, such incidenl shall be reporied to tie
Cormission withinn Wity (30) celendsr days Fom the occumence Whoreof with information and complete contact detsits of the new contact person
designated.

2: ANl Boxes must be properly and completely filed-up. Failure to do so shall cause the defay in updating the corparation’s records with
the Commission andfor nan-receipt of Notice of Deficiencies. Further, non-receipt-of Netice of Deficiencies shall nol excuse the corparation from
Hability for its deficfencies.

*SGYFS015825*



Holcim Philippines, Inc. Phone +63 2 459 3333
. 7th Floor Two World Square Fax +63 2 459 4444
H 0 I c ' m McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio www.holcim.com

Taguig City 1634
Philippines

February 23, 2016

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
Mandaluyong City

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Holcim Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Company”) is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2015, including the additional components attached therein, in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.  This responsibility includes designing and
implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits
the same to the Stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed, by the Stockholders has
examined the consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the
fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

A

Tomas I. Alcantara
Chairman

/dm/a’_?

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Presidant
%‘ g '
Shirjey S. Go
Treasurer
FEB 2 3 2016 TAGUIG CITY

SWUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this with the presentation of the
following:

Name Passport No. Place Issued Date Issued
Tomas . Alcantara EB8610644 Manila July 9, 2013
Eduardo A. Sahagun EC3944235 Manila April 15,2015

Shirley S. Go EB7455382 Manila
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9yCip Gorres Velago & Co.  Tel: (632) 8910307  BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,

6760 Ayata Avanue Fax: {632) 816 0BTZ December 14, 2015, valid uniit December 31, 2018

1226 Makali City ey.com/ph SEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-4 (Group A).
Building a betjer Phiiippines Novemper 10, 2015, valid until November &, 2018

working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Holcim Philippines, Inc.

7th Floor, Twoe World Square

MoeKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio

Taguig City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Holcim Philippines, Inc.

and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December 3 1,2015 and
2014, and the consolidated statements of incomne, statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for cach of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2015, and a summary of significant accounting policies and oiher explanatory
information,

Management’s R esponsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such intemal control
A5 management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from materiaj misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We condueted our andits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the andit 1o obtain
reasonable assurance abont whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstateinent,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
i the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selegted depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial stafements,
wheiher due to fraud or emror. I making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the éntity’s preparation and fair preseittation of the consolidated financial staternents in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enlity’s internat control. An audit also mchudes
evalnating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of acoounting
estimafes made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statemelits;

¥
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

S

A prapnsper 60 of Bnt & Vourg Gisbsl Limited
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Holeim Philippines, Inc. and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
and their financial performance and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2015 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Catlerine E. Lopez

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 86447

SEC Accreditation No. 0468-AR-2 {Group A),
February 14, 2013, vatid until April 30, 2016

Tax deniification Mo. 102-085-895

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-65-2015,
February 27, 2015, valid until February 26, 2018

PTR No. 5321648, Janvary 4, 2016, Makati City

February 23, 2016
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

20415 2014

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4)

Trade and other receivables - net (Notes 5 and 23)
inventories (Note 6)

Other current assets (Note 7)

fin Thouscnds)

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

lnvestmerits (Note 9)

Property, plant and equipment - net (Note 10)
Goodwill (Note 11}

Intangible assets - net (Note 11)

Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 26)
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 12 and 28)

Total Noncurrent Assefs

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Nates payable (Notes 13 and 25}

Trade and other payables (Notes 14 and 25)
Income tax payable (Note 26)

Tetal Current Liabilities

Nonrcurrent Liabilities

Retirement benefit liabitity (Note 277)
Provisions (Note 17)

Deeferred income tax liabilities - net (Note 26)

Taotal Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity

Capital stock (Note E8)

Additional paid-in capital

Other reserves (Note 18)

Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits - net (Note 27)
Retained earnings (Note i 8)

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Noncontrofling Interest

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

$2,540,198 82 698,207
3,418,211 2,259,205
3,942,552 3,757,521

644,576 615,841

10,545,537 9,330,774
4,195,154 4,559

16,018,648 17,604,436
2,635,738 2,635,738

55,965 795,579
365,113 271,029
263,616 264,571

23,534,234 21,575,912

234,079,771 B30,906,686
£999,831 £2,100,105
6,545,982 5,603,991
824,141 345,531
8,369,954 8,049,627
553,437 582,924
183,282 180,606
3,632 653
740,351 764,183
9,110,305 8,813,810
6,452,099 6,452,099
8,476,002 8,476,002
(9,606) 3,774
(135,840) {174,986)
10,178,725 7,326,592
24,961,380 22,083,481
8,086 9,395
24,962,466 22,092,876
34,079,771 B30,906,686

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2015

2014

2013

{in Thousands, Excepr Per Share Amownts)

REVENUES (Notes 25 and 28} $37,526,055 P32,648,659 P28.893,369
COST OF SALES (Note 19) 27,248,041 23,597,880 21,016,470
GROSS PROFIT : 10,278,014 9,050,779 7,876,899
General and administrative expenses (Note 20} (2,105,567) (1,326,503) (1,245,172}
Selling expenses (Note 21) (583,740) (501,542 (502,003)
Interest and financing charges (Notes 13, 24 and 25) {78,752} (43,670 (5,099
Foreign exchange gains (losses) - net
(Notes t5 and 16) 45,333 1,964 (1,654}
Interest and other financial income (Notes 4 and 12} 20,013 13,029 29474
Gain on remeasurement of retained equity in a former
subsidiary {Note 9) 2,635,758 - -
Others - net (Note 24} 154,629 105,169 250,459
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 10,365,685 7,299,226 6,402,864
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 26)
Current 3,016,500 2,163,334 1,858,292
Deferred (300,383) (10,611) (14,788)
2,216,117 2,152,723 1,843,504
NET INCOME P8,149,568 B5,146,503 P4,559 360
Attributable to;
Equity holders of the Parent Company P8, 148,071 5,145,178 4,558,592
Noncontrolling interest 1,497 1,325 768
' £8,149,568 5,146,503 4,559,360
Basic/Dituted Earnings Per Common Share of Net
Income Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent Company (Note 29) £1.26 £0.30 B0.71

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 2013
{In Thowsands)
NET INCOME £8,149,568 5,146,503 B4.559,360

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified fo profit or

loss in subseguent periods;

Amounts transferred to profit or loss upon sale of

investment in joint venture (Note 24) - — {13,481

Other comprehensive incame (loss} not to be

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement gain (loss) on retitement benefits

{MNote 27} 56,304 {19,396) {113,744)
[ncome tax effect {16,890) 5819 34,124
39,410 (13,577} (79,620)

Other reserves (13,380} 3,774 -

Net other comprehensive income (loss) not to be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods 26,030 (9,803) {79.620)

26,030 (9,803) (93,101)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £8,175,598 P5,136,700 P4,466,259
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company B8.,173,837 B5,135,317 £4.465,684

Noncontrolling interest 1,761 1,383 575

£8,175,598 B3,136,700 P4.466,259

See accompanying Netes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis.

“SGVFS015825°



+3¢8510SAAISx

SIHDHIZIDIS POLUDUL] pADPIosue]) of saroy Buriundimesor asg

V66T 980'84 08€'196°rTd  CTL'BLTOTH  (DFSSELA) (9096} — T00'9LF Sd 660°TSH 94 STOZ *FE HAGIWHDHEA EV SHEONV IV
(800'66T°S)  {0L0°C) (Re6'¢6T6)  {8E6'CET'S) - - - - - {81 10N) 2reys 1ad 78'(f ~ SPHIPIAIP (51D
865 'GLTR 19L°1 LER'EL'R LLOSFI'S G11°6< (p3cce) - - = B34 3} 10} (S50]) WCHI dAISURYEIAW0S [2I0]
0t0'5¢ %3 99L°ST - 9rIGE O3 - - - 1224 U1 0] (SO} S0 2ASTIYSIAWTS I5H()
89<°6¥1°8 L6¥] TL08FI'S 1L0'8FT°8 - - - - - 1eaf 3t} 10 Stuosut 19N
9.L8'T60'TL 56€'G 18+°€80°7T T68'978'L {986'+L1) FLL'E - TO09Lr'8 6o0'TSH9 FI0Z 'T€ HAGIWEDHEA LV STONVIVE
(ISE0Ts'y) {189°¢) WOLF9ISY) WLF'91Sp) - - - - - (81 210N areys 1od (£ 04 - SPUIPIAID (st
00L'9ET'S £3¢'] LIESEL'S 8L0sr1'e {cgo'cl) FLLE - = - ea4 3] 10J {SSO]) SWOIUT DABUA[RIALIEd (610
{£08°6) 8¢ (1986) - (sgo'el) FLLE - - - 204 3} 103 {550]) OUWIOITT PATSUSZIAWOD 1[Iy
XHA ] gTEl LTANS {89 SLISHIS - - - - - 1234 1) 10] BUICIU 19N
LICIFTT 6911 FEQ'POPTIT F88°L69'9 (S I91) - - Z00'9LH'8 GOO'TSE'S £107 1€ Y2 gD LY STONVIVE
(£59°gFE ) = (5eo°8pe ) (CCospe'e) - - - - - (81 210N aaetfs 42d £C°0 - SPUSDIAIP yse))
65T £L% r89°CoFY 6586 {LevaL) - (i8t'g1) - - 122k AL 1 (SSO[} JR00UT BAISUSYAIIRIOD |0,
{t01'c6) (ea1} {806"26) - (LTF6L) - (I8r'ct) - - 18ai Y1 10f 550[ aaIstagaiduos B0
09¢°66C 294 T65'g5E P 65855 F - - - - - 1824 213 10} SwooW 1N
ETL'8S5'0TE QITIT4 SOYLEENITE  LPGTLR9'CE (+76'184 -~ I8F¢14 THO'9LY S 660°ZSF 94 TI10Z 1€ HATWIDIHA LV SHONVTVE
(Spupsnoy | uf)
Ambg ey samin[ 1L (81 310N (LT 31ON) $ra0N) Gz o) [EiIde) {81 10N
BulosuoaUeN sunuey TPU - SIYILAE  SAALSIY C AMUIA uppleg Foorg (endes
poue1oy UMDY Y0y JULOf B 1O [BUOHIPPY

o {S50°T) Wiey
aInsRatlDy

IALISTY slaSEy
[eoteuL] ajes
-1oj-ajqR(iTAyY
[ 2ryg

AUBAWIO)) IR i JO SI5p[oF] ANmbY 01 F[gRing 1INy Amnbg

€T ANV FI0T 'ST0Z ‘1€ YAAWADAJ IANT SUVAA THL Y04
ALINOE NI SEONVHD 40 SINTIWALVIS ALLVATITOSNOD

SHIIVIAISINS ANV "ONI ‘SANIJAI'TIHd NI 10H



HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 2013
{In Thousands}
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Ineome before income tax £13,365,685 B7,299,226 B6,402,.864
Adjustments for:
Gain on remeasurement of retained equity in a former
subsidiary (Note 9) {2,635,755) — -
Depreciation, amortization, depletion and impairment
{Notes 10, 11 and 23) 1,890,611 1,422,604 1,475,647
Loss (gain) on sale of property, plant and equiprnent
{Note 24) {107,810) (12,305) 31,386
Interest and financing charges (Note 24) 78,752 43,670 5,099
Provision for probable losses (Note 17) 73,386 43,632 -
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) - net (32,735) {5,260) 9,048
Increase in retirement benefit liability 40,877 66,155 21,330
Interest and other financial income (Notes 4 and 12) (20.013) (13,029} (29,474)
Provisions for (reversal of) site restoration costs '
(Note 17) 11,607 11,754 (7,355)
Gain on sale of investment in joint venture (Note 24) — — (150,297)
Income before working capital changes 9,664,605 8,856,447 7,758,248
Decrease (increase} in;
Trade and other receivables (1,045,915) (479,938) 187,939
Inventories (193,163) (770,302) (737,370}
Other current assets 270,374 120,274 (184,746)
Inerease (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables 1,516,225 653,613 595,102
Other provisions (Note 17) — {49,172) -
Net cash generated from operations 10,212,126 8,330,922 7619173
Cash generated from operations of a former subsidiary
{Note 9) 143,929 — -~
Income taxes paid, incl uding creditable withholding taxes {2,531,374) (2,036,896) {2,092,316)
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,824,681 6,294 026 5,526,857
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to praperty, plant and equipment {Note 10) (2,440,515) (1,894,139 (2,564,689
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment 81,359 22,435 38,066
Additions to intangible assets (Note 11) (11,329) {544,902) (58.459)
Additional investments (Note §) (242,931 - -
Proceeds from sale of investent in joint venture - — 475,500
Interest received 20,013 13,029 29,474
Decrease (increase) in other noncurrent assets (4,205) 15,793 {14,380)
Cash used in investing activities of a former subsidiary
(Note 9) (3,612,264) - -
Net cash used in investing activities (6,209,872) (2,387,784) (2.094,488)

{Forward)
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Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 2013
(i Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paymerts of:

Cash dividends (Note 18) (15,299,008) (P4,520,151) (P3,548,635)

Notes payable (Notes (3 and 25) (1,490,473) {3.992,895) {1,450,000)

interest and financing charges {78,752) {43,670) {8,869)
Proceeds from availment of loans (Notes 13 and 24 ) 1,625,000 5,200,000 2,343,000
Cash generated from financing activities of a former

subsidiary (Note 9) 347,125 — -
Net cash used in financing activities (1,772,108) (3,356,716} (2,664,524)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

ON CASH ANB CASH EQUIVALENTS (710) (423) 2,877
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (158,669) 549,103 770,722
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

OF YEAR 2,698,207 2,149,104 1,378,382
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END

OF YEAR (Note 4) £2,540,198 P2,698,207 B2,149,104

See accomparnying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Holcim Philippines, Inc. (HPI or the “Parent Company™) and all of its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Company™), except Wellborne International Group Limited (WEB), were
incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange

Commission (SEC).

The Parent Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture and

distribution of ¢ement products domestically and also for export. Following are the subsidiaries

and the respective percentages of ownership as of December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Effective Percentage of

Ownership
Principal Activities 2015 2014
Held by HPI
WEB @ Holding company 100.00 100.00
Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc. (ECLI) Distribution of conerete and cement 190,00 100.00
products
Holcim Philippines Business Services Business process outsourcing and 100.00 160.00
Center, Inc. (HPBSCI}® other information technology enabled
services
Hubb Stores and Services, Inc. (HSSH''  Retail of construction or building 160.00 100.00
materials
Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Manufacture and distribution of 99.62 99.62
Corporation {HPMC) cement products domesticaily and
also for export
Holeim Mining and Development Mining, processing and sale of guarry - 100.00
Corporation {(HMDC)y ¥ resources
Held by WEB
Mabini Grinding Mill Corporaticn Manufactare and distribution of 100.00 100.00
{Mabini) cement products domestically and
also for export
Held by HPMC
Alsons Construction Chemicals, Ine. Manufacture, use and sale of aff kinds 99.62 99.62
{Alchem}™ of admixtures
Bulkcer Philippines, Inc. (Bulkcem) Purchase, lease and sale of real 99.62 99.62
properties
Calamba Aggregates Co., Inc. (CACEH Mining, processing and sale of quarry 99,62 99.62
resources
Held by HMDC®
Helcim Resources and Development Mining, processing and sale of quarry — 100.00
Corporation (HRDC) resources
Lucky One Realty Ventures, Inc. Purchase, lease and sale of real — 100.00

(LORVI)?®

properties

fa) A company incorporated in British Virgin Islands

{b)  Incorporated on February 4, 2014
{c} Incorporated on June 2, 2014

() Ceased commercial aperations since 2004

fe) I the process of Hquidation

( Acquired by HMDC as assets on July 28, 2014
(g} Deconsolidaied as of December 31, 2015 (see Note 9)
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The plant sites of the Parent Company are in Davao City and in the provinces of La Union and
Bulacan while the plant sites of Mabini and HPMC are in the provinces of Batangas and Misamis
Oriental, respectively. The registered office address of the Parent Company is 7™ Floor, Two
World Square, Mckinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

The Parent Company is majority-owned by Union Cement Holdings Corporation (UCHC), a
company incorporated in the Philippines. The Philippine-domiciled ultimate parent company of
HF1 is Clinco Corporation (Clinco).

The consolidated [inancial statements were reviewed and recommended for approval by the Audit
Committee on February 22, 2016, The same were approved for issuance by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on February 23, 2016,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Financial Reporting Practices

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative
financial instruments and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets that are measured at fair value,

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (Peso), the Parent
Company’s functional currency. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Principles of Consotidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company
and entities controlled by the Parent Company (its subsidiaries) as at December 31 of each year.
Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the
following:

* Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

* Exposure, or rights. to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and,

= The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Company has less than majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over the investee,
including:

* Any contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

" Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
* The Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights

“SGVFS015825*



-3-

The Parent Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Subsidiaries are fully consotidated from the date the Company obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to
control the subsidiary,

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Afl intra-group balances, transactions and
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are efiminated in full.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are atiributed to the
equity holders of the Parent Company and to the noncontrolling interests, even if this results in the
nonconirolling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest in a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, it:

*  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

* Derecognizes the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests

*  Derecognizes the cumulative transtation differences recorded in equity

® Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

*  Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

* Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

* Recognizes the Parent Company’s share of components previous ly recognized in OCI to profit
or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Parent Company has
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities,

Changes in Accounting Poligies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the adoption of the following amendments effective beginning January i, 2015:

* Amendments to PAS 19, “Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Emplovee
Contributions™

PAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they
stiould be attributed to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify that,
if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is
permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in
which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service,
The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements since the Company’s retirement plans are noncontributory.

* Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010 to 2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010 to 2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary

amendments to the following standards. Except as otherwise stated, the adoption of these
amendments did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

*SGVFS015825™
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PFRS 2, “Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition”

This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the
definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

= A performance condition must contain a service condition

* A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service

* A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those
of another entity in the same group

= A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition

* If the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the
vesting period, the service condition is nol satisfied.

PFRS 3, “Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a
Business Combination™

The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after July [, 2014. 1t clarifies that a contingent consideration that
is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or ioss
whether or not it falls within the scope of PAS 39.

PFRS 8, “Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation
of the Total of the Reportable Segments” Assets to the Entity’s Assets”

The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:

* An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria in the standard, including a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and
gross margins) used to assess whether the segments are ‘similar’.

= The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if
the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the
required disclosure for segment liabilities.

PAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment: Revaluation Method - Proportionate
Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation”, and PAS 38, “Intangible Assets: Revatuation
Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization”

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the
asset may be revatued by refereace to the observable data on either the gross or the net
carrying amount. Ir addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the
difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset,

PAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel”.
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is
an entity that provides key management personnel services, is a related party subject to

the refated party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is
required to disclose the expenses incurred for management services.

“SGVES0158257
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Annual Improvements to PFRS (2011 to 2013 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011 to 2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards. Except as otherwise stated, the adoption of these
amendments did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements,

=  PFRS 3, “Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for foint Arrangements™

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope
exceptions within  PFRS 3:

= Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3.
= This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the
joint arrangement itself.

s PFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception”

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in
PFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also 1o
other contracts within the scope of PAS 39.

= PAS 40, “Investment Property”

The amendment is appied prospectively and clarifies that PFRS 3, and not the description
of ancillary services in PAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of
an asset or business combination. The description of ancillary services in PAS 40 only
differentiates between investment property and owner-occupied property (i.e., property,
plant and equipment).

New Accounting Standards, Amendments to Existing Standards
and Interpretations Effective Subsequent to December 31, 2015

The standards, amendments and interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective as at
December 31, 2013 are disclosed below. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not
expect the adoption of the applicable new and amended PFRS to have a significant impact on the
financial position or performance.

Deferred

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, "Agreements for the Construction of Reat Estate”

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The SEC and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of this
interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard
against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed, Adoption of the
interpretation when it becomes effective will not have any impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company.

“S6VFS015825*
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PFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements” and PAS 28, “Investments in Assaciates and
Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture”

These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction inveolves a business (whether i is housed in a subsidiary or
not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even il these assets are housed in a subsidiary. In December 2015, the
IASB deferred indefinitely the effective date of these amendments pending the final outcome
of the LASB’s research project on International Accounting Standards 28. Adoption of these
amendments when they become effective will not have any impact on the consolidated
financial statements,

Effective in 2016

PAS 16, “Property. Plant and Equipment”, and PAS 38, “Intangible Assets - Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization” (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefiis that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangibie assets. The amendtents are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company
given that the Company is not using a revenue-based method to depreciate its noncurrent
assets.

PAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment”, and PAS 41, “Agriculture - Bearer Plants”
{Amendments)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of
bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will .apply. The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, “Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance”, will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are
not expected te have any impact to the Company as the Company does not have any bearer
plants.

PAS 27, “Separate Financial Statements ~ Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements”
(Amendments)

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity methiod in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January t, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments will not have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

"S6VFS015825



PFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations”
(Amendments)

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator that is accounting for the acquisition
of an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business, must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting,
The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not
remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint
control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PERS 11 to specify that
the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting
entity, are under commeon control of the same ultimate controlling party,

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
etfective for annual periods beginning on or after January I, 2016, with early adoption
permitted.

PERS 14, “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

PIFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016. Since the Company is an existing PFRS preparer, this
standard would not apply.

PAS T, “Presentation of Financial Statements — Disclosure Initiative” (Amendments)

The amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the

presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRS. They clarify the following:

* That entities shall not reduce the understandability of their financial statements by either
obscuring material information with immateriafl information; or aggregating material jtems
that have differeat natures or functions

* That specific {ine items in the statement of income and OCl and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated

®* That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial
statements

" That the share of OCI of associates and Joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Early application is permitted and entities do not need to disclose that fact as the amendments
are considered to be clarifications that do not affect an entity’s accounting policies or
accounting estimates, Adoption of these amendments will not have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 10, “*Consolidated Financial Statements™, PFRS 12, “Disclosure of Interests in Otler
Entities”, and PAS 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” — “kvestment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception” (Amendments)

These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting conselidated
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity that
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measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value and that only a subsidiary of an investment entity
that is not an investment entity itself and that provides support services to the investment
entity parent is consolidated. The amendments also allow an investor {(that is not an
investment entity and has an investment entity associate or joint venture), when applying the
equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate
or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries. These amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. These amendments are not applicable to the
Company since the Company is not an investment entity nor does it have investment entity
associates.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January t, 2016 and are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company. They include:

=  PFRS 3, “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal”

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal
through sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The
amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the date of
classification,

= PFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts™

PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
iransferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a
servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial
asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the puidance for
continuing mvolvement in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required.
The amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts
constitute continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively, However,
comparative disclosures are not required to be provided for any period beginning before
the annuat period in which the entity first applies the amendments.

» - PFRS 7, “Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements” { Amendments)

This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting
of financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the
most recent annual report.

= PAS 19, “Employee Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate”

This amendment is applied prospecilively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for
high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.
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= PAS 34, “Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the
Interim Financial Report™

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within
the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

Effective in 2018

PFRS 9, “Financial [nstruments”

In July 2014, the firal version of PFRS 9 was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39 and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative
information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 is permitted
if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015.

The adoption of PFRS 9 (2014 versiom) will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets but wifl have no impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial {iabilities. The adoption of the other phases of the
project is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

The following new standard and amendments issued by the IASB has not yet been adopted locally.

International Financial Reporting Standards (FFRS) 15, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers™

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects 1o be entitled to in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue, The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
IFRS. Either a full or 'modified retrospective application is required for annual periods
beginning on orafter January 1, 2017, with early adoption permitted.

IFRS 16, “Leases”

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify
their leases as either operating or finance leases in accordance with PAS [7. Rather, [eases
will apply the single-asset model, wherein lessees will recognize the assets and the related
liabilities for most leases in their balance sheets and, subsequently, will depreciate the lease
assets and recognize interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. The new standard is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with early adoption
permitted.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 and plans to adopt the
new and amended standards on their required effective dates once adopted locally.
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Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o transfer a liability in an
orderly tramsaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liabilily takes place either:

» [n the principal market for the asset or liability, or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous markel must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
towest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

= Level I - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

*  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

= Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabitities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization (based on the towest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy,

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition. Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the consolidated balance
sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way puirchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the markeiplace. Derivatives are also recognized on a
trade date basis.
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Initial Recognifion of Financial Instruments,  Financial assets and liabilities are initially
recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of all financial
assets and liabilities, except for financial instruments measured at FVPL.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and AFS financial assets. The Company
classifies its financial liabilities into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financiat liabilities at
amortized cost. The classification depends on the purpose for which the instruments were
acquired or liabilities incurred and whether they are quoted in an active market. The Company
determines the classification of financial instruments at initial recognition and where appropriate
and applicable, reevalvates this designation at every reporting date,

Financial instrurments are classified as liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any
related income tax benefits.

“Day 17 Difference. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair
value of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (“Day 1™ difference) in the
consolidated statement of income under “Interest and other financial income” or “Interest and
financing charges” account unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. [n cases
where data used are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value
is only recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the inputs become observable or
when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the
appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference amount.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at FVPL, Financial assets and financial Habilities at
FVPL include financial assets and liabilities held for trading purposes and financial assets and
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling and repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives (including separated
embedded derivatives) are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or a financial guarantee contract,

Financial assets and financial liabilities may be designated as at FVPL by management on initial
recognition when arty of the following criteria are met:

* The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them
on a different basis;

* The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both,
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy;

* The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separately recorded.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded as part of “Foreign exchange gains (losses) - net” in
the consolidated statement of income. Interest earned or incurred is recorded in interest income or
expense, respectively, while dividend income is recorded separately in the consolidated statement
of income when the right of the payment has been established.

Included under this classification are the Company’s bifurcated embedded currency forward
derivatives.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting :

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency swaps to hedge its risks
associated with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. Derivative financial instruments
(including bifurcated embedded derivatives) are initially recognized at fair value at the date when
they are entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognized directly in the consolidated statement of income,

For purposes of hedge accounting, derivatives can be designated either as cash flow hedges or fair
value hedges depending on the type of risk exposure it hedges.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk
being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting
the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine whether they have been actually highly effective
prospectively and retrospectively throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were
designated.

Cash Flow Hedges. Cash flow hedges are hed ges of exposures to variability in cash flows that are
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset, Hability or a highly probable
forecast transaction and could affect profit or foss. Changes in the fair value of a hedging
instrument that qualifies as a highly effective cash flow hedge are recognized as OCI, while any
hedge ineffectiveness is immediately recognized in the consolidated statement of income under
*Others - net™ account.

Armounts taken o OCI are transferred to the consolidated statement of income when the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognized or when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of a
nonfinancial asset or Hability, the amounts taken to OCI are transferred to the initial carrying
amount of the nonfinancial asset or liability,

If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognized in OCI
are transferred to profit or loss. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts
previously recognized in other caomprehensive income shall remain in OCI until the forecast
transaction occurs. If the related transaction is not expected to occur, the amount is taken to profit
or toss.
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Embedded Derivatives. An embedded derivative is separated from the hoslt contract and
accounted for as a derivative if all of the following conditions are met: a) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract; b) a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and c) the hybrid or combined
instrument is not recognized at FVPL. The Company assesses whether embedded derivatives are
required to be separated from the host contracts when the Company first becomes a party to the
contract. Reassessment of embedded derivatives is only performed when there are changes in the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required under the
contract,

The Company’s embedded derivatives comprise of bifurcated embedded currency forwards from
purchase orders.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables. are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the
intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as at FVPL nor designated as
AFS financial assets or HTM investments.

After initial recognition, foans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that
are integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortization is included in the “Interest and
other financial income™ account in the consolidated statement of income. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized as provision for doubtful accounts in the consolidated statement of
income. Loans and receivables are classified as current assets if maturity is within 12 months
from the balance sheet date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

Included under this category are the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, advances to employees included under “Other current assets™ and guarantee deposits
and restricted cash included under “Other noncurrent assets”,

HTM Investments. Quoted nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity are classified as HTM investments when the Company has the positive intention
and ability to hold 1o maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not
included in this classification. HTM investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
This cost is computed as the amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest rate method of any difference
between the initially recognized amount and the maturity amount less allowance for impairment.
For investments carried at amortized cost, gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated
statement of income when the investment are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process. Where the Company sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM
investments, the entire category will be tainted and reclassified as AFS financial assets. Assets
under this category are classified as current assets if maturity is within 12 months from balance
sheet date and as noncurrent if maturity is more than a year from balance sheet date.

The Company has no investments classified as HTM investments as at December 31, 2015 and
2014.

AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are nonderivative financial asseis that are designated

as AFS or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. They are purchased and held
indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.
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After initial recognition, AFS financial assets that are quoted in an active market are carried at fair
value. The unrealized gains and losses arising from the change in fair value of AFS financial
assets are recognized in OCT and credited in the AFS reserve unless the investment is
derecognized., at which time the cumulative gain or foss is recognized in other operating income,
or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative loss is reclassified from the
AFS reserve 1o the consolidated statement of income in finance costs. These financial assets are
classified as noncurrent assets unless the intention is to dispose such assets within 12 months from
balance sheet date.

The Company classified its investments in quoted and unquoted ordinary shares of stocks of
various companies and club shares as AFS financial assets,

Other Financial Liabilities. Financial labilities are classified in this category if they are not held
for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. Other financial
tiabilities which include notes payable and trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
vaiue of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any related
issue costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as through the amortization process.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if these are expected to be paid or settled
within 12 months after the balance sheet date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent
hiabitities,

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (as incurred “loss event™) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
default.

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and
individually or coltectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.

If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of intpairment,

IEthere is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
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rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income. The assets together with the associated atlowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has
been transferred to the Company.,

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
Joss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

AFS Financial Assets. The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that an AFS financial asset or a group of AFS financial assets is impaired. For equity
investments classified as ATF'S financial assets, objective evidence of impairment would include a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value of the investments below its cost. Significant decline
in fair value is evaluated against the original cost of investment, while prolonged decline is
assessed against the periods in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in the consolidated statement of income, is removed from OCI and recognized in the
consolidated statement of income. lmpairment losses on equity investments are not reversed in
the consolidated statement of income. Increases in fair value afier impairment are recognized in
OCL.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financigl Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset ot part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

* the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

= the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangetent; or

* the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (&) has
transferred substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evatuates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In this case, the Company also
recognizes an associated liability. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged, is cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, stch an exchange or
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modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liabifity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the Hability simultaseously.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash mcludes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly lquid
investments that are readily convertibie to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Cash and cash equivalents excludes any restricted cash (presented as part of “Other
noncurrent assets™) that is not available for use by the Company and therefore is not considered
highly Liquid, such as cash set aside to cover rehabilitation obligations.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivatents consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the Jower of cost or net realizable value (NRV). Costs incurred in
bringing each inventory to its preseat location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Finished goods and goods in process - determined using the moving average method;
cost includes direct materials, direct tabor and
a proportion of manufacturing overhead costs.

Raw materials, fuel, spare parts and others - determined using the moving average method;
cost includes purchase price and other costs
incurred in bringing these inventories to their
present location or condition.

The NRV of finished goods and goods in process inventories is the sefling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs to complete the product and make the sale, The NRV of
raw materials. fuel and spare parts and other inventories is the current replacement cost.

Other Current Assels

Other current assets mainly include advances to suppliers and prepaid expenses. These are
amounts paid in advance for goods or services that are yet to be delivered and from which future
economic benefits are expected to flow to the Company within the normal operating cycle or
within |2 months from the balance sheet date. They are initially measured at the amount paid in
advance by the Company for the purchase of goods and services and are subsequently decreased
by the amount of expense incurred. '

Investinents in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but has
1o control or joint control over those policies.
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The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries.

The Company’s investments in its associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investments in associates are initially recognized at cost, The carrying amount
of the investments is adjusted to recognize changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the
associates since the acquisition date. Any goodwill relating to an associate is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The consolidated statement of income reflects the Company’s share of the results of operations of
the associates. Any change in QCI of the associate is presented as part of the Company’s OCI. In
addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associates, the
Company recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company
and the associates are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associates.

The aggregate of the Company’s share of profit or loss of the associates is shown on the face of
the consolidated statement of income and represents profit or loss after tax and noncontrolling
interests in the subsidiaries of the associates.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to
recognize an additional impairment loss on its investments in the associates. The Company
determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognizes the loss as part of the “Eguity in net earnings or losses” in the consolidated
statement of income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company measures and recognizes any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate
upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognized in the consotidated statement of income.

Property. Plant and Equipment

Propetty, plant and equipment, except land, are stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day
servicing, less accumulated depreciation and depletion and anty impairment in value. Land is
carried at cost less any impairment in value. When significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of income as incurred. Spare parts
are classified as property, plant and equipment if the expected time of use is more than twelve
months and provided that the capitalization thresholds are met.

Mineral and quarry rights included in “Land and land improvements™ are recognized at cost less
accumulated depletion and any impairment. Cost incurred in the acquisition of mineral and quarry
rights including directly related project development costs are initially recognized as intangibte
assets. Such amount is reclassified to property, plant and equipment when the Company starts its
quarry operations,
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Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method, less any residual value, over the
following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Estimated Useful Lives in Years

Land improvements 20 to 50
Buildings and instaliations 2010 40
Machinery and equipment 10 to 30
Furniture, vehicles and tools 31010

Depletion of Jand with mineral reserves and quarry rights is computed using the unit-of-produetion
method.

The uvseful lives, residual values. depreciation and depletion methods -are reviewed at each
financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate, to ensure that the periods and method of
depreciation and the estimated units to be extracted used as basis for the depletion rate are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and
equipment,

An item of property, plast and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consofidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Construction in-progress represents plant and properties under construction or development and is
stated at cost. This includes costs of construction, plant and equipment, borrowing costs directly
attributable to such asset during the construction period and other direct costs. Construction
in-progress is not depreciated until such time when the relevant assets are substantially completed
and available for its intended use.

Business Combinations and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methad, The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair
value, and the amount of any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Company elects whether to measure the noncontrolling interests in the acquiree
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred and included in general and administrative expenses,

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or
loss. It is considered in the determination of goodwill.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair vatue at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or Hability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of PAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for noncontrolling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the
aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified
all of the assets acquired and alt of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. [f the re-assessment still results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then
the gain is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing performed annually, goodwil acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, -allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabitities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the refative values of the disposed operation
-and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Intangible Assets

Software Costs. Costs of acquisition of new software and its customization are capitalized and
treated as an intangible asset if these costs are not an integral part of the related hardware.
Software costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over three years.

Mineral and Quarry Rights and Project Development Costs. Minj ng rights are stated at cost. The
cost includes the purchase price, fees and licenses directly related to the quarry.  Project
development costs are costs directly associated with the development of land covered by mineral
and quarry rights. When these projects are considered operational, such amounts are reclassified
to the “Property, plant and equipment - Land and land improvements™ account in the consolidated
balance sheet and subjected to depletion as resources are extracted. These are charged to current
operations in the year these are determined to be worthless.

Foreshore Lease. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economie life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The Company's foreshore lease qualifies as intangible with finite life and is amortized
over its lease term of 25 years using the straight-line method.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

At each reporting period, the carrying values of property, plant and equipment, investments in
associates, creditable withholding taxes, input value-added tax (VAT), prepaid expenses, other
current assets, software costs and other nonfinancial assets, except goodwill, are assessed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. If any such indication exists and when the carrying value exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of fair value less costs to sell or value-
in-use. The fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment . of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amoury is
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determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Provision for impairment
losses is recognized in the consolidated statement of income,

Recovery of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication
that the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The
recovery is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. However, the increased carrying
amount of the asset due to reversal of an impairment loss is recognized only to the extent that it
does not exceed the carrying amount (net of accumulated depreciation, amortization and
depletion) that wouid have been determined had impairment loss not been recognized for that
asset in the prior years.

Goodwill
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment at the end of each reporting period and when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of CGU {or group
of CGUs) is less than their carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss of the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated. Impairment
losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made. When the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, such as under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when reimbursement is
virtualty certain. The expense related to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of
income, net of any reimbursement,

Provision for Site Restoration Cosis. A provision for site restoration costs is recognized when the
Company starts the extraction activity in the land with mineral reserves in which it operates. The
initial provision for site restoration costs, which represents the present value of estimated cash
flows expected to be incurred to settle the obligation, is capitalized as land with mineral reserves
and included in “Property, plant and equipment - Land and land improvements” account in the
consolidated balance sheet. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the risks specific in restoring the site. The unwinding of the discount is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income as it occurs. The estimated future costs of restoring the site are
reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated. future costs or in the
discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset in the current period.

Equity
Preferred and common stocks are measured at par value for all shares issued, Incremental costs

incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as deduction from
proceeds, net of tax. Proceeds and/or fair value considerations received in excess of par value are
recognized as additional paid-in capital.

The Company’s own equity instruments which are reacquired are deducted from equity and
presented as “Cost of treasury shares held” in the consolidated balance sheet. No gain or loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the
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consideration received, if any, upon reissuance or cancellation of shares is recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net incotme or loss, net of any dividend
declaration and other capital adjustments.

Cash Bividend to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

The Parent Company recognizes a lability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the
Parent Company when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the
discretion of the Parent Company. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,
regardless when the amount is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, excluding discounts, returns, rebates and value-added taxes (VAT). The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of Goods. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on the delivery of the goads to and acceptance by the
buyer,

Interest. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective interest
yield on the asset.

Dividend. Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividends has been
established,

Costs and Expenses
Costs and expenses are recognized when incurred. These are measured based on the fair value of
consideration paid or payable.

VAT

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized, net of the amount of VAT, except when VAT
incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payabie to, the taxation authority is inctuded as part
of “Other current assets™ or “Trade and other payables” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Retirement Benefit Costs

Retirement benefits liability, as presented in the consolidated balance sheet, is the aggregate of the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the
fair value of plan assets, adjusted for the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset
ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. The retirement benefit costs comprise of the service cost, net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset and remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or
asset,
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Service costs which inchede current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-.
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit iiability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in
profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the pericd in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held in trust and managed by a trustee bank., Plan assets are not
available to the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid directly to the Company. The fair
value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is available, the
fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount
rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal
date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the
refated obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

The Company’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
defined benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.

HPBSCI has a defined contribution plan covering all regular employees. As HPBSCI operates in
the Philippines, it is subject to Republic Act (RA} No. 7641, which requires a minimum benefit
equivalent to one-half month’s salary for every year of service, with six months or more of service
considered as one year. HPBSCI accounts for its retirement obligation under the higher of the
defined benefit obligation relating to the minimum guarantee and the obligation arising from the
deftned contribution plan.

HPI also has a defined contribution plan, which covers all permanent employees. The cost of
providing benefits under defined contribution plan is determined by the contributions due for the
services rendered by employees during the year. The obligation is measured on an undiscounted
basis, except when they do not fall due wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the refated service.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an
employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s
empioyment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

A liability and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can
no fonger withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognizes the related
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restructuring costs. Initial recognition and subsequent changes to termination benefits are
measured in accordance with the nature of the employee benefit, as either post-employment
benefits, short-term employee benefits, or other long-term employee benefits.

Employee Leave Entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting period is recognized for services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Operating [.eases as Lessee

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date. The arrangentent is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangeinent.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributabie to the acquisition, construction or
preduction of a qualifying asset, Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities
necessary o prepare the asset for intended use are in progress and expenditures and borrowing
costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the asset is available for their
intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognized. Borrowing costs include interest charges and other costs incurred
in conntection with the borrowing of funds, as well as exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings used to finance these projects, to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.

All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense when incurred.

Functional Currency and Foreign Currency Translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Peso, which is also the functional currency
of the Parent Company. The functional currency of the Parent Company’s subsidiaries is also the
Peso. The Peso is the currency of the primary econemic environment in which the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries operate. This is also the currency that mainly influences the revenue
from and cost of rendering products and services. Each entity in the Company determines its 6wn
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabitities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency closing rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Al differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of income except
for foreign exchange differences that qualify as capitalizable borrowing costs for qualifying assets.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial fransaction.

Income Tax
Current Income Tax. Current income tax assels and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority. The tax
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rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
as a1 balance sheet date,

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred inconze tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except:

*  When the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foresecable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits from excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over
regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient future taxable profits will allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recavered.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the year when the assets are realized or the liabilities are settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at balance sheet date.

Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in OCI and not in the
consolidated statement of income,

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to offset current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxabie entity and the same taxation author ty.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but disclosed in the notes to the consotidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Events after Balance Sheet Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. The
uncertainties inherent in these judgments and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in the future years.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has ntade the

following significant judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Determination of Control. The Parent Company determines control when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with an entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The Parent Company controls an entity if and only if the
Company has all of the following:

a. Power over the entity,

b. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and,

¢. The ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of the Parent Company’s
returns.

The Parent Company regularly reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstlances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above. The Parent Company determined that it exercises control on all of its subsidiaries as it has
all the elements of control listed above.

Assessment of Loss of Control on HMDC. The Company assesses the consequences of changes in
its ownership interest in a subsidiary that may result in a loss of control as well as the
cansequences of losing control of a subsidiary during the reporting period.

In December 2015, the Company appointed and designated a third party subscriber of the shares
of stock of HMDC as its proxy, authorized to vote for and on its behalf 60% of all of its shares in
HMDC at any and all meetings of the stockholders of HMDC. Subsequently, the nominees of such
third party subscriber were elected as majority members of the BOD of HMDC. Consequently, as
of December 31, 2015, the Company lost its control on HMDC and accounted for its rematning
interest as investment in an associate (see Note 9).

Assessment for the Acquisition of Certain Lafarge Entities and Properties. On August 3, 2013, the
Company and HMDC purchased shares of stock of certain Lafarge entities, parcels of land and a
terminat facility. Management assessed that the acquired entities and properties, except for the
quarry land in Pinagtulayan, qualify as business because of the integrated set of assets and
activities present in the acquired entities that is sufficient for the Company to generate output. The
quarry land in Pinagtulayan did not qualify as business because of the missing element of inputs
(i.e., mining/quarry rights) necessary to produce or extract raw materials from the site.
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Additional discussions regarding the acquisition can be found in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Assessment for the Acquisition of LORVI Taking into consideration the relevant provisions of
PFRS 3, the Company assessed that the acquisition of LORVI in 2014 is a purchase of group of
assets due to the absence of critical elements of inputs and processes to sufficiently generate
output. Also, there is no compelling evidence that the missing efement could easily be replicated
by the Company in a relatively short period of time,

Operating Lease Conunitments - Company as Lessee. The Company has various lease agreements
as a lessee. The Company has determined, based on evaluation of the terms and condition of the
lease agreements, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the leased properties were
retained by the lessor (e.g., no transfer of ownership at the end of the lease term). Accordingly, the
Company accounts for these leases as operating leases (see Note 28).

Estimates

The key estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty as at
balance sheet date that have the most significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period are as follows:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment. The useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are estimated based on the period over which the property, plant and equipment are expected to be
available for use and on the collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end, and updated if expectations differ materially
from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and
tegal or other timits on the use of the property, plant and equipment. However, it is possible that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates brought about
by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recording of depreciation
expense for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. There
were no changes in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment in 2015 and 2014.
The carrying value of depreciable property, plant and equipment amounted to £13.6 billion and
13.8 billion as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 10).

Depletion of Mineral and Quarry Rights. Mineral and quarry rights reserves estimates are, to a
targe extent, based on interpretation of geological data obtained from drill hotes and other
sampling techniques and feasibility studies which derive estimates of costs based on anticipated
tonnage and grades of minerals to be mined and processed, the configuration of the mineral body,
expected recovery rates of minerals, estimated operating costs, estimated climatic conditions and
other factors. Proven reserves estimates are attributed to future quarry sites projects onty where
there is a significant commitment to project funding and extraction and for which applicable
governmental and regulatory approvals have been secured or are reasonably certain to be secured.
All proven reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based on new
mformation, such as from block grading and extraction activities or from changes in economic
factors including product prices or development plans.

Estimates of reserves for undeveloped or partially developed areas are subject to greater
uncertainty over their future life than estimates of reserves for areas that are substantially
developed and depleted. As an area goes into production, the amount of proven reserves will be
subject to future revision once additional information becomes available. The estimated
recoverable reserves are used in the calculation of depletion and testing for impairment, the
assessment of life of quarry sites, and forecasting the timing of the payment of provision for site
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restoration. The carrying value of mineral and quarry rights amounted to B197.7 million and B
283.2 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, included in “Property, plant and
equipment - Land and land improvements” (see Note 10).

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed when
certain impairment indicators are present. If any such indicators exist, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset.

Determining the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, investrments in associates,
intangible assets and other nonfinancial assets requires the determination of future cash flows
expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposal of such assets. Future
events could cause management to conclude that assets associated with an acquired business are
impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s
financial position and financial performance. The preparation of estimated future cash flows
involves significant estimations and assumptions. While the Company believes that its
assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in the Company’s assumptions
may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and may lead to future additional
impairment charges under PFRS.

No reversal or additional impairment was recognized in 2014 and 2013, In 2015, the Company
recognized impairment loss on certain idle plant facility and cancelled projects (see Note 10).

The allowance for impairment losses on nonfinancial assets tataled B376.7 million and
B55.7 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The carrying values of
investments in associates, property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets are disclosed in
Notes 9, 10 and 11, respectively.

Impairment of Goodwill. The Company performs impairment testing of its goodwilf on an annual
basis or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill is allocated. Value-in-use is estimated by making an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and to apply a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. In 2013 and prior years, goodwill arising from the
Company’s acquisition of WEB and Mabini on August 14, 2003 has been attributed to the entire
cement operation, which is considered as one cash-generating unit. Starting January 1, 2014, due
to the rehabifitation and return to full operations of Mabini plant, the entire goodwill was
attributed to Mabini plant’s cement operations, The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on the three-year
financial plan approved by the senior management. The Company has determined that the
goodwill is not impaired. The carrying amount of goodwill amounted to B2.6 billion as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 (see Note 1 1),

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The Company reviews its trade and other receivables at each
reporting date to assess whether an allowance for impairment should be recorded in the
consolidated statement of income. In particuiar, judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance
required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors such as receivables’
credit risk characteristics, customers’ ability to pay amounts due and customers’ historical
experience with the Company. Actual results may differ resulting in future changes in the
ailowance.
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In addition to specific allowance against individvally significant loans and receivables, the
Company also makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which, atihough not
specifically identified as requiring a specific altowance, have a greater risk of default than when
originally granted. This level of allowance is based on the status of the accounts receivable, past
collection experience and other factors that may affect collectability.

The allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to £201.5 million and £151.3 million as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts, amounted to £3.4 billion and 2.3 billion as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively (see Note 5).

Retirement Benefit Costs. The costs of defined benefit pension plans as well as the present value
of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates,
future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the
valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date. Further details about the assumptions used are provided in Note 27.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with
extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country and is
modified accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases are based
on historical actual salary increases of the Company.

Total retirement benefits liability amounted to R553.4 million and B582.9 million as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 27).

Deferred Income Tax Assets. The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred iricome tax
assets at the end of each reporting period and reduces these to the extent that it is no longer
probabie that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax assets to be utilized. The Company’s assessment on the recognition of deferred
income tax assets ou deductible temporary differsnces is based on the level and timing of
forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is based on the past
results and future expectations of revenues and expenses as well as future tax planning strategies.
However, there is no assurance that the Company will generate sufficient future taxable income to
allow all or part of deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Management also reviews the level
of projected gross margin for the use of Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) and assesses the
future tax consequences for the recognition of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities. Based on the Company's projected margin, management expects to use the itemized
deduction method for the Parent Company and mest of the subsidiaries. HPMC and Mabini,
expect to use the OSD for the next three years and Bulkcem and HPBSCI for the next four years.

Total deferred income tax assets recognized in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets
amounted to £595.7 million and £544.2 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The amounts of temporary ditferences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused
tax iosses, for which no deferred income tax assets as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 are
disclosed in Note 26.
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Provision for Site Restoration Costs. The Company recognizes a provision for the cost of
restoring a mineral and guarry site where a legal or constructive obligation exists. This reqguires an
estimation of the cost to restore the quarry on a per hectare basis, depending on the location and is
based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation as at balance sheet
date, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the
time valte of money and risks specific to the liability. The provision for site restoration amounted
to 8663 million and B137.0 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
{see Note 17).

Net Realizable Value of Inventories. The Company writes down the cost of inventories whenever
the net realizable value of inventories becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical
deterioration, obsolescence, change in price levels or other causes. The lower of cost and net
realizable value of inventories is reviewed on a periodic basis. Inventory items identified to be
obsolete and unusable are written-off and charged as expense in the consolidated statement of
income. The carrying values of inventories amounted to B3.9 billion and £3.8 billion as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 6).

Pravisions for Claims, Litigations and Assessments. The Company is currently involved in
various legal proceedings and tax assessments. Management’s estimate of the probable costs for
the resolution of these claims has been developed based upon an analysis of potential results. The
Company currently believes that these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial statements. It is possible however, that future financial performance could
be materially affected by changes in the estimates or effectiveness of the strategies relating to
these proceedings and assessments. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s
provisions for claims and litigations amounted to 8117.0 million and £43.6 million, respectively
{see Note 17},

Cash and Cashk Equivalents

2015 2014

I Thousands)
Cash on hand and in banks P1,850,752 2,090,237
Short-term deposits 689,446 607,970
B2,540,198 £2,698,207

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the cash requirements of the Company, and
earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates,

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to B18.9 million,
£10.7 million and B27.5 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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5. Trade and Other Receivables - net

2015 2014
tin Thousands)
Trade

Dealers P1,296,171 21,034,594
Retailers 65,893 85,269
Institutional 882,509 795,215

Alternative fuel and raw materials
{(AFRYready mix (RMX)/others 479,806 358,780
Due from related parties (Note 25) 831,488 75,739
Others 63,838 60,885
3,619,705 2,410,482
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 201,494 151,277
3,418,211 £2,259,205

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and generally have credit terms of 30 to 60 days. Due
from refated parties and other receivables are collectible within the next financial year.

Total amount of intercompany receivables eliminated as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
amounted to £1.3 billion.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts whick pertain to trade and other receivables are

as follows:
2015
AFR/RMX/
Bealers Retailers Institutional QOthers Others Tatal
{Fre Thousismls)
Beginning of year P32,067 B3,876 B74.768 34,942 B3,624  RI15§,277
Provisions {reversals) (Note 21) {714y 25,150 {3,064) 28,815 — 50,217
End of year B31,353 £31,026 £71,704 B63,787 B3,624  B231.494
Individually impaired £20,540 P28.966 B4,944 £20,833 3,624 £78,587
Callectively impaired BH),B13 2,060 BGG6,T60 P42,954 B-  Pi22,587
2014
AFRMBMX/
Dealers Retailers Institutional Qthers Others Total
(i Theescrndy)

Beginning of year B20,246 B4.9MH B63,681 732,936 B3.624  £127.408
Provisions (Note 21) (2,018 991 9,238 4,116 - 26,363
Writc-off {197) {16) {151} {2,130 - (2,494)
End of year B32.067 P5.876 74,768 B34,942 B3.624  PISL2T7
[ndividually impaired 220,540 B3.593 85,155 $29.285 1,624 262,197
Coliectively impaired B11,527 P2.283 BF69.613 B35,657 P- £80.080
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6. Inventories
2015 2014
{In Thousands)
At cost;

Finished goods P301,454 P738,847
Goods in process 1,089,133 1,081,558
Raw materials 621,945 692,847
Fuel 385,421 409,805
Spare parts and others 918,864 723,898

At net realizable value;
Finished goods, spare parts and others 125,735 110,566
B3,942 552 £3,757,521

The costs of spare parts and other inventories at net
and #307.0 miltion as at December 31,
with total cost of B1t4.9 million were full

obsolescence in 2015.

The following table shows the movement of allowan

December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 and 2014
y provided for with allowance for inventory

realizable value amounted to 2325.4 million
» respectively. Finished goods inventories

ce for inventory obsolescence as of

215 2014

(I Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year B196,403 P183,279
Provisions (Note 19) 118,192 3,124
Balance at end of year B314,5095 P196,403

Total inventories charged to cost of sales amou
(see Note 19).

P10.9 billion in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively

nted to RI1.9 billion, B11.5 billion and

7. Other Current Assets

2015 2014
i Thousands)

Advances to suppliers (Note 28) B302,160 £242 840
Prepaid expenses 250,643 187,892
Advances to employees 41,129 67,777
Input value-added taxes 37,898 87,093
Creditable withholding taxes 5,148 11,664
Others 7,598 18,575
644,576 P615,841

Advances to suppliers represent advances that are a
outstanding for less than one year from initial reco
insurance paid in advance that are amortized over the

pplied against subsequent purchases and are
gnition. Prepaid expenses include rent and
year.
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Acquisition of Business

On August 3, 2015, the Company, through HMDC, acquired the shares of stock of the following
entities (the ‘Lafarge entities’), which were all incorporated in the Philippines:

Entity Principal Activities
LafargeHolcim Aggregates, Inc. Aggregates and quarry operations
(LHAI, formerly Lafarge
Republic Aggregates, Inc,)

Quimson Limestones, inc. (QLI) Quarry operations

APC Properties, Inc, (APC) Purchasing and selling of properties

Sigma Cee Mining Corporation Exploration, mining and processing of minerals
{SCMCQC)

On the same date, the Company also entered inte Deeds of Absolute Sale for the purchase of
parcels of land in Pinagtulayan, Norzagaray, Bulacan and a terminal facility, including the land
where the facitity is situated, in Manila.

The acquisition of these Lafarge entities and properties were based on management’s study on
potential synergies in terms of strategic fit of the assets acquired with the current operations and
the results of the financial, tax, technical and legal due diligence undertaken on these assets.

The total consideration for the aforementioned acquisitions amounted to B3.! billion, of which
B23.1 million pertains to purchase of the quarry land in Pinagtulayan, Norzagaray, Bulacan
accounted for as purchase of assets (see Note 3).

The recognized fair values of the identifiable assets acqulred and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition follow (amounts in thousands):

Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis B35,465
Trade and other receivables 509,375
nventories 27.330
Other current assets 68,977
Property, plant and equipment 1,167,850
Deferred income tax assets 5,078
Other noncurrent assets 19,070
1,833,145
Liabilities
Motes payable 46,360
Trade and other payables 431,880
Income tax payable 28,517
Beferred income tax liabilities 50,654
Provisions 2,879
560,290
Total identifiable net assels at fair value 1,272,855
Goodwill arising on acquisition 1,799,040
Purchase consideration £3.071,895
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The net assets recognized were based on their fair value as of acquisition date, The fair values of
the parcels of [and, land improvements, building and machinery and equipment acquired from the
Lafarge entities were determined by a third party independent appraiser. Valuation technique used
was market data approach. The deferred income tax labilities comprise the tax effect of the fair
value adjustments on properties that were subjected to appraisal.

From the date of the acquisition, the acquired business contributed £202.6 million of income
before income tax and B136.7 million of net income to the Company. If the acquisition had taken
place at the beginning of 2015, the Company’s income before income tax and net income would
have been P11.4 billion and £8.9 billion, respectively,

The Lafarge entities acquired in 2015 were deemed disposed in 2015, when the Company lost
conirol of HMDC (see Note 9). In accordance with the provisions of PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets
Held for Sale, the assets and liabilities acquired were considered as noncurrent assets and
noncurrent liabilities held for disposal, at acquisition date. Accordingly, the effect of this
acquisition on the consolidated property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets were
not presented as additions in the movement of these accounts as disclosed in Notes 10 and 11,

Also, while PFRS 5 requires that the net income of these entities from date of acquisition to date
of deconsolidation be shown separately as discontinued operations in the 2015 consolidated
statement of income, the net income of these entities were deemed to be insignificant to the
Company’s entire operations, and thus were ot presented separately.

Investments

Investments as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of the following:

2015 2014

{far Thousenids}
Investments in associates B4,191,214 £619
AFS financial assets (Notes 15 and 16) 3,940 3,940
£4,195,154 £4,559

The details of investment in associates as of December 31 » 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014
({1t Thousands)
HMDC £4,190,595
Asia Coal
Acquisition cost 29,162 29,162
Accumulated equity in net losses {28,543) (28,543)
619 619
P4,191,214 P619
HMDC

In October 2015, HMDC, its shareholders HPI and HPMC, together with the Holcim Philippines,
tnc. Retirement Fund (RF), executed a Shareholders Agreement governing HMDC, in refation to
the subscription by the RF of shares in HMDC. HPI and HPMC waived their respective pre-
emptive rights allowing the RF to subscribe to 60% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of
HMDC.
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In November 2015, RF paid its subscription (25% of the subscribed shares) to the voting preferred
shares of HMDC, The latter applied for the increase in capital stock with the SEC to cover RF’s
subscription. As of February 23, 2016, HMDC’s application for increase in capital stock is
pending with the SEC.

Pursuant to the subscription by the RF to 60% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of
HMDC, HP1 and HPMC appointed and designated RF as their proxy for their respective 6§0%
voting shares in HMDC, which proxy is irrevocable untit SEC approves the increase in capital
stock. Thereafter, three nominees of RF were elected to the five-member Board of HMDC. As a
result, RF has effectively taken over the control of HMDC. Consequently, the Company accounted
for its remaining 40% interest in HMDC as investment in an associate. At the date of the loss of
control, the Company’s investment in HMDC was remeasured at P4.2 billion based on the fair
value of its retained equity in HMDC.

Related gain on remeasurement of retained equity in HMDC recognized in profit or loss amounted
to #2.6 billion, arising mainly from the fair value adjustments on land owned by HMDC and its
subsidiaries. In accordance with the Shareholders Agreement, the Company recognized full
equity in the land owned by HMDC and the liabilities attached thereto, since RF will participate
otly in the operating profit of HMDC generated from raw materials supply, land and foreshore
leasing, tolling arrangements, and earth~-moving activities.

Following are the summarized consolidated balance sheet financial information of HMDC as of
December 31, 20135 (in thousands):

Current assets Rr1.476,082
Noncurrent assets

Land and refated assets 2,235,133

Other noncurrent assets 3,871,230
Current liabilities '

Attributable to fand (14,499

Other current liabilities (1,154,313)
Moncurrent liabilities

Attributable to land (50,654)

Other noncurrent liabilities (4,842,730)
Equity P1,520,849
Share in net assets of HMDC and subsidiaries

Attributable to land ' £2,169,980

Attributable to other net assets 37,288
Gain on remeasurement of retained equity at deconsolidation 2,635,755
Recetvable from HMDC and its subsidiaries (Note 25) (652,428)
Company’s carrying amount of the investment £4,190,595

Notes payabie and long-term debt of HMDC and its subsidiaries amounted to £0.2 billion and
B4.8 billion, respectively, as of December 31, 2015,

The consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive income of HMBDC and its subsidiaries for
the entire 2015 formed part of the consolidated statement of income of the Company as the loss of
control occurred only on December 23, 2015. The Company has determined that transactions that
occurred and were recognized by HMDC and its subsidiaries from the date of the loss of control
until December 31, 2015 are not material,
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As presented in the 2015 statement of cash flows, HMDC and its subsidiaries generated cash from
operations amounting to P0.1 billion and from financing activities amounting to B3.5 billion. Net
cash used in their investing activities amounted to $3.7 billion, which include, among others,
acquisition of Lafarge entities and properties amounting to P2.8 billion, net of cash acquired (see
Note 8), purchases of property and equipment amounting to £0.1 billion (see Note 10) and total
cash of HMDC and its subsidiaries as of deconsolidation date amounting to R0.8 billion.

Asia Coal Corporation (Asia Coal)

The Company has a 28% interest in Asia Coal, which was incorporated in the Philippines. Asia
Coal ceased operations on November 1, 2014. On March 19, 2009, the directors and stockholders
of Asia Coal approved the shartening of the corporate life of Asia Coal to October 31, 2009, Asia
Coat shall be dissolved and liquidated, the date of which is subject to the approval of the SEC. The
reporting date of Asia Coal is October 31. The effect of the difference in the reporting date of the

Parent Company and Asia Coal is immaterial.

10, Property, Plant and Equipment

Effect of
Adhditions/ Transfers/ deconso-
December 31, Depreciation/  Disposals/ Rechassifi- Eitation™  December 31,
2014 Impairment™  Retirements cation*' (Note &) 2015
fin Thousands)
Cost:
Land and land improvenients 21,863,433 Pd44,268 (F76,156) P37,543 (£1,800,078) #469,007
Bunildings and instaliations £2,134,4385 10%,060 {124,112} 467,308 (265,259 12,321,982
Machinen-and equipment 21,231,854 142,522 (21,669) 1,285,200 {1,321} 22,636,586
Furmituee, vehicles and  tools 1,206,519 1,044 {I74,09) 76,047 {50,349 1,060,142
Construction in-progress 24674532 1,743,624 — (1.859.366) {59,461} 2,409,329
30 110,833 2440515 (IG5,056) 8,132 (2,176,468)  38,987046
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion:
Land improvements 208,149 47,896 (76,156) - (15,254) 254,635
Buillings and instatlations 6,497,146 375,574 (44,899} - {15457 6,812,362
Machinery and equipment 13,852,550 987,395 (9.508) — {28,414y 14,802,023
Furniture, vehicles and  tools 802,842 103,394 {154,747) - {28,833) 722.656
21,451,687 1,514,259 (2853 — {87.960) 12,591,676
Less accumulated impatrment fosses;
Buildings and instaflations 3,092 276614 - - — 279,706
Machinery and equipment 18,313 15408 - - - 62,921
Furniture, vehicles and  tools 34.095 — - - — 34,095
55,700 321,022 - —- — 376,722
Net book value PI17.604 436 #605,234 {P110.646) P8,132  (R2.088,508) PI60[8,648
{a)  Additions and effeci of deconsolidation do not inclnde the property, plant and equipment of the Lafarge entities amounting (o
£1.2 iffion, as discussed in Noie 8.
Transfers/
December 31, Addlitions/ Disposals! Reclassi-  December 31,
2013 Depreciation Retirements fications 2014
tfn Thousands)
Cost:
Land and land improvements £1.690,780 215280 P~ 219,852 B1,863,433
Buildings and installations 11,566,093 290,282 - 278,110 12,134,485
Maclirery and equipment 21,385,149 1,370 (425,865) 271,10 21,231,854
Furniture, vehicles and tools 1,149,799 - {32.430) 89,170 1,206,519
Canstruction in-progress 1,851,804 1,449,686 — {626,958) 2674532
37,643,625 1,894,139 {438,315} 31.374 39,110,823
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion
Land fmprovements 261 420 35,729 - — 298,149
Buildings and instaliations 6,121,350 375,796 - — 6,497 146
Machinery and ecquipment 13,421,904 856,513 {4235,867) - 13,852 550
Furniture, vehicles and tools 689 797 135363 {22,318 - 802 842
20,494 471 | 404 404 (448,185) — 21,450,687

{Forward}
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Transfers/
December 31, Additions/ Disposals/ Reclassi-  December 31,
2013 Dieprecialion Retirements fications 2014
{Tn Thousands)
Less accumulated impairment losses:
Buildings and installations £3.002 P 258 P 83,092
wachinery and equipment 18,513 - - - 18,513
Furniture, veticles and  toals 34.095 - - - 34,095
55,700 — — - 35,700
Nei book value 217,093,454 B489.738 {R10,130) £31,374 217,604,436

In July 2014, the Company acquired a group of assets from Calumboyan Holdings, Inc. at a
purchase price of £918.0 million representing port facility and foreshore lease in Mabini, Batangas
{see Note {11). This group of assets was part of the deconsolidated assets in December 2015
(see Note 9).

Construction in progress includes on-going item replacements and expansion projects for the
Company’s operations.

In 20135, the Company recognized impairment loss on certain idle plant facility and cancelled
projects. The Company will rely on other strategic initiatives to increase capacity and sufficiently
supply the market. Impairment loss is presenied under “General and administrative expenses -
Depreciation and impairment™ account in the 2015 statement of income (see Note 20).

. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The movements of goodwill and intangible assets are as follows:

Additions/ Effect of de-
December 31, Amortization/ consolidation™ December 31,

2014 Transfers™ {(Notc 9) 2015
Goodwill $2.635,738 P— | £2,635,738
[ntangible assets:
Cost:
Mining rights 179,544 - {179.544) -
[Foreshore lease 344,902 - (544,902) -
Software costs 122,384 - - 122,384
Project developmient costs and others 38,256 11,329 (11,329 38,256
885,086 11,329 {735,775) 168,640
Less accumulated

amortization:
Foreshare lease - 40,866 {(40,0606) -
Soltware costs 78,087 14,766 - 92,853
Project devetopment costs and others 11,424 498 (96) 11,822
89,507 55,330 {40,162) 104,675
795,579 {44,001) (695,613) 55,965
Baiance £3,431,317 44,001 P695,613) £2,691,703

{a) ddditions and effect qf deconsolidation do not inciude the goodwill arising on acquisition of the Lafarge entities
amoumting (o P18 billion, as discussed in Note 8.
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December 31, Additions/ December 31,
23 Amortization 2014
{In Thousands)
Goodwill £2.633,738 £ B2.635,738
Intangible assets:
Cost:
Mining rights 179,544 - 179,544
Foreshote lcase - 544,902 344,902
Software costs 122,384 - 122,384
Project development costs and others 38.256 — 38,256
340,184 544,902 $83.086
Less accunulated amortization:
Saftware costs 63,321 14,766 78,087
Project development costs and others 7.983 3,437 11.420
71.304 13,203 89,507
268,880 526,099 793,579
Balance B) 004,618 B526,699 25,431,317
Goodwill

Goodwill amounting lo #2.6 billion relates to the Company’s acquisition of WEB and Mabini on
August 14, 2003,

The Company performs its annual impairment test every last quarter of the year. The recoverable
amount of the CGU determined based on value-in-use, is compared to its carrying amount. An
impairment foss is only recognized if the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. Future cash flows are discounted using the weighted average cost of capital (WACC)
adjusted for country-specific inflation risks.

The cash flow projections are based on a three-year financial planning period approved by senior
management. Cash flows beyond the three-year budget period are extrapolated based on cash
flows at zero growth. As a result of this analysis, management has determined that there was no
impairment loss in 2015, 2014 and 2013 since the value-in-use exceeds the carrying, value of
Mabini plant’s cement operations.

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of the CGU, management believes that a change in
the discount rate of 1% point would not cause the carrying value of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.

Key Assumptions

Discount Rate Long-term GDP Growth Rate

20615 8.3% 5.0%

2014 7.9% 5.0%

2013 8.2% 5.5%
Mining Rights

Mining rights pertain to HMDC’s Mineral Production Sharing Agreement (MPSA) No. 108-98 1V
for an aggregate quarry. In 2008, one of the surface owners of a portion of the area covered by the
MPSA filed a petition with the Department of Environmental and Natural Resources (DENR) for
the cancetlation of HMDC’s MPSA. The owner claimed that HMDC had failed to complete its
exploration activities, to commence commercial production within the prescribed period and to
comply with the applicable reportorial requirements. In an order dated February 12, 2009, the
panel of arbitrators allowed the petitioner to withdraw the petition for cancellation, which was
subsequently re-filed with the Mines and Geosciences Bureau. [n an order dated September 18,
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2009, the DENR cancelled HMDC’s MPSA. In a second order dated November 20, 2009, the
DENR denied HMDC’s Motion for Reconsideration. These orders were upheld by the Office of
the President in a decision dated March 5, 2010 and resolution dated May 29, 2010, HMDC
thereafter filed with the Court of Appeals a Petition seeking the reversal and/or annulment of the
decision and resolution issued by the Office of the President for being completely erroneous and
based on a misapprehension of the facts and the law.

On August 16, 2011, the Seventeenth Division of the Court of Appeals granted the petition of
HMDC and nallified the decision dated March 5, 2010 and the resolution dated May 29, 2010
issued by the Office of the President. Accordingly, the Orders dated September 18, 2009 and
November 2009, issued by the DENR were reversed and set aside, thus, declaring that the MPSA
is in full force and effect.

A mation for reconsideration and a supplemental motion for reconsideration were filed by the
petitioner for the reversal of the said decision by the Court of Appeals. On February 2, 2012, both
motion and supplemental motion for reconsideration were denied by the Court of Appeals.

Following the Court of Appeals’ denial of the motion for reconsideration, the petitioner filed a
Petition for Review on Certiorari dated March 7, 2012 to the Supreme Court. Subsequently on
June 25, 2012, HMDC filed its comiment on the petition with the Supreme Court. The petitioner
filed his reply to the Supreme Court on May 3, 2013 where the case is still pending.

This MPSA was part of the deconsolidated net assets of HMDC and its subsidiaries before
yearend (see Note 93,

Foreshore Lease

Foreshore lease amounting to £544.9 million relates to LORVI's foreshore lease in Mabini,
Batangas. The foreshore lease contract was executed on October [, 1997 with the Regional Office
IV of DENR, covering a parcel of fand under plan FLC-041016-23-D with an area of 84,185
square meters located at Brgy. Balibaguban, Mabini, Batangas. The existing foreshore lease
contract has a remaining term of 16 years as of December 31, 2015, renewable for another 25
years thereafter,

This foreshore lease was part of the deconsolidated net assets of HMDC and its subsidiaries before
yearend (see Note 9),

12. Other Noncurrent Asscts

2015 2014
{In Thousands)

Restricted cash B86,185 B81,019
Guarantee deposits (Note 28) 62,788 42,693
Deferred input value-added taxes 57,054 76,269
Refundable deposit 48,466 48,466
Long-term financial receivable 8,566 15,832
Others 557 292
B263,616 B264,571

Restricted cash represents minimum mine rehabilitation fund required by the DENR for site
restoration cost.
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Refundable deposit represents cash bond deposited by Mabini with the Bureau of Customs (BOC)
for importations made in 2001. On March 7, 2007, Mabini filed a case against the BOC for the
release of the cash bond. On October 12, 2012, the Officer-in-Charge of the Law Division of the
Collection District of Batangas submitted a memorandum for the release of the cash bond.
Subsequently on October 22, 2012, a Letter of First Indorsement was submitted by the District
Coliector to the BOC Commissioner recommending favorable consideration to Mabini’s appeal,
subject to compliance with pertinent customs laws, rules and regulations. On December 18, 2014,
Mabini received a letter from the BOC requesting for the submission of documents in order to
proceed with the resolution of the cash bonds. On Qctober 21, 2015, the Company submitted to
BOC a letter of application for the release of the cash bonds. On October 26, 2015, the
Commissioner of Customs endorsed the application to the Legal Services Division and Revenue
Collection Monitoring Group and Deputy Commissioner for appropeiate action. As of
December 31, 2015, the decision on the Company’s application is currently being drafted.

Guarantee deposits represent cash deposits made to suppliers for raw material supply agreement
and various security deposits for rentals (see Note 28).

Long-term financial receivable is due from the Company’s third party service provider for sale of
certain heavy equipment in 2012 and 2008, which will be settled on or before 2017 and 2019,
respectively. Interest income earned from long-term financial receivable at an annual interest rate
of 4.5% to 7.0% amounted to 1.1 million, P2.3 million and £2.0 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively,

13.

Notes Payable

During 2014, the Company availed of a short-term loan from UCHC totaling 0.5 billion bearing
interest equal to the prevailing interest rate using PDST-F rate for one month plus 196, The loan
was fully paid in the same vear (see Note 25).

In 214, HMDC availed of additional loans from UCHC amounting to £1.0 biltion, which
remained outstanding as of the end of 2014. The loan which bears interest equal to the prevailing
tnterest rate using PDST-F rate for one month plus 1% was fully paid in 2015 (see Note 25).

The Company also availed of various short-term loans from various banks in 2015 and 2014
totaling £1.0 billion and 3.7 billion, respectively, bearing interest ranging from 1.5% to 3.0%.
The outstanding balance of these loans as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 totaled B1.0 billion and
P1.1 billion, respectively. The loans are not subject to any debt covenants.

Total interest expense from notes payabie charged to profit or loss amounted to B34.1 million,
241.9 million and £3.5 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Notes 24 and 25).

14,

Trade and Other Payables

2015 2014
1 Thousands)
Trade P2,668,602 R2,490,492
Accrued expenses:
Power 387.602 305,449
Ouiside services 280,387 219,108
Emplayee related 115,767 71,045
{Forward}
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2015 20%4

{in Thousands)
Maintenance R272,224 B262,695
Project expenses 96,840 107,246
Others 52,370 142,801
Advances and deposits from customers 867,910 724,056
Due to related parties (Note 25) 867,108 646,676
Gutput VAT 216,854 —
Other taxes payable 211,035 219,367
Nontrade 193,510 240,822
Qther pavables 315,713 174,234
16,545,982 £5,603,991

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and normalty have payment terms of 30 to 60 days.
Nontrade payables represent accounts with suppliers other than production-related expenses.
These are noninterest-bearing and have an average term of three months or less.

Advances and deposits from customers represent the following:

= Advances and deposits that are applied against subsequent shipments thus, are generally
outstanding for less than 30 days from iritial recognition; and,

* Interest-bearing cash bonds that are refundable anytime upon demand by the customers,

Total amount of intercompany payables eliminated as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted
to 1.3 billion.

. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes in debt
structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The
Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and secks to minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.
The Company uses derivative instruments such as cross-ciurency swaps to hedge the interest and
foreign exchange risks from its foreign currency-denominated debt. The Company does not enter
into other derivative or financial transactions which are unrelated to its operating business as a
risk-averse approach is pursued.

Financial risk management of the Company is governed by policies approved by management. It
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific risk areas
such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidity requirements.

The Company’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and cash
equivatents and notes payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise funds
for the Company’s operations. The Company also has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade and other receivables, advances to employees, guarantee deposits, restricted cash and
trade and other payables which arise directly from operations,
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The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market risks (which include
foreign cutrency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The BOD reviews and
approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below. The
Company’s accounting policies in relation to financial instruments are set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Market Risks
The Company is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency and interest rate risks. To
manage volatifity relating to these exposvres, the Company enters into derivative financial
instruments, when necessary. The Company’s objective is to reduce, where appropriate,
fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency, interest rate
and equily price.

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluetuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates,

The Company has foreign exchange exposures, arising primarily from sales, purchases of goods
and services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Peso that leads to
currency ftranslation effects,. Of the Company’s revenues, approximately 0.1% in 2014
(nil in 20135} are denominated in currencies other than the Peso. The Company may hedge certain
foreign currency-denominated borrowings or other imstruments by entering into derivative
transactions,

Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited. However, income may
primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount of capital
expenditures may be in foreign currencies. As a consequence thereof, the Company may enter
into derivative contracts whenever necessary, which may be designated either as cash flow hedges
or fair value hedges, as appropriate.

The table below summarizes the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk before considering
the effect of hedging transactions. Included in the table are the Company’s foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities at carrying amounts:

Becember 31
2015 2014
in USD in PHP In USD n PHP
{fn Thousands)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 33,079 Pi45,.237 1,840 BE2.285
Trade and ather receivables 4,918 231,982 160 7.135
7,997 377,219 2,000 89,440
Lizbilities:
Trade and other payables 6,058 285,756 1,813 528,277
Net exposure $1,939 B91,463 ($9.813) (B438,537)

Converted to Philippine peso at USS1.00:247.17 as of December 31, 2015 and USS1.00: P44.72 as of December 31, 201 4.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s income before income tax (due
to changes in fair value of monetary assets and liabilities after considering the impact of hedging
transactions) to a reasonably possible change in U.S. doHar exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant:

US Dollar Effect on Income
Appreciates (Depreciates) by Before Income Tax
{In Thousands)

December 31, 2615

Sensitivity 1 H% P9, 146

Sensitivity 2 (3%} (4,573)
December 31, 2014 :

Sensitivity 1 10% (P43,884)

Sensitivity 2 (5%) 21,942

* The effect on equity pertains to the amount that divectly impact equity only,

The impact of any change in foreign exchange rate on the embedded currency forwards of the
Company is immaterial.

Interest Rate Rigk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow interest
rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements of its
debt portfolio related to changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate exposure is
mainly addressed through the steering of the fixed/floating ratio of net debt. To manage this mix,
the Company may enter into derivative transactions, as appropriate. As at December 31, 2015 and
2014, the Company has minimal exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To
manage this risk, the Company periodicaily assesses the financial reliability of customers.

The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial
instruments consist of a large number of major financial institutions. The Company does not
expect any counterparties to fail in meeting their obligations, given their high credit ratings. In
additien, the Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty
or group of counterparties.

The maximum and minimum exposure to eredit risk is represented by the careying amount of each
financial asset, except for the foltowing financial assets:

Gross Maximum Exposure™ Net Maximum Exposure®™
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 3 1,
2015 2014 2015 2014

{frn Thousands)

Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents* 2,539,624 B2.694,118 2,516,602 B2.673,070

(Forward)
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Gross Maximum Exposure™ Net Maximum Exposure®™
December 31, December 31, December31, December 31,
2015 20614 2015 2014

fin Thousands)

Trade and other receivables:

TFrade:
Dealers £1,264,818 B1,002,527 P838,233 632,047
Retailers 34,867 79,393 15,549 57,932
Institutional 810,805 720,447 750,721 635,762
Restricted cash** 86,185 81,019 85,685 80,519
Total £4,736,299 P4.577.504 £4,206,790 B4.079,330

" (Gross financtal assels before taking imto acceunt any collateral held or ather credit enincemerus or affsenting arrangemenis.
® Gross financial assets afier taking into account amy collnteral or other credil enhancements or gffsetting arrangements or deposit
inswrance.
* Exeluding cash an hand,
** fnciuded imder "Other noncurrent assets " account in the consolidated balance stees.

The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy
that all third party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. ln addition, receivable balances are monitored oh an ongoing basis to reduce the
Company’s exposure to bad debts to minimal.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which consist of’
due from related parties, advances to employees, AFS financial assets, and guarantee and
refundable deposits, the Company’s exposures arise from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure egual to the carrying amount of these instruments.

The following iables present the credit quality of the financial assets as at Pecember 31, 2015 and
2014:

Becemther 31, 20HS

Past Due Fast Due
Meither Past due nor Impaired hut not andk
Class A Class B Class C Impaired Imp:ired Total

(i Thonsamds)
AFS financial pssets
Quoted shares 2176 - [ P - Ri76
Ungquoted shares 3764 - — - - 3,764
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in banks 1,830,178 - - - - 1,850,178
Shori-terin deposits 689,446 - — - - 6894446
Trade and other receivables
Trade
Dealers 15,380 914,833 1¥1,377 223,228 31,353 1,296,171
Retailers - 26,301 1,764 6,802 31,026 65,893
Institutional 15 701,167 4,861 104,762 71,704 882,509
AFR/RMX/others 247 177,884 - 237,868 63,787 479,806
Due from related parties 831,488 - - - - /31,488
her receivables - - 60,214 - 3,624 63,838
Advances to etnployces* - - 41,129 - - 45,129
Restricted cash** 86,185 - - - - 84,185
Guaraniee deposits** - - 62,788 — — 62,788
Talal P3.476,899 21,820,185 £281,133 P572.660 201,494 £6,353,371

*Inctuded under "Other currers assets™ in the consolidated balance sheet.
**nchuded under "Other noncnrrent assets " in e consolidated balance shear.
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December 31,2014

. Pasl Due Past Due
Neither Past due nor [mpaired But not and
Class A Class B Class C Impaired Impairéd Toul

ffn Thousamis)
AFS Gnanrcial assets
Quoted shares R17% [ B B B- BlL76
Unquated shares 3,764 - - - - 3,764
Laans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in basks 2,086,148 - - - - 2,086,148
Short-term deposits 607 970 - — - - 607 970
Trade and other receivables
Trade
Dealers 21,781 755,526 117,332 107,858 32,067 1,034,594
Retailers - 44,618 1,707 33,068 5,876 85,269
Institutional 3,278 377,234 2,600 137,329 74768 795215
AFR/RMX/others 910 53,302 978 268,518 34942 358,740
D fom refated parties 75,739 - - — — 75,739
Other recoivables — - 37261 - 3,624 60,883
Advances 10 employees* - - 67,777 - - 67,777
Restncted cash** 81019 - — — - §1.019
Ciuarantes deposits®™ — — 42,693 = — 42,693
Total £2,880,815 21,430,780 P295,354 346,503 851,277 P 5300,029

*fncluded nnder “Orther current assets " in the consolidated balance sheer,
**inclided wnder “Other noncirrent assets™ in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company uses the following criteria to rate credit risk on accounts receivable as to class:

Class Description

Class A Collateralized accounts from counterparties with excellent paying habits or
accounts from counterparties with no history of default payment

Class B Secured accounts from counterpariies with good paying habits but with
history of default payment

Class C Unsecured accounts

With respect to derivatives, AFS financial assets and cash and cash eguivalents, the Company
evaluates the counterparty’s external credit risk rating in establishing credit quality.

The tables below show the aging analysis of the Company’s financial assels as at December 31,
2015 and 2014:

Dicember 31, 2015
Meither
Past Bue Past Due but not Iimpaiced Past
nor <3{ 3660 61-90 91-120 Daie and
Total tmipaired Bays Days Days Days luypaired
£l Thaovands)
AFS financial assels:
Quoted shares B176 P176 P E N [ B f
Unguoted shares 3,764 3,764 - — - - -
Cash and cash equivaients:
Cash in banks 1,850,178 1,850,178 - — - - -
Short-term deposits 687446 680,446 - - — - -
Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables from:
Dealers 1,296,171 141,590 113,323 19,975 4,581 75,349 31,353
Retailers 65,50F 25,065 730 159 - 5873 31026
Institutional 182,509 06,043 39,034 7,186 7,612 30,930 TLH704
AFR/MRM Xothers 479,806 178,151 33,961 48,917 33,2790 119,711 63,787
Due from related parties 831,488 831,488 - - - - -
Others 63,838 64,214 - - - - 360

{Forward)
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December 31, 2015
Neither
Past Pue Past Due but not impaired Past
ner =30 3060 G190 91120 De and
Tota)  Impaired Bays Days Days Days _ [mpaired
{in Thonsainds)
Advances to employees* £41,129 P41,129 P o Ll P- P
Restricted cash*+ 36,185 36,185 - - — - -
Guarantee deposits¥* 651,788 62,788 - — - - -
Taotal B6,353,371 P5,570.217 BI197,048 276,277 P47.472 Pi51.863 P201.494

* Included wnder “Other curvent assets " account in the consolidated balance sheet.
*¥* finclided wnder “Other noncurient assets ™ aecount in the consefidmed balance sheet,

December 31, 2014

Meither
Past Dug Past Duc but nol Impaired Past
nor <30 3060 6190 91-120 Due and
Total Impaired Days Days Days Days frpaired
tn Thousanmds)
AFS [naoncial assets:
Quoted shares B8 B| 76 P B B P =
Unquoted shares 3,764 3,764 - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash in banks 2,086,148 2086148 - — - - —
Short-term deposiis 607,970 607,970 - - - - -
Trade and other recervables:
Trade receivables from
Dealers 1,034,594 894 639 98,303 4,883 2.467 2235 32,067
Retailers 83,269 46,325 30,952 900 223 993 5,876
Institutional 795215 583,118 63,933 40 506 17,399 6,481 74,768
AFRRMX/others 358,780 55,320 151,168 59,888 38,996 18,466 34,942
Blue [rom related partics 75,739 75,739 - - - - -
Others 60,885 57261 - - - - 3.624
Advances 1o enployees* 67,777 67717 — - - - —
Restricted cash** 81,019 81,019 - - ~ - -
Guarantee deposits** 42,695 42.693 - — - - —
Total £3.300,029 P4.501 949 344,356 215267 B30 035 228,095 215,277

* Incinded nnder “Other curvens asseis ™ acconnt in the consolidated balance sheet.
** Included nnder “Cther nonchrrent assets ™ acconnt in the consolidaied balance sheet.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation exposes the
Company to shortage of funds during stack season and may result in payment defaults of financial
commitments. The Company monitors this risk using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This
tool considers the maturity of both its financial assets and projected cash flows from operations.
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank credit facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts. It is responsible
for its own cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject to policies and
guidelines approved by management and, in certain cases, at the BOD level.

The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-term in
nature, unused credit lines and readily available marketable securities to meet its liquidity
requirements at all times. In addition, the strong credit worthiness of the Company allows it to
make efficient use of the financial markets for financing purposes. As at December 31, 2015 and
2014, the Company has unutilized credit facilities of £8.1 billion and £10.4 billion, respectively.

“S6VFS015825"



- 46 -

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets used for
liquidity managemert as at December 31, 2015 and 2014

December 31, 2015
Legs than Jto
Qn Demad 3 Months 12 Months  >1to 5 Years Tatat

{in Thousands}
AFS tmancil assets:
Quoted shares - f 2 P76 B £I176
Unquaoted shares - - 3,764 - 3,764
Loans and receivables;
Cash and cash equivalents;

Cash in banks 1,850,178 - - - 1,850,178
Short-lerm deposily - 680,444 — - 689,446
Trade and other recervahles:
Trade receivables from:
Dealers 31,353 223,228 1041500 - 296,171
Retailers 31,026 6,802 28,065 - 65,593
[nstitutional 71,704 104,762 706,043 - 882,509
AFR/RMX/ others 63,787 237,868 178,151 - 479806
Gue from relaled parties - - 831,488 — 831,488
Other receivables 3,624 — 60,214 — 63,838
Advances to emplovecs* - — 41,129 - 41,129
Restricted cash** - - - 86,185 86,185
Guarantee deposits¥* - - - 62,788 62,788
Total P2,051,672 B1.262 106 B2,.590,620 P145,973 £6,353,371
* fochided cder “Oter cureenr asseds " acoonutt i ie conselicfoted balance sheet
& facluded wnder “Other noncurrem assets” t ot ¢l cemselideied balanee sheet.
December 31, 2014
Less than 3o
On Demand 3 Monthg 12 Months > ta 3 Years Total
{in Thonsands)
AFS Nnancial assels:
Quoted shares B B Bl76 B B176
Unquoted shares - - 3764 - 3.764
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cashin banks 2,086,148 — - — 2086148
Short-term deposits - 607,970 - - 607,970
Trade and other receivables:
Trade recevables fram:
Dealers 32,067 107,888 894 639 - 1,034 504
Retailers 3,876 33,068 46,325 - 35,269
Lastitutzonal 74,768 137,329 383118 - 795,215
AFR/RMX/others 34,942 268 518 55,320 - 358780
Dug from related pariies - - 75,739 - 73,739
Other receivables 3,624 - 57.261 - 60,885
Advances to employecs® - - 67,777 - 67,777
Rastricted cash** — - — 21,019 81,019
Guarantee deposits®* — - - 42 693 42 693
Tolal B2 237425 Bl 1534 773 Bl1,784,119 B123,712 £3 300,029

* Dichuced wircher “Other cirvent assets ™ aceount iy the consolidated halance sheet,
% Tncluded wder “Orher noicireent usseis " geconnt i the consoliduted bufunce s,
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The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 based on confractual undiscounted payments;

December 31, 2015
Less than 3to >1to 5
On Demand 3 Months 12 Months Years Toial
{1 Thousands)
Financial liability at FVPL:
Derivative liability® - B £8382 o BER2
Other linancial liabilities:
Notes payable - 999,831 - - 999,831
Trade and other payables:
Trade 2,668,662 - - - 2,668,662
Accrued expenses and
nontrade payables 1,398,700 - - - 1,398,700
Due to related parties 867,108 — - - 867,108
Advances from customers 361,923 - - - 361,923
Other payables 314,831 - - - 314,831
Total P5,611,224 £999,831 PE82 8 86,611,937
*huclided under " Trade and other pavables™ account in the consolidated balance sheet.
December 31, 2014
Less than 3ta >Hto 3
On Demand 3 Months 12 Months Years Total
{In Thousands)
Other financial tiabilities:
Notes payable P- PB2100,105 B- P~ P2,100.105
Trade and other payables:
Trade 2,490,492 - - - 2,490,492
Accrued expenses and
nontrade payables 1,349,160 - - - 1,349,166
Due to related parties 646,676 - - - 646,676
Advances from customers 255,232 - — - 255,232
Other payables 174,234 — - — 174,234
Total B4 915,800 B2,100,105 P B-  P7015905

Capital Management Policy

The Company considers equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company as its
capital. The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to secure the Company’s ongoing
financial needs to continue as a going concern as well as to cater for its growth targets in order to
provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a cost-efficient

and risk-optimized capital structure.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the changes in
economic conditions, its business activities, investment and expansion program and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

issue new shares, or selt assets to reduce debi.
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The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio. Gearing ratio is
caleutated as net financial debt divided by total equity in the consolidated balance sheets as shown

in the table below:

2015 2014
(In Thousands)

Notes payable £999,831 R2,100,105
Customers” deposits* 505,987 468,824
Financial debt 1,505,818 2,568,929
f ess cash and cash equivalents 2,540,198 2,698,207
Net financial asset {1,034,380) {129,278)
Total equity 24,969,466 22,092 876
Gearing ratio (4.1%) {0.6%)

* facluded us part of “Trade and other payables”
The Company’s target is to maintain a gearing ratio in the range of no more than 100 percent.

Total equity increased by 13.0% in 2035 and 2.9% in 2014 as a result of improvement in operating
results far these years.

16.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of each class of the Company’s financial instruments, is equal to their
carrying amount as at December 31, 2015 and 201 4. The following methods and assumptions are
used to estimate the Fair value of each class of financial instrument for which it is practicable to
estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Advances to Employees, Restricted
Cash, Long-term Financial Receivable, Notes Payable and Trade and Other Payables. Due to the
short-term nature of the transactions, the fair values of these instruments approximate the
corresponding catrying values as of end of each repotting period.

Derivative Liabilities. The fair values of the embedded currency forwards with notional amount
of US$810,475 are calculated by reference to current forward exchange.

AFS Financial Assets. The fair values of publicly traded instruments are determined by reference
to quoted market prices as at the end of each reporting period. Investments in unquoted equity
securities are carried at cost, net of any impairment in value.

Guarantee Deposits. These are carried at cost, less any impairment in value, which approximates
their fair vatues calculated using the discounted cash flows method.

Fair Value Hierarchy
'As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value
include only the quoted equity securities, classified as AFS financial assets (Levet 1).

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company does not have financial instruments whose fair
values are determined using inputs that are not based on observable market data (Level 3). There
were no reclassifications made between the different fair value hierarchy fevels in 2015 and 2014
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7. Provisions

2015 2014

tIn Thousands)
Provision for site restoration cosis Po6,264 8136,974
Other provisions 117,018 43,632
183,282 P180,606

Provision for Site Restoration Costs

The Company is required either expressly under mineral production sharing agreements or
through customary business practice to restore the surface and underground of a quarry/pit after
exploration. A provision for site restoration cost is recognized based on estimated environmental

obligation.

The movements in the provision for site restoration cost as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as
follows:

2015 2014
{In Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year B136,974 R127.778
Additions (Note 20) 11,607 11,754
Accretion and other adjustments 2,570 {2,558)
Transfer of obligation to HMDC {84,887) -
Balance at end of year B66,264 R136,974

Additions represent new provistons for site restoration costs for the year.

Transfer of provision for site restoration costs to HMDC was incidental to the Company’s transfer
of mining rights to HMDC inn 2013 (see Note 25).

The accretion is presented as part of “Interest and financing charges” in the consolidated
statemenis of income {see Note 24),

Other Provisions

Other provisions pertain to provisions for probable claims, tax assessments and other litigations
involving the Company. The timing of the cash outflows of these provisions is uncertain as it
depends upon the outcome of the Company’s negotiations and/or legal proceedings, which are
currently ongoing with the parties involved. [n 2014, all provisions related to claims and other
litigations ‘as of December 31, 2013 were settled as a result of the final decisions of the
Company’s negotiations and/or legal proceedings. The Company recognized provision for tax
assessment amounting to £73.4 million and P43.6 million in 2015 and 2014, presented under
“General and administrative expenses — Others” in the consolidated statement of income (see Note
20).
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18. Equity

a.

Capital Stock
The composition of the Parent Corpany’s capital stock is as follows:

Number of Shares

Authorized - Bl par value

Preferred shares 20,000,000
Comimon shares 9,980,000,000
Issued - Conunon shares 6,452,0099,144

The preferred shares are cumulative and nonparticipating and entitled to preferential dividend
rate when declared by the BOD of the Parent Company. There were no preferred shares
issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The Parent Company’s common shares were registered/listed on June 17, 1996. Total shares
registered and outstanding as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is 6.5 billion. These shares are
held by 5,527 and 5,606 stockholders as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. There
have been no recent changes in the number of shares registered and outstanding.

Other reserves represent the Company's share in the performance compensation scheme of the
Holcim Group.

Retained Earnings
The Parent Company’s retained earnings available for dividend declaration as at
December 31, 2015 amounted to £5.6 billion based on the guidelines set in the Securities

Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011},

Cash dividends declared are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Cash dividend per share P0.82 RO.70 P0.55
Amount declared : £5.3 billion 4.5 billion £3.5 biltion
Declaration date May 18, 2015 May 16, 2014 May 23, 2013
Record date June 15, 2015 June 13,2014 June 21, 2013

On May 18, 2015, the BOD of HPMC declared cash dividends totaling P808.1 million
{P350.0 per share} for stockholders on record as of June 24, 2015.

On May 11, 2014, HPMC declared cash dividends totaling 2570, 1 million (B247 per share)
for stockholders on record as of May 30, 2014.
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19. Cost of Sales

2015 2014 2013
{In Thousands}

Raw, packaging and production materials
(Notes 6, 25 and 28) P10,252,616 p7432,111 P5,686,523
Power and fitel (MNotes 6 and 28) 6,878,557 6,774,355 6,244,485
Outside services (Notes 25 and 28) 2,467,342 1,946,516 1,902,303
Transportation and communications 2,316,751 2,376,697 1,950,102
Personnel (Notes 22 and 27) 1,632,931 1,473,826 1,581,121
Deprectation, amortization and depletion (Note 23) 1,483,299 1,351,723 1,397,982
Repairs and maintenance 1,327,844 [, 424,525 1,609,592
Taxes and licenses 279,221 255,958 248,754
Insurance 137,682 154,844 168,609
Rent {Note 28) 78,890 49,998 46,318
QOthers (Note 6} 392,97 357,327 180,681
B27,248,041 P23, 597,880 £21,016470

20. Genreral and Administrative Expenses
2015 2014 2013

(I Thousards)

QOutside services (Note 23) £724,312 £207,178 P262,447
Personnel (Notes 22 and 27) 460,062 517,866 453,875
Depreciation and impairment (Notes 10 and 23) 396,653 59,336 66,346
Software implementation costs (Note 25) 151,320 204,475 91,311
Office expenses 98,874 155,308 125,909
Transportation and communications 44,999 23,292 30,202
Taxes and licenses 32,63% 61,707 31,928
Directors’ fees 19,100 19,100 18,428
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 1,745 1,227 209
Others (Notes 17, 25 and 28) 175,265 77,014 163,817
82,105,567 R1,326,503  B1,245172

Others include training expenses, community services and expenses related to the Company’s

ongoing internal projects.

. Selling Expenses

2015 2014 2013
{in Thousands)

Personnel (Notes 22 and 27) E239,016 £i84,944 2194,727
Advertising 123,891 ta,[17 36,699
Outside services 68,294 47,685 58,048
Provision for doubtful accounts (Nate 5) 50,217 26,363 [1,834
Office expenses 38,954 35,773 30,393
Transportation and communication 28,998 43,385 27,166
Depreciation (Note 23) 10,668 11,545 11,319
Taxes and licenses 10,260 9,185 5,629
Others {Notes 28} 13,442 26,545 76,188
£583,740 £501,542 B502,003
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Others include insurance, utilities and expenses related to the Company’s ongoing internal

projects.

22. Personnet Expenses
2015 2014 2013
{frr Thousands)
Salaries, wages and employee benefits B1,550,386 P1,493,290 Bi,690,849
Retirement benefit costs (Note 27) 156,321 182,212 154,263
Training 69,914 36,701 67,301
Others 555,994 444,433 317,310
B2,332,609 P2,176,636 P2,229.723
23. Depreciation, Amortization, Depletion and Impairment
2015 2014 2013
fin Thousands)
Property, plant and equipment (Note 10);
Cost of sales (Note 19) P1,427,960 £1,333,520 P1,379.779
General and administrative expenses (Nate 20) 396,653 59,336 66,346
Selling expenses {Note 21) 10,668 11,545 11,319
1,835,281 1,404,401 1,457,444
Intangible assets (Note 11);
Cost of sales (Note {9) 95,330 18,203 18,203
Pi1,890,611 P1,422,604 P1,475,647
24. Interest and Financing Charges and Others - Net
Details of interest and financing charges are as follows:
2015 2014 2013
fin Thausands)
Interest and amortization of debt issue
Costs on:
Notes payable (Notes 13 and 25) P34,092 £41,929 P3,484
Long-term debt ' 42,092 - -
Accretion of provision for site restoration
cost and others {(Note 17) 2,568 1,741 1,615
R78,752 B43,670 R3,099

In 2015, HMDC obtained a five-year unsecured Philippine peso-denominated term loan from
various local banks totaling #4.8 billion, exclusive of debt issuance costs. The loan is equally
divided into two, having fixed and variable interest rates, This loan was part of the deconsolidated
net assets of IMDC and its subsidiaries before yearend (see Note 9).

*SGVFS015825*



-53-

Delails of Others - net are as follows:

2815 20¢4 2013
fin Thousands)
Gain {loss) on sale of properties - net £107,810 P12,305 (B31,386)
By products and other revenue (Note 25) 57,1718 89.378 142,594
(Gain on saje of investment in joint ventare - - £50,297
Others {10,959 3,486 (11,046)
P154,629 E105,169 £250,459

Gain on Sale of a Joint Venture

In 2012, the Company had a 50% interest in Trans-Asia Power Generation Corporation {TA
Power) under a joint venture agreement with Trans-Asia Qil and Energy Development
Corporation (TA Oil). TA Power operates and maintains a 52-megawatt power generation plant,
including related facilities, machinery and equipment in Norzagaray, Bulacan.

On January 1, 2013, the Company and TA Qi} entered into a Share Purchase Agreement for the
sale of the Company’s interest in TA Power for #475.5 million. Proceeds from the sale were
collected on January 3, 2013. Total gaini on sale amounted to P150.3 million.

Gain on Sale of Intellectual Property Rights

[n January 2015, HPBSCI sold all of its intellectual property and property and equipment to
HEAB, a related party, for a total consideration of £171.6 million (see Note 25). Gain on such
sate amounted to £137.1 million, presented as part of “Gain (loss) on sale of properties - net”.

. Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among
entities which are under common control with the reporting entity and its key management
personnel, directors or stockholders. In considering each possible refated entity relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form. The
Company has transactions with the following related parties:

Parent;

= (Clinco

»  Cemco Holdings, Inc. {Cemco), a subsidiary of Clinco

*  Unijon Cement Holdings Corporation (UCHC), a subsidiary of Cemco

Subsidiaries of Holcim Ltd. (through Holderfin B.V.), a stockholder of HPL:
* Holcim Trading Pte. Ltd., Singapore (Holcim Trading)

» Holcim Services (Asia) Ltd., Thatland (HSEA)

»  Holeim Technology and Services (HTSX)

s Holcim Technology (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (HTPL}

Holeim East Asia Business Service Centre B.V (HEAB)

Other Holcim Group affiliates
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Associate of HPI, and its subsidiartes as of December 31, 2015;

= HMDC
= HRDC
= LHAI
= SCMC
= APC

= QLI

» LORVI

The following table sumarizes the related party transactions and outstanding batances as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2018 2014
Transactiens  Owistanding  Transactions  Outstanding
during  Receivable during Receivable
Related Partics  Nature the Year ('ayable) the Year {Payable)  Terms and Coaditinns
fIn Thomnsands)
Paremt
UCHC Shott-term loans o - 1,500,000 (P1,000.000)  interest- bearing,
imgecured
Interest expense 4),288 - 17,759 - Unsecured
Payment of ~ {5413 5497 {5413} Noninterest- bearing,
expenses unsectfed,
Cemco Payment of 254 (5,392} 5,156 (5,138) Noninterest- bearing,
eNpenses unséeured
Advances — - 377s —  Unsecured, not impaired
Clince Payment ef 1 28 25 27 Neninterest- bearing,
’ expenses unsectred, not impaired
Under commen
shareholder
HSEA Purchases andfor o8 - 241,909 (123316) Nonintcrest- bearing,
expense unsecured
Revenue - - 12,196 —  Noninterest- bearing,
wisecured
HTSX Purchases and/or 2047621 (425,242) 1,437,128 {274,094) Noninterest- bearing,
expense unsecured
Advances - - 9,492 - Moninterest- bearing,
unsecured
Holgim Trading  Purchascs and/or 458612 {328,324) 300,421 {230,490) Noninlerest- bearing,
: expense unsecured
HTPL Purchases and/or 36,376 {827 62,760 (62,760} Nonintercst- bearing,
expense ' unsectred
HEAR Service Cantract 537,956 {110,739} - —~  MNonjnterest- bearing,
unsecured
Sate of assets 188,682 213,862 - —  Noninterest- bearing,
unsecured, not impaired
Transfer of liabitity 2,683 (2,683 - ~  Noninterest- bearing,
unsecyred
Purchases  andfor 68 125 - —  Noninterest- bearing,
. unsecured
expense
Advanges - - 67,650 67,630  Nonifiterest- bearing,
unsecured, nol impaired
Revenue - - 3,225 _  Moninterest- bearing,
unsecured, not impaired
Other Holeim Purchases andfor {41700) 762 12,084 (8,225) Nonintcrest- bearing,
Group Afliliates ¢xpense unsecured
Advances - - 5466 8062 Noninterest- bearing,
unzecured, not impaired
Assaciates
HMIDC Short-term loung 280,000 - - = Interest-bearing,
unseeured, not impaired
Interest on loan 5,800 To1 - - Unsecured, not impaiced
Sale and transfer of 475,752 322,366 - -~ Moninterest- bearing,
assets unsecured, nol impaired
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2015 2014
Transactions  Ouistanding  Transactions  Outstanding
during Receivable during Receivable
Related Parties  Natwre the Year {Payable} the Year {Payable)  Terms and Conditions
Expenses for 3,727 P£2.393 fi—- P—  Woninterest- bearing,
various charges wsecured, not impnired
Service contract 42,082 (42,082) - —  Waoninterest- bearing,
unsecured
Lease of land 51,486 (51,486) - —  Moninlerest- bearing,
unsecured, not impaired
Additionai H13,750 - - —  Noainterest- bearing,
investment unsecured, not impaired
Dividends 267,813 267813 - —  Moninterest- bearing,
unsecured, not impaired
HRDC Expenses from 1 12,831 - ~  Moninterest- bearing,
varipus charges upsecured, not impaired
Lease ofland 2498 (208} - = Moninterest- bearing,
unsceured
LLHATL Expenses fom 12,257 F2,257 - —  Moninterest- bearing,
various charges unsecured, not impnired
APC Expenses lroimn 180 784 - - Woninterest- bearing,
various charpes unsecured, not impaired
Shari-term joan 52,204 52,204 - -~ Waoninterest- bearing,
unsecured, not impaired
QL Expenses from 207 207 - = Noainlerest- bearing,
various charges umsecured, not impaired
Short-1erm loan 77314 71314 - = Honimteresi- bearing,
umsecured, nol impaired
SCMC Expenses from 201 201 - —~  Noninterest- bearing,
various charges unsecured, nob impired
Short-term loan 666 666 - = Noninterest- bearing,
unsecired, nat tnpaired
LORVI Expenses trom 13 13 - —  Noninterest- bearing,
vartous charges unsecured, not impaired
Foreshore iease 20,400 {20,400) - - Noninterest- bearing,
unsecured
Parent
a. The Company grants non-interest bearing advances to Cemco and Clinco for working capital
requirements,

b. The Company availed of various short-term loans from UCHC in 2014, but none in 2015, The
applicable interest of the loans is equal to the prevailing interest rate using PDST-F rate for
one month plus t%. The short-term loans are for a period of one year (see Note 13).

Entities under comimon shareholder

a. HEAB. The Company and HPBSCI sold various assets to HEAB as part of building the
regional shared service center for Asia Pacifie region for a lump sum of 8171.6 million, all of
which are still outstanding as of December 31, 2015, The ROHQ assumed the retirement
benefit liability of HPBSCI amounting to 2.7 million as of December 31, 2014 from which a
corresponding liability was recognized by the Company.

On January [, 2015, the Company entered into a service contract with HEAB for business
process outsourcing and other information technology enabled services.

Advances to HEAB in 2014 pertain to project cost and expenses paid by HPI and HPBSCI in
behall of HEAB.

b. HTSX Effective Janvary 1, 2013, a new contract with HTSX came into force introducing the

application of new Industrial Franchise Fee (IFF). The new agreement is aligned with the
Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) principles and takes into

account arm’s length transfer pricing principles.
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The IFF shall cover ail intellectual properties and value-adding solutions derived by the
Company. IFF is an annual charge payable quarterly and is based on fair assessment of
economic value of intetlectual properties and value adding solutions. This new agreement is
separate from the existing agreement with HSEA for information technology related service.

HTSX also renders managerial and project support services to the Company.

Total expenses incurred in 2015 and 2014 amounted to B2.0 billion and B1.4 billion (see
Note 19),

Holeim Trading. The Company imports clinker and raw materials, such as gypsum and
granulated blast furnace slag,

HTPL. On January 1, 2014, the Company entered into a service agreement with HTPL, for
support services. The new setvice agreement is complementary to the existing Franchise
Agreement. The services shall be based on all costs and expenses incurred by HTPL plus a
certain mark-up. This agreement will be in effect unless and until superseded. No services
were rendered by HTPL in 2085,

HSEA. The Company’s network server and information technology database is handled by the
information technology services group of HSEA and provides the necessary training
assistance to employees. Expenses for services provided are mostly shown as part of
“Software implementation costs” and “QOutside services” accounts in the “General and
administrative expenses™ (see Note 20}. Other income amounting to £12.2 mitlion in 2014,
represent manpower services provided by the Company to HSEA (see Note 24).

As of Janvary {, 2015, HEABS took over the operations of HSEA.

Also, in 2015, the Company reimbursed HSEA for various expenses paid by HSEA in behalf
of the Company.

Other Holcim Group Affiliates. The Company’s transactions with Other Holcim Group
Affiliates include intercompany charges for salaries and wages of inbound and outbound
expatriates, and other expenses related to operations.

Associate - FIMDC

a.

For 2015, the Company has an existing service agreement with HMDC for the guarry
operations. wherein HMDC provides quarry and related services for a fee plus operating costs
charged back to the Company.

Various land assets with total book value of 4758 million was seld to HMDC in 2015. The
Company also leases various assets from HMDC, HRDC and LORVI through operating lease
agreements.

The Company granted a short-term toan to HMDC, bearing interest ranging from 2.0% to
3.0% per annuin, and non-interest bearing advances to APC, QLI and SCMC for settiement of
their respective liabilities.

The Company grants non-interest bearing advances te HMDC, HRDC, LOR VI and LHAI for
working capital requirements,

"SGVFS015825"



.57 -

e. In 2015, the Company increased its investment in HMDC to meet the new capital
requirements of HMDC as approved by the Philippine SEC. The increase in investment
amounted to B203.6 million.

[n addition, the Company also transferred mining rights (and the related provision for site
restoration costs) in 2015 amounting to £73.7 million after obtaining the approval from the
related regulatory agency. The mining rights were part of the assets assigned by the Company
in 2013 as part of the Company’s subscription in the 2013 increase in capital stock of HMDC.

f. In 2015, HMDC declared 10% dividends for its Class A and Class B preferred shares, and
B11.75 per share dividend for its Common A and Common B shares. This remains as
outstanding receivable as of December 31, 2015, with total amount of B267.8 million.

g Net receivable from HMDC amounting to £499.8 million was presented as Due from related
parties under Trade and Other Receivables — net (Note 5).

Retirement Benefit Funds

a. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, HPI’s defined benefit retirement fund has investments in
MPT’s shares with a cost of 3.4 million and £6.7 million, respectively. The retirement benefit
fund’s total losses arising from the changes in market prices amounted to 1.2 million in
2015, while total gain amounted to B23.1 miilion in 2014 and P18.6 million in 2013,

b. HPMC’s retirement benefit fund has investments in shares of stock of Clinco. As of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Fund has a total subscription of B40.0 million in Clinco’s
common shares while its total subscription payable amounted to B29.6 million.

c. As of December 31, 2015, HPI's defined benefit retirement fund has investments in HMDC’s
shares with a cost of 3 1.3 million representing 60% of the total ownership (see Note 9).

All of the funds’ investing decisions are made by the Board of Trustees, the composition of which
includes certain officers of HPI. The power to exercise the voting rights rests with the Board of
Trustees.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties.

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been
no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables, As at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company has not recognized any impairment losses on
receivables relating to amounts due from related parties. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through a review of the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

Amounts due froin related parties is included in “Trade and other receivables” and amounts due to
related parties is inciuded in “Trade and other payables™ accounts in the consolidated balance
sheets.
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The following are the details of the compensation of key management personnel;
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2015 2014 2013
{in T.’musqnds)

Short-term employee henefits 179,455 P184,083 B158,933

Retirement benefits cost 21,312 41,533 59,590

B20,767 £225,016 P218,523

26. Income Tax
The provision for current income tax in 2015 and 2014 follows;
2015 2014 2013
RCIT MCIT RCIT MCIT RCIT MCIT
{fn Thousands)

Parent Company  £2,733,360 P2,036,680 e B1,759,228 BP-
HPMC 158,358 - 95,127 — 78,756 -
Mabini 25,250 - 25,203 - 20.267 -
HPBSCI 24,677 - 4916 - - -
Bulkcem 7.088 — £,031 - 8
LHAI - 65,842 - — -
HMDC - 1,661 — 332 7
HRDC - 264 - 45 - 26
B2,948,733  B&7,767 P2,162,957 B377 P1,858.251 B4

The reconciliation between the statutory and effective income tax of the Company is as follows:

2015 2014 2013
{In Thouseands)
Income before income tax £10,365,685 £7,299.226 B6,402,864
Income tax at statutory income tax rate P3,149,705 R2,189,768 1,920,859
Change in unrecognized deferred income tax
assets {14,514) (1,371 23,056
Income tax effects of:
Montaxable gain on remeasurement of
retained equity in HMDC {790,265) — -
Difference between tax base and book
value of deconsolidated subsidiaries (672,841) - -
Excess of fair market value over selling
price of land 663,940 - -
Use of OSD {103,866} {50,171) (37,057)
Nondeductible expenses 26,029 17,802 2,459
Interest and other income subjected to
lower tax rates (4,479) (4,025) (50,407)
Income not subject to income 1ax - - (903)
Others 1,608 720 (14,503}
Income tax at effective tax rate 122,216,117 B2,152.723 £1,843.504
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The components of the Company’s. net deferred income tax assets as at December 31, 2015 and
2014 are as follows:

2015 2014
{fn Thousands)

Deferred income tax assets

Retirement benefit liability Bl65,611 £174,877

Allowances for:
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment 111,016 47,175
Decline in value of inventories 94,379 58,921
Doubtful accounts 74,468 45,383
Provision for bonus accrual 47,122 61,017
Accrued expenses 28,641 59,402
Unamortized past service costs 19,419 25,857
Provision for site restoration costs 16,706 38,031
Unamortized deferred charges 4,737 7.050
Unrealized foreign exchange losses - 2,863
NOLCO, excess MCIT and others 32,678 23,673
595,711 544,249

Deferred income tax liabilities
Capitalized cost of property, plant and equipment from

insurarnce proceeds 177,661 145,324
Unameortized amount of capitalized land site restoration costs 44,923 76,286
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 6,490 -
Undepreciated capitalized borrowing costs_and others 1,524 5E,610

230,598 273,220
Net deferred income tax assets P365,113 B271,029

The net deferred income tax liabilities of £3.6 million and £0.7 million as of December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively, pertains to the unrealized Toreign exchange gain and the revaluation
increment of property, plant and equipment at deemed cost.

Deferred income taxes for temporary differences for Bulkcem, HPMC, HPBSCI, and Mabini
affecting gross income were recognized using the effective tax rate of 18% as they availed of OSD
as its method of deduction for income tax purposes. Management forecasts that HPMC and
Mabini wifl be using OSD in the next three years and HPBSCI and Bulkcem in the next four
years.

Deferred income tax assets for the following deductible temporary differences and carryforward
benefits of unused tax losses and unused tax credits, have not been recognized as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been incurring losses for some time and may not be used to offset taxable
profits or tax liabilities of any other entity other than that of the entity from where such deductible
temporary difference arose:

20158 2014
ffn Thousands)

Carryforward benefits of:

NOLCO P32,685 P44, 508
MCIT - 163
Allowances for doubtful accounts 472 13.060
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets B9,947 P17,433
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The following NOLCO can be claimed as deduction against future taxable income:

Date Incwrred Expiry Date NOLCO
{In Thousands)

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2018 P43,127
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2017 16,101
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2016 30,970
P90, 198

NOLCO incurred by ECLI in 2012 amounting to £0.2 million and MCIT of CACI amounting to
PO.1 million expired in 2015.

27.

Retirement Benefit Costs

Defined Benefit Retirement Plans

HPl and HPMC have distinct funded, noncentributory defined benefit retirement plans (the
“Plans™). The Plams cover all permanent employees, each administered by their respective
Retirement Committees or Boatd of Trustees,

ECL1 and HSSI, on the other hand, provide retirement benefits in accordance with Republic Act
7641, “Retirement Pay Law”. Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641
requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any
retirement plan in the entity, provided however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any
collective bargaining and other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law.
The law does not require minimum funding of the plan. The Company also provides additional
post employment healthcare benefits to certain senior employees in the Philippines. These benefits
are unfunded.

Effective March 16, 2014, HPBSC] accrued retirement benefits for all its regular employees
deterimined based on 85% of the member’s salary as defined every month As discussed in Note 2,
the HPBSCU's defined contribution plan is accounted for as a retirement obligation with minimum
guarantee. The retirement benefits costs were determined by a qualified independent actuary using
the projected unit credit method. Retirement benefits costs and outstanding liability on HPBSCI’s
defined contribution plan amounted to #2.7 million as of December 31, 2014.

The following tables summarize the components of retirement benefit costs, the unfunded status
and the amounts recognized as retirement benefit liability of the Company:

Details of retirement benefit costs are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
tfn Thousands)
Current service cost 104,989 £93,506 £82,096
Net interest cost 25,724 21,555 18,298
Curtaitment gain (8,671) - {10,597)
Retirement benefit costs recognized in profit or loss 122,642 115,061 89,797
Remeasurements recognized in OCI {56,300) 19,396 113,744
Retirement benefit costs P66,342 £134,457 P203,541
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Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement benefits consists of:

2015 2014 2013
ffn Thousands)

Actuarial gain (loss) arising from:

Changes in assumptions 59,736 (B26,120) (B144,660)
Experience adjustments 51,244 12,764 45,741

110,980 (13,356) (98,919

Loss on plan assets* {54,680) {6,040) {14,825)

P56300  (P19,396) (P113,744)

* Excluding amotnis recognized in net interest cosl.

The reconciliation of benefit liability recognized in the balance sheets foliows:;

2015 2014
fin Thouscnds)
Present value of benefit obligation £1,119,561 B1,297,527
Fair value of plan assets (566,124) (714,603)
Balance at end of year B553,437 B582,924
The breakdown of the retirement plan liability per entity follows:
2015 2014
(I Thousands)
HPI B414,016 P330,621
HPMC 137,063 247,914
ECLI 2,178 1,524
HSSI 180 57
HMDC - 125
HPBSCI — 2,683
B553,437 £582,924
Movements in the retirement benefits liability are as follows:
2015 2014
fin Thonsands}
Balance at beginning of year B382.924 £497.373
Retirement benefit costs 122,642 115,061
Contributions (121,440} (48,906}
Remeasurement loss (gain} recognized in OCI (56,300} 19,396
Transfer (2,682) -
Effect of deconsolidation (Note 9) 28,293 -
Balance at end of year P553,437 £582,924
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The changes in the present vaiue of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2015 2014
In Thousands)

Batance at begimning of year $1,297,527 P1,261,204
Actuarial losses (gains) (110,980) 13,356
Interest cost 58,354 56,940
Current service cost 104,989 93,506
Transfer (2,682) -
Curtailment gain 8,071 -
Benefits paid {54,522) (127,479)
Settlements (155,175) —
Effect of deconsolidation (Note 9) (2,879) -
Balance at end of year P1,119,561 B1,297,527
The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

215 2014

(fn Thousands)

Balance at beginning of vear P714,603 P763,831
Contributions 121,440 48,906
Loss on plan assets* (54,680) {6,040}
Interest income on plan asseis 32,630 35,385
Benefits paid (54,522) (127.479)
Settlements (155,175} -
Effect of deconsolidation (Note 9) {38,172) -
Balance at end of year P566,124 £714,603
Actual return (loss) on plam assets (B22,0560) B29.345

*Excluding amotus recognized in pet interest cost.

The funds are administered by a trustee bank under the supervision of the duly Authorized Person
or Trustee of the Plans. The Authorized Person or Trustee is responsible for investment of the
assets. Based on the overall direction set by a Retirement Fund Committee, the Trustee proposes
an investment strategy and as approved by the Retirement Fund Committee, executes such
strategy. The Trustee defines the investment strategy, based on the investment instructions found
in the Trust Agreement. When defining the investment strategy, the Trustee takes into account the
Plans’ objectives, benefit obligations and risk capacity. The investment strategy is defined in the
form of a long-term target structure (investment policy). The control, direction, and management
of the funds shall reside in and be the sole responsibility of the Trustee.

The Plans’ assets and investments consist of the following:

* Cash and cash equivalents, which includes regular savings and time deposits;

* Investments in government securities, which inciude retail treasury bonds and fixed rate
treasury notes that bear interest ranging from 3.1% to 11.9% and have maturities from October
2016 to October 2037;

* Investments in corporate debt instruments, consisting of both short-term and long-term
corporate notes and land bonds, which bear interest ranging from 5.8% to 8.8% and have
maturities from October 2016 to January 2024; and

= Investiments in equity securities; which consist of listed and actively traded securities of
companies in various industries as disclosed below,
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The percentages of fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

2015 2014
HP' HIMC HPI HPMC
Cash and receivables 4,2% 0.0% 1.0% 0.8%
Investmenis in debt securities:
Governmenl securitics 4.0% 43.8% 41.3% 52.3%
Corporate debl securilics 21.0% 20.8% 10.9% 19.1%
25.0% 64.6% 32.2% 71.6%
Investment in equity securities
Conslyuclion, infrastructure, property
and mining 34.4% 12.5% 14.4% 7.8%
Holding firms 10.6% 7.9% 7.7% 6.2%%
Power and utilities 13.8% 3.8% 9.8% 32%
Banks 4.4% 2.3% 4.6% 3.1%
Telecommumications 1.5% 2.4% i.6% 2. 1%
Others 6.1% 6.5% 9. 7% 3.2%
70.8% 35.4% 47.8% 27.6%
100.0% 160.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The Company expects to contribute R80.2 million and R34.7 million fo its defined retirement
benefit pension plans in HPI and HPMC, respectively, in 2016.

The present value of defined benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, unfunded and funded
status and experience adjustments arising from plan assets and liabilities for the current period and
the previous four annual periods are as follows:

20158 2014 2013 2012 2011
{in Thousands)

Present value of defined benefit

cbiigation P1,119,561 P1,297,527 P1,261,204 PBRLII9,7106 PO74,984
Fair value of plan assets (566,124)  (714,603)  (763,831)  (757.417}y  (747,256)
Unfunded status 553,437 582,924 497,373 362,299 227,728
Experience adjustments - gain (Joss):

Plan assets (54,680) (6,040) (14,825) 49,453 (3,380)

Plan iabilities 51,244 12,764 45,741 (3,757) {20,894)

The principal assumptions used in determining the retirement benefit Hability of the Company as
at December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Discount rates 4.4% - 5.0% 4.5% - 5.0% 4.5% - 5.0%
Future salary tate increases 4,.8% 5.6% 5.5%
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The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

2015
Increase Lffect on defined benefit obligation
{decrease) HP HPMC ECLI HSSIE HIEBSCH

{Trt Thousands)
Discount rate

Sensitivity 1 1% (R71,184)  (B11,691) #3330 (B3N P
Sensitivity 2 (1%%) 83,272 13,460 409 48 -
Future salary rate inereases
Sensitivity [ 1% 82,030 13,268 403 48 -
Sensitivity | (1%) {71,433) {11,746) {33 (38) -
2014
Increase Effect on defincd benefit obligation
{decrease) HP1 HPMC ECLI FISSI HPBSCI HMDC

fin Fhonsands)
Discount rate

Sensitivity 1 1% (R76,964) (R37410) (B252} {R12) {B544} (R13)

Sensitivity 2 (1%0) 90,376 42,742 317 16 710 15
Future salary rate increases

Sensilivity % 87494 41,212 311 16 698 2

Sensilivity 1 (1%) (75937y (36.798) {233) (12} {546} {13)

The management and its trustee bank reviews the performance of the Plans on a regular basis and
assess whether the Plans will achieve an investment return which, together with contributions, will
be sufficient to pay retirement benefits as they fall due. The Company also reviews its solvency
position on an annual basis and estimates, through the actuary, the expected contribution to the
Plans in the subsequent year.

The tables below show the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of
December 31:

2015
HPI HPMC ECLI HSSI
{In Thousands)
Within one year £58.635 £14,113 f L8 180
More than one year to five years 258,429 75,770 170 -
More than five years 389,202 175,085 1,437 -
2014
HPI HPMC ECLI HPBSCI HMDC
fn Thawsands)
Within one year B51.254 PI1,286 P- 213 B
More than one year to five years 244155 120,867 - 952 —
More than five years 439,705 224,025 2,231 7,795 2,204

Defined Contribution Retirement Plan

HPI has a defined contribution plan wherein the obligation is limited to the specified contribution
in the defined contribution plan. Total retirement benefits cost related to the defined contribution
plans amounted to B33.7 million, P67.2 million and £64.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Total consolidated retirement benefit costs recognized in the consolidated statements of income
are as foliows:

2015 2014 2013

fth Thousands)

Expense recognized for:

Defined benefit plans B122,642 B115.,061 B89.797
Defined contribution plan 33,679 67,151 64,466
Retirement benefit costs P156,321 182212 P154,263

28. Commitments and Contingencies

a.

Leases

The Company has a number of lease agreements covering office spaces, warehouses, bulk
terminals and various equipment that are accounted for as operating lease with periods ranging
from one year to 11 years, Majority of the lease agreements for office spaces have rent
escalations wherein monthly rent increases over the lease terms, and provide for renewal
option under negotiated terms and conditions upon expiration. The Company records rental
expense on a straight-line basis over the base, noncancellable lease terms. Any difference
between the calculated expense and amount actually paid is recognized either as prepaid or
accrued rent, Prepaid or accrued rent is reflected as current or noncurrent asset and liability,
respectively, depending on its expected reversal date, Security deposits made will be applied
against fujure lease payments in accordance with the respective lease agreements (see Note
12). Operating lease expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income amounted
to £99.9 million, 8108.9 miilion and £104.3 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see

Notes 19, 20 and 21).

Future minimwm lease payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at December 31,
2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014
{In Thonsands}
Within one year P60,942 £60,942
After one year but not more than five years 125,341 175,684
More than five years - 10,599
P186,283 P247,225
Supply Agreement with Lafarge
On April 11, 2014, the Company entered info a four-year cement supply agreement with

Lafarge Republic, Inc. to deliver the Type IP cement at an annual volume of 300,000 metric
tons. The said product must comply with the Philippine National Standards (PNS) 63:2006
Standards and shall be processed at the Company’s plant in Mabini, Batangas. The agreement
commenced on October 1, 2014, The sales related to this contract are recognized as part of
the Company’s revenues in 2015 and 2014,
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Contract with National Power Corporation {(NPC)

t) For Barrio Hang, Davaao City Plant

On September 26, 2008, the Company renewed its contract with NPC for the supply of
electricity to the Barrio llang, Davao City cement manufacturing facility for a period of
five years from September 26, 2008 to September 25, 2013. Charges and adjustments
from January 1 to September 25, 2013 are as follows:

{a) Basic Energy Charge

The tariff on electricity based on TOU rates as approved by the Energy Regulatary
Commission (ERC) and in accordance with the provisions of the contract shall be the
bases of the basic charges and other billing adjustments. This will be applied to the
contracted monthly energy levels on a take-or-pay arrangement, For ¢onsumption
higher than one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the contracted tevel, the basic
energy charge to be applied shalt be the prevailing ERC approved rate and other
adjustments plus twenty percent (20%)} of such rate for the incremental increase
beyond the 120% of the contract energy.

(b) A minimum charge based on the contract energy per billing peried shall be paid using
the aforementioned basic energy charge subject to deductions and adjustments as
provided in the Contract.

Effective September 26, 2013, Davao plant became a “captive customer” of Davao
Light and Power Company, the Distribution Utility (DU} which holds the franchise
for power distribution in the area pursuant to Energy Regulatory Commission
Resolution No, 27, Series of 2010,

it) For Lugait, Misamis Oriental Plant

HPI had an agreement with NPC from 2007 to 2013 for the supply of electricity at the
Lugait, Misamis Oriental cement manufacturing facility, Charges and adjustments are
the same as that of Davao City Plant. Upon expiration of the agreement in November
2012, Misamis 1 Oriental Electric Coeperative (Moresco I) took over the power supply
pursuant to Energy Regulatory Commission Resolution No. 27, series of 28316,

Since grid supply in Mindanao is currently deficient resulting from El Nino, reduced
hydro capacities, privatization of NPC assets, new coal-fired power plants coming on-line
in 2016, back-up power supply from private generators for Davao and Lugait has been put
in place to augment power supply during curtailment periods.

The related expense under this contract is recognized as part of “Power and fuel” account in
the Cost of Sales (see Note 19),

Lawsuits

The Company is either a defendant or plaintift i several civil, criminal and labor cases
primarily invoiving collection and clainis for damages. Based on the assessment of
management and the opinion of the Company’s external tegal counsels, the resolution of such
cases will not result to any significant liability.

“SGVFS0158257



-67-

The disclosure of additional details beyond the present disclosures may seriously prejudice the
Company’s position and negotiating strategy. Thus, as allowed by PAS 37, “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, only general descriptions were provided.,

Supply Agreement with Philippine Phosphate Fertilizer Corporation (Philphos)

On April 22, 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Philphos for the supply of
lime-treated phosphor gypsum for a period of five years. Under the agreement, the minimum
volume the Company committed to purchase is 90,000 metric tons at a fixed price. The
Company paid cash deposit of £96.8 million to be applied as payment of material on the fifth
year of the agreement.

On April 23, 2013, the supply agreement was renewed for another five-year period. As of
December 31, 2014, the amount was reclassified to “Other current assets - Advances to
suppliers™ as this was due for application against the 2015 deliveries (see Note 7). As the
entire amount was not fully applied in 28315, the Company continues to ¢lassify the deposit as
current as it is anticipated that the remaining amount will be applied in 2016,

Supply Agreements with Pezzolanic Philippines, Ine, (PPD)

On August 22, 2012, the Company entered into various agreements with PP1 for the supply of
fly and bottom ash ta the Bulacar, Calaca and ready-mix (RMX) plants with a term of 15
years reckoned from May 1, 2012, Details and terms of the supply agreements are as follows:

i} Bulacan and Calaca

The separate supply agreements for Bulacan and Calaca plants require PPI to deliver My
ash at agreed specifications, volumes and price for a period of five years to be sourced
from its power plants in Batangas, Pangasinan and Quezen Province, where PPI has an
exclusive purchase agreement. [n addition, PPI shall deliver bottom ash to the Company’s
cement plants free of charge.

i) RMX

PPl shall supply fly ash with agreed specifications based on the anmual volume
requirement of the Company for 15 years. Delivery schedules shall be agreed by PPI and
the Company and shall be made to the batching plants in Taguig and Bicutan.

The related expense under this contract is recognized as part of “Raw, packaging and
production materials” account in the Cost of Sales (see Note 19).

Electricity Supply Agreement (ESA)

On August 12, 2011, a 15-year ESA was signed with TA Qil to supply both Bulacan and La
Uniion plants. This supply agreement witl commence in 2014, Source will be coming from
the 135 MW Puting Bato coal-fired power plant in Calaca, Batangas owned by South Luzon
Thermat Energy Corporation, a joint venture company of TA il and Ayala Corporation’s AC
Energy Holdings. Included in the agreement is the provision of back-up supply from the
diesel power planis in Bulacan {TA Power) and in Bacnotan (CIP II/TA Oil). [In essence,
power supply for the Company’s Bulacan and La Union Plants is assured over a long-term
periad without the uncertainties of how the Luzon grid supply situation will move, Electricity
fee is structured according to Time of Use (TOU) rate with provisions to rate increases based
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on fuel purchased for the power plant. Mabini Grinding plant, being a "Contestable
Customer” sighed a 10-year Power Supply Agreement with TA Oil which started last June 26,
2014, The related expense under this contract is recognized as part of “Power and Fuel”
account in the Cost of Sales (see Note 19).

Sales Agreement with Petron Corporation (Petron) and SL, Harbor

On July 1, 2010, the Company entered into a five-year agreement for the supply of indusirial
fuel oil (IFQ), automotive diesel oil {(ADQ) and/or industrial diesel oil (IDQ) with Petron,
effective from July 1, 2010 to Jume 30, 2015. Delivered quantities are based on the
Company’s estimated monthly consumption of 1 million liters for IFQ and 0.7 million liters
for ADO/IDO. The Agreement with Petron was extended until October 31, 2015. The supply
of bunker and diesel has been awarded to SL Harbor and Petron, respectively, and valid from
November 1, 2015 until October 31, 2017. The related expense under this contract is
recognized as part of “Power and Fuel™ account in the Cost of Sales (see Note 19).

Quarry Outsourcing Agreements with ANSECA

The quarry outsoureing agreements with ANSECA for La Union, Davao, Bulacan and Lugait
plants have terms and duration of 10 to 11 years. The minimum volume reguirement per ptant
varies from 0.90 million to 1.70 million metric tons per annum. The related expense under
this contract is recognized as part of “Outside services™ account in the Cost of Sales (see
Note 19},

Coal Supply Contracts

The Company has contracts with two Indocoal suppliers, with a three-year tertm commencing
on January 1, 2010. Only the cozl supply contract for one Indocoal supplier (PT Asia Pacific
Mining Resources) was extended until December 2014. The Company also entered into a
five-year contract with a local coal supplier, Semirara Mining Corporation, effective
January 1, 2010 until December 31, 2014. Negotiations were concluded for a one-year fixed
price contract with Semirara for 2015.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company was able to comply with the minimum
provisions of the coal supply contracts. The related expense under this contract is recognized
as part of “Power and fuel” account in the Cost of Sales (see Note 19).

Others

There are contingent liabilities for tax assessments occurring in the ordinary course of
business.  On the basis of information furnished by the Company’s legal counsels,
management believes that none of these contingencies will materially affect the Company’s
financial position and financial performance.
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29. Earnings Per Common Share (EPS)

Basic/diluted EPS is computed as follows:

2018 2014 2013

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Consolidated net income for the year attributable to

commeon equity holders of the Parent Company £8,148,071 P5,145,178 P4,558,592

Weighted average number of comnaton shares -

[ssued and outstanding 6,452,099 6,452,099 6,452,099

Basic/diluted EPS of net income attributabie to equity

holders of the Parent Company RL26 B0.30 P0O.71

Basic EPS is computed based on weighted average number of issued and outstanding common
shares during each year. Diluted EPS is computed as if the potential common share or instrument
that may entitle the holder to common share were exercised as of the beginning of the year.
Where the Parent Company does not have any potential common share or other instruments that
may entitle the holder to common shares, diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS.

The increase int the EPS is due to the gain on remeasurement for the retained equity in HMDC (see
Note 9). Without the gain, basic/diluted EPS of net income atiributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company would amount to §.85,

There are no dilutive financial instruments in 2015, 2014 and 2013, hence, diluted EPS is the same
as basic EPS.

30. Environmental and Regulatory Matters

.

Executive Order (EQ) 79

On July 6, 2012, the Philippine Government issued EQ 79, Institutionalizing and
Implementing Reforms in the Philippine Mining Sector, Providing Policies and Guidelines to
Ensure Environmental Protection and Responsible Mining in the Utilization of Mineral
Resources, also known as the Revised Mining Act. EO 79 provides for the following, among
aothers:

restriction on applications of mineral contracts and agreements. in critical areas and
pending new legislation;

review of performance of existing mining operations and cleansing of non-moving mining
rights holders;

review of exisling mining contracts and agreements for possible renegotiation of terms
and conditions;

establishment of mineral reservations and opening of areas for mining through
competitive public bidding;

disposition of abandoned ores and valuable metals in mine wastes and mill tailings; and,
creation of the Mining Industry Coordinating Council with powers and functions granted
by this EQ.

On QOctober 8, 2012, the DENR published Administrative Order No. 2012-07-A containing
guidance for the implementation of EO 79,
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Management assessed that EQ 79 will not have a significant effect on the current operations of
the Company. Management continuously monitors the implementation of EQ 79 and its
impact on the industry in general.

b. Clean Air Act

The Clean Air Act and the related IRR. contain provisions that have an impact on the industry
as a whole, and to the Company in particular, that needs to be complied with within 44 months
from the effectivity date or by July 2004. Based on the assessment made on the Company’s
existing facilities, management believes it complies with the provisions of the Clean Air Act
and the related IRR.

31. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are components of the Company that engage in business activities from which
they may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with other compouents of the Company), which operating vesults are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about how resources are to be
allocated to each of the segments and to assess their performances, and for which discrete
financial information is available. Management reassesses on an annual basis whether there have
been any change in the operating segments or in the reportable operating segments in accordance
with PFRS &, “Operating Segments™.

For management purposes, the Company is organized into activities based on their products and
has three segments, as follows:

= clinker and cement segiment, which manufactures and sells clinker and cement for both
domestic and export customers; and

= other construction materials and services segment, which includes operations from the RMX
business and Helps-U-Build and aggregates.

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is based on operating
EBITDA and is measured consistently with consolidated net income in the consolidated statements of
income. However, the Company’s finance income and charges and income taxes are managed on a
group basis, and are not allocated to operating segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are
on an arm’s length basis similar to transactions with third parties.

The Company has. determined the Clinker and cement segment as the only reportable segment.
Information on the other segments that are not reportable are combined and presented as “Others™,
Segment revenues, EBITDA, assets, liabilities and other information for segments as at
December 3t, 2015 and 2014 and for each of the three years ended December 31, 2015 are
presented below:

2015

Adfjustmenis

Clinker and
and Cement Cibiers Total Eltminations Consalidated

(I Thousands}
Revenue:

External cuslomers £35,562,583 #1,963,472 R37,526,055 o #37,526,055
Inter-segment 1,237,827 44,268 1,282,005 {1,282,095) —
- #236,300,410 22,007,740 238,808,150 {P1,282,0935) £37,526,055
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2013
Adjustments
Clinker and
antl Cement Others Toatal Eliminations Consolidated
{In Thousands)
Operating EBITDA B9,228,190 P151,128 £9.470.318 BP- P479,318
Segment assets 25,811,461 09,776 26,521,237 7,558,534 34,079,711
Sezment liakilitics 4,896,749 386,834 5,283,583 3,826,722 4,110,305
Results -
Depreciation, amorlization and
depletion 1,786,063 04,548 1,890,611 - 1,890,611
‘Other disclosures -
Canstruction in-progress 2412619 - 2,412,619 - 2412619
2014
Adjustmenis
Clinker and
and Cement Cithers Total Eliminations Congolidmed
(e Thausands)
Revenue:
External costomers B31,774,849 B873.810 £32,648,659 [ £32,648,659
Inter-segment 464,803 - 464 803 (464,803) -
B32.230.652 8273 810 B33.113.462 (B464.803) R32.048 659
Operating EBITDA #3302 920 {B{57,582) P& 645,338 d BE 545,338
Segment assels 27,336,830 645201 27,983 051 2,924,635 30,906,686
Sepment liabilities 4,127,731 224 748 60,352.479 2461 33 8813810
Resulls -
Depreciation, amortization and
depletion 1,354,211 58,393 1,422,604 - 1,422.604
Other disclosures -
Construction in-progress 2674532 - 2,674,532 - 2674532
213
Adjustments
Clinker and
and Cement Others Tatal Elimijnations Consolidated
fin Thousawdy}
Revenue.
External cuslomers R2I8,1955962 2697 407 £28,893,369 B B25.893 369
Inter-segment 316,633 — 316,633 {316,633} -
28,312 595 597,407 20,210,002 (316,633 28.893 369
Operating EBITDA R7,713,141 (BI107,770) RB7.605371 B 87605371
Segment assots 25,270,421 547 857 25818278 2,408,350 28,226,528
Segment habilities 4527943 197,667 5125610 1,624,591 6,730,201
Results
Bepreciation, amaorttzation and
depletion 1,412,786 62,861 1475647 - 1 475,647
Equity in net losses of a joinl
venture
Other disclosures - Construction
in progress 1,851,804 - 1,851,804 - 1,855,804

Inter-segment revenues, other than those outside the Company, are eliminated upon consolidation
and reflected in the “Adjustments and eliminations” column. All other adjustments that are part of
detailed reconciliations presented further below include the following:

* Finance income and charges, and foreign exchange gains (losses) on financial assets and
liabilities are not allocated to individual segments as the undetlying instruments are managed
on a group basis.

= Deferred income taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those
segments as they are also managed on a group basis.
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Following is the reconciliation of segment operating profit to consolidated income before income

tax:
2015 2014 2013
{In Thousands)
Operating EBITDA £9,479.318 P8,645,338 B7.605,371
Depreciation, amortization and depletion (1,890,611) (1,422,604) (1,475,647}
Enterest and financing charges (78,752} (43,670 (5,099}
Interest and other financial income 20,013 13,029 29,474
Foreign exchange gains (losses}) - net 45,333 1,964 {1,694)
Gain on deconsolidation 2,635,755 - —
Others - net 154,629 105,169 230,459
Income betore income tax 10,365,685 P7,299.226 B6,402,864
Pecember 31, December 3,
2015 2014
{n Thousands)
Segment assets 26,979,306 $£27.932,891
Cash and cash equivalents 2,540,198 2,698,207
Iavestments 4,195,154 4,559
Deferred income tax assets — net 365,113 271,429
Consolidated assets B£34,079,771 P30,906,086
Segment liabilities £5,283,583 B5, 713,105
Notes payabte 999,831 2,100,105
Trade and other payables 1,999,118 5,603,91
Income tax payable 824,141 345,531
Deferred income tax liability — net 3,632 653
Consolidated liabilities #9,110,305 £3.813,810
Geographic Information
2015 2014 2013
{In Thousands)
Revenues from external customers
Local £37,526,055 P32.623,607 B28,847,602
Export - 25,052 45,767
Total revenues $37.526,055 832,648,659 P28,893,369

The Company has no revenue from transactions with a single external customer accounting for
10% or more of the consolidated revenues. All property, plant and equipment of the Company are

located in the Philippines,
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W have audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Holeim Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 201 5 and 2014 and for
cach of the three years in the pericd ended December 31, 2015, included in this Form 17-A, and have
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an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index fo the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. These schedules are presented for the purpose of complying with Securitices
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to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2015

{In Thousands)

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning P6,100,734
Adjustment for deferred income tax assets {excluding amounts recognized in OCI) {359,609)
Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted, beginning 5,741,125
Net income based on the face of audited financial statements 5,271,476
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (other than cash and cash equivalents) (21,461}
Increase in deferred income tax assets {excluding amounts recognized in OCI) (57,232)
Net income actual/realized 5,198,783
Less dividend declaration during the year {5,290,721)
Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted, ending £5,649,187




Company: Holcim Philippines Inc. (HPI)
Ilustration of relationships between the company and its ultimate parent company, middle parent,

and it's subsidiaries

As of December 31, 2015

CLINCO
80%
¥
CEMCO —l 60%
UCHC PUBLIC HOLDERFIN
7.08%
60.55% 14.27% 18.11%
12%
HPI
b
.4 ¥ h b4 h 4
WEB ECLI] H3SI HPBSCI HPMC
160.10% 164.00% 160.00% 100.00% 9.6%
88% ¢
\d
| MGMGC
Laif ‘ \
BPI CACI ACCI
100.08% 180.00% 160.00%
COMPANY NAME PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
CLINGG Clinco Corporation ivestment holding in CEMCQ
CEMCO Cemco Holdings, Inc. Investment holding in UCHG and HP1
UCHC Union Cement Holdings Cerporation Investment holding in HPI
HPi Holcim Philippines. Ine, Manufacture and distribute cement products
HPMC Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation Manufacture and disiribute cement products
BPIL Bulkcem Philippines, Inc. Purchase, lease, sale of real properties
CACH Calamba Aggregates Co., inc. Mining, Processing and sale of quarry resources
ACGH Alsons Ceonstruction Chemical, Inc. Manufacture, use and sale of admixtures
WEB Wellbourne International Group Limited investment holding in MGMC
MGMC Mabini Ginding Mili Corporation Manufacture and distribute cement products
ECL Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc. Bistribution of concrete and cement products
HPBSC! Holgim Philippines Business Services Center nc. Business process outsourcing and other information
technology enabled services
HSSS Hubb Stores and Services, Inc. Retail cperations




HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and interpretations
Effective as of December 31, 2015

Title

Adopted

Not Adopted

Framewotk for the Preparation and Presentation of Financiat Statements

Conceptual Framawork Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics

o

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

PFRS 1

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Repoerting Standards

Amendrments to PERS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Invesiment in 2 Subsidiary,
Jointly Controiled Entity or Associate

Amendments ta PFRS 1: Addifional Exemptions for First-lime Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures
far First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Date for
Firgt-time Adapters

Amendments Lo PFRS1: Gaverament Loans

Amendment to PFRS 1: Bomowing Costs

Amendment to PFRS 1: Meaning of Effective PFRS

PFRS 2

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-seitled Share-based Payment Transactions

Amedment to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting Condition

PFRS 3

Business Comhinations

LI & <1 4] %

L] &) L] L[]l

Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent Caonsideration in a Business
Combination

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceplions for Joint Arrangements

<

*

FFRS 4

insurance Contracts

L%

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guaraniee Contracls

PFRS 5

MNon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Amendments lo PERS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposal

Mot early adopted

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 38 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Agsets

Amendments to PAS 3¢ and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets -
Effective Date and Transiion

LY R4 SRS

Amendments to PERS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financia! Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Discloswes - Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7; Disclosuses - Offsefting Financiat Assets and Financial
Liabilities

L9 I 9

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS & and Transition
Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Servicing Confracts

Not aarly adopted

Amendments to PFRS T7: Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to
Condensed Interim Financial Statements

Not early adopted

PFRS &

Operaling Sagmenis

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of|
ihe Total of the Reporiable Segments’ Assets o the Entity's Assets

PFRS 8

Financiat Instruments

Not early adopted

Amendments to PFRS &: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosuras

Mot earily adopted

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amandments ta PFRS 10: investment Entities

Amendrments to PFRS 10: Investment Enfities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Not early adopted

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Invesiment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of interests in Joiat

-Operations

Not early adopted

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Cther Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Nat early adopted

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measuremeant

Amendment to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and Payables

Amendment to PFRS 13: Pertfolio Exception

LS

PFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Mot early adopted

Philippine Accounting Standards {PASs)

PAS 1
{Revised}

Preseniation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments and
Qbligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of tems of Other Comprehensive income

Not Applicable




Title Adopted Not Adopted [Not Applicable
Amendments to PAS 1: Clarification of the Requirements for Comparative v
Fresentation
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Iniliative Not early adopted
PAS 2 Inventories v
PAS Y Statement of Cash Flows v
PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors v
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Date v
PAS 11 Construction Contracls v
PAS12 Income Taxes v
Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets v
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of 4 ¥
Accumulated Depreciation
Amendment to PAS 16: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Not early adopted
Amortization
Amendment to PAS 16: Bearer Plants Nat early adopted
FAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 18 Employee Benefits v
Amendments to PAS 18 Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and v
Disclosures
PAS 18 Employee Benefils ~
(Amended)
Amendments to PAS 19; Defined Bengfit Plans: Employee Contributions v o
Amendments to PAS 19 Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate Not early adopted
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance v
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Forelgn Operafion v
FPAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
{Revised}
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
{Revised)
Amadments to PAS 24: Key Management Parsonnel v v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27 Consolidated and Saparale Financial Statements v
PAS 27 CGonsolidated and Separate Financial Statements 4
{Amended)
Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities v
Amendments to PAS 27: Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Mot early adopted
Separate Financial Statements
PAS 28 Investmants in Associates v
PAS 28 investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
{Amended)
Amedments to PAS 28; Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception Not early adopted
PAS 29 Financial Regorting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures v
PAS 32 Financial nstruments: Disclosure and Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Firancig! Instruments and v
{Ohbligations Arising on Liguidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v
Amendment 1o PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution: to Holdars of Equily Instruments v
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financizl Liabilities v
PAS 33 Eatnings per Share v
PAS 34 Interim Financiz! Reporting v
Amendment to PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting and Segment Information for v
Tolal Assets and Liabilities
Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of information 'Elsewhere in the Interim Mot early adopted
Financial Report’
PAS 386 tmpairment of Assefs v
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Nen-Financial v
Assels
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Lizbifities and Contingent Assets v
PAS 32 intangible Assels v
Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of v v
Accumulated Amorfization
Amendments to PAS 38: Clarificalion of Acceptable Mathods of Depreciation and Not early adopted
Amortization
PAS 32 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement v

Amendmeants to PAS 38; Transition and [nitial Recognition of Financial Assets and
Financial Lizghilities




Title Adopted Not Adopted |MNeot Applicable
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hadge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup v
Transactions
Amendments to PAS 39; The Fair Value Oplion v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts v
Amendments lo PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assels v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assels — v
Effective Date and Transition
Amendgmenis to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-8 and PAS 39: Embedded v
Derivatives
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hadged ltems d
Amendmenis to PAS 38: Novation of Berivatives and Continuation of Hedge v
Accounting
PAS 40 Investment Property v
Amendment to PAS 40: Investment Property v v
PAS 41 Agriculure v
Amendment to PAS 41: Bearer Plants Not early adopted
Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC-1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration ard Similar Liabilities v
IFRIC-2 Members' Shares in Co-operative Eniities and Similar instruments v
IFRIC-4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease v
IFRIC-5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental v
Rehabiitation Funds
IFRIC-6 Liabilities arising from Parlicipating in a Specific Market - Waste Eleclrical and v
Electronic Equipment
IFRIG-F Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 28 Financizl Reporting in v
Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC-8 Scope of PFRS 2 v
IFRIG-9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded v
Derivatives
IFRIC-10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment ¥
IFRIC-13 PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions v
IFRIC-12 Service Concassion Arrangamenis “
IFRIC-13 Customer L oyalty Programmes v
IFRIC-14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their o
Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Inferpretations IFRIC- 14, Prepayments of a Minimum v
Fuading Requirement
IFRIG-16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Forefgn Operation v
{FRIC-17 Distributions of Nan-cash Assets ko Owners v
IFRIC-18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC-19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilifies with Equity Instruments v
IFRIC-20 Siripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine v
IFRIC-21 Lavies v
SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro v
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation ta Operating Activities -
SIc-12 Consciidaiion - Special Purpose Enlities v
Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12 v
SIC-13 Jointly Contrelled Entities - Non-Manetary Contribulions by Venturers v
SiC-15 Quperaling Leases - Incentives v
SiC-25 Ingome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders v
SIC-27 Evatuating the Substance of Transactions involving the Legat Form of a Lease v
SH2-29 Service Concession Amangements; Disclosures
S1C-31 Reventue - Barter Transactons Invelving Advertising Services
S1C-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v




Holcim Philippines, inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators

For the Calendar Year
Ended December 31

Financial KP1 Definition 2015 2014
Current/Liguidity ratios
Current Ratio Current Assets 126% 116%
Current Liakilities
Current Assets — Inventory —
Quick Ratio Prepayments 79% 69%
Current Liabilities
Solvency ratio/Debt-to-equity ratio
, . Total Liabilities
Debt to Equity Ratio Equity 36% 40%
Asset to Equity Ratios
Asset to Equity Ratio/ Total Assets o
Equity Multiplier Equity 136% 140%
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio
Interest Coverage Ratio/EBITDA Operating EBITDA 161.4 289 1
Net Interest Cover Net Interest ' '
Profitability Ratios
Return on Assets Net Income 25.1% 17.4%
Average Tolal Assets
Return on Equit Net income 34.6% 23.6%
quity Average Total Equity e e
Operating EBITDA Margin Opeﬁ,f,'t”gafi”m 25.3% 26.5%
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Exhibit 3

SEC Form 17-Q
For the quarters ended

March 31, June 30 and September 30, 2015

SECForm 17-A CY2015
February 2001
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION o oo ot wgrurm

FORM 17-Q rAPR 3¢ 2015

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE séétm —UES-V"—'T —
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2){b) THEREUNDER “‘:;‘:f.‘:,

12

/_._.
1. For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2015

2. Commission identification number 0261268 3. BIR Tax ldentification No 000-121-507-000

4, Exaclt name of issuer as specified in its charter HQLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporaticn or organization Manita, Philippines
8. Industry Classification Code: I:(SEC Use Only)

7. Address of issuer's principal office Postat Code

7" Floor Two World Square, McKinley Hill. Fort Bonifacio, Taquig City 1634
tssuer's telephone number, including area code (6832) 459-3333
9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report _N. A

oo

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, ar Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
Titte of each Class Number of shares of common
stock outstanding and amount
of debt outstanding
Common Shares 6,452,099,144
11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [x] No [ ]

If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities listed therein:

Philippine_Stock Exchange, Inc. Common Shares

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:
{a) has filed 2ll reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11{a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26

and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12)
months (or for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes [x] No [}
(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes [x] Ne [ ]

SEC Form 170
February 2041



PART |- FINANGIAL INFORMATION

item 1. Financial Staternents.

Exhibit | — Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Exhibit B -~ Consolidated Staternents of [ncome for the quarters ended March 31, 2015 and
2014

Exnibit il — Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the quarters ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014

Exhibit IV — Consclidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the quarters
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

Exhibit V — Gonsolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the quarters ended March 31, 2015
and 2014

Exhibit VI — Aging of Trade and Other Recelvables as at March 31, 2015

SEC Farmn 17-Q 2



HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALAMNCE SHEETS
March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

(in Thousands)

Exhibit |

31 Mar 2015 31 Dec 2014
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents R2,313,117 R2,688,207
Trade and other receivables-net 3,020,807 2,259,205
Inventories 3,729,130 3,757,521
Other current assets 650,275 615,841
Total Current Assets 8,713,329 9,336,774
Noncurrent Assets
investments 4,554 4,559
Property, piant and equipment — net 17,514,829 17,604,436
Goodwill 2,835,738 2,635,738
Intangibles 781,847 798,579
Deferred tax assets 282,722 271,029
Other noncurrent assats 254,411 264,571
Total Noncurrent Assets 21,484,106 21,675,912
31,197,435 30,906,686
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUHTY
Current Liabilities
Notes payable 1,000,000 2,100,105
Trade and other payables 5,287,124 5,603,981
Income tax payable 562 184 345,531
Tatal Current Liabilities 6,849,308 8,049,627
Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement benefit libilities 579,387 582,924
Provisions 131,742 136,974
Defetred tax liabilities 601 653
Other noncurrent liabilities 43,832 43,632
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 755,262 764,183
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Farent
Capitat stock 6,452,099 6,452,003
Additional paid-in capital 8476,002 8.476,002
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits - net {174,986) {174,986}
Other reserves 3,774 3,774
Retained earnings 8,828,857 7,328,592
' 23,585,746 22,083,481
Noncontroliing Interest 7,118 9,395
Total Stockhoiders’ Equity 23,592,865 22,092,876
B31,197,435 ™38,506,686

SEC Form 1 7-Q 3



Exhibit il

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the quarters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Quarter ended
Jan-fhar 2045 Jan-Mar 2014
“Restated
Met Sales PF8,582 902 R8.052,7%1
Cost of sales 5,731,542 4,893,631
Gross Profit 2,851,360 3,159,160
Operating expenses 503,360 415,285
Operating EBITDA 2,348,000 2,743,875
Depreciation and amorization 318,432 344,858
income from Qperations 2,028,588 2,388,017
Other income {expenses)
Net financial incorme {expense) {13,622} 2,844
Other income {expense) 108,470 {8,518)
Total 85,848 (5,677}
Income hefore Income Tax 2125 418 2,393,340
Provision for income tax
Current 613,876 676,678
Deferred 12,025 46,190
625,901 722,868
Income Before Minority Interest 1,499,515 1,670,472
Noncontrolling interest 1,874 {287}
Net income #1,5601,389 P1,670,185
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Computation of EPS:
{a) Nstincome applicable to
common shareholders R1,501,389 P1,670,185
(b} Common shares issued
and outstanding 6,452 089 68,452,099
EPS [a}/(bjl #3233 F0.253

" Restated based on PAS 19 which requires presentalion of nel inferest (included i pension cost} o financial
expense, Reclassed Phpb.4 million from cast of sales to net financial income (expense).

SEC Form |73 4



HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the quarters ended March 34, 2015 and 2014
{in Thousands)

Exhibit

Quarter ended

Jan-Mar 2015

Jan-Mar 2014

Neot Income

R1,488,515

R1,670,472

Other Comprehensive Loss
Other comprehensive loss 1o be reclassitied fo profit orfoss in
subsequent periads:
Amounts transferred {o profit or loss upon sale of
investment in joint veniure

Other comprehensive foss not lo be reclessifiad {0 profil or loss in
subsequant perads;

Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits
income tax effect

Totali Comprehensive Income

1,498,515

P1,670,A472

Altributable to:
Equity halders of the Parent Company
Noncontrolling interest

71,501,389
{1,874)

#1,670,185
287

#1,498,515

BF1,670,472

SEC Form 1 7-0Q 5



Exhibit iv

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSOLUIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHAMNGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the three (3) months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
{n Thousands)

Jan-Mar 2015 Jan-Mar 2014

Capital Stock
Common Stock

Balance at heginning of period R6,452,099 26,452,099

Issuances {Ketirement) - -

Balance at end of periad 6,452,039 6,452,009
Additional Paid-in Capital

Batarnce at baginning of period 8,476,002 8,476,002

issuances (Retirement) - -

Balance at end of period 8,476,002 8,476,002
Qther comprehensive {0ss {174 ,986) {161,351)
Retained Eamings

Balance at beginning of perled 7,331,242 6,697.828

Net income 1,601,389 1,670,185

Batance at end of petiod 8,832,631 8,368,013
Noacontrolling Interest 7,118 12,513

PF23,592 865 R23,147,276
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the three {3} months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

{tn Thousands)

Jan-Mar 2015

Exhibit V

Jan-Mar 2014

Operating Activities

Incorne before income tax for the period 2,125,416 ¥2.383,340
Adjustments 10 reconcile net income to cash
Depraciation and amortization 318,432 344 858
Other items (net) (338,685) (227,040)
Changes in current assets and lizbilities (1,127.931) {766,207)
Cash provided by operating activities 977,231 1,744,951
Investing Activities
{Additions) deductions to plant, property and equipment {258,001} {123,662)
De(increase in other investing aclivities {13,764) {31,80%)
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities (271,765} {155,278}
Financing Activities
Proceeds {payment) of short-term toans (1,080,851) {492,491)
Decraase in other financing aclivilies - 30,000
Cash provided (used in) financing activities {1,086,851) (462,481)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {385,385} 1,427,182
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 2,698,207 2,149,104
Eftect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash
eguivalents _ 295 616
Cash and cash equivalents, end 82,313,117 B3,276,802
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Exhibit 1

HOLGIM PHILIPPINES, INC
Aging of Trade and Other Recaivables
As of March 31, 2015
{in Thousands)

Tatal Current 1-30 days  31-60 days Over 60
days

Trade Receivabies P3,100,628 B2712103 B110,723 B83,240 P184,562
Other Receivables 57,170 42,408 - - 14,762
Total 3,187,788  R2754,511 B110,723 B93,240 #108,324
Allowance for Doubiul

Accounts {136,991)

Net Receivables B 3,020,807

Certified correct:
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Item: 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operatlons,

Results of Operations

The cement industry demand grew by 9.6%™ as of March 2015 compared to the same periad of last
year. This was brought about by the continuous strong public and private construction activities
nationwide. Driven by the robust demand, HPI posted total net sales of Php8.6 billion, higher than the
Php8.1 billion reported for the same period last year. While lower by about 14% compared with same
period of last year on account of higher costs of production inputs and corporate initiatives, the
Company closed the quarter with a respectable operating EBITDA of Php2.3 billion. Net income after
tax stood Php1.5 billion, giving earnings per share of Php0.23/share.

Financial Position

The Company's financial position has remained healthy with very liquid cash position and strong asset
utitization ratic as it continues to generate high revenues. Total assets stood at Php31.2 billion, up by
approximately Php280 millicn from end of 2014,

Cash Flow Generation

The Company's cash requirements have been mainly sourced through cash flow from operations,
Overafl cash decrease was mainfy due to full paymant of third party loan. Please refer to the attached
statement of cash flow far more details.

Key Performance Indicators

The comparative financial KPI's of the Company for the three months ended Rarch 31, 2015 and
2014 were as follows:

Far the guarter
endad March 31
Financial KP{ Definition 2015 2014
Profitability
Net Income
Return on Equity (ROE) Ave. Total Shareholders' 6.6% 7.5%
Equity
Return an Asset (ROA) Nel income 4.8% 5.8%
Average Tolal Assels
Efficiency
EBITDA Marain Operating EBITDA 27.4% 34.0%
Net Safes
Liouidity o
; Net Financial Debt (Assetl) o a
Gearing Stockholders' Equity (3.5%) (10.4%)
EBITDA Net Interest Cover Operating EBITDA 13,540 times N
Net Interest

" CEMAP
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Profitability and Efficiency

The profitability and efficiency have slightly decreased as compared to the same period of last year
with ROE and ROA decreasing by 0.9% and 1.0%, respectively, due to higher usage of impaorted
clinker and higher production input costs.

Liquidity

The Company’s liquidity position rernained strong evidenced by significant cash balance.

Notes to Financiai Statements
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
PAS 34 interim Financial Reporiing and do not include all of the information and disclosures reguired
in the annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Company's annual
financiat statements as at December 31, 2014.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of condensed consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Campany's annual financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2014, except for the adoption of the new standards z2nd inteepretations
that are effeclive as of January 1, 2015 enumerated below:

» PFRS 9, “Financial instruments: Classification and Measuremeni®

PFRS ¢ (2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 38 and applies to the
classification and measurement of financlal assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39. PFRS 9
requires all financial assets to be measured at falr value at initial recognition. A debt financial
asset may, ¥ the fair value option (FVQ) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at amortized
cost if it is held within a business model that has the cbjective to hold the assets to coflect the
contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solety payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. AHl other debt
instruments are subsequenily meastred at fair value through profit or toss. Alf equity financial
assets are measured at falr value either through QOCI or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held
for trading must be measured at falr value through profit or loss. For FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is altributable to changes In credit risk must be presented
in OCl. The remainder of the change in fair value Is presented in profit or kss, uniess
presentation of the fair value change in respact of the labllity's credit risk in OCH would create ar
enfarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. ANl other PAS 39 classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilties have been carried forward Intoe PFRS 9,
tncluding the embedded derivative separatian rules and the criteria for using the FVO. The
adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of
the Company's financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on the classification and
ragastrament of financial fiabilities.

PFRS 8 {2010 version) is effeclive for annual pariods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. This
mandatory adoption dafe was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of PERS ¢ was
adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). Such adoption,
however, is still for approval by the Board of Accountancy (ROA). The Company witt hot opt to
early adopt the standard.

*  Philippine Intespretation IFRIC 15, “Agreements for the Construction of Reaf Estaie”

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate direclty or through subcontractors. The SEC and the
FR&C have deferred the sffectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued
by the Infernafional Accounting Standards Board (JASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of
the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is
completed. Adoption of the interpretation when it becomes effective will not have any impact on
the consolidated financiat statements of the Company.
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The following new standards and amendments were already adopted by the FRSG but are still for
approval by BOA,

Effective in 2015

Amendments to PAS 19, “Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Confributions”

FAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the cantributions are finked to service, they should be
attributed o periods of service as & negative benefit. These amendments dlarify that, if the
amount of the conlributions Is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is
permitted ta recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which
the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contrinutions to the pericds of service. This
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015, 1t is not
expected that this smendment would be relevant to the Company, since the Company's
relirernent plans are noncontributory.

Annual Improvements fo PFRS (2010 to 2012 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010 to 2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments {o the following standards. These are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2015. Except as otherwise stated the Company does not expect these
amendments {0 have a significant impact on the consolidated financial staternents.

* PFRS 2, "Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition”

This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the
definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:
» A performance condition must contzin a service condition

= A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service

* A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those
= of ancther entity in the same group

= A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition

* If the counterparty, regardiess of the reason, ceases to provide service during the

* vesting period, the service condition is not satisfied.

« PFRS 3, "Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination”

The amendmenti is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after July 1, 2014. it clarifies that a contingent cansideration that is not classified
a8 equity is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or lass whether or not it fafie
within the scope of PAS 39. The Company shall consider this amendment for future business
comblnations.

= PFRS 8, "Operaling Segments - Aagregation of Operating Segmenis and Reconciliation of
the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets (o the Entity's Assets”

The amendments are applied refrospactively and clarify that;

*  An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in the standard, Including a brief description of operating segments that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics (¢.g., sales and gross margins) used to
assess whether the segmenis are ‘similar’,

* The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to he disclosed if the
recenciliation is reported to the chief aperating decision maker, similar to the required
disclosure for segment liabitities.
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PAS 18, "Property, Plant and Equipment: Revaluation Method — Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Depreciation”, and PAS 38, ‘“Intangible Assets: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restaternent of Accumulated Amortization”

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 18 and PAS 38 that the asset
may be revalued by reference to the abservable data on either the gross or the net carrying
amount. In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the difference between
the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

PAS 24, "Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel”

The amendment is applied retraspectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is an
entity that provides key manhagement personnel services, is a related party subject to the
related party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to
disclozse the expenses incurred for management services. The amendments will affect
disclosures only and will have no impact on the Company's financial position or performance.

= Annual Improvernenis to PFRS {2011 to 2013 cycle)

The Annual Impravemeants ta PFRSs (2011 fo 2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
zmendments o the following standards. These are effective for annual periods beginhing on or
after Janvary 1, 20156, Except as ctherwise stated, the Company does fnot expect these
amendments to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 3, "Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements”

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope
exceptions within PFRS 3
= Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are cutside the scope of PFRS 3.

» This scope exceplion applies only to the accounting in the financial staternents of the joint
arrangement itseff,

PFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement - Partfolio Exception”

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfelio exception in
PFRS 13 can be applied not only te financial assets and financial liabiities, but also to other
gontracts within the scope of PAS 39.

Effective in 2016

PAS 16, "Property, Plant and Equipment’, and PAS 38, "Intangible Assels - Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization” (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattemn of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business {(of which the assst is parf)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumad through use of the asset. As a resuft, a
revenue-hased method cannot be used to depraciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments
are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with aarly
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expecied to have any impact to the Company
given that the Company is not using a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current
assels,

PAS 18, "Property, Plant and Equipment’, and PAS 41, “Agriculture - Bearer Plants”
{Amendments)

The amendments change the accounling requitements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, blologicat assels that mest the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 106 at accumulated cost (before
matity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after matuwity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will ramain in the scope of
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PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs {o sell. For government grants related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, "Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance’, will apply. The amendmenis are retrospectively effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitied. These ameandments are
not expecled to have any impact to the Company as the Company does not have any bearer
plants,

= PAS 27, "Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Staternents”
(Amendments)

The amendments will alfow enlities to use the equity method o account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Enfities
aiready applying PFRS and efecting fo change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply thal change retrospectively. For first-fime adopters of PFRS
slecting to use the equily method in its separale financial statements, they will be required to
apply this method from the date of transition io PFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments will not have any impact on the Company’s cansolidated financial statements.

=  PFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements® and PAS 28, “investments in Associates and
Jaint Ventures - Sale or Contributian of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
enture”

Trese amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its assoclate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves a business {whether it is housed in a subsidiary or
not). A partiagl gain or loss Is recognized when a transaction involves assefs that do not
constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments
are effective from annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

= PFRS 11, "Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations"
(Amendments)

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previcusly held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint contral is
retained, {n addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendmente do nof apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under cemmon controt of the same ultimaite controliing party. The amendments apply to
both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the Acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective for annual
pefiods beginning on or aiter January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.

»  PFRS 14, "Regutatory Deferral Accounts”

PERS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activitles are subject to
rateregutation, to continue applying most of #ts existing accounting policies for regulatocy
deferral account balances upon its firsttime adoption of PFRS. PFRS 14 is effective for
annual periads beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Since the Company is an existing
PFRS preparer, this standard would not apply.
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*  Annual iImprovements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)

The Annual Improvements fo PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periads beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 and are not expected to have g material impact on the Company.
They include:

PFRS 5, "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Disconfinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal”

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to
be a new plan of disposai, rather it is a continuation of the original pian. There s, therefore,
no interruption of the application of tha requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also
clarifies that changing the disposal methad does not change the date of classificatian.

PFRS 7, "Financial Instrumants: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts™

PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continwing involvement in 3
transferred asset that is derecognized in its enfirety. The amendment clarifies that a senvicing
contract that includes a fee gan constitute conlinuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in
order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such
that the assessment of which servicing contracls constitute continuing involvernent will need
to be done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided
for any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the
amendments,

PERS 7, "Applicability of the Amendments o PFRS 7 tov Condensed Interim Financial
Staterments” (Amendments)

This amendment is applied refrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial fabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial
report unless they provide a significant update o the information reported in the most recent
znnual report,

PAS 19, "Employee Benefits - Regional Market fssue Regarding Discount Rate"

This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obfigation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency, govermnment bond rates must be used,

PAS 34, "Inlerim Financiat Reporting - Disclosure of information ‘Eisewhere in the Inlerim
Financial Report”

The amendment is applied relrospectively and clarifies hat the required interim disclosures
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by crossreference between
the interim financial staternents and wheraver they are included within the greater interim
financial report (e.q., in the management commentary or risk report).

Effective in 2018

PFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting” and Amendments o PFRS 9 PFRS 7
and PAS 39

PFRS 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project io replace PAS 39
which pertains to hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge
accounttng model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include
feplacing the rules-based hadge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses
on the economic relationship between the hedged itern and the hedging instrument, and the
effect of credit risk on that economic relationship; allowing risk compenents to be designated
as the hedged item, not only for financial items but alse for non-financial items, provided that
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the risk component is separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time
vaiue of an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any fareign currency basis
spread fo be excluded from the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging
insfrurent and accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive
digclosures for hedge accounting.

PERS & (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date, The mandatory effective date of
January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the
FRSC. The adoption of the final version of PFRS ¢, however, is still for approval by BOA. The
adoption of PFRS ¢ will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial assets but will have no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial liabilities. The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

The adoption of the third phase of the project is nat expected to have any significant impaci
on the Company's consclidated financial statements,

PFRS 9, "Financial instruments”

tn July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9 was issued. PFRS 9 reflects ali phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces PAS 38 and all previotis versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative
information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS S is permitted if
the date of inilial application is before February 1, 2015,

The adoption of PFRS 9 (2014 version) will have an effact on the classification and
measurement of the Group's financial assets but will have no impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group's financial ffabilies. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of adopting this standard.

‘The adoption of the other phases of the project is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

The following new stendard and amendments issued by the IASB has not yet been adopled by the

FRSC.

Internationsl Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 15, "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that wil apply to
revenue arising from contracis with customers, Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled to in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach {0 measuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with early adaption permitted.

Amendments fo International Accounting Standards (IAS) 1, “Preseniation of Financial
Statements”

fn December 2014, the IASB issued the amendments to 1AS 1. The amendments include
narrow-focus improvements in five argas; namely, materiality, disaggregation and subtotals,
notes sfructure, disclosure of accounting policies and presentation of items of other
comprehensive income arising from equity accounted investments. The amendments are
effective on or after January 1, 2018,
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=  Amendments o IFRS 10, "Consolidated Financial Statements”, IFRS 12, “Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities”, and 1AS 28, "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”

In December 2014, the IASB issued Investment Entities: Applying the GConsolidation
Exception (amendments fo IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and |AS 28). The amendments address certain
issues that have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under IFRS 10. The
amendments are effective an or after January 1, 2016.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and the amendments ta IAS 1 and
IFRS 10, iFRS 12 and I1AS 28 and plans o adopt the new and amended standards on their
required effective dates once adopted locally.

2. Seasonality Aspects of the Business

Like any other Company in the construction industry, the operations of HPI are affected by seasonalily
or cyclicality. During the months starting December to May, demand for cement is greater than the
rainy months from June to November,

3. Financial Risk Management Objactives and Policies

General Risk Management Approach

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes In debt
structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company's
overail risk managament program focuses on the unpredictability of financia!l markets and seeks o
minimize potentiai and adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. The Company
uses derivative instrumenids such as cress-curency swaps to hedge the interest and foreign exchange
risks from its foreign currency-denominated debt. The Company does not enter into other derivative or
financial transactions which are unrelated to its operating business as a risk-averse approach is
pursted.

Financial risk management of the Company is governed by policies approved by management. it
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific risk areas such
as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparly risk, and use of derivative financial
instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidity requirements.

The Company's principat financial instrumaents, other than derivatives, consist of cash and cash
equivalents, notes payable and long-term debt. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise funds for the Gompany's operations. The Company alsc has various other financial assets and
liabifities such as irads and other receivables, advances to employees, guarantee deposits, restricted
cash, frade and other payables and advances from customers which arise directly from operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market dsks (which include
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors (BOD)
reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.

Market Risks

The Company is exposed to market risks, such as forsign currency, interest rate and aquity price
risks. To manage volatility refaling to these exposuras, the Company enters into derivative financial
Instruments, when necessary. The Company’s objective is to reduce, where appropriate, fluctuations
in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency, interest rate and equity price.

Fareign Currency Risks

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument witl
flucfuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company hag foreign-exchange exposures, arising primarity from sales, purchases of goods and
services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Peso that leads to currency
translation effects. The Company may hedge certain foreign cumrency-denominatad borrowings or
other instruments by entering into derivative transactions,
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Due fo the local nature of the cement business, iransaction risk is limited. However, income may
primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount of capital expenditures
may be in foreign currencies. As a consequence thereof, the Company may enter into derivative
cantracts whenever necessary, which may be designated either as cash flow hedges or fair value
hedges, as appropriate.

As of March 31, 2015, the Company has minimai assets and liabiliies exposed to foreign currency
risks.

Interest Rate Risk

interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial insfrument (cash flow interest rate
risk} or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate bacause of changes in marke! interast
rates.

The Company is exposed io fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements af its debt
portfolio related to changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest rate exposure is mainly
addressed through the steering of the fixedifloating ratio of net debt. To manage this mix, the
Company may enter into derivative transactions, as appropriate. As at Maich 31, 2015, the Company
has minimal financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk,

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able {o settle their obligations as agreed. To
manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financlal reliability of customers.

The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial instruments
consist of a large number of major financial institutions. The Company does not expect any
counterpariies to fail to meet thelr chiigations, given their high cradit ratings. In addition, the Company
has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of counterparties.

The maximum and minimum exposure o credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial assel.

The Company trades anly with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. It is the Company's policy that
al third party customers who wish to trade on credit ierms are subject to credit verification
pracedures, In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to reduce the
Company's exposure o bad debts to minimal.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Gompany, which consist of due
from related parties, advances to employees, AFS financial assets, and guarantee and refundable
deposits, the Company's exposuras arise from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficully in raising funds to meet iis
cantractual obligations and commitments. The seasonalily of revenus generation exposes the
Company to shortage of funds during slack season. The Company monitors this risk using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial assefs and projected cash
flows from operations. The Company's objective is to maintain 3 halance between continuity of
funding and fiexibility through the use of bank credit facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts.

it is responsible for its own cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject fo
policies and guidelines approaved by management and in certain cases at the BOD lavel,

The Company mainfains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are shari-term in
nature, unused credit lines and readily available marketable securities to meet its liquidity
requirements at all times. In addition, the strong credit worthiness of the Company allows it to make
efficient use of the financial markets for financing purposes. As of March 31, 2015, the Company has
unutilized credit facilities of PA.5 billion.
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Capifal Management Policy

The Company considers equity attributable to the equity halders of the Parent Company as its capital.
The Company’'s objectives when managing capital are to secure the Company's ongoing financial
needs to continue as a going concern as well as {o caler for its growth targets in order to provide
returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakehotders and to maintain a cost-efficient and risk-
optimized capital structure.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustmenis to it in light of the changes in
gconamic conditions, its business activities, investment and expansion program and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order io maintain or adjust the capital struciure, the
Campany may adjust the amount of dividends pald to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares, of sell assets to reduce deht,

The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio.

4, Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fzir Value of Financial Instiuments

The estimated fair value of each class of the Company's financial instruments is equal to their canrying
amaount as at March 31, 2015 and Decemnber 31, 2014. The following methods and assumptions are
used 10 estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument for which it is practicable o
astimate such vatue:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Advances to Employees, Resirictad
Cash, Long-term Financial Receivable, Notes Payable and Trade and Gther Fayables. [ue ta the
short-term nature of the transactions, the fair values of these instruments spproximate the
corresponding carrying values as of end of each reporting pertod,

AFS Financial Assels. The fair values of publicly fraded instruments are determined by reference to
guoted market prices as at the end of each reporting period. Investments in unquoted equity securities
for which no reliable basis for fair value measurement is available are carried at cost, net of any
impairment in value.

Guarantee Deposils. These are carried at cost, less any impairment in value, which approximate their
fair values calculated using the discounted cash flows method,

Fair Value Hierarchy

Below are the list of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are classified using a fair
valug hierarchy as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014;

Mlarch 31, 2018 December 31, 2014
Level 7V LeveiZ®  Total Level 1V  Leyel 2@ Total

AFS financial assels -
Cluoted equity securilies F145 R— R145 F148 P— B145
7 Fair value is determined using observable market inputs that reflect quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabililies.
@ Fair yalue is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are either directly or
indirectly observable for the assels or fiabilities.
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5. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are components of the Company that engage in business activities
from which they may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and
expenses relating to transactions with other components of the Company), which
operating resulls are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker* to make
decisions about how resources are to be allocated to each of the segments and to
assess their performances, and for which discrete financial information. is available.
Management reassesses on an annual basis whether there have been any change in the
operating segments or in the reportable operating segments in accordance with PFRS 8,
“Operating Segments”.

For management purposes, the Company is organized into activiies based on their
products and has three segments, as follows:
* clinker and cement segment, which manufactures and sells clinker and cement far

both domestic and export customers; and
“ other construction materials and services segment, which includes aperations from
the RMX business and Helps-U-Build.

Management monitors the operaling results of its business segments for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allpcation and performance assessment, Segment performance is
based on operating EBITDA and is measured consistently with consolidated net income in the
consolidated statements of incame. However, the Company's finance income and charges and
income taxes are managed on a group basls, and are not allocated to operating segments.
Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm's length basis similar to transactions
with third parties.

Segment revenuies, EBITDA, assets and liabllities as at March 31, 2015 and 2014 are presentad
below:

2015

AdJustments

Ciinker and and
cement QOthers Total elminations Consolidated

(In Thousands)
Revenue:

External custormers R8,286,456 PR296,074 #8,582,530 B- 8,582,530
Inter-segment 102,153 266 102,464 {102,082} 372
8,388,654 P206,340 B3 684,994 (F102,652) R3,582,902
Operating EBITDA R2,358,559 {R10,558) 2,348,000 B F2,348,000
Segment assets 28,119,472 807,768 28,827,240 2,270,195 31,197,435
Segment liabilifies 6,070,515 617,601 6,688,616 916,054 7,604,570

" Chief operating decision maker is composed of the Company's management commitiee
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2014 {restated)

Adjustments
Clinker and and
gement Others Total  eliminations Consglidated
(In Thousands}
Revenue:
External customers P7.887.611 R165,180 88,082,791 B- B38,052 791
Inter-segrment 99,167 - 98,167 {09,187} -
7,986,778 B165,180 P8,151,958 {R99,167) Bg.052 791
QOperating EBITDA F2,764,080 (R20,205) PB2,743,875 f. B2 743,875
Segment assets 25,645,814 695,169 26,240,983 3,490,328 28,731,311
Segment liabilities 5,576,708 298,624 5,875.330 708,705 6,584,035
*Refer lo Statement of Comprehensive Income
SEC Form [ 7-Q 20



Interim Disclosurss

The Company is not aware of the following or is not applicable to the Company's interim operations;

1.

10.
11.

13

14,

15.

Unusual Hemns that materially affect the Company's consolidated assets, liabilities, equity, net
income or cash flows because of their nature, size or incidents.

Changes in eslimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the current financial year or
changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior financial years that have a material effact in the

eurrent period.
Issuances and repurchases of equity securities,
Dividend paymeats for ordinary and other shares,

Material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since tha last annual balsnce sheet
date.

Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that are material to an
understanding of the current interim period.

Known trends, demands, commitments, events and unceriainties that will result in or likedy to
decrease its fiquidity in any materiat way. The Company dogs not anticipate having within the
next twelve (12) monihs any cash flow or liquidity problems nor does it anticipate any defauit or
breach of any of its existing notes, loans, leases, other indebtedness or financing arrangements
requiring it to make payments.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent material financial obligations to the Company.

Materlal off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (direct or contingent), and
cther relationships of the Company with unconsclidated entities or other persons created dusing
the year,

Material commitments for ¢apital expenditures.

Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favarable impact on net sales/revenues/incame from continuing operations.

- Bignificant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's continuing

operations,

Material events subsequent to end of the reporting period that have not been reflected in this
report.

Material changes in the composiion of the Company, including any business combination,
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments, restructurings and discontinuing
operations.

Any seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of operation.
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Material Changes in Balance Sheet Accounts

14% decrease in Cash and cash equivalents
Mainly driven by full payment of third party foan.

34% increase in Trade and other raceivables-nef
Primarily due to higher revenues in March 2015 compared with December 2014.

6% increase in Other current assets
Mainly attributable to higher down payments made to suppliers related to purchase of raw materials

and spare parts.

6% decrease in Trade and other payvables
Attributabls to higher payments made on trade liabiliies in the first quarter.

52% decrease in Noles payabie
Attributabie to payment made by the Company for a third party bank loan.

&63% increase in Incorne tax payable
Mainly altributable to higher taxable income in the first quarter of 2015 as compared to the last guarter

of 2014.

23% decrease in Deferred tay fiabilities
Mainly attributable to the decrease in non-deductible depreciation expense.

21% increase in Relained earnings
Mainly due to income generaled for the first quarter.

Material Changes in Incoma Statement Accounts

7% increase in Net sales
Mainly driven by higher volume sold brought about by strong demand.

17% increase in Cost of sales
Due to higher volume produced and soid as a restlt of robust demand, higher usage of imporied
clinker and higher cost of production inputs.

21% increase in operating expenses
Attributable to ona-off costs related to corporate initiatives.

8% dscrease in depreciation and amortization
Mainly due lo lower hook value of depreciable assets.

579% decrease in Net financial income{expense)
Mainly due to higher financing charges from financial abilities.

1385% increase in Other income (expense)
Due to the gain realized by the Company on sale of its internally developed inteflectual property to an
associated company.

13% decrease in Provision for income tax
Mainly due to lower taxable income in 2015 as compared to the same pariod in 2014.
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Holcim Phitippines, inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators

For the Three (3) Months
Ended March 31

Financiai KPI Definition 2015 2044
Current/Ligquidity rafio
. Current Assets
Current Ratic ° y
urrent Raf Current Lizbilities 141.8% 160.6%
Solvency rativ/Debt-to-equity ratic
. Net Financial Debl (Asset)
G . A, o,
earing Stockholder's Equity (3.5%) (10.4%)
Asset to Equity Ratios
Asset to Equity Ratio/ Total Assets o
Equity Multiplier Stockholder's Equity 1322% ) 1284%
Interest Rate Coverage Ratia
Interest Rate Coverage Income befors Tax 12.256.6 Nil
Net Interest timas
Profitzbifity Ratios
Return on Assets Net Income 4.8% 5.8%
Average Tolal Assets ) '
Return on Equity Net Income 8.6% 7.5%
Average Total Equity ' )
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirerents of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

T

Glenn A Agustin
Head, Group Controller
. Aprit 30, 2015 Date: April 30, 2015

SEC Form 17-Q 24



01015000002

| ARREE YO RURR TR 00 SO RO Y AREL D

% SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Barcode Fage
The following document has been received:

SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhifts Mandaluyong City, Metro Manila.fhillppines
Tel:{£32) 726-0931 lo 38 Fax:(632) 725-5203 Email; mis@sec.gov.ph

Receiving Officer/Encoder : Maik Anthony R. Ossena

Receiving Branch

: SEC Head Office

Recelpt Date and Time : August 10, 2015 08:47:46 AM

Received From

: Head Office

Company Representative

Doc Source

Company Information

3EC Registration No. 0000028126

Company Name HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
Industry Classification

Company Typa Stock Corporation
Document Information

Document 1D 108102015000002
Pocument Type 17-G {FORM 11-Q:QUARTERLY REPORT/FS)
Bocument Code 170

Period Coverad June 30, 26815

No. of Dayslate o

Deparment CFD

Remarks



COVER SHEET

21611206

S Reastration Number

HIO|L{C|T[My {P(HIFIL|IIPIP|ITINIE(S],{I|N|C}. AINID SUIBIS|I

{Company's Fall Name)

tih Flliaje|r Viein]ile|e Clo|riploirialtije Cle[njtje|r

tlrjefeltf, MleiK]ifn{l]|e]y Tlolwln

Y Z ]~
o
[F=]
d
=
=
w

elnft{eir], MiciK|[i|n|f|efy Biillit§, Flojr|t Blolali|[l

atelilol, Tiajgluiileg Clijt]y
( Business Addesss Mo Streed Ciiy/TownProvinee}
[ Shirley S. Go i ' 459-3333
{Cuntact Persan) (2% Quarter A3y {Company Telephone Nuraburd
D6 314 SEC FORM 17-Q
Aesueh Dy Far the quarter ended June 30, 2013 Manth Dy
(Fiseal Year) {Form Typey f Ao Metungt
{ Secondany License Type, [ Applicahle)
CEFD -
Dept Reguurmg this Doe Amepded Arteles Mumber/Secton
otal Amount of Borrownigs
Towl Ma of Stockholders Domestic TFategn
T e aceomplivhed v S0 Persannel converned
File Meonbee LCU
Droweinnent 10 Cashuer
| |
[ STAMPS [
I ! Rumurks Plemse wse BLACK mb for scanmng pumases



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
FORM 17-Q
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2){b)} THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period endad June 30, 2015

2. Commission identification number _ 026128 3, BIR Tax ldentification No 000-121-507-000

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter HOLCIM PHILIPRINES, INC.

8. Province, country or other jurigdiction of incorporation or organization Manita, Philippines
6. Industry Classification Code: | (SEC Use Only)

7. Address of issuer's principal office Postal Code

7™ Floor Venice Corporate Cenler, No. 8 Turin St McKinley Town Center, McKinley Hill. Fort

Bonifacio. Taguig City 1634
8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code (632} 4 59-3333
9. Farmer name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report _ N. A,

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of each Class Number of shares of common
stock outstanding and amournt
of debt cutstanding
Common Shares £,452,089,144

11, Are any or alt of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [x] No [ ]
if ves, stale the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securilies listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. Commeon Shares

12, Indicate by check mark whether the registrant;
(a} has filed all reporis required to ba filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the REA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26

and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12)
months {or for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports}

Yes {x] No [ ]
(b} has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninely (80) days.

Yes [x} Mo [ ]
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PART {- FINANCIAL INFORMATICN

Hem 1. Financial Statements,

Exhibit | - Consotidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Exhibit 1l - Consolidated Statements of Income for the quarters ended June 30, 2015 and
2014 and for the six {6) months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Exhibit {il - Consclidated Staternents of Comprehensive income for the quarters ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014 and for the six (6 months ended June 30, 2015 and
2014

Exhibit IV — Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the six {6}
months ended June 34, 2015 and 2014

Exhibit V — Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six {8) months ended June 30,
2015 and 2014

Exhibit Vi —~ Aging of Trade and Other Receivables as at June 30, 2015
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Exhibit 1

{In Thousanus)
30 Jun 2015 31 Dec 2014
ASSETS
Current Assetls
Cash and cash equivelenis R5,127,720 22 698,207
Trade and other receivables-net 2,931,672 2,259,205
inventories 3,140,915 3,787,524
Other current assets 588,487 615,841
Total Current Assels 11,788,794 9,330,774
Noncurrent Assets '
Invesiments 4 559 4,559
Property, plant and egquipment — nat 17,412,665 17,804,436
Goodwiil 2,635,738 2835738
Intzngibes 787,975 795,578
Deferred tax assels 287,963 271,028
Other noncurrent assels 255,893 264,571
Total Noncarrent Assets 24,384,813 21,575,912
33,173,607 30,806,688
LIABILITIES AND STOGKHOLDERS' EQLUITY
Carrent Liabilities
Notes payable 1,600,000 2,100,105
Trade and other payabies 11,008,738 5,603,991
Income tax payable 567 852 345,531
Total Current Liahilities 12,676,580 8,049,627
Noncurrent Liahilities
Retirement benefit kabilities 587,525 582,924
Provisions 136,716 136,974
Deterred tax habilities Ky 653
Other noncurrent lighilities 43,632 43832
Total Nancurrent Liabilities 767,200 764,183
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent
Capiiat stock 6,452,099 6,452,099
Additionai paid-in capital 8,476,002 8,476,002
Remeasurement loss on retirement bengfits - nat (174,986) {174,985)
Other reserves 3,774 3,774
Relained earnings 5,064,839 7,326,592
19,821,728 22,083,484
Noncontrofling Interest 8,089 9,395
Total Stockholders' Equity 19,829,817 22,092,876
®33,173,607 $£30,906,686
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HOLEIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the quarters ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
And for the six (8} months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
{in Thousands, Except Per Share Dala)

Exhibit H

Quarter endad Six {6) Month ended
Apr-Jun Apr-Jun Jan-Jun Jan-Jun
2015 2014 2015 2014
*Restated *Restated
Net Sales Rr2,412,375 #8,507,901 R17,996,277 #16,860,692
Cost of sales 6,356,456 5,742,702 12,087,888 10,636,333
Gross Profit 3,055,919 3,065,199 8,907,279 6,224,259
QOperaling expenses 602,494 427.818 1,105,854 843,104
Opecating EBITDA 2,453,425 2,637,380 4,801,425 §,381,255
Bepreciation and
amortization 325,017 339,507 543,449 £84,365
income from Operations 2,428,408 2,297,873 4,157,976 4,686,830
Other income (EXpanses)
Met financial incorne
(expense) 4,760 385 (8,862} 3,228
Other income {expense) {3,454} 7,153 105,976 (1.365)
Total 1,286 7,538 97,114 1,861
income before Income
Tax 2123674 2,305,411 4,285,090 4,598,751
Provision for income tax
Current 603,354 707,057 1,217,230 1,383,735
Deferred (1.413) {53,480) 10,612 (7,200)
601,841 663,577 1,227,842 1,378,445
income Before Minority
Interest 1,627,733 1,651,834 3,027,248 3,322,308
MNoncontrolliing interest {2,723) {459) {849 {746}
Net Income #{,525,010 1,851,375 F3,026,359 R3, 321 560
Basic/Difuted Earnings
Per Share {(EPS)
Camputation of EPS:
fa) Netincome applicable
te common
shareholders 1,525,010 1,681,378 3,026,399 R3,321, 560
{b} Common shares issued
ang cutstanding 6,452,099 6,452,099 6,452,088 5,452,098
EPS f{al{b}] ®0.236 RO.256 ®0.469 RO.515

* Restated based on PAS 19 which requires presentafion of net intarest {included in pension cost} lo financial
expense. Reclassed Php10.7 million from cost of sales (o nef financial income {expense).
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the quartars ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
And for the six {6) months ended Junre 30, 2015 and 2014

Exhibit 1lI

{in Thousands)
Quarter ended Six (§} Month ended
Apr-Jun Apr-Jun Jan-Jdun Jan-~Jun
W15 2014 2015 2014
Net income #1,627,733  R1.651,834  3.027,248 3,322,306
Other Comprehensive Loss
Other camprehensive loss 1o be reclassified
o profil or fngs in subsequent periods:
Amounts transferred to profit or
loss upon sale of investment in
joint venture -
Qther comprehensive loss not to be -
reclassifed to proflt or loss in subsedirent
periods:
Remeasurement loss on
retirernent bensfits - -
Income tax effect - -
Totai Comprehensive income 1,527,733 B1.6851,834 R3,027,248 23,322,306
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent
Company #1,525,010 1,651,375 R3,028,389 3,324,560
Noncanirolling interest 2,723 459 849 745
®1,527,733 m1,651,834 ®3,027,248 F31,322,306
5
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Exhibit v

HOLCIR PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSDLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
For the six (6} months ended June 38, 2015 and 2014
(tn Thousands)

Jar-Jun 2015 Jan-Jun 204

Capital Stack
Common Stock

Balance at beginning of periad RBE 452,009 RB,452,098
Issuances {Ratirement) - -
Batance at end of period 8,452 089 8,452,099
Additional Paid«in Capital
Balance at beginning of period 8,475,002 8,476,002
Issuances (Retirement) - -
Balance at end of period 8,476,002 B8.476,002
Other comprehensive loss (174,986) {161,351
Retained Earings
Balance at beginning of periad 7,338,154 G,698,822
met income 3,026,399 3,321,860
Cash dividends (5,295,940} (4,516,4869)
RBalance at end of period 5,068,613 5,603,413
Noncontroiting interest 8,088 10,753
219,829,817 820,281,416
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the six (8) months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

{in Thousands)

Exhibit V

Jan-jun 2016 Jan-Jun 2014
Operating Activities
Income hefore income tax for the period R4,255,080 F4,698,751
Adjusiments to reconcile nat incoms ta cash
Depreciation and amortization 643,449 684,365
Other items-net {895,521} (840,877}
Changes in current assets and liabilities 14,924 {762,879)
Cash provided by operating activities 4,017,942 3,759,360
Investing Activities
{Additions} deductions to plant, property and equipment {480,518) {293,788}
Delin)crease in other investing activities {156,645) {235)
Cash provided by {used in} Investing activilies (496,060) {294,003}
Financing Activities
Proceeds (payment) of sharl-term loans (1,083.943) (837,619
Cash provided {used in) financing activities {1,093,843) (887,519}
Ket increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalenis 2,427,938 2,577,738
Cash and cash equlvalents, beginning 2,698,207 2,149,104
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash
equivalents 1,574 {722}
Cash and cash equivalents, end R5.127,720 R4,726,120
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC
Aging of Trade and Other Receivables
As of June 30, 2015
{In Thousands)

Exhibit VI

Total Current 1-30 days 3160 days Over &0
Trade Recelvables R 3,075,552 R2,803322 F108,346 R22,293 g?ﬁ,sm
Other Receivables 36,718 9,325 - 705 26,688
Total 3,112,270 B2,812647 R108.346 R22,098 R168,279
Aftowance for Doubtful
Accounts {180,598)
Net Recelvables B2.931,672

SEC Form 17-Q

Certified correct:

/\ 4
Gienn}iégusﬁn

Head, Group Controller



itemn 2. Management's Discusslon and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,

Results of Operations

The cement industry demand grew by 11%™ as of June 2015 compared to the same period of last
year. This was brought about by the continuous strong public and private construciion activities
nattonwide. Driven by the robust demand, HPI posted total net sales of Php18.0 billion, higher than
the Php18.9 billion reporied far the same peried last year. While net income was fower by about 9%
compared with same period of Iast year on account of higher costs of praduction inputs and corporate
initiatives, the Comparny closed the quarter with a respectable operating EBITDA of Php4.8 billion. Net
income after tax stood Php3.0 billlon, giving samings per share of Php0.47/shars,

Financial Position
The Company’s financial position has remained healthy with very liquid position and strong asset
utilization rafio as it continues to generale high revenues. Total assets stood at Php33.2 billion, up by
approximately Php2.3 biltion from end of 2044.

Cash Flow Generation
The Comnpany's cash requiremenis have been mainly sourced through cash flow from operations.
Overali cash increase was mainly due to high profit generatlon for the period and timing difference of
dividend paymenl. Please refer to the attached statement of cash fiow for more details.
Key Performance Indicators

The compargtive financiat KPI's of the Company for the three months ended June 29, 2015 and 2074
were as follows:

For the quarter
ended June 30
Financial KP! Definition 2018 2614
Profitabilify
Net Income
Return an Equity (ROE) Ave, Total Sharehoiders’ 14.4% 15.9%
Equity
Net Income o o
Retfurn on Asset (ROA)} Average Total Assats 9.4% 11.1%
Efficiency
EBITDA Margin Operaling EBITDA 26.7% 31.9%
Net Sales
Liauidity
. Net Financial Debt {Asset) 0 a
Gearing Stockholders' Equity {18.4%} {20.8%)
EBITDA Net Interest Cover Operating EBITOA 18,316 times Nl
Nat interast

“Based on CEMAP
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Profitability and Efficiengy

Profitability and efficiency have remained at healfhy levels atthough ROE and ROA decreasad by
1.8% and 1.7%, respectively, compared with the same period of last year due to higher usage .of
imported clinker and higher produchion input costs,

Liquidity

The Company's liquidity position remained strong evidenced by significant cash balance.

1.

Motes to Financizl $tatements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

These condensed consclidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
PAS 34 fnterim Financial Reporing and do not include afi of the information and disclosures required
in the annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Company's annuat
financial statemanits as at December 31, 2014,

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of condensead consofidated financial statements
are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Company's anhual financial stalements for
the year ended December 31, 2014, except for the adoption of the new standards and interpretations
ihat are effective as of Janvary 1, 2015 enumersted below:

PFRS 9, “Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement”™

PFRS 9 {2010 version) refiects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 29. PFRS 9
requires all financizl assels to be measuwred at fair value at initial recognition, A dabt financial
asset may, if (he fair value option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured al amortized
cost if i is held within a business model that has the objective to hoid the assels to eoliact the
contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solely paymenis of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other debt
instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. All equity financiat
assets are measured at fair value either through QU or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held
for trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For FVO fiabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is altributable to changes in credit risk must be presented
in OCl. The remainder of the change in fair value is presenied in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the lizhility's credit risk in OCI would creale of
enlarge an accounting mismatch W profit or loss. All other PAS 39 classification znd
measurement requirements for financial lishiliies have been carmled forward inte PFRS 9,
including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the FVO. The
adoption of the first phase of PFRS ¢ will have an effect on the classification and measurement of
the Company’s financia! assets, but will potentially have no impect on the classification and
measurement of financial iabifities.

PFRS ¢ (2010 version} is effective for annuai periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. This
manviatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final versiors of PFRS 9 was
adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). Such adoption,
however, is still for approval by the Board of Accountancy {BOA). The Cornpany will not opt to
early adapt the standard.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIG 15, "Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate”

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expensas by entities that
undestake the constrsction of real estate directly or through subgontractors. The SEC and the
FRSC have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued
by the International Aceounting Standards Board {(IASB} and an evaluation of the requirements of
the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate indusfry is
completed. Adoption of the interpretalion when it becomes effective will not have any impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company.
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The following new standards and amendments were already adopted by the FRSC but are stili for
approval by BOA.

Effective in 2015

Amendmenls to PAS 18, "Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Emplayes Contributions”

PAS 19 requires an enlity lo consider contributions from employees ar third parties when
acoounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they should be
aftributed to periods of service as a negalive benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the
amaunt of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is
permiited to recognize such contiibutions as a reduction In the service cost in the perfod in which
the service is rendered, nstead of allocaling the contributions o the periods of service, This
amandment is effective for annual periods beginning on or affer January 4, 2015. it is not
expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Company, since the Gampany's
refirement plans are noncontributory.

Annual Improvements {o PFRS (2010 to 2012 cycle)

The Annual improvements o PFRSs (2010 to 2012 cycle} contaln non-urgent but necessary
amendments io the following standards. These are effective for annual perinds beginning on or
after January 1, 2015. Except as cotherwise stated the Company does not expect these
amendments to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

«  PERS 2, "Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition”

This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifles various Issues relating to the
definitions of performance and service cenditions which are vesting condifions, including:
» A performance condifion must contain a service condition

= A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service

= A periormance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those
= of another entity in the same group

« A performance condition may be a markat or non-market condition

« I the counterparly, regardiess of the reason, ceases to provide service during the

»  vesting period, the service condition is not satisfied.

«  PFRS 3, “Business Combinations - Accouniing for Contingent Considaration in a Business
Cormbination®

The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the scquisition
date is on or afier July 1, 2014, It cladifies that a contingent consideration that is not classified
as equity is subsequentiy measured at fair value through profit or foss whether or not i falis
within the scape of PAS 38. The Company shall consider this amendraent for future business
combinations.

= PFRS 8, "Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of
the Tofal of the Reportable Segments’ Assels to the Entity's Assets”

The amendments are applied retrospeciively and clarify ihat:

= An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in the standard, including a brief description of operating segments that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.9.. sales and gross margins) used (o
assess whelher the segmeants are 'similar’.

*  The reconciliation of segment assets {o iolal assets is anly required to be disclased if the
reconcifiation is reported fo the chief oparating decision maker, similar to the required
disclosure for segment liabilities,
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PAS 18, "Property, Plant and Eduipment: Revaluation Methad - Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Depreciation®, and PAS 38, “Intangibla Assets: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization”

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 18 and PAS 38 that the asset
may be revalued by reference to the observable data on either the gross or the net carrying
amount. in addition, the accumulated depteciation or amortizalion is the difference between
the gross and camying smounts of the asset.

PAS 24, ‘Retated Party Disclosures - Key Management Personne!'

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is an
entity that provides key management personnel services, is a related party subject to the
related party disclosures. |n addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to
disclose the expenses incurred for management services. The amendments will affect
disclosures only and will have no impact an the Company’s financial position or perfermance.

»  Apnual Improvements to PFRS {20171 to 2013 cycle)

The Annual improvernents to PFRSs (2011 to 203 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards. These are effective for annual pericds beginning on or
after January 1, 2015, Except as olherwise stated, the Company doss not expect these
gmendments to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 3, “Business Gembinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements”

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope
exceptions within PFRS 3:
+ Joint arrangements, net jusi joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3.

= This scope exceplion applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of tie joint
arrangerment itself,

PFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception’

The amendment (s applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in
PFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liakilities, but atso to other
contracts within the scope of PAS 39,

Effactive in 2016

PAS 16, "Property, Plant and Equipment”, and PAS 38, “Intangible Assets - Clarification of
Accepizble Methods of Depreciation and Amorlization” (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 18 and PAS 28 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is past)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method carnot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendmenis
are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Company
given that ihe Company is not using a revenue-hased method to depreciate ite non-current

assels,

PAS 16, "Property, Plant and Equipment”, and PAS 41, "Agriculiure - Bearer Planis”
{Amendmenis)

The amendmenis change the accounting requirements for biclogical assets that meet the
definilion of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meat the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41, Instead, PAS 16 will appily. After
initial recognition, bearer planls will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
maturity} and using either the cost model or revalualion mode! (after matwity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will rernain in the secope of
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PAS 41 measured at fair value less cosis to sell. For gavernment grants related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, "Accounting for Govermnmenl Grants and Disclosura of Government
Assistance”, will apply. The amendmants are retrospeclively effective for annuwl periods
heginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are
not expected to have any impact to the Company as the Company does not have any bearer
plants.

s PAS 27, “Separate Financial Stalements - Equity Mathad in Separate Financial Stataments”
{Amendments}

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method 10 account for investments In
subsidiaries, joint ventures and assaciates in their sepamate financial statements, Entities
already applving PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
slatements will have fo apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS
electing ta use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to
apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments will not have any impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

= PERS 10, “Consglidated Financial Statements” and PAS 28, “lavestments in Associates and
Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
enture”

These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PERS 10 and those in PAS 28 in dealing with the sale or confribution of assets between an
investor and ifs associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or foss is
recognized when a fransaction involves a business {whether & is housed in a subsidiary or
not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even if these assels are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments
are effactive from annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018,

=  PFRS 11, "Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquistions of Interests in Joint Operations”
{Amentdments)

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator acoounting for the acquisition of an
interast in a joint operation, in which the activity of the Joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounling. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held inferest in & joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint eontrol, including the repariing entity,
are urider common control of the same ultimate conlrolling party. The amendments apply to
both the acquisifion of the initial interast in a joint operation and the Acquisition of any
additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospactively effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

*  PFRS 14, "Reguiatory Deferral Accounts”

PFRS 14 is an optional standard that alfows an entity, whose activities are subject to
rateregulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting poticies for reguiatory
deferral account balances upon its first-lime adoption of PFRS. PFRS 14 js effective for
annuai periods beginning oh or after January 1, 2016, Since the Company is an existing
PFRS praparer, this standard would not apply.
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= Annugl Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effeclive for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 and are not expected to have a material impact on the. Company,
They include:

BFRS 5, "Non-current Assels Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal”

The amendment is applied prospeclively and clarfies that changing from g disposal through
sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to
be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore,
no interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendmient also
clarifies that changing the dispesal method does not change the dzate of classification.

PFRS 7, "Financial fnstruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts”

PFRS 7 requires an enfity to provide disclosures for any continiing invoivement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirely, The amendment clarifies that a setvicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involverient in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in
order lo assess wheiher the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such
that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will need
to be done retrospectively. Howaver, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided
for any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the
amendmers.

PFRS 7, "Appiicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condenhsed Interim Financial
Statemenis" (Amendments)

This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial
roport unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the mast recent
annuaj report.

PAS 19, "Employee Benefits - Regional Market tssue Regarding Discount Rate”

This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency fn which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is lacated. When there is no deep market for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

PAS 34, “Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of infommation 'Elsewhere in the Interim
Financtal Repost”

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosuses
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by crossreferance between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report {e.q., in the management commentary or risk report),

Effaclive in 2018

PFRS 8. “Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounling” and Amendments to PFRS 8, PFRS 7
and PAS 39

PFRS 9 (2013 version) alteady includes the third phase of the project to replace PAS 38
which pertains {o hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge
accounting modet of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include
replacing the rules-based hedge effactiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses
on the economic relalionship between the hadged item and the hedging instrument, and the
effect of credit risk on that economic relationship; aflowing risk components to be designated
as the hedged item, nat onrly for financial items bt also for non-financial tems, provided that
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the risk companent is separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time
value of an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis
spread to be exchuded from the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging
instrument and accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive
disclosures for hedge accounting,

PFRS 9 {2013 version} has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory affective date of
January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the
FRSC. The adoption of the final version of PFRS 4, however, is still for approvat by BOA. The
adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial assets but will have no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial liahilities. The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

The adoplion of the third phase of the praject is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Company’s consalfidated financial statements,

PFRS 9, "Financial Instruments”

in July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9 was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phasaes of the
financial instruments praject and replaces PAS 38 and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative
informatior is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 8 is permitted if
the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015,

The adoption of PFRS 9 (2014 version) will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group's financial assets but will have no impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial lisbilities. The Company is currenfly assessing the
impact of adopting this standard.

The adoption of the other phases of the project is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Company's consolidated financial statements,

The following new standard and amendments issued by the IASB has not yet been adopted by the

FRSC.

Internationat Financial Repoding Standards (IFRS) 15, *Revenue from Coniracts with
Customers”

IFRS 15 was issved in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue ariging from tontracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration {0 which an entity expects to be entitled to in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to rmeasuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable {o all entifies and will supersede all cumrent revenue recognition requirements
under IFRS, Either a fufl or madified retraspeclive application is required for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with early adoption permitted.

Amendments to Infernational Accounting Standards (IAS) 1, "Presentation of Financial
Statements”

in December 2014, the IASB issued the amendments to IAS 1. The amendments include
narrow-focus improvements in five areas; namely, materiality, disaggregation and subtotals,
notes structure, disclosure of accounting policies and presentztion of items of other
comprehensive income arising from equity accounted investments. The amendments are
effective on or after January 1, 2016.
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»  Amendments to [FRS 10, "Consafidated Fingnclal Statements”, IFRS 12, “Disclosure of
interests in Other Entities”, and 1AS 28, "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures"

in December 2014, the IASB issued investment Entities: Applying tite Consolidation
Exception (amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and |AS 28). The amendmenis address cerain
issues that have arisen in applying the investiment entities exception under IFRS 10, The
amendments are effective on or after January 1, 2016.

The Company is currenily asssssing the impact of IFRS 15 and the amendments to (AS 1 and
JFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 and plans to adopt the new and amended standards on their
required effective dates once adopted locally.

2. Seasonality Aspects of the Business

Like any other Company in the construction industry, the operations of HP| are affected by seasonality
or cyclicality, During the months starting December to May, demand for cement is greater than the
rainy months from June to November.

3. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policles

General Risk Management Approac

The Company is exposed to varicus financial risks, which include the effect of changes in debt
structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company's
overal risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks io
minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial perforrnance of the Company. The Company
uses derivative instruments such as cross-cirency swaps to hedge the interest and foreign exchange
risks from its foreign currency-dehominated debt. The Company does not enter into other derivative or
financial transactions which are unreleled to its operating business as a risk-averse approach is
pursued,

Financial risk management of the Company is governad by polficies approved by management, 1t
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific risk areas such
as inlerest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty risk, and use of derivative financial
instruments and investing assets in excess of liguidity requirements,

The Company's principal linancial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and cash
equivalents, notes payable and long-term debt. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise funds for the Company's operations. The Company also has various other financial assets and
liabliities such as frade and other receivables, advances to employees, guarantee deposits, resfricted
cash, trads and other payables and advances from customers which arise directly from ogeraiions.

Tha main risks arising from the Company's firancial instruments are market risks (which include
fareign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Beard of Directors (BOD)
reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.

Market Risks

The Campany is exposed to market risks, such as foreign cumency, interest rafe and equity price
risks. To manage volatitity relating to these exposures, the Company gnters into derivative financiat
instruments, when necessary, The Company's objective is to reduce, where appropriate, fluctuations
in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in foreign currency, interest rate and equity price.

Foreign Cursency Risks

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company has foreigh-exchiange exposutes, adsing primarily from sales, purchases of goods and
services and debt servicing requirements in currencles other than the Peso that leads to currency
transtation effects. The Company may hedge certain foreign currency-denominated borrowings ar
other insktuments by entering info derivative transactions.
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Due to the local nature of the cement business, {ransaction risk s limited. However, incoma may
primarily be in lacal currency whereas debt servicing and significant amaunt of capltal expenditures
may be in foreign currencles. As a consequence thereof, the Company may enter into derivative
confracts whenever necessary, which imay be designated either as cash flow hedges or fair value
hedges, as appropriate.

As of June 30, 2015, the Company has minimal assels and liabjiities exposed to foreign currency
risks.

interest Rate Risk

interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument {cash flow inierest rate
risk) or its fair value {fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Company ie exposed fo fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements of its debt
porifolio related to changes in market interest rates. The Company's interas! rate exposure is mainly
addressed through the steering of the fixedfloating ratio of net debt. To manage this mix, the
Company may enter into derivative transactions, as appropriate. As at June 30, 2015, the Company
has minimal financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate sisk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk s the risk that counterparties may not be able fo settle their obligations as agreed. To
manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financigl reliabillly of customers.

The Company constantly moniters its credit risk exposures, Counterparties to financial nstrirnents
consist of a large number of major financial instifutions. The Company does not expect any
counterparlies to faif to meet their obligations, given their high credit ratings, In addition, the Company
has no significant concentration of credit risk with any singte counterparty or group of counterparties.

Fhe maximum and minimum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset.

The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. it is the Company's policy that
ail third party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject o credit verification
procedurgs. In addifion, receivable balances are manifored on an ongoeing basis to reduce the
Company's exposura to bad debts to minimal.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which consist of due
from related parties, advances {o employees, AFS financial assets, and guarantee and refundable
deposits, the Campany’s exposures arise from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equat to the carrying amount of these instrumants,

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Gompany will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet ils
contractual cbligations and commitmentls. The seasonality of revenue generation exposes the
Company fo shartage of funds during slack season. The Company monitors this risk using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This foo! considers the maturity of both its financial assets and projected cash
flows from operafions. The Company's objective is lo maintain a balance bebween conlinuily of
funding and flexibifity through the use of bank credit facilities, finance leases and purchase conivacts.
The Company 1s responsible for its own cash surptuses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits,
stubject to policles and guidelinas approved by management and in certain casas at the BOD level.

The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-term in
nature, unused credit fines and readily available marketable securities to meet its liquidity
requirements at all times, In additien, the sirong credit worthiness of the Company allows it to make
efficient use of the financial markets for financing purposes. As of June 30, 2015, the Company has
unutiized credit facilities of BE.O biltior.
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Capital Management Policy

The Company considers equily atfributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company as its capitat.
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are io secure the Company's ongoing financial
neads fo continue as a going concern as well as to cater for its growlh targets in order to provide
returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a cost-efficient and risk-

optimized capitat structure.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in tight of the changes in
ecanomic conditions, its business activities, invesiment and expansion program and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to malntain ¢r adjust the capital stracture, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharehaolders, return capital o shareholders,
issue new shares, or sell assetls to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio.

4, Financial Assets and Liabifities

Fair Valus of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of each class of the Company’s financial instruments is equal to their carrying
amount as at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014. The fallowing methods and assumptions ame
used ko estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument for which & is praclicable o
estimate such vaiue:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Oiher Receivables, Advances lo Employees, Resiricled
Cash, Long-term Financial Receivable, Notes Payable and Trade and Other Fayables. Due to the
shart-term nature of the fransactions, the fair values of these instruments spproximate the
correspending carrying values as of end of each reporting period.

AFS Financial Assels. The falr values of publicly fraded instruments are determined by reference to
quotaed market prices as at the end of each reporting period. Investments in unquoted equity securities
for which no reliable basis for fair value measurement is available are carried at cost, net of any
impairment in value.

Guaraniee Degosits. These are carried af cost, less any impairment in value, which approximate their
fair values calculated using the discounted cash flows method.

Fair Value Hierarch

Below are the fist of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are classified using a fair
value hierarchy as at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

June 30, 20158 December 31, 2014
Level 1 Level 29  Total tevel1" Level 2@ Total

AFS financial assets -
Quoted equity securities R145 e B145 R145 R— B145
™ Fair vatue is detenninad using observable marke! Inputs that refiect quoted prices in active
markets for identical assels or fiabilifies.
2 Fair vatue is determined using inpuls other than guoted prices that are either directly or
indirectly observabie for the assets or Habiliiies.
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5. Segment Reporting

Cperating segments are components of the Company that engage in business aclivities from
which they may eam revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses sefating to
transactions with other components of the Company), which operaling results are ragularly
raviewed by the chief operating decision maker* to make decislons about how resources are to bie
aliocated o each of the segments and {o assess thelr performances, and for which diserete
financial information is avatlable. Management reassesses on an annual basis whether there
have been any change in the operating segments or in the reportable oparating segments in
accordance with PFRS 8, "Operaling Segments®.

For managemant purposes, the Company is organized into activities based on their products and

has threa segments, as foliows:

s clinker and cement segmert, which manufacturas and sells clinker and cement for bath
domestic and expart customers; and

» other construction materials and services segment, which includas operations from the RMX
husiness, Helps-t-Bulld and specially products.

Managemant monitors the operating resulis of ils business segments for the purpase of making
decisions sbout resource atlocstion and performance assessment. Sagment performance is
hased on operaling EBITDA and is measured consistently with consolidaied net inceme in the
consolidated statememis of incorme, However, the Company's finance income and charges and
income taxes are managed on a group hasis, and are nat allocated to operating segments.
Transfer prices between operating segments are on an amr's length basis similar to transactions
with third parties,

Segment revenues, EBITDA, assels and lizhilities as at June 30, 2015 and 2014 are presented below

2015

Adjustmenis

Clinker and and
sement Others Tofal eliminations Consolidated

{In Thousands)
Revenue;

External custemers @17,351,034 R643.628 R1{7,994,662 R. B17,994,662
inter-segment 369,259 266 359,625 {358,910} §15
17,710,203  R843.884 P18,354,187 {R358,910) P17,808,277
Operating EBITDA B4,823,746  (R22,321) P4,801,425 B P4,801,425
Segment assels 26,262,590 862,742 27,825,339 5,348,268 33,173,607
Segment liabilities 11,026,985 345,622 11,372,507 1,971,283 13,343,790

" Chief aperating decision maker is composed of the Company's management committee
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2014 (restated®)

Adjustments

Clinker and and

cement Others Total  eliminations Consolidated
{In Thousands}
Ravenue: g

Extarnal customers 18,443,583 417,109 16,860,692 - 16,860,692
Inter-segment 212,604 - 212 B804 {212,604) -
16,656,187 417,109 17,073,296 (212,604) 16,860,692
Operating EBITDA 5,435,809 {54,654) 5,381,255 - 5,381,255
Segment assets 26,115,158 622,648 26,737,804 4,655,813 31,393,897
Segment kabilities 10,117,881 302,377 10,420,258 691,943 1,112,209

“Refer to Consufidated Staternents of Income

6. Retained Earnings

The BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of Php0.82 per common share {or a total of
Php5.3 bilion) on May 18, 2015, payable to stockholders of record as of June 15, 2015. The

dividends are to be paid on July 8, 2015.
7. Events after the Reporiing Date

As disclosed by the Company on July 10, 2015 o tha Philippine Stock Exchange and filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 10, 2015 in SEC Farm 17-C Report in connection with
the resolution approved by the Board of Directors in jis July 10, 2015 mealing, the Board authorized
the Company to make an offer for, and should the offer be accepted, to proceed with the acquisition
by the Company andfor its whelly-owned subsidiary Holcim Mining and Development Corporation of,
the following Lafarge group assels in the Philippines consisting of {a) shares of stock of Lafarge lligan,
Inc., Lafarge Mindanao, Inc., Lafarge Republic Aggregates, Inc., Quimson Limestones, Inc., Sigma
Cee Mining Corporation, and APC Properties, Irc., (b} Star Terminal assets located at the Harbour
Centre, Marnila, and (¢) certain parcels of fand as identified by the paitios.

On August 3, 2015, the Company disclosed to the Philippine Stock Exchange and filed with the
Securifies and Exchange Commission in SEC Form 17-C Repart that the Company and/or is wholfy-
owned subsidiary, Holcim Mining and Development Corporatian, executed an agresment with Lafarge
Republic, Inc., Lafarge Holdings (Philippines), Inc., Calumboyan Holdings, Inc., Luzon Continental
land Corporation and Broadfields Properties, Lid. for the purchase of the following assets consisting
of (@) shares of stock of Lafarge Republic Aggregates, Inc., Quimson Limestones, Inc., Sigma Cee
Mining Corporation, and APC Properties, Inc., (b} Star Terminal assets located at the Harbour Centra,
Manifa, and (¢} cerdain parcels of lend. The tolal purchase price is Php3.085 billion. The price was
determined after a fair valuation of the assets was undertaken. The acquisition was financed through
bank loans and available cash. The closing of the transaction was completed on August 4, 2015,
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interim Disclosures

Except for the event disclosed in Nole 7, the Company is not aware of the following or is nat
applicable to the Company's interfim operations:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Unusual items that materially affect the Company’s consolidated asselg, liabilities, equity, net
income or cash flows because of their nature, size or incidents.

Changes in estimates of amotnts reported in prior interim periods of the current financial year or
changes in estimates of amounts reported in pricr financial years that have a material effect in the
suerent period,

Issuances and repurchases of equity securities.

Material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual batance sheet
date.

Existence of material contingencizs and other events of transactions that are material to an
understanding of the current interim period.

Known trends, demands, commifments, avenls and uncerlainties that will result in or lkely to
decrease its liquidily in any material way, The Company does not anficipate having within the
next twelve (12) manthg any cash flow or liquidity problems nor does it anticipate any default or
breach of any of its existing notes, loans, leases, other indebledness or financing arrangements
requiring it to make payments.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent matenal financial obligations {o the Company,

Material off-balance shaet transactions, arrangements, obfigations {direct or contingent), and
other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities ar other persons created during
the year,

Material commitmeants for capital expenditures.

Known trends, evenis of uncertainties that have had or that are reasohably expected to have a
material favorable impact on net salesfrevenues/income from continuing operations,

Significant slements of income or koss that did not arise from the Company's conlinuing
operations,

Materizl everts subsequent to end of the repoding period that have not been reflecled in this
report.

Material changes in the composilion of the Company, including any business combination,
acquisition or dispasal of subsidiaries and long-term inveslments, restructurings and discantinuing
operations.

Any seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of oparation,
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Material Changes in Balance Sheeat Accourits

90% increase in Cash and cash equivalents
Mainly due to higher profif generated for the periad and timing of dividend payment.

30% increase in Trade and other receivables-nef
Primarily due to higher revenues in June 2015 comparad with Dacamber 2014.

16% decrease in nvenlories
Mainly attributable to higher volume soid and higher usage of imported clinker in 2015 as compared to
2014,

6% increase in Deferred fax assels
Mainly attribulable fo increase of net operating loss carry.over (NOLCO) of 2 whally owned subsidiary,

96% increase in Trade and other payables
Attributable o the declaration of dividends in May 2015, which is payable in Q3 2015.

52% decrease in Noles payable
Attributable to the payment made by the Campany for a third parly bank loan,

64% increase in Income lax payable
fainly attributabile ko higher taxable income for Q2 2015 as compared fo the [ast quarter of 2014,

50% decrease in Deferred tax liabilities
Mainly atlrioutable o the decrease in non-deductible depreciation expense.

31% decrease in Relained earnings
Mainly due to the declaratiop of dividends in May 2015,

Material Changes in income Statement Accounts

7% increase in Nef safes
Mainly driven by higher volume sold brought about by strong demand.

14% increase in Cost of sales
Due to higher volume produced and sold as a result of robust dermand, higher usage of imparted
clinker and higher cost of praduction inputs.

31% increase in operating expenses
Attributable to one-off costs related to corporats initiativas.

8% decrease in depreciation end amorlization
Mainly due to lower book value of depreciable assets,

375% decrease in Net financial income{expense)
Mainly due 1o higher financing charges from financial fiabililies.

7864% increase in Other income (expeanse)
Due o the gain realized by the Company on sale of its internally developed intellectual property to an
associated company.

11% decrease in Provision for incame tax
Mainty due to lower taxable income in 2015 as comparad to the same periad in 2014.
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Holcim Philippines, Ins. and Subsidiaries
Schadule of Financial Soundness Indicators

For the Six (6) Months
Ended June 30
Financial KPi Definition 2015 2014
Current/Liguidity ratio
Current Ratio Current ;'f\s?f,%s 893.7% 108.1%
Current Liahilities
Salvency ratip/Debt-to-aquity ratio
. Net Financial Debt (Assel) o o
Gearing Stockholder's Equity (18.4%) (20.8%)
Asset to Equity Ratios

Asset fo Equity Ratiof Total Assals 167.38 454 89

Equity Multiplier Stackholder's Equity 3% %
{nterest Rate Coverage Ralio
Income before Tax 16,232 .
Interest Rata Coverage Net Intereet fimes il
Profitability Ratios

Return on Assets Net Income 9.4% 11.1%

ewrn Average Total Assets ' s
; Net Income
14.4% 9%
Return on Equity Average Total Equity o 15.9%
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused
this report lo be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunts duly authorized.

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC,

]l -
Shirley S. Glann A. Agustin
reasurar Head, Group Confrofler
Date: August 10,12015 Date: August 10, 2015

SEC Farm 17-(} 24



1102920150000

N0 YO0 OO D R VI A RO

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SECBuliding, EDSA, Greenhitls MandaluyongCity, MatroManila, Philippines
Tel(632) 726-093 to 39 Fax;(532) 725-5293 Emajl: miz@sec.gov.ph

Barcode Page
The following document has been received:

Receiving Officer/Encoder :© Jojit Licudine

Receiving Branch : SEC Hezd Office
Receipt Date and Time ; Ociober 28, 2015 08:16:08 AM
Received From . Head Office

Company Representative

Dac Source

Company information
SEC Registration No. 0000026126

Company Name HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
Industry Classification
Company Tvpe Stock Corporation

Document Information

Gocument iD 110292015000001

Document Type 17-Q (FORM 11-Q:QUARTERLY REPORTHFS)
Document Code 17-Q

Periad Covered Seplembey 30, 2015

No. of Days Late o

Depariment CFD

Remarks



COVER SHEET

2o | {2

.E.C. Registrafion Mumber

oy

b Lo A el bduloie PN el L UNC | IBEND

{Company's Fuit Mama)

ik Tvinkel dbrboRate] denfrak [ ok | Fudid <fr. IndicliEy
4w | dedrele |, iy | diel fods ledmbaad frakule [olry

{Business Address: No, Street City / Town / Provinee)

‘ Shrley € .Go | _ lige - 3333
Coritact Person €ompany Telephone Number
U9l (5[0 inl-id
Manin Day FORMTYPE Month Day
Fiscal Year Annual Meeting

Secondary License Type, if Applicable

. Depl. Requiring this Doc. Amernded Articles Number/Secllon
Total Amount of Borrowings
Total Ma. of Stockholdars BDomestic Foreign
To be accomplished by SEC Personnel concerned
’ File Number Lou

Docimernt 1.0,

Cashier

Rernarks = pis. use black ink for scanning purposes



10. Securifies registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and B of the RSA

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CONMISSION
FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17{2)}{b) THEREUNDER

. For the quarterly period ended Sentember 30, 2015__

Commission ideniification number __ (026126 3. BIR Tax Identification No 000-121-507-000

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter HOLCIM PHILIPPINES  INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization Manila. Philippines

Industry Classification Code: [:(SEC Use Only)}

Address of issuer's principal office Fostal Code

7 Floor Venice Corporate Center, Na. 8 Turin Street, MeKinley Town Center, McKintey Hill, Fort

Bonifacio, Taguig City 1634

8. Issuer's ielephone number, including area code {632) 459-3333
9.

Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report _ N, A,

Title of each Class Number of shares of common
stock cutstanding and amount
of debt gutstanding
Common Shares 6,452,099, 144

11. Are any or ali of the securiiies listed oh a Stock Exchange?

Yes [x] No [ )
I yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities lsted therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. Common Shares

12. tndicate bv check mark whether the registrant:

{2) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11{g)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26
and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve {12)
months {or for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes {x] No [ ]}
{b} has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (80) days.

Yes [x] Mo [ ]
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PART |- FINANGIAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Financial Statements.

Exhibit [ ~ Consolidated Balance Sheels as of September 30, 2015 and December 31,2014

Exhibit I! - Consolidated Statements of Income for the quartars ended September 30, 2015
and 2014 and for the nine (8) months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Exhibit i1 ~ Consclidated Statements of Comprehensive income for the quarters ended
September 30, 2015 and 2014 and for the nine (9) months ended September
30, 20145 and 2014

Exhibit IV — Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine ®
months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Exhibit V — Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine {9) months ended September
30, 2015 and 2014

Exhibit VI — Aging of Trade and Other Receivables as at September 30, 2015
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014

{in Thousands}

Exhibit |

30 Sep 2015 31 Dac 20144
ASSETS
GCurrent Assets
Cash and cash equivaients R2,839,557 BF2,6098,207
Trade and other receivables-net 3,558,394 2,259,205
Invenfories 3,543,526 3,787 521
Other current assets 618,209 515,841
Total Current Assels 10,660,778 9,330,774
Noncurrent Asseis
investmenis 4,550 4,658
Property, plant and equipment — net 18,342 125 17,604,436
Goodwill 4,516,268 2,835,738
Intanglbles 940,542 795,579
Deferred tax assefs 343,772 271,029
Other noncurrent assels 269,296 264,571
Tolal Noncurrent Assets 24.415,562 21,675,912
34,977,338 30,206,686
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liah#ities
Notes payable 2,590,824 2,100,105
Trade and other payables 6,665,340 5,603,891
Income tax payable 632 842 345,531
Tetal Current Liabilities 9,889 106 8,049,627
Nencurrent LiabHitiss
long-farm debt 2,975,000 -
Retirament benefit liabilities 577,887 582,924
Provigions 140,095 136,974
Defereed tax liabilities 163 653
Other noncurrent Habiiities 48,511 43,632
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,739,636 784,183
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent
Capital stoek 6,452,099 6,452,099
Additional paid-in capital 8,476,002 8,476,002
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits - net {174,988) {174,986)
Other reserves 3,774 3,774
Retained sarnings 6,582,586 7,326,582
21,339,475 22,083,481
Noncontroliing Interest 9,121 8,395
Total Stockholders” Equity 21,348,586 22 0892 878
R34.977,338 #30,906,686
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Exhibit 1l

HOLCIM PHILIPRINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the quarters ended September 30, 2015 and 2014
And for the nine (8) monihs ended Sepiember 30, 2015 and 2014
{ln Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Quarter ended Nine {8) Month ended
Jul-Sep Jui-Sep Jan-Sep Jan-Sep
2015 2014 2015 2014
*Restated *Restated
Net Sales #9,995,455 RE 113,385 R27.001,732 R24,974,047
Cost of sales 6,928,764 6,176,520 19,017,762 16,812,853
Gross Profit 3,066,691 1,936,835 8,973,870 8,161,184
Operating expenses 556,068 487,087 1,661,822 1,330,191
Operating EBITDA 2,510,823 1,449,748 7,312,048 6,831,003
Depraciation and
amortization ... 349,091 396,026 992,540 1,080,391
Income from Operations 2,161,532 1,053,722 5,319,508 5,750,612
Other income {expenses)
Net financial income
(expense) 14,266 (22,409) 5,404 {18,183)
QOther income {expense) 1,893 {1,784} 107 869 (3,149
Total 16,159 {24,193} 113,273 {22,332}
lncome before Income
Tax 2177691 1,028,529 6,432,781 5,728,280
Provision for incoms tax
Current 698,745 345,053 1,915,975 1,728,788
Deferred {50,679} {37,729} (404067 {45,018)
548,066 307,324 1,875,908 1,683,769
Income Before Minority
interast 1,529,625 722,205 4,556,873 4,044,811
Naoncontrolting inlerest {316} {245} (1.165) {881)
Net Income R1,529 308 R721,960 P4,.555,708 R4,043,520
Basic/Diluted Earnings
Per Share (EPS)
Computation of EPS:
{a)} Net income applicable
to commcen
shareholders ®1,528,309 ®721,960 ®4,555,.708 £4.043,520
{b) Commaon shares issued
and outstanding 6,452 098 5,452,092 6,452,089 8,452 099
EPS [{a){b)} #0.237 RG.112 P0.706 #0627

* Reslaled based on PAS 18 which requires presentalion of net inlerest fincludad in pension cost) fo fnanclsl
expense. Reclassed Php16.2 million from cost of sales to net financial fncame {expensse).
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the quarters ended September 30, 20145 and 2014
And for the nine (8} months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

{In Thousands}

Quarter ended

Exchibit 11

Nine {9) Month endad

July-Sep
2015

Jul-Bep
2014

Jan-Sep
2015

Jan-Sep
2014

Net Income

81,529 625

M722,205

R4,556 873

E4,044,511

Other Comprehensive Loss
Cther camprehensive bss o be reclassified
to profit or foss in subseguent pariads:

Amounts transfested to profif or
loss upon sale of investmant in
jeint venture

Cther comprehensive loss not to be
reclassiftad to profit or loss 1 subsequent
pariads:

Remeasurement loss on
relirement benefits

income tax effect

Yoltal Comprehansive Income

R1,529,625

B722,205

R4.556.873

R4,044,511

Affribulable lo:
Equity helders of the Parent
Company

Nonecontrolling inferest

F1,529,309
316

P721,960
245

¥4,585,708
1,185

4,043,520
991

W14,520 625

R722,205

24,556,873

P4,044,511

SEC Foum 17-Q



HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the nine {8) menths ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

{In Thotsands)

Exhibit 1V

_ Jan-Sep 2015 Jan-Sep 2014

Capital Stock
Commen Stock

Balance at beginning of pericd R6,452,099 PBE,452,099

issuances {Retirement) - -

Balance at ersi of perind G,452,099 6,452,099
Additional Paid-in Capital

Balance at beginning of period 8,476,002 8,476,002

{ssuances (Refirement) - -

Balance at end of period 8,476,002 §,476,002
Qther comprehensive loss {174,986) {161,351)
Retained Earnings

Balance at beginning of period 7,326,592 §,6898,251

Met income 4,555,708 4,043 520

Cash dividends {5,295,8400 {4.516,469)

Balance at end of period 6,586,260 6,225,302
Noncantrofling Interest 9,121 10,898

221,348,596 B21,003,050
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FHOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the nine (8} months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

{in Thousands)

Exhibit v

Jan-Sep 2018 Jan-Sep 2014

Operating Activifies

Income befare income tax for the period RE,432,781 R5,728,280
Adjustments to reconcile net income fo cash
Depreclation and amortization 852,540 1,080,391
Other items-net (1,511,837} {1,457,408)
Changes in current assets and liabililies {234,380) {523,778}
Cash provided by operating activities 5,679,104 4,827 488
Investing Activities
{Additions) deductions {o plant, praperty and equipment {1.274,054) {1,140,352)
De(injcrease in other investing activities (2,472,462) {549,085}
Cash provided by {used in) investing activities {3.746,518} {1,688,437)
Financing Activities
Dividends pzid (5,285,840) {4,519,715)
Proceeds (payment) of short-term lcans £30,8438 2,817,830
Proceeds (payment} of long-term loans 2,975,000 -
Cash provided {used in} financing activities {1,790,092) {1,801,785)
Netincrease (decrease] in cash and cash eyuivalents 142,498 1,236,266
Cash and cash equivaients, beginning 2,698,207 2,148,104
Effect of exchange rate changas on cash & eash
gquivalents {1,146} 6T
Cash and cash equivalents, end E2.838,557 #3,385,737
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Esxchibit V]

HOLCIM PHILIPPIMNES, ENC
Aging of Trade and Other Recelvables
As of September 30, 2015
{In Thousands)

Total Current  1-30 days  31-60 days Over 60

Trade Receivables R3,717,903 93,287,998 B59,7280 P27 676 ggﬁzuo
Other Receivables 17,197 14,344 - - 2,853
Total 3,735,100 B3,302,342 B59,729 F27.976 R345,053
Allawance for Doubtfud
Accounts {176,708)

" Net Receivables R3,558,394

Certified corrach:

(L

Glenn A Agustin
Head, Group Controlier
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

Resuits of Operations

The cement industry demand grew by 12%** as of September 2015 campared o the same pericd of
tast year. This was brought about by the continuous strong public and private gonsfruction activities
nationwide. Driven by the robust demand, HP] posted total net sales of Php28.0 billion, 12% higher
than the Php25.0 bilfion reported for tha same period last year. Net income was also higher by abeout
13% compared with same period of last year on account of higher realized sales. The Company
delivered operating EBITDA of Phy7.3 bilfion for the nine-month period compared {0 the Phpé.8 biflion
of the same perfod last year, Net income after tax stond at Php4.6 billion, giving earnings per share of
Phpl.71/share up from Php0.83/share last year.

Financial Position

The Company's financial position has remained healthy with very iquid position and strong asset
utilization ratio as # continues to generate high revenues. Totaf assets stood at Php35.0 billion, up by
approximately Php4.1 billion from end of 2014, largely due to acquisition of Lafarge entities and
assels.

Cash Flow Generation

The Company’s cash requirements have been mainiy sourced through cash flow fram operations and
long-term loans ta finance the acquisition of new entities and assets. Overall cash increase was
matnly due to high profit generation for the period. Flease refer to the attached statement of cash flow
for mare details.

Key Performance Indicators

The comparative financial KPI's of the Company for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and
2014 were as follows:

For the quarter
ended September 36
Financial KR Definition 2015 2014
Profitability
et Income
Return on Equity (ROE} Ave, Total Shareholders’ 21.0% 19.0%
Equity
MNet income
frirrr on Asset A g
Re on Asset (ROA) Average Total Assels 13.8% 13.6%
Efficiency
Operating EBITDA
EBITDA Margi 1% .
T rargin Net Sales 26.1% 27.4%
Liguidity
. Net Financial Debt {Asset)
Geari 18,29 R:L
9 Stockholders' Equity 2% 2.9%
EBITDA Net Interest Cover Operating EBITDA 192.7 times | 427.2 times
MNet Interest

" Intarnal Eslimate
SEC Form 17-Q 2



Profifability and Efficiency

Profitability and efficiency have remained at healthy levels, ROE and ROA increased by 1.9% and
0.3% points, respectively, compared with the same period of last year due ta highar profitability.

Liquidity
The Company's liquidity position remained strong albeit gearing increase on account of the debt from
Lafarge acquisition.

Notes to Financial Statemants

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
PAS B4 Inferim Financial Reporting and do not include ali of the information and disclosures raquired
in the annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Company's annual
financial statements as at December 31, 2014.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of condensad consolidated finaneial sfatements
are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Company’s annua! financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2014, except for the adoption of the new standards and interpretations
that are effective as of January 1, 2015 enumarated below:

*  PFRS 9, "Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement”

PFRS g (2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 29 and applies to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and fiabliities as defined in PAS 39, PFRS 9
requires =it financial assets fo be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt financial
asset may, If the fair value option (FVO) is not invaked, be subsequently measured at amortized
cost i ft is held withint @ business modsal that has the abjective to hold the assets to collest the
centractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on spacified dates, to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principai outstanding. Al other debt
instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Al equity financtal
assets are measured at fair value either through OCI or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held
for trading must be measured at fair value through profit or lass. For FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented
in GCL The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability's credit risk in OC| would create or
enlarge an accounting mismalch in profit or loss. Al other PAS 39 classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried forward inte PFRS 9,
inchuding the embedded derjvative separation rules and the crteria for using the FVO, The
adoptlon of the first phase of PFRS ¢ will have an effect on the classification and measurement of
the Company's finencial assets, but wil potentially have no impact on the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities.

PFRS 8 (2010 version) is effective for annuaf periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. This
mandatory adoption date was moved o January 1, 2018 when the final version of FFRS 9 was
adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Coundil {FRSC). Such adoption,
however, is still for approval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA). The Company will not opt to
earty adopt the standard,

* Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, "Agresmants for the Construction of Real Estaie"

This interprefation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estaie directly or thraugh subcontractors. The SEC and the
FRSC have deferred the effectivity of this interpratation until the final Revenue standard is lssued
by the International Accounting Standards Board {(IASB) and an evalualion of the requirerents of
the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Phitippine real estate industy is
completed. Adoption of ihe interpretation when it becomes effective will not have any impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company,
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The following new standards and amendments were already adopted by the FRSC but are stili for
approval by BOA.

Effective in 2018

»

Amendments to PAS 18, "Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions”

PAS 19 requires an entity to consider cantributions from employees or third parfies when
accounting for defined henefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they shaould be
attribited fo periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the
amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years .of service, an entity is
permitted to recognize such confributions as a reduction in the service cost in the poriod in which
the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contribufions io the periods of service. This
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2015. it is not
expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Company, since the Company's
retirement plans are noncontributory.

Annual Improvements fo PFRS (2010 to 2012 cycle)

The Annual Improvements 10 PFRSs {2010 to 2012 cycie) contaln non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards. These are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2015. Except as otherwise stated the Campany does not expect these
amendments 1o have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statemnents,

* PFRS 2, "Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition”

This impravement is applied prospectively and tlarifies various issues reiating to the
definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:
= A performance condition must contain a service conditian

= A perfermance target must be meat while the eounferparty is rendering service

* A performance target may relate to the oparations or activities of an antity, or to those
» of another entity in the same group

* A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition

*  Hthe counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases o pravide service during the

*  vesling period, the service condition is not satisfied,

« PFRS 3, “Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideralion In a Business
Combinatien”

The amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is an or after July 1, 2014, | clarifies that a contingent cansideration that Is nat classifisd
as equily is subsequently measured al fair vaige through profit or loss whether or not it falis
within the scope of PAS 39. The Company shall consider this amandmaent for future business
combinations.

* PFRS 8, “Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segmenis and Reconciliation of
the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets”

The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:

*  An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in the standard, including a brief descriplion of operating segments that have heen
aggregated and the econamic characteristics (e.q., sales and gross margins) used to
assess whether the segments are 'similar’, :

» The recondiliation of segment assets to total assets is only required fo be diseclosed if ihe
recongiliation Is reported to the chief operating decision maker, simitar to the required
disclosure for segment lizbilities.
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PAS 18, "Property, Plant and Equipment: Revaluation Mathod — Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Depreciation”, and PAS 28, “Intangible Assets; Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization”

The amendment is applied relrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the asset
may be revalued by reference to the observabla deta on either the gross or the net camying
amount. In addition, the accurnulated depreclafion or amartization is the difference between
the gross and carrying amounis of the asset.

PAS 24, "Related Party Dlsclosures - Key Management Personnal”

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity, which is an
antity that provides key management personnel services, is a related pariy subject to the
relaled party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity Is required to
disclose the expenses incurred for management services. The amendments will affect
disclosures only and will have no impact an the Company's financial position or performance.

*  Annual Improvements to PFRS (2011 to 2013 cycle)

The Annual improvements to PFRSs (2011 to 2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments fo the following standards. These are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2015. Except as otherwise stated, the Company does not expect these
amendments io have a significant impact on the eonsalidated financial statements.

PFRS 3, "Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements”

The amendment is appiied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scope
exceptions within PFRS 3:
= Joint arrangements, niot just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 2.

= This scope exception applies only te the accounting in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

PERS 13, "Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception”

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in
PFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial asssts and financial liabilities, but also to other
contracts within the scope of PAS 38,

Effeciive in 2016

PAS 16, "Property, Plant and Equipment”, and PAS 38, “Intangible Assets - Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depraciation and Amortization” (Armendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a patiarn of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business {of which ihe asset is pari)
rather than the ecanomic benefits that are consumed thraugh use of the asset. As a resull, 2
revenue-based mefhod cannat be used ta depreciate praperty, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments
are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments are nat expected to have any impact to the Company
given that the Company is not using a revenue-based methad to depreciate its non-current
assels.

PAS 18, "Property, Plant and Equipment’, and PAS 41, “Agrictlture -~ Bearer Plarts”
(Amendments}

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biclogical assets that meet the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41, Instead, PAS 16 wil appiy. After
initial racognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cast {before
maturity} and using eilher the cost model or revaluation madel (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will rermain in the scope of
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FAS 41 measured at fair value less coste to sell. For government grants related fo bearer
plants, PAS 20, ‘Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance”, will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted, These amendments are
not expected to have any impact {o the Company as the Company does not have any bearer
plants.

» PAS 27, “Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financlal Statements®
(Amendments)

The amendments will alfow entities fo use fhe equity methed to account for nvestments in
subsidiaries, joint veriures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entlties
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the aequity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS
efecting to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, ihey will he required to
apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendmenis are effeciive for
annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permiited. These
amendments will nol have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statemants,

" PFRS 10, "Consolidated Financial Statemerts’ and PAS 28, "Invesiments int Assaciates and
Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
entura”

These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contrbution of assets between an
investor and its associaie or joint venlure, The amendments require that a full gain or loss is
recognized when a transaclion involves a business (whether i is housed in a subsidiary or
not}. A partiai gain or loss is recognized when a fransaction involves assats that do nof
constifute a business, even if these assets are housed In a subsidiary. These amendments
are effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016,

= PFRS 11, "Joint Arrangements - Accounting far Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations”
{Amendments)

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint aperation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accourting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held inferest in a joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interast in the same joint operation while joint control js
retained. In addiion, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the pariies sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same uliimate controlling party. The amendments apply to
bolfr the acquisificn of the initial interest in a Joint operation and the Acquisition of any
additional interests In the same joint operation and are prospedtively effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with aarly adoption permitted.

= PFRS 14, "Reguiatory Deferral Accounts®

PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activilies are subject to
rateregulation, te continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory
deferral account balances upan ite first-lime adgption of PFRS, PFRS 4 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. Since the Company is an existing
PFRS preparer, this standard would not apply.
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s Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycls)

The Annual Jmprovements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 and are nol expected to have a material impact on the Company.
They include:

= PFRS 5, “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Disconfinued Operations - Changes n
Methods of Bisposal”

The amendment is applied prospectivety and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale to a disposal through disfribution to owners and vice-versa shauld not be considered to
be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan, There Is, therafore,
no interruption of the application of the requiremente in PFRS 5. The amendment also
clarifies that changing the disposat method dees not change the date of classification.

* PFRS 7, "Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Setvicing Gonfracts”

PFRS 7 requites an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety, The amendment clarifies that a servicing
confract that includes = fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in
order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such
thal the assessment of which servicing coniracts conslitute continuing involvement will need
to be done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided
for any period beginning before the annual period in which the enfity first applies the
amendments.

* PFRS 7, "Applicability of the Amendmenis to PFRS 7 {0 Condensed Inferim Financial
Statements” (Amendments)

This amendment is applied retrospectively and dlarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial aseets and financial #iabifties are not required in the condensed interim finangial
repart unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent
annual repord,

* PAS 18, “Employee Benefits - Regional Market Issug Regarding Discount Rate”

This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominatad,
rather than the country where the obfigation is located. When there I8 no deap market for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

* PAS 34, "Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Etsewhere in the Interim
Financial Repost”

The amendment is applied retrospectivaly and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated hy crossreference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater intetim
financiaf report (e.g., in the management commentary or rigk regart).

Effective in 2018

* PFRS 9, *Financial Instruments ~ Hedge Accounting” and Amendments to PFRS 8, PFRS 7
and PAS 39

PFRS 8 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project o replace PAS 39
which perfains to hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 8 replaces the rules-based hedge
acegunting model of PAS 38 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include
replacing the rules-based hedge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses
on the economic refationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the
effect of credit risk on that econamic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated
as the hedged item, not only for financial items but alse for non-financial items, provided that
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the risk component is separately identifiable and refiably measurable; and affiowing the tme
value of an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis
spread to be excluded from the designation of a derivative Instrument as the hedging
instrument and accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive
disclasures far hedge accounting.

PFRE 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effactive date of
January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS ¢ was adopted by the
FRSC. The adaplion of the finat version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA. The
adoption of PFRS 8 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group's
financiat assets but will have no impact on the classification and measwement of the Group’s
financial liabilities. The Company is currently assessing the impact of adoptling this standard.

The adoption of the third phase of the project is not expected to have any significant fmpact
on the Company's consolidated financial siatements.

PFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”

In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9 was issued. PFRS 8 reflects all phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39 and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classificailon and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 8 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative
information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS ¢ is permitied if
the date of initiat application is before February 1. 2015.

The adoption of PFRS 9 (2014 version) wili have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group's financial assets but will bave no impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group's financial fiabilities. The Company is currently assessing the
impast of adopting this standard.

The adoption of the ather phases of the project is not expested o have any significant impact
on the Company's consalidated financial statements.

The following new standard and amendments issued by the IASB has not yat been adopted by the

FRSC.

fnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 15, "Revenue from Contracts with
Custorners”

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from caniracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an
amount that reflects the conslderation to which an entity expeacts ta be entitled to In exchangs
for fransferring goods or services to a custemer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
struciured approach to measuring and recognizing revenus. The new revenue stendard is
appiicable to all entities and will suparsede all current revenue recognition requirements
under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is raquired for annual periods
beglnning on or after January 1, 2017, with early adoption permiited,

Amendments to International Accounting Standards (AS) 1, “Fresentation of Finangial
Stetements”

In December 2014, the 1ASB issued the amendments to 1AS 1. The amendmenls include
narrow-focus improvements in five areas; namely, materiality, disaggregation and subfotals,
notes structure, disclosure of accounting policies and presentation of items of other
comprehensive income arising from equity accounted invesiments. The amendments are
effective on ar after January 1, 2016.

Amendmants to IFRS 10, *Consoclidated Financial Statements", IFRS 12, "Disclosure of
interests in Cther Entities”, and 1AS 28, “Investments in Assaciates and Joint Ventures®
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In December 2014, the IASB issued Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception {amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28). Tha amendmenis address certain
issues that have arisen in applying the invesiment entities exception under IFRS 10, The
amendments are effective on or after January 1, 2016.

The Company is currently assessing the tmpact of IFRS 15 and the amendments fo 1AS 1 and
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and |AS 28 and plans fo adopt the new and amended standards on their
required effective dates once adopiad locally,

2, Sezsonality Aspects of the Business

Like any other Company in the construction industry, the operations of HPI are generally affected by
seasonality or cyclicality.  Traditionally, during the months starting December to May, demand for
cement Is greater than the rainy months from June ta November.

3. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

General Risk Management Agproach

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes in deb{
struclure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange raies and inferest rates. The Company's
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize polential and adverse effects on the firanclal performance of the Company. The Company
uses desivative instruments such as cross-curency swaps to hedge the interest and foreign exchange
risks from its foreign currency-denaminated debt. The Company does not enter info ofher derivative or
hnancial fransactions which are unrelated to s operating business as a risk-averse approach is
pursued.

Financial risk management of the Company is governed by policies approved by management. It
provides principtes for owverall risk managemant, as well as policies covering specific risk areas such
as interest rate risk, foreign exchange rlsk, counterpariy rigk, and use of derivative financlal
instruments and investing assets In excess of liquidity requirements,

The Company's principal financial insfruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and cash
equivalents, notes payable and long-tesm debl. The main purposa of these financial instruments is to
raise funds for the Company's operations. The Company also has various other financial assels and
lizbilittes such as frade and other receivables, advances to employees, guarantee deposits, restricted
cash, trade and other payables and advances from customers which arise directly from operations.

The main risks arising from the Company's financiat instruments are market risks (which include
forelgn currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors (BOD)
reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below,

Markat Risks

The Campany is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency, interest rate and equity price
risks. To manage volatllify relating to these exposures, the Company enters into derivative financial
Instrumenis, when necessary. The Company's abjective is o redurcs, where appropriate, fluctuations
in earnings and cash flows assaciated with changes in foreign eurrency, inferest rate and equity price.

Foreign Cwrency Risks

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument widl
fluctuaie hecause of changes in foreigh exchange rates.

The Company has foreign-exchange exposures, arising primarily from salas, purchases of goods and
services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Peso ihat leads to Gifrrency
translation effects. The Company may hedge certain foreign currency-denominated borrowings or
other instrumants by entering into derivative transactions.,

Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited. However, income may
primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount of capital expenditures
may be in foreign currencles. As a consequence thereof, the Company may enter inic derivative
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contracls whenever naecessary, which may be designated either as cash flow hedges or fair value
hadges, as appropriate.

As of September 30, 2015, the Company has minimal assets and liabilities exposed to foreign
clrrency risks.

Interest Rate Rigk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fulure cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow interest rate
risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Company is exposed ta fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements of its debt
portfolio related o changes in market interest rales. The Company's interest rate expasure is mainly
addressed through the steering of fhe fixedfloating ratio of net debt. To manage this mix, the
Company may enter into derivative kransactions, as appropriate. As &t September 30, 2015, the
Company has minimal financial inskuments that are axposed o inferest rate rsk,

Cradit Risk

Credit rsk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to sattle 1heir obligations as agread. To
manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers.

Tie Company constanfly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to finangial instruments
consist of @ large number of major financial institutions. The Company does not expect any
counterparties to fail to meet Iheir obligations, given their high credlt ratings. In addition, the Company
has no significant concentration of gradit risk with any single counterparty or group of counterpariies.

The maximum and minimum exposure ta credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset.

The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. 1t is the Company's policy that
all third party customers whe wish to trade on credit terms are subject to . credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongaing basis to reduce the
Company’s exposure to bad debts to minimal.

With respect to credit risk arlsing from the other financial assets of ihe Caompany, which consist of due
from related parties, advances to empioyees, AFS financiai assets, and guarantee and refundabte
depasits, the Company's exposures arise from defauit of e counterparty, with 8 maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amount of these instrumeants.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wilt encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonalily of revenue generation exposes the
Company to shortage of funds during siack season. The Company monitors this risk using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial assets and projected cash
fiows from operations. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance hetween cantinuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank credit facliities, finance leases and purchase contracts.
The Company is responsible for its own cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits,
subject to policies and guidelines epproved by management and in certain cases at the BOD jevel.

The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash aquivalents, which are shork-term in
naiure, unused credit lines and readily availsble marketable securiies to meaet its Hquidity
requirements at alt fimes. In addition, the sirong eredit worthiness of the Company allaws I to make
efficient use of the financial markels for financing purposes. As of September 30, 2014, the Company
has unuillized credit facilities of 24.3 billion.
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Capital Management Palicy

The Coempany considers equily aftributable to the equity hokders of the Parent Company as its capital.
The Company’s objectives when managing capifal are fo secure the Company's ongoing financial
needs to continue as a going concern as well as o cater for its growth targsts in order to provide
returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakehclders and o maintain a cost-efficient and risk-
pplimized capital struciure.

The Company manages the capiial structure and makes adjustments ta it @n light of the changes in
economic conditions, its business aclivitfes, investment and expansion program and the risk
characterislics of the undetlying assefs. In order {0 maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adiust the amount of dividends paid to sharsholders, return capital to shareholders,
izsue new shares, or self assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio.

4. Financlal Assets and Liabilities

Eair Value of Financiat Instruments

The estimated fair value of each class of the Company's financial instruments is equal to their carrying
amount as al September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014. The following melkods and agsumptions
are used lo estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument for which It is practicable to
estimate such value:

Cash and Casfr Equivalenls, Trade and Other Receivables, Advances to Employces, Restricled
Cash, Longdenn Financlal Receivable, Notes Payable and Trade and Other Payabies, Due to the
short-term nature of the transactions, the fair values of these instrumenis approximate the
corresponding carrying values as of end of each reporting period.

AFS Financial Assets. The fair values of publicly fraded instrumentis are determined by reference to
guoted market prices as at the end of each reporting period. Investments In unquoted equity securities
for which no reliable basis for fair value measurement is available are carried at cost, net of any
impairment in value.

Guarantee Deposits. These are carried at cost, less any impairment in value, which appraximate their
fair values calculated using the discounted cash flows method,

Fair Vzlug Higrarchy

Below are the list of financial assets and Habilties carried at fair value that are classified using a fair
value hierarchy as at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014;

September 30, 2015 December 31, 2014
Level 11" tevel2?  Tatal Levet1" Level 21 Total

AFS financial assets -
Quoted equily securifies P145 P— f145 P45 F— B145
Fair value is determinad using observable markel inputs that reflact quolted prices in active
markefs for ideniical assefs or fiabilities.
@ Fair value Is determined using Inputs other than quoted prices that ere either directly or
indirectly observable for the assels or liablfities.
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5. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are components of the Company that engage in business activities from
which they may earn revenues and incur expenses (inciuding revenues and expenses refating to
transactions with other components of the Company), which operating resulis are regularly
reviewed by the chief operafing decision maker™ io make decisions about how resources are 1o be
allocated to each of the segmenis and to assess their performances, and for which diserete
financial information is available. Management reassesses on an annual hasis whether there
have been any change in the operaling segmenis or in the reportable operating segments in
accordance with PFRS 8, "Operallng Segments”.

For management purposes, the Gompany is organized infa activities based on their products and

has three segments, as follows;

»  ginker and cement segmeni, which manufactures and sells clinker and cement for both
domestic and export cusiomers;

* aggregales segment, which produces and trades aggregates to third parties as well as to the
RMX business; and

= other construction materiate and services segment, which includes operations from the RMX
business, Helps-U-Build and specialty produsts.

For the segment revenue below, aggrsgates and other construction materials and services
segments are combined under Ofhers.

Management maniters ihe operating results of its business segments far the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and perforrmance assessment. Segment performance is
based on operating EBITDA and is measured consistently with consalidated net income in the
consolidated statements of income. However, the Company’s finance income and tharges and
income taxes are managed on a group basis, and are nol allscated to operating segments.
Transfer prices between gperating segments are on an arm's length basis similar 1o transactions
with third parties,

Segment revenues, EBITDA, assets and liabllities as at September 30, 2015 and 2014 are presented
below:

2015
Adlusimenis
Clinker and and
coment Others Total eliminations Consolidated
{In Thousands)
Revenue;
External
customers R26,543,705 R1,278,980 R27.820,685 - W27 830,685
inter-segment 727,758 266 728,024 {566,977) 171,047
R27,271,463 R1,277,246  F2R 548,700  (R556,977) R27,891,732
Dperating EBITOA R7,242.434 R39,614 R7,312,048 .- R7,312,048
Segment assals 30,184,690 1,604,758 31,789,448 3,187,890 34,877,338
Segment liabilities 6,773,997 655,816 7,429.813 6,198,929 13,628,742

" Chief operating decision maker is composed of the Company's management committes
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2014 (restated™}

Adjustments

Clinker and and
cement Cthers Total  eliminations Consolidated

{in Thousands)
Revenua:

External customers B24,334,113 HE38,934 R24 874,047 . B24,974,047
Infer-segment. 335,840 - 335,840 (335,840) -
24 689 953 639,934 25,309,887 (338,840) 24,974,047
Operating EBITDA F6.955,326 (P127,323) R6,831,003 R B5,831,003
Segment assets 25,144 241 488,387 25,639,628 5566,154 31,305,822
Segment iabilties 5,503,535 537,273 6,040,808 4,261,364 10,302,772

*Refer to Consolidaled Stafements of Income

6. Retained Earnings

The BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of Php0.82 per common shars {or a total of
Phpb.3 billion) on May 1B, 2015, payable to stockhoiders of record as of June 15, 2018, The
dividends were paid on July 9, 2015.

7. Subseguent Events

On October 27, 2015, the Company completed the execution of a Sharshalders Agreement governing
Holcim Mining and Development Corporation (HMDC), with HMDC, the Holsim Philippines, Inc.
Retirement Fund (RF), and Molcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation, in relation to the proposed
subscription by the RF of shares in HMDC. The implementation of the Shareholders Agreement shall
be subject to the completion of alf customary closing conditions, including the completion of the RF
subscription and the waiver by the existing shareholders, Including the Company, of their pra-emptive
right, as stated in the agreement.
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interim Disclosuras

Except as disclosed In item 7 of this report, the Company is not aware of the foliowing or is not
applicable to the Company's interim aperations:

1

10.

.

12

3.

14,

Unusual items thst materially affect the Company's consolidated assets, liabilities, equity, net
income or cash flows because of thefr nature, size or incidents,

Changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the current financial year or
changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior financial years that have a material effact in the
current period.

Issuances and repurchases of equily securities.

Material changes in contingent Babilities or contingent assets since the last annual batance sheet
date.

Existence of material contingencies and other events of fransactions that are material fo an
understanding of the current interim period.

Known trends, demands, commitments, events and uncerainties that will result in ar fikely to
decrease its liguidity in any material way. The Company does not anticipate having within the
next twelve {12) months any cash flow or liquidity problems nor does it anticipate any default or
breach of any of its existing notes, loans, leases, other indebledness or financing arrangements
reguiring it to make payments.

Events that wil trigger direct or contingent material inancial ohligations to the Company.

Material off-balance shset transactions, arrangements, obligations (direct or contingent), and
other refationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities eor other persons created during
the year.

Material commitments for capital expendilures.

Known trends, events or uncertainfies that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
materiat favorable impact on net salesfrevenuesfincorne from confinuing operations.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arse from the Company's confinuing
oparations.

Malerial events subsequent to end of the reporting perod that have not been reflected in this
repart.

Material changes in the composition of the Company, including any business combiniation,
acquisition (other than the acquisiffon of Lafarge entities and assets, as disclosed in the grevious
report and herewith further discussed in this report) or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term
investments, restructurings and discontinuing operations.

Any seasonal aspect that had a material eflect on the financial condition or results of apearation.
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Materlal Changes |n Balance Sheet Accounts

5% increase in Cash and cash equivalents
Mainjy due to higher prafit generated for the period.

58% increase in Trade and other receivablas-net
Primarily due fo higher revenues in September 2015 compared with December 2014,

6% decrease in Inventories
Mainly due to higher volume sold and higher usage of imported clinker in 2015 as compared to 2014.

71% increase in Goodwill
Due to the acquisition of new subsidiaries at a purchase price above the net book value of the assets
acyuired.

78% increase in intangiblos
Due to increase in mining rights in 20158

27% increase in Deferred lax assels
Mainly attributable to increase of net operating loss carry-over (NQLCO) of a wholly owned subsidiary.

19% increase in Trade and other payabies
Attributable mainty to accruals associated with the increased level of sales.

23% increase in Notes payable
Attributable to the oulstanding ghort-term Joans availed by the Company from third party banks.

83% increase i Income tax payable
Mainly atiributable to higher taxable income for Q3 2015 as campared to the last quarter of 2014_

100% increase in Long-ferm debt
Attributable to availments by the Company of long-term loans from banks.

79% decrease in Defeired tax liabilities
Mainly attributable to the decreass In non-deductible depreciation expense.

7% increase in Other nancurrent labilities
Mainly due to the acquisition of new entilies.

10% decrease in Refainad earnings
Mainly tue to the declaration of dividends in May 2015.
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Material Changes In income Statement Accounts

2% increase in Net saleg
Mainly driven by higher volume sold brought about by strong demand.

13% increase in Cost of sales
Due to higher volume produced and soid as a result of robust demand and higher usage of imported
clinker antl cement,

25% ingreass in operating expenses
Aftributable to one-off costs related to corporate initiatives.

8% decrease in depreciation and amariizafion
Mainly due to lower book value of depreciable assets.

128% increase in Net financial incoma
Mainly due to higher interest eamed from cash and cash equivalents.

3526% increase in Other income (expense)
Due te the gain realized by the Company on sale of its internally devefoped intellectual property to an
assaciated company,

11% increase In Frovision for income fax
Mainly due to higher taxable income in 2015 as compared to the same peried in 2014,
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Holcim Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators

For the Nine (9] Months

Ended September 30
Financial KPI Definition 2015 2014
Curent/Liquidity ratio
Current Ratio Saerent Assels 1068% | 106.8%
Current Liabilities
Solvency ratio/Debt-to-eguity ratio
, Net Financial Debt (Asset) o o
Gearing Stockholder's Equity 15.2% 2.5%
Asset tn Equity Ratios
Asset to Equity Ratio/ Total Assets 5
Equity Multiplier Stockholdar's Equity 163.8% 148.1%
Interzast Rate Coverage Ratio
tnterest Rate Coverage Incame befare Tax 1688.6 times | 358.3 times
Net Interest
| Brefitahility Ratios
Return on Assets Net income 13.8% 13.6%
Average Totat Assets
Return an Equity et Income 21.0% 19.0%
Average Total Equity ) '
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant ta the requiremanis of the Securities Regulation Cade, the issuer has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HOLCIM PHILIFPINES, ING.

l v
Glerh A. Agusfin

Head, Group Controller
2015 Date: Cctober 28, 20158
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Exhibit 4

Schedule of Pending Material Legal Proceedings
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PENDING MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (Parent)

UCC v. R.M.R. Baidemor Cargo Mover Co,
{Makati RTC Branch 139 - Civil Case No. 01-722)

This case involves money claims against a cargo forwarder due to short delivery of polyslings.
in July 2010, the RTC ordered RMR to pay UCC Php1.3Million.

Holcim Philippines, inc. v, Jocelyn Suavillo
{Taguig City Prosecutor's Office — IS No. XV-16-INV-09H-00730)

This is a criminal complaint for estafa, falsification and qualified theft fited against a former
employee. The City Prosecutor dismissed the complaint for lack of probable cause. Holcim's
petition for review before the Dapartment of Justice is still pending.

Hokcim Phitippines, Inc. v, Jocelyn Suavillo and Rhona M. Valenzuela
{(RTC Makati Branch 133; Makati City Prosecutor’s Office - IS No. XV-05-INV-09K-03371)

This is a criminat case for 75 counts of estafa fited against former employees. Holcim entered
into a compromise agreement with Rhona Valenzueia and Joseph San Juan and desisted
from further pursuing the cases against them, The Court ordered the dismissal of the cases
against them. The case against Jocelyn Suavillo is archived.

Holcim Philippines, Inc. v. Jocelyn Suavilio, Rhona M. Valenzuetla and Joseph R. San
Juan  (Makati MTC, Branch 83, Crim. Case No. 363198)

This is a criminal complaint for estafa filed against former employees. In September 2013,
the Court ordered the dismissal of the case as to Rhona Valenzuela and Joseph San Juan
following a compromise agreement between them and Holcim. The case is archived as to
Jocelyn Suavilio.

Holcim Philippines, Inc. v. Jocelyn Suaviilo, Rhona M. Valenzuela and Joseph R. San
Juan (Taguig City Prosecutor's Office-IS No. XV018-INV-09L-01068; RTC Taguig Br. 271)

This is & criminal complaint for 4 counts of estafa filed against former employees. In view of
Holcim's compromise agreement with Joseph San Juan and Rhona Valenzuela, the court
provisionally dismissed the case insofar as they are concerned. The case is archived as to
Jocelyn Suavillo.

Holeim v. Sps. Hermenigildo and Norma de la Cruz, and Sps. Joseph and Elizabeth
Losloso (RTC Bayombong, Nueva Vizcaya)

Collection case for unpaid products. Trial is on-going,

In the Matter of an Arbifration under the UNCITRAL Rules between PT Asia Pacific
Mining Resources (Indonesia), Madison Energy PTE Ltd (Singapore) and Holcim
Philippines, In¢. (Singapore International Arbitration Centre)

PT Asia Pacific Mining Resources (APMR) and Madison Energy PTE Ltd submitted for
arbitration Holcim's cancellation of the coal supply agreement with APMR. The arbitration
tribunal decided in favor of one of the claimants and the case has been declared closed and
terminated.



TAX CASES (Parent)

The Company received a final assessment notice from the Bureau of Internal revenue (BIR)
in September 2015 for alleged deficiency income tax, value added tax, expanded withholding
tax, final withholding tax and documentary stamp tax for the taxable year 2008 in the
aggregate amount of Php720 million, inclusive of penalties and interest. The Company fited
its protest in October and December 2015.

The Company received a final assessment notice from the BIR for alleged deficiency final
withheolding taxes for the taxable year 2010 amounting to Php150.9 million, inclusive of
penaities and interest. The assessment was issued as a result of the denial of the Company’s
application for tax treaty relief. The Company filed its protest in July 2013. The Company's
protest remains pending with the BIR.

In December 2012, the Company received an assessment from the Province of Bulacan for
deficiency real property taxes for its Bulacan Plant Line 2 machinery and equipment for the
period from January 2011 to December 2012. The Company filed an appeal with the Local
Board of Assessment Appeals (LBAA) of Malolos, Bulacan in January 2013. During the
pendency of the appeal with the LBAA, Bulacan and the Municipality of Norzagaray issued
two additional assessments covering the same Line 2 machinery and equipment for periods
covering January 2011 untit the third quarter of 2013, inclusive of interest. The Company filed
supplemental appeals with the LBAA in respect of said additional assessments, and said
appeals remain pending with the LBAA,

In December 2014, the Bulacan Provincial Treasurer issued Orders of Payment, which
assessed deficiency real property taxes and interest on: lands and buildings located at the
Company's Bulacan Plant in the amount of Php11.7 million for the period Q4 2013 until Q4
2014, and machines and equipment found at the same plant in the amount of Php108 milfion
for the period beginning 201t Q1 2014. The Company paid the assessed amounts under
protest in December 2014 and filed the corresponding protest. Following the Provincial
Treasurer's inaction on the protests, the Company filed its appeals with the LBAA. The
Company’s appeals remain pending with the LBAA.

In February 2014, the Company received a Notice of Assessment of Business Tax issued by
the Norzagaray Municipal Treasurer for alleged deficiency local business taxes, surcharges,
and interest in the aggregate amount of Php58.5 million. In June 2014, the Company filed a
complaint/appeal with the Regional Trial Court of Malolos, Bulacan for the cancellation of the
assessment notice. The complaint remains pending with the court.

In October 2015, the Company was assessed for deficiency local business taxes, surcharges,
and interest in the aggregate amount of Php118.3 million covering the taxable years 2012 to
2015. In December 2015, the Company filed its protest with the Norzagaray Municipal
Treasurer. The Company's protest remains pending.

TAX CASES (Subsidiaries)

HPMC received a final assessment notice from the BIR in June 2014 for alleged deficiency
income tax, value-added tax expanded withholding tax and documentary stamp tax covering
the taxable year 2008 in the aggregate amount of Php283.8 Mio inclusive of penalties and
Interest. HPMC filed its protest lefter in July 2014. HPMC's protest remains pending with the
BIR.

CACI received a final assessment notice from the BIR in December 2014 for alleged
deficiency income tax and value-added tax covering the taxable year 2011 in the amount of
Php2.5 Mio inclusive of penalties and interest, CACH filed its protest letter in January 2015,

MGMC has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2012. The BIR has not made any
determination of deficiency taxes.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-C
CURRENT REPORT UNDER SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION GODE
ARD SRC RULE 17.2{c) THEREUNDER

1. February 9, 2015
Date of Repont {Date of earliest event reportad)

2. SEC Idendification Number 26128 3. BIR Tax Idenlification No. 000-121-507-000

4, Holetm Philippines, i,
Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

5. Philinpines 6. : {(SEC Use Only)
Province, country or other jurisdiztion of Industry Classification Code:
incorporation

7. 7ib Floor Tweo World Square, MeKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacte, Taqulg City 1634
Address of principal office Postal Cade

8. (B32) 4593333

lssuer's telephone number, including area cods

9. Mot applicable
Former name or former address, if changed singe last report

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections B and 12 of the SRC or Sactions 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Qutstanding and Amount of Debt Cuistanding

Camwnen Shares 6,452,099,144

T1. [adicate the item numbers reparted herein: [tem 8. Other Events
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Hom 2. Other Events

At the regular meeling of the Board of Direclors {the *Board™} of Helcim Philippines, Inc. {the
“Company"} held today, the Board approved the following resolutions;

Postponement and setting of date of annual stockholders’ meeting and record date

- ihe postpenement of its annual stockholders’ meeting, which pursuant to its By-laws should be
held on the second Thursday of May of each year, {o May 18, 2015. The record date far the
annual stockholders' meeting is set on Apiit 18, 2015, The Board delegated to the Corporate
Secretary the responsibllity of confirming the agenda, venue and ime of the annual stockholders'

meating.

Amendment of the Third Article of the Amended Articles of incotporation

- the amendment of the Third Arficle of the Company's Amended Articles of Incarporation to
change the principal office address from 7% Floor Two World Square, McKinley Hill, Fort
Bonifacio, Taguig City, Phiifppines to 7th Floor Venice Cargorate Center, 8 Turin St., McKinley
Town Center, Foit Bonifacio, Tagulg City.

Amendment of the Article li, Section 2 of the Amended By-faws

- the amendment of Article [, Section 2 of the Company's Amended By-laws to reflect those stated
in existing Securities and Exchange Commisslon issuances.

Nomination of Exdernat Auditor
- the proposal of SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co, as the Company's external auditor for the year 2015,
Approvat of Audited Financial Statemeris
- the Company's Audited Financial Statements for fiseal year 2014, which shall be duly filed with
the Commission together with the SEC Form 17-A report.
SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securifies Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hareunto duly authorized.

Holeim Philippines, Inc. February 9, 2015
tsseer Date

Kristing N.L. Evangelfsta

Corporate Secretary
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPRINES )
TAGUIG CITY )85,

Belore me, a notary public in and for the city named above, personaily appeared Krisiine N.L.
Evangelista, with Passport No. EB8978388 issuad on August 24, 2013 at Manila, Philippines, who is
personally known to me to be the same person who presented the foregoing report and signed the
same in my presence, and who took an oath before me as to sald repont.

Witness my hand and notarial seal this FER 0 9 2015 .

Doc. NobE
Page No. &
Book No. &;
Series of 2015,
PTR N, 2045203; 01-(}5-2015:'§A6t0 CirY
LIFETHE 1BP NO. OBSUS; Bag-Beny Chapler
ROLL NG, 52643
MCLE COMPLIANGE NO. 003272
9" Pl Tawe i Squane
Mclniey Hai, Fort b, Tagulg Gy
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OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND BRC RULE 17.2(c) THEREUNDER

1. March 17, 2015
Blate of Report {Date of earliest avent reported)

2. SEC ldentification Number 26126 3. BIR Tax ldeniification No, 000-121-507-000

4. Holeim Philippines, ing,
Exact name of issuer as specified in its charler

&, Philippines 6. b ooed (SEG Use Only)
Province, country or other jurisdiclion of Indusiry Classification Code’
incorporation

-1

7th Floor Twe World Square, McKinley Hill, Fort Sonifacio. Tagulg City

Address of principal office Postaf Cede

8. {632) 46893333

Issuer's telephone number, including area code

9. NA
Foremer name or former address, if changed since fast report

10. Securities registered pursuant te Sections § and 12 of the SRU or Sections 4 and § of the RSA

Title of Each Clasa Number of Shares of Commaen Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt Qutstanding

Commen Shares §,452,099,144

11. Indicate the iiem numbers reporied hereln: ftem 9. Other Fvents

SEC Form 17-C 1
December 2003



Itern 9. Other Eventis

Pursuant to the delegation by the Board of Directors of Holcim Phifippines, Inc, {the “Company”) to the
Corporate Secretary of the responsibility of canfirming the agenda, venus and time of the annual
meeting of the stockholders, the undersigned confirms the following details of said annual meeting for

2015:

Date: May 18, 2015, Monday

Time: 10:00 a.m.

Place: Baliroom 2, 2nd Level
Fairmont Makati
1 Raffles Drive, Makati Avenue
1224 Makati City
Philippines

The record date for the annuat meeting of the stockholders is set on April 18, 2015,

The fallewing items will be included in the agenda for the Annual Meeting:

A e

Lo~ m

g

Call to Order

Proof of Notice and determination of existence of quorum

Approval of the minutes of the annual mesating held on May 16, 2014

Approval of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
as of December 31, 2014

Approval and ratification of alt acts, contracts, investments and resolutions of the
Board of directors, commitiees and management since the last annual meeting
Election of the members of the Board of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Approval of Amendment to Article il of the Company's Amended Articles of
Incorporation (change in principal office} and Article I, Section 2 of the Amended By-
laws {to reflect existing relevani SEC issuances)

Other matters

10. Adjournment

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized,

Holeim Philippinegs, inc. March 17, 2015

issuer Date

o pe . |

7

4
Kristirlé N1, Evangeliéta

Corporate Secretary
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1. May 18. 2015
Date of Report {Date of earliest event reported)

2. SEC Ideniification Number 26126 3. BIR Tax ldentification No. 000-121-507-000

4. Holeim Philippinges, Inc.
Exact narme of issuer as specified in its charter

5. Philippines 8 : {SEC Use Only)

Provinge, country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code:;
incorporation

7. 7th Floor Two Worid Square, McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City 1634
Address of principal office Postal Code

8. (B32)4593333

Issuer's tefephone number, including area code

Former name or former address, if changed since last report
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Comimon Siock
QOutstanding and Amount of Debt Qutstanding

Common Shares 6,452 099,144

11. Indicate the item numbers reporied herein: ltem 9. Other Events
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Rem 3. Dther Events

1. Reguiar Meeting of the Board of Directors

At the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors (the ‘Board”) of Holcim Philippinas, Inc. (the
"Company”} held today, May 18, 2015, at Sampiro Room, 2nd Level, Fairrmont Makati, 1 Raffles
Drive, Makat! Avenue, 1224 Makali City, Metro Manila ("Fairmont Makali®), the Board approved the
declaration of a cash dividend in the amount of Php0.82 per share to all stockholders of record as of
June 15, 2015, Payment date will not be later than July 8, 2015,

it. Annual Stockholders Meeting

At the Annual Stockholders Meeting of the Company held today, May 18, 2015, at Ballroom 2, 2nd
Level, Fairmont Makati, at 10:00 am, the stockholders of the Company:

1.

2.

Appraved the Minutes of the Annual Meeting held on May 16, 2014;

Approved the Annual Report and the Audiied Financisl Statements of the
Company as of December 31, 2014;

Approved and rafified all acts, copiracts, proceedings, investments and
resolutions of the Board of Directors, Board Commitiees, Corporate Officers and
Management since the last annual meeting;

Elected the following as members of the Board of Directors for the year 2015 and
until thelr successors shall have been duly elected and quaiified;

Tomas |. Alcantara

lan 8. Thackwray

Eduarde A. Sshagun

Danisl M. Bach

Yasuo Kitamoto {independant Directon)

Simeon V. Marcelo (Independent Dirsctor)

g. David L ucas B. Balangue (Independent Director)

O RO T

Approved the appointment of SyCip Gorres Velaya & Go. as External Auditor of
the Company for the year 2015.

Approved the Amendment to Adicle Il of the Company’s Amended Articies of
Incorporation (change in principal office) and Articie |1, Section 2 of the Amended
By-laws (o reflect existing relevant SEC issuances). The approval of the
amendment is subject to the approvai of the Securities and Exchange
Commissian.

. Crganizational Meeting of the Board of Directors

At the Organizational Meeting of the Board held today, May 18, 2015, st Sampiro Roeom, Fairmont
Makati, the following officers were elected 1o serve for the ysar 2015, until their successors shall have
heen duly elected and qualified:

Paosition Name
Chairman - Tamas ! Alcantara
Vice Chairman - lan 8. Thackwray
President & Chief Executive Officar - Eduardo A. Sahagun
Seniar Vice President - Manufacturing - Andre Caluor|
Vice Presldent - Operations (Bulacan Plant) - Federico V. Santiago
Vice President - Operations {Davao Plant) - Zika D. Balogo
Vice President - Operations {Lugait Plant} - Bobby R. Garza
Vice President - Operations (La Union Flant) - Andrew M. White
SEC Form 17-C 2
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Vice President - Commergial - William C. Sumalfinog

Vice Presidant - Supply Chain - Baskia Groan-in't-Woud

Vice President - Geocycle - Emesto C. Paredes

Vice President - Human Resources - Araceli E, Gonzales

Vice President - Corporate Commmunications -~  Merissa V. Ronguillo

Vice President - Corporate Ccoupationai Health & Safety - Carmela Dolores S. Calimbas

OIC - Legal Alfairs [ Corporate Secretary / - HKristine N. L. Evangelista
Compliance Officer

Treasurer - Shirley 8. Go

Assistant Corporate Secretary - Jan Cellne A. Ranada

In the same meeting, the following members of the Committees of the Board were also elected:

Executive Committes
1} lan 8. Thackwray - Chairman
2) Tomas |. Alcantara - Member
3) Daniel N. Bach - Member
4) Eduardo A. Sahagun - Member
Audit Committee
i} David Lucas B. Balangua {Independent} - Chairman
2} Simeon V. Marcelo {independent) - Member
3} Daniet N. Bach - Member
4} Tornas 1. Alcantara - Member
Memination Committee
1) Simeon V. Marcelo {independent} - Chairman
2} Yasuo Kliiamoeto {Independent) - Member
3} DPavid Lucas B. Balangue (Independent) - Member
Compensation Committes
1) Daniel N. Bach - Chairman
2) Simeon V. Marcelo (Independent) - Member
3) David Lucas B. Balangue {independent) - Memtbrer
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Coda, the issuer has duly caused this
report {o be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Holcim Philippines, Inc, May 18, 2015

lssuer DPate

Kristifie N.L. Evangelsta
Corporate Secretary
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Item 8. Githar Events

At the Special Meefing of the Board of Directors (the ‘Board”) of Holuim Philippines, Inc. (the
‘Company”) hefd on July 10, 2015 at the Board Room, 7F Venica Corporate Center MeKinley
Corporate Center, Taguig City, the Board aufhorized the Company to make an offer for, and should
the offer be accepled, to proceed with, the acquisition by the Corporation and/or its wholly-owned
subsidiary Holcim Mining and Development Carporation of, the following Lafarge group assets in the
Philippines consisting of {a) shares of stock of Lafarge liigan, Inc., Lafarge Mindanao, fnc., Lafarge
Republic Aggregates, Inc., Quimson Limestones, Ine., Sigma Cee Mining Corporation, angd APC
Properties, Inc., (b} Star Terminal assets located at the Harbour Centre, Manila, and (c) certain
parcels of land as identified by the parfes. The offer shall be consistent with the conditions approved
by ihe Board based on management's study on polential synergies in terms of strategic fit of the
assets to be acquired with current operations and the resulis of the financial, tax, technical and tegal
due difigence undertaken on said assats,

The Board authorized Mr. Eduardo A. Sahagun, President and CEO, to sign. execute and deliver any
and all agreements and documents, including share and asset purchase agresments, deeds,
cerlificates, discloswre statements, notices, applications, consents, and regulatory filings, and fo
perform alf acts, for and on behalf of the Corporation, as may be necessary andfor desirable, in order
to complete and implement the above transactions, under such terms and conditions as he may deem
in the best interest of the Corporation and consistent with said Board approved conditions,

SIGNATURE

Pursuant o the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunio duly authorized.

Holcim Phitippines, Ins. Juty 10, 2015
lssuer Date

Kristine &.L. Evangellst
Corporate Secretary
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tem 2. Acquisition of Assets

On August 3, 2015, Holcim Philippines, Inc. and/or its wholly-owned subsidiary, Holcim Mining and
Development Corperation, executed an agreement with Lafarge Republic, Inc., Lafarge Holdings
{Philippines), Inc., Calumboyan Holdings, Inc., Luzon Cantinental Land Corporation and Broadfields
Properties, Lid, for the purchase of the following assets consisting of {a) shares of stock of Lafarge
Republic Aggregates, Inc., Quimson Limestones, Inc., Sigma Cee Mining Corporation, and APC
Properties, lne., (b) Star Terminal assals located at the Harbour Centre, Manila, and (¢} certain
narcels of land. The total purchase price is Php3.085 bilfion. The price was determined after a2 fair
vatuation of the assets was undertaken. The closing of the transaction shall be subject to the
completion of ail customary closing conditions as stated in the agreement,

SIGNATURE

Purguant fo the requirements of the Secuwsities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this
report {0 be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly autharized.

Holcim Philippines, inc. August 3, 2015
Issuer bate

Kristirie N.L. Evangelisia
Corporate Secretary
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Ham 9, Other Events

Holcim Philippines, Ine. (the Company) complated the execition of 2 Shareholders Agreement
goveming Holcim Mining and Development Corporation (HMDC), with HMDC, the Holcim
_Philippines, Inc. Retirement Fund (RF), and Holcim Phifippines Manufacturing Corporation, in
rafafion to the proposed subscription by the RF of shares in HMDLC. The implamentstion of
the Shareholders Agreemert shall bo subject fo the completion of all customary elosing
condifions, including the completion of the RF subscription and the walver by the existing
shareholders, Inciuding the Campany, of their pre-emplive right, as stated in the agreemant.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant o the requirements of the Securities Regulation Cods, the issuer has duly caused this
report to be signed on s behalf by the undersigned hereurte duly authorized.

HOLCIM PHILIPFINES, INC.
Issuer

(el S
HRISTINEMLL., EVAN ISTA

Comporate Secrefary
Date; Ocleber 27, 2045
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Kem 9, Other Events

Atthe meeting of the Board of Directors held today, December 4, 2015, ihe following were appointed”
#¢ heads of the following new functions:

Name Pogifion
Roman Meny Head ~ Cemont Industrial Performance
William de | umley Hoad - Aggregates & Construction Materials
Kavin Savory Head - Procurament & Logistics
Paul Vi-Hiuy-Dad Head - Strategle Transformation

Roman Manz obiained his dagroee in Electrics] Powar Enginsering from the Higher Technicl Collage
in Baden, Switzerand, his degree in Proceas Engineering from University of Brunel, in London, LK,
and his masters in business frorn impesial Collegs in London, UK, Prior to jaining the Company, he
was the Manufacturing Direclor of Holelm Vielnam in March 2015, Technival Director of Holeim
Russia in 2012 and Plant Manager in Holelm Romarnia in 2008,

Wiiliem de Luritey has degrees In nistory and economic seiences from University Paris and geotogy
from 1GAL, France. He was Lafarge ARG Indla Pyt. Lid's Vice President for Land and Geology from
2007 to 2010. He then bacame Marmsfacturing Direstor of Lafarge Egypt Quamies Co. in 2010 befora
he became the Vice Presldent of Lafarge Republic Aggregates, Inc. in 2012.

Kevin Savory was with Cemant Ausirabia from 2003 becoming s Buslness Unit Manager in 2009 and
General Manager for Marketing, Sales and Distrbution in 2092, He has s masters degres i Business
Administration.

Paul Vu-Huy-Dat has 8 bachelor's degree in Economics and Business Management fom Universita
Pariz X — Manterre and a masters’ degrea rom the Insiitut of Administration des Erferprises, Alv-an-
Provence. Ha was the former Country CEO of Lafarge Vielnam. Prior fo that, ke was connecled with
Lafaige Romania as Chief Financial Officer from May 2040 to Aprd 2042 and Counfry Chief Financial
Officer from May 2012 io Dacember 2033, He then moved to Lafarge 3A in Parls, France as a
director for mergers and acquisitions in Janusry 2014.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant {o the requirernents of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly gavsed this
report to be signed on its behatl by tke undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Helctm Philippines, Inc, December 4, 20115
Issuer Date

& A
" Krisfrie N.L. Evangetisia

Corporate Sacretary

“Subjest io issuance of refevant permils.
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> i‘tem 4. Other Evants

| % Flaase be advised that in compfiance with the Memorandum Circular No. 20, Serias of 2013, the
1] following directors and key officers of Holeim Phifippines, Ine. attended a corporate governance
] sewtinar held on December 4, 2015 conducted by Risks Oppontunities Assesamant and Manggament
o) {ROAM), inec.:
p:. ]
. Namma Pfoaition
< Daniel N. Bach Director
a Eduardo A. Sahagun Diretiar
[ M . .
o Simean Marceio Dlrector
. Yasug Kitamoto ; Uirsctar
Pee) Andre Caluorl | SVP - Manufacturing
o Emesto C, Paredes VP - Geocycla
e Nerissa V. Ronquilio VP - Cemporate Communicaticng
73 Wiiliam C. Surnalineg VP:Sales _
Argoell E, Gonzales VP - Human Resources
Carrnela Dalores S. Calimbas | VP - Gorporate Qccupations] Health and Safely
Victoria T. Tomeldan Head - ICQA
Kristine N.1. Evangelista Comporate Secretary
Shirlay Go Treasurer
Glann Agustin Heead, Group Controfier

Far your information and reference, attached are copies of the cerfificates of attendance of said
directors and officers.
SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secusittes Regulation Code, he issuer has duly cauasd this
report te be signed an its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Holcim Philippines, Inc, Decamber 8, 2015

lssuar Date

Kristing N.L. Evangolis
Corporate Secretary
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A. BOARD MATTERS

1} Board of Directors

(a) Compaosition of the Board

Complete the table with information on the Board of Directors: {as of December 31, 2015)

lan S. Thackwray NED Holderfin B.V. Ernesto C. 2006 May 18, Annual io
Paredes 2015 Meeting
{not
related)
Danief N. Bach NED Union Cement | Ernesto C. May 6, May 18, Annual 4
Holdings Corp. Paredes 2008 2015 Meeting
{UCHC) {not
related)
Eduardo A. £D UCHC Ernesto C. July May 18, Annual 5
Sahagun Paredes 2010 2015 Meeting
{not
related)
Tomas 1. NED UCHC Ernesto C. July 4, May 18, Annual 13
Alcantara Paredes 2003 2015 Meeting
{not
related)
Yasuo Kitamoto D n/a Debro May 17, May 18, Annual 4
Gavino 2012 2015 Meeting
{not
refated}
Simeon V. o n/a Merian Sia | May 16, May 18, Annual z2
Marcelo {not 2014 2015 Meeting
related)
David L. Balangue 1o n/a Bernadette | May 18, May 18, Annual 1
Tansingcoe 2015 2015 Meeting
{not
related}

{b} Provide a brief summary of the corporate governance policy that the board of directors has adopted. Please
emphasize the policy/ies relative to the treatment of all shareholders, respect for the rights of minority
shareholders and of other stakeholders, disclosure duties, and board responsibilities.



The corporate governance policy adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors (the Board) as setf out in the
Company’s Revised Manual on Good Corporate Governance (the Manual} is transparency, recognition, and
promotion, and protection of the rights of shareholder and other stakeholders. Further, complionce with the
principles of good corporate governance shall always start with the Board. it is essentiol that all material
information about the Company which could adversely affect its viability or the interests of the stockholders
and other stakeholders should be publicly and timely disclosed through appropriate mechanisms.

it is the duty of the Board to promote shareholder rights, remove impediments to their exercise, and allow
puossibilities to seek redress for violation of their rights. The Board shall be instrumental in removing excessive
costs and other administrative or practical impediments to shareholders participating in meetings and/or
voting in person or by proxy. Accurate and timely information should be made available to the stockholders
to enable them to make a sound judgment an all matters brought to their attention for consideration or
approval.

{c) How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission?
The Board has not set a specific period for review of the Company’s vision and mission. The Board reviews the
vision and mission, from time to time, at the instance of a director or of Management, to ensure that the
business caonducted by the Company is in line with the Company’s vision and mission.

(d} Directorship in Other Companies

(i} Directorship in the Company’s Group®

identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who hold the office of
director in other companies within its Group:

fan 5. Thackwray

Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corp.

Nen-Executive Director

Edugrdo A. Sahagun

Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corp.

Executive Director

Tomas I, Alcantaro

Holcim Bhilippines Manufacturing Corp.

MNon-Executive Director

Daniel N. Bach

Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corp.

Non-Executive Director

Yasuo Kitamoto

Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corp.

independent Director

David ¢. Balangue

Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corp.

independent Director

fan S. Thackwray

Union Cement Holdings Corporation

Non-Executive Director

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Union Cement Holdings Corporation

Non-Executive Director

Daniel N. Bach

Union Cement Holdings Corporation

Non-Executive Director

Daniel N. Bach

Clinco Corporation

Non-Executive Director

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Clinco Corporation

Executive Director/Chairman

Daniel N. Bach

Cemco Holdings, Inc.

Non-Executive Director

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Cemco Holdings, Inc.

Executive Director/Chairman

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation

Non-Executive
Director/Chairman

Eduordo A. Sahagun

Bulkcem Philippines Inc.

Non-Executive
Director/Chairman

Edugrdo A. Sahogun

Calamba Aggregates Co. Inc.

Executive Director/Chairman

Edugrdo A. Sahagun

Excel Concrete Logistics Inc.

Executive Director/Chairman

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Holcim Philippines Business Services
Center, Inc.

Executive Director/Chairman

Eduardo A. Sahagun

HuBB Stores and Services, Inc.

Executive Director/Chairman

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Holcim Mining and Development Corp.

Non-Executive
Director/Chalrman

*fhe Group is composed of the parent, subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the company.




Fduardo A, Sahagun

Holcim Resources Development Corp.

Non-Executive
Director/Chairman

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Lucky One Realty Ventures, Inc.

Executive Director/Chairman

Eduardo A. Sehagun

Lafargetolcim Aggregates, inc.

Executive Director/Chairman

Eduardo A. Sahagun

APC Properties, Inc.

Executive Director/Chairman

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Sigma Cee Mining Corporation

Executive Director/Chairman

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Quimson Limestone, inc.

Executive Director/Chairman

(ii) Directorship in Other Listed Companies

identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who are also directors of
publicly-listed companies outside of its Group:

Tomas I. Alcantara

| Alsons Consolidated Resources, Inc.
Philweb Corporation

Executive Director/Chairman
independent Director

David L. Balangue

Trans-Asic  Qil and Energy Development | Independent Director

Corporation

Roxas Holdings, inc.

Philippine Bank of Communications
Manulife Financial Corporation

independent Director
independent Director
Independent Director

{ili) Relationship within the Company and its Group

Provide details, as and if applicable, of any refation among the members of the Board of Directors, which
links them to significant shareholders in the company and/or in its group:

‘ fan 5. Thackwray

Holderfin B.V.

nominee director

Eduardo A. Sahagun

Union Cement Holdings Corp.

nominee director

Tomas 1. Alcantara

Union Cement Holdings Corp.

nominee director

Daniel N. Bach

Union Cement Holdings Corp.

nominee director

(iv} Has the company set a limit on the number of board seats in other companies {publicly listed, ordinary
and companies with secondary license} that an individual director or CEQ may hold simultaneously? [n
particutar, is the limit of five board seats in other publicly listed companies imposed and ohserved? If yes,
briefty describe other guidelines:

As of the date hereof, the Company has not set a limit on the number of Board seats in other companies
that an individual director or the CEQ may simultaneously hold.

However, the Board may consider the adoption of guidelines on the number of directorships that its
members can hold in stock and non-stock corporations. The optimum number should take into
consideration the capacity of a director to diligently and efficiently perform his duties and responsibilities.

The CEQ and other executive directors may be covered by a lower indicative limit for membership in other
boards. A similar limit may apply to independent or non-executive directors who, at the same time, serve
as full-time executives in other corporations. In any case, the capacity of the directors to diligently and
efficiently perform their duties and responsibilities to the boards they serve should not be compromised.



(e) Shareholding in

Complete the following table on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who directly and indirectly
e company: {as of December 31, 2015)

own shares in th

the Company

Eduardo A. Sahagun i n/o 0.00%
Yasuo Kitamoto 1 n/a 0.00%
Tomas |, Alcantara 1 n/a 0.00%
Simeon V. Marcelo 1 54,262/Maria Rosanna A. 0.00%
Marcelo
lan 8. Thackwray 1 n/a 0.00%
Daniel N. Bach 1 n/a 0.00%
David L. Balungue 1 94,000/8P1 Securities 0.00%
Corporation
TOTAL 6 148,262 0.00%

2] Chairman and CEQ

{a) Do different persons assume the role of Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEQ? #f nop, describe the

checks and balances laid down to ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views.

Identify the Chai

vo [

r and CEO:

Tomas 1. Alcamtara

Eduardo A. Sahagun

{b) Roles, Accountabilities and Deliverables

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Chairman and CEO.

Role/
Accountabilities/
Deliverables

{i] Preside at oll meetings of the
stockholiders and of the Board;

(iit Ensure that the meetings of the
Board are held in accordance with
the By-laws or as the Chairman may
deem necessary;

(iii} Supervise the preparation of the
agenda of the meeting in
coordination with the Corporate
Secretary, taking into consideration
the suggestions of the CEO,
Management and the directors, and

(iv) Maintain qualitative and timely lines

of communication ond information
between the Board ard
Management;

{v} Perfarm such other duties incident to
his office or are properly required of
him by the Board.

(i}

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

fv}

{vi)

Have general supervision of the
affairs of the Company;

Sign alf stock certificates,

Sigri, whenever authorized to do
s0 by the Board, all approved
contracts and other instruments
in behalf of the Company;

See that the resolutions of the
Board are duly executed and
carried out;

Muke reports to the Boord and
stockholders;

Perform all such other duties as
are incident to his office or as
are properfy required of him by
the Board,




3)

Explain how the board of directors plans for the succession of the CEQ/Managing Director/President and the top
key management positions?

Under the Manual, the minimum internal control mechanisms for the performance of the Board’s oversight
responsibifity include:

{1} Definition of the duties and responsibilities of the CEC who is ultimately accauntable for the Company’s
organizational and operational controls;

(2} Selection of the person who possesses the ability, integrity and expertise essential for the position of CEQ;
{3} Evalugtion of proposed senior management appointments;
{4) Selection and appointment of qualified and competent management officers; and

{5} Review of the Company’s human resource policies, conflict of interest situations, compensation program for
employees, and management succession plan.

Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Does the company have a policy of ensuring diversity of experience and background of directors in the board?
Please explain.

As of the date hereof, the Company has not adopted a formal policy for ensuring diversity of director background
ond experience. The Board, however, implements g process for selection of directors who can add value and
contribute independent judgment to the formulation of sound corporate strategies and policies.

Does it ensure that at least one non-executive director has an experience in the sector or industry the company
belongs to? Please explain.

While there is no formal policy, there are three non-executive directors in the Company who have experience in the
industry.

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent
Directors:

{1} Implement a process for selection of directors who can add value and
contribute independent judgment to the formulotion of sound corporate
strategies and policies. Appoint competent, professional, hanest and
highly-maotivated manogement officers. Adopt an effective succession
planning for Management;

{2} Provide sound strategic policies and guidelines to the Company on major

capital expenditures. Establish programs thot can sustain its long-term

vigbility and strength. Periodically evaluate oand monitor the

implementation of such policies and strategies, including the business
Role/ plans, operating budgets and Management’s overall performance;
Accountabilities/ | {3} Ensure that the Company foithfully complies with aoll relevant laws,
Deliverables regulations and best business practices;

{4} Establish and maintain an investor relations pragram that will keep the
stockholders informed of impaortant developments in the Company. |If
feasible, the Company’s CEO or Chief Financial Officer {CFO) shall exercise
oversight responsibility over this program,

{5} Identify the Company’s stakeholders in the community in which the
Company operates or are directly affected by its operations, and formulate
a clear policy of accurate, timely and effective communication with them;

{6} Adopt a system of internal checks and balances. A regular review of the

effectiveness of such system shall be conducted to ensure the integrity of




the decision-making and reporting processes at all times. A continuing
review of the Company’s internal control system shall also be conducted in
order to maintain its adequacy and effectiveness;

{7} Identify key risk areas and key performance indicators and monitor these
factors with due diligence to enable the Company to anticipate and prepare
for possible threats to its operational and financicl viability;

{8} Define the role, duties, and responsibilities of the CEO as necessary,
integrating the dynamic requirements of the business as a going concern
and future expansionary prospects within the realm of good corporate
governance at all times;

{8} Formulate and implement policies and procedures that would ensure the
integrity and transparency of related party transactions between ond
among the Company and fts parent company, joint ventures, subsidiaries,
associates, dffiliates, major stockholders, officers and directors, including
their spouses, children ond dependent siblings and parents, and of
interlocking director refationships by members of the Board;

{10} Constitute an Audit Committee and such other commitiees it deems
necessary to assist the Board in the performance of its duties and
responsibilities;

(11jEstablish and maintain on ofternative dispute resolution system in the
Company that con amicably settle conflicts or differences between the
Company and its stockholders, and the Company and third parties,
including the regulatory authorities;

(12}Meet at such times or frequency as may be needed. The minutes of such
meetings shall be duly recorded wherein independent views during Board
meetings should be encouraged and given due consideration;

{13)Keep the activities and decisions of the Board within its authority under the
articles of incorporation and by-laws, and in accordance with existing lows,
rules and regulations;

(14)Appoint a Compliance Officer who shall have the rank of at least vice
president. In the absence of such appointment, the Corporate Secretary,
preferably a fawyer, shall act as Compliance Officer.

Provide the company’s definition of "independence” and describe the company’s compliance to the definition.
}

The Company has adopted jts definition of “independent director” from the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules which provides:

2. Asused in Section 38 of the [Securities Regulation Code], an ‘independent director’ is a person who,
apart from his fees and shareholdings,, is independent of management and free from any business or
other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with his exercise
of independent judgment in carrying out his responsibilities as a director in any covered company and
includes, among others, any person who:

A. s not a director or officer of the covered company or of its substantial shareholders except when the
same shall an independent director of any of the foregoing;

B, Does not own more than two percent (2%} of the shares of the covered company and/or its related
companies or any of its substantial shareholders;

C. Is not related to any director, officer or substantial shareholder of the covered company, any of its
refated companies or any of ifs substantial shareholders. For this purpose, relatives includes spouse,
parent, child, brother, sister, and spouse of such child, brother or sister;

L. s not acting os a nominee or representative of any director or substantial shareholder of the covered
company, and/or any of its related companies and/or any of its substantial shareholders, pursuant to a
Deed of Trust or under any contract or arrangement;



5)

E.  Hos not been employed in any executive capacity by the covered company, any of its related
companies and/or by any of its substantial shareholders within the last two (2) years;

. Is not retained, either personally or through his firm or any simifar entity, as professional adviser, by
the covered company, any of its related companies and/or any of its substantial shareholders within the
last twao {2} years; or

G. Has not engaged and does not engage in any transaction with the covered company or with any of its
related companies and/or with any of its substantial shareholders, whether by himself and/or with other
persons and/or through a firm of which he is a partner and/or a company of which he is a director or
substantial shareholder, other than transactions which are conducted at orm’s length and are immaterial,

The Nomination Committee pre-screens the qualifications of the nominees for independent director, and prepares
the Final List of Candidates efigible for election as independent director/s.

Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for independent directors? If after two years, the
company wishes to bring back an independent director who had served for five years, does it limit the term for no
more than four additional years? Please explain.

The Company follows SEC Memorandum Circular No. 9 {December 5, 2011) which imposed term limits on
independent directors. The Company’s independent directors can serve for five consecutive years. After the five-
year period, an independent director shall be ineligible for election unless he undergoes a two-year “cooling off”
period. After the “cooling-off” period, an independent director may be re-elected as such and he can serve for
another five consecutive years. After serving for ten years, the independent director shall be perpetually barred
from being elected as such in the Company. These term limits are in place as of January 2, 2012, when the circulor
took effect. All previous terms served by the existing independent directors shall not be included in the application
of the term limits.

Changes in the Board of Directors {Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors)
{a} Resignation/Death/Removal
Indicate any changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that happened during the period:
None.
(b} Selection/Appointment, Re-election, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and Suspension
Describe the procedures for the selection/appointment, re-election, disqualification, removal, reinstatement

and suspension of the members of the Board of Directors. Provide details of the processes adopted
{including the frequency of election) and the criteria employed in each procedure:

(i} Executive Directors Directors are elected annualfly | The Company’s By-laws and

by the stockholders for a term | Manual provide for the
of one year and shalf serve | qualification and
until  the election and ] disqualification of nominees
acceptance of their duly | for regular director and an

(it} Non-Executive Directors

qualified successors. independent director to the
The Nomination Committee | Board.
{iit} Independent Directors reviews and evgluates the

qualifications of afl persons
nominated to the Board and
shortlists alf qualified
nominees.
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(i) Executive Directors

{il} Non-Executive Directors

(i) Independent Directors

{i) Executive Directors

Directors hold office for one
year. If nominated at the next
annual stockholders’ meeting,
they may be elected for
another one-year term.

Please see response in Item o
above.

The Company’s By-laws and
Manual provide for the
gudlification and
disqualification of nominees
for regular director and an
independent director to the
Board,

{ii} Non-Executive Directors

{tii) Independent Directors

{i} Executive Directors

{ii} Non-Executive Directors

{iii} Independent Directors

{i} Executive Directors

{if} Non-Executive Directors

{iii) Independent Directors

{i} Executive Directors

{ii) Non-Executive Directors

{iii) Independent Directors

The Nomination Committee
reviews and evaluates the
qualifications of all persons
nominated to the Board and
shortlists ail qualified

nominees,

The Nomination Committee
reviews and evaluates the
qualifications of all persons
nominated to the Board and
shortlists all qualified
in

The  Company’s  Manual
provides for grounds that will
constitute permanent
disqualification for a director.

The  Company’s  Manual
provides for grounds that will
constitute permanent
disqualification for a director.

Notice and  hearing are
required prior to the imposition
by the Boord of the penalty of
removal from office.

None

(i} Executive Directors

{ii) Non-Executive Directors

{iii} Independent Directors

Notice and hearing are
required prior to the imposition
by the Board of the penalty of
suspension from office.

The Board may impose other
penalties in addition to those
provided in the applicable
regulations of the
Commission, an the individual

directors, officers, and
employees, such as censture,
suspension and removal from
office  depending on the
gravity of the offense as well
as the frequency of the
violation.

The commission of a grave
violation of this Manual by
any member of the Board
shall be sufficient cause for
removal from directorship.

The Board may impose other
penaities in addition to those
provided in the applicable
regulations of the
Commission, on the individual
directors, officers, ahd
employees, such as censure,
suspension and removal from
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office depending on the
gravity of the offense as well
as the frequency of the
violation.

Voting Result of the last Annual General Meeting

fan §. Thackwray 5,584,596,053
Daniel M. Bach 5,580,201,031
Eduardo A. Sahagun 5,584,596,053
Tomas |. Alcantara 5,580,201,031
Simeon V. Marcelo 5,584,556,053
Yasuo Kitamoto 5,584,596,053
David L. Balangue 5,584,596,053

6) Orientation and Education Program
(a) Disclose details of the company’s orientation program for new directors, if any.
The Company is in the process of setting up a new orientation program for the directors.

{b) State any in-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senior Management? for the past
three (3} years:

The Directors and Senior Management attended a Corporate Governance Seminar held on December 4, 2015
conducted by Risks Opportunities Assessment and Manogement (ROAM), inc.

{c} Continuing education programs for directors: programs and seminars and roundtables attended during the
year,

) ugust25

David L. Balangue
Sycip Gorres and Velayo
Updates on Anti-Money Laundering Act 30 September 2015
conducted by Philippine Bank of
Communications

Tomas I Alcantara PHILIECC/IPECC Joint Meeting 30 March 2015
6" Asian Business Summit 13 July 2015

Simeon V. Marcelo Distinguished Corporate Governance 26 lanuary 2015
Speaker Series

B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

1) Discuss briefly the company’s policies on the following business conduct or ethics affecting directors, senior
management and employees:

% Senior Management refers to the CEO and other persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and contralling the activities of
the company.
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{a} Conflict of Interest Manuaol HPHI Way;

Anti-Bribery & Corruption Directive (ABCD)
Code of Business Conduct (COBC)

Conflict of Interest {CO}) Directive

(b} Conduct of Business [ Manual HPHI Way; ABCD; COBC, Third Party Due Diligence
and Fair Dealings Directive {TPDD)

{c} Receipt of gifts from | None ABCD; Gifts, Hospitalities, Sponsorships &
third parties Donations Guidelines; COBC

(d) Compliance with Manual HPHI Way; ABCD; Fair Competition Directive; COBC
Laws & Regulations

{e) Respect for Trade HPHI Way, COBC

Secrets/Use of Non- | Manual
public Information

{f) Use of Company Manual HPHI Way, ABCD; COBC
Funds, Assets and
Information
{g} Employment & None HPHI Way; COBC
Labor Laws &
Policies
{h} Disciplinary action None HPHI Way; COBC
{i) Whistle Blower None ABCD; Integrity Line; COBC
{i} Conflict Resolution | None None

2) Has the code of ethics or conduct been disseminated to all directors, senior management and employees?
Yes.
3) Discuss how the company implements and monitors compliance with the code of ethics or conduct.

The Company is now supported by a Compliance Officer (a position distinct from the Compliance Officer under the
Manual which is delegated to the Corporate Secretory} who is specificolly tasked to establish and implement the
Company’s Compliance Program, which includes the COBC, ABCD, integrity Line, COI Directive, and TPDD. The
Compliance Officer conducts trainings and workshops on the various directives and policies, attendance to which
trainings and workshops are mandatory. Certain directives are supported by e-Legrning online tools which are
required to be accessed annually with signed certifications.

4) Related Party Transactions
{a) Policies and Procedures

Describe the company’s palicies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification, monitoring and
recording of related party transactions between and among the company and its parent, joint ventures,
subsidiaries, associates, affiliates, substantial stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses,
children and dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director relationships of members of the
Board.

The Company ensures financial management and alf related transactions are compliant with local reguiations
and corporate rules, Furthermore, transactions between Group companies are to be undertaken at arm’s
length principle to avoid tax or other legal exposures. All Group companies are subject to the performance of
an external statutory audit and internal gudit reviews according to Group standards.

Under the arm’s length principle, whenever there is a sale of goods or rendering of services, each party in the
related party transaction should be justly compensated for its sale of goods, for the use of its assets or for
services that is rendered. The buyer of the good or service, on the other hand, should just be paying a price/fee
commensurate to the goods or services received as if the good/service was provided by an unrelated party.
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The reasonableness of the compensation/payment is generally weighed against the nature of the goods
transferred/services rendered, the functions performed by buyer and seller, contractual terms, the risks borne
by the buyer and seller, as well as the assets that they emplfoy, among others.

The application of arm’s length principle would, first and foremost, invoive the identification of comparable
situation(s} or transaction(s) undertaken by independent parties against which the associated enterprise
transaction or margin is to be benchmarked. It entails an analysis of the similarities and differences in the
conditions and characteristics that are found in the associated enterprise transaction with those in an
independent party transaction. Once the impact of these similarities or differences have on the transfer price
have been determined, the arm’s length price/margin (or a range] can then be established using an
appropriate transfer pricing method.

{1) Parent Company

{2} Joint Ventures

(3} Subsidiaries

{4) Entities Under Common Control

{5) Substantial Stockholders

(6) Officers including
spouse/children/siblings/parents

{7) Directors inchuding
spouse/children/siblings/parents

{8) Interlocking director relationship
of Board of Directors

Transactions between Group companies are undertaken at arm’s
length principle in accordance with IFRS, PFRS, the Group's
Accounting Reporting and Controliing Policy as well as its Transfer
Pricing Directive.

{b) Conflict of Interest
{i) Directors/Officers and 5% or more Shareholders

identify any actual or probable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5% or more shareholders
may be involved.

Name of Director/s None
Name of Officer/s None
Name of Sighificant Shareholders None

(i} Mechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, determine and resolve any possible conflict of interest
between the company and/or its group and their diractors, officers and significant shareholders.

Company Manual; HPHI Way, ABCD, COI Directive
Group Group Code of Business Conduct; ABCD; COI Directive

5) Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations

(a) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a family,’ commercial, contractual or business nature that exists
between the holders of significant equity (5% or more}, to the extent that they are known to the company:

3 Family relationship up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.
14



6)

C

1)

2

3)

(b) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between the
holders of significant equity (5% or more} and the company:

{¢) Indicate any shareholder agreements that may impact on the control, ownership and strategic direction of
the company:

Alternative Dispute Resolution

Describe the alternative dispute resolution system adopted by the company for the last three (3) years in amicably
settling conflicts or differences between the corporation and its stockholders, and the carporation and third
parties, including regulatory authorities.

Corporation & Stockholders None
Corporation & Third Parties None
Corporation & Regulatory Authorities None

BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE
Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled before ar at the beginning of the year?

Yes.

Attendance of Directors (fanuary 2015 to December 2015)

Chairman Tomas I. Alcantara May 18, 2015 & 6 1(50%
Member fan 8. Thackwray May 18, 2015 6 4 67%
Member Eduardo A. Sahagun May 18, 2015 & & 100%
Member Daniel N. Bach May 18, 2015 6 6 100%
Independent Yasuo Kitamoto May 18, 2015 6 6 100%
Independent Simeon V. Marcelo May 18, 2015 [ 5 83%
Independent®* | David L. Balangue May 18, 2015 4 4 100%

*The table also includes attendance of the above directors at Board meetings from January to May 16, 2015,
during which they also served as directors hoving been elected on May 16, 2014.
**Elected as Independent Director on May 18, 2015

Do non-executive directors have a separate meeting during the year without the presence of any executive? If
yes, how many times?
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5)

6)

The non-executive directors do not hold such meetings.

Is the minimum quorum requirement for Board decisions set at two-thirds of board members? Please explain.

Under the Company’s By-faws, a quorum at any Board meeting shall consist of a majority of the entire
membership of the Board. A majority of such quorum shall decide any question at the meeting.

Access to Information

{a)

{b}

{c)

{e}

How many days in advance are board papers® for board of directors meetings provided to the board?

One week.

Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary?

Yes.

State the policy of the role of the company secretary. Does such role include assisting the Chairman in
preparing the board agenda, facilitating training of directors, keeping directors updated regarding any

relevant statutory and regulatory changes, et¢?

The Corporate Secretary shall be responsible for the safekeeping and preservation of the integrity of the
minutes of the meetings of the Board and its committees, as well as the other records of the Company.

As to the agenda, the Corporate Secretary is tasked to get a complete schedule thereof at least for the current
year and inform the members of the Board, in accordance with the By-laws, of the agenda. Also, the
Corporate Secretary must ensure that the members of the Board have before them wccurate information that
will enable them to arrive at intelligent decisions on matters that require their approval.

The Corporate Secretary should have a working knowledge of the operations of the Company. Furthermore,
the Corporate Secretary should assist the Boord in making business judgment in good foith and in the

performance of their responsibilities and obligations;

Is the company secretary trained in legal, accountancy or company secretarial practices? Please explain
should the answer be in the negative.

Yes.
Committee Procedures

Disclose whether there is a procedure that Directors can avail of to enable them to get information necessary
to be able to prepare in advance for the meetings of different committees:

Yes No[ ]

Executive The Corporate Secretary prepares all materials for Board and

Audit Board Committee meetings, which are required to be sent to the

Nomination Board members at least one week prior fo the meeting. The

Executive Compensation Board members may ask the Corporate Secretary for information
or materials to allow them to prepare for meetings.

External Advice

* Board papers consist of complete and adequate information about the matters to be taken in the board meeting. Information includes the
background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures, budgets, forecasts and internal financial documents.
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7)

1)

2)

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external advice and, if so, provide
details:

No formal procedure The Board or Committees ask for external gdvice as they may
deem necessary.

Change/s in existing policies

Indicate, if applicable, any change/s introduced by the Board of Directors (during its most recent term} on
existing policies that may have an effect on the business of the company and the reason/s for the change:

REMUNERATION MATTERS

Remuneration Process

Disclose the process used for determining the remuneration of the CEO and the four {4) most highly compensated
management officers:

Based on the Company Based on the Company’s TRS
compensation policy, the Total
(1) Fixed remuneration Rewards System (TRS), which is
performonce-based,

competitive and sustainable.

(2) Variable remuneration | Based on the Company’s TRS Based on the Company’s TRS
(3) Per diem allowance None None
{4) Bonus Based an the Company’s TRS Based on the Company’s TRS
{5) Stock Options and None None

other financial

instruments

Benefits under the Company’s Benefits under the Company’s
. TRS, such as insurance TRS, such as insurance coverage,

(6] Others {specify) coverage, medical care, car medical care, car benefit,

benefit, retirement benefit, etc. | retirement benefit, etc.

Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Disclose the company’s policy on remuneration and the structure of its compensation package. Explain how the
compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is calculated.

Not entitled to directors per diem
Compensation as Company officer only based on the Company’s TRS

Executive Directors

Fixed annual Annual per diem for directors Based on current
Non-Executive Directors per diem Annual per diem per Board competitive rates

committee chairmanship and {sufficient fevel to
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membership attract and retain
directors)

Do stockholders have the opportunity to approve the decision on total remuneration (fees, allowances, benefits-
in-kind and other emoluments}) of board of directors? Provide details for the last three (3) years.

Pursuant to the Company’s Manual, the Board Executive Compensation Committee shall establish formal and
transparent procedure for developing a policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration
packages of corporate officers and directors, and to designate the amount of remuneration, which shall be in a
sufficient level to attract and retain directors and officers who are needed to run the company successfully, subject
to approval of the Board.

The Company’s Annual Reports and Information Statements distributed gnd accessible to stockholders before the
annual meetings disclose the compensation of its executive officers and directors for the previous fiscal year and
the ensuing year. At annual meetings, stockholders are asked to ratify all acts and resolutions of its Board and its
Committees, hence, they have the opportunity to approve decisions on total remuneration.

Annual remuneration per director, per committee May 17, 2012
Annual remuneration per director, per committee Muay 23, 2013
Annual remuneration per director, per committee May 16, 2014
Annual remuneration per director, per committee May 18, 2015

3} Aggregate Remuneration

Complete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrued during the most recent year:

{a) Fixed Remuneration

" . Based on the None None
(b} Variable Remuneration Company’s TRS
Not entitled to Nane

directors per diem; Effective August 1, 2015:
Compensation gs
Company officer only | Annual Per Diem for
based on the Directors: P2,600,000
Company’s TRS
Chairman of the Board:
P500,000

. Annual Per Diem Per
{c] Per diem Allowance Committee:
Member of Compensation
Committee = P200,000

Member of Nomination
Committee = P100,000

Chairman of Audit
Committee Chairman =
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P400,00

Member of Audit
Committee Member
=R300,000

The new rates shail be pro-
rated from August 2015 to
Aprif 2016. The full rate

shall be applied starting
next term (May 2016 —
April 2017).
(d) Bonuses Based on the None None
Company’s TRS
{e} Stock Options and/or None None None
other financial
instruments
(f) Others (Specify) None None None
Amount varies Amount varies depending | Amount
depending on on committee membership | varies
individual and depending on
Cempany committee
| performance membership

i) Advances

None

2) Credit granted

None None

3) Pension Plan/s
Contributions

Based on the Company’s | None
TRS

(d} Pension Plans,
Obligations incurred

Based on Company None
retirement plan

{e) Life Insurance Premium

Based on the Company’s | None
TRS

{f] Hospitalization Plan

Based on the Company’s | None
TRS

{g} CarPlan

Based on the Company’s | None
TRS

{h} Others (Specify)

Other benefits under the { None
Company’s TRS, such as
other medical care,
educational and cement
loans, calamity, burial,
refocation, maternity
assistance, etc,

Amount varies | None
depending on benefit
avgilment

4)  Stock Rights, Options and Warrants

2. Board of Directors
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Complete the following table, on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who own or are entitled
to stock rights, options or warrants over the company’s shares;

{a} Amendments of Incentive Programs

Indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any incentive programs introduced, including the criteria

used in the creation of the program. Disclose whether these are subject to approval during the Annual
Stockholders” Meeting:

None

5) Remuneration of Management

Identify the five (5) members of management who are not at the same time executive directors and indicate the
total remuneration received during the financial year:

Andre Caluorif Senior Vice President - Manufacturing

Carmela Dolores S. Calimbas / Head, Health Safety & Security Php48,958,495

Araceli E. Gonzales / Head, Organization and Human Resources

Witliam C. Sumalinog / Head, Salfes

Nerissa V. Ronquille / Head, Communication and Corporate
Affairs

E. BOARD COMMITTEES
1) Number of Members, Functions and Responsihilities

Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key responsibilities and the
power/authority delegated to it by the Board: {as of May 18, 2015)

1 3 Manual (i) Advise and aid the officers of the Company
in all matters concerning its interest and the
management of the Company’s business;
and

(i) Except for the following powers, exercise alf
the powers of the Board of Directors in the
management of the business and affairs of
the Company during the intervals between

Executive

20



the meetings of the Board: such powers as
granted by law to the Board; the power to
fill vacancies in the Boord; and such powers
gs the Board may expressly reserve at any
time.

Audit

Manual

{i} Assist the Board in the performance of its
oversight responsibility for the financial
reporting process, system of internal control,
audit process, and monitoring of compliance
with applicable laws, rules and reguiations;
fii} Provide oversight over Management’s
activities specifically in the areas of managing
credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal and
other risks of the Company. This function shall
include regular receipt from Management of
information on risk  exposures and risk
management activities;
{iii} Perform oversight functions over the
Company’s internal and external auditors. It
should ensure the independence of both internal
and external auditors from eoch other.
Furthermore, the audit committee shall make
certain that both guditors are given unrestricted
access to all records, properties and personnel to
enable them to perform their respective audit
functions;
{iv) Review the annual internal cudit plan to
ensure its conformity with the objectives of the
Company. The plan shail include the oudit scope,
resources and budget necessary to implement it;
{v} Prior to the commencement of the audit,
discuss with the externaol guditor the nature,
scope and expenses of the gudit scope, and
ensure proper coordination if more than one
audit firm is involved in the activity to secure
proper coverage and minimize duplication of
efforts;
(vi] Organize an internal audit department, and
consider the appointment of an independent
internal auditor and the terms and conditions of
its engagement and removal;
{vii} Monitor and evalugte the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system, including financial reporting controf and
information technology security;
{vifi) Review the reports submitted by the
internal and external auditors;
{ix} Review the guarterly, half-year and annual
financiol statements before their submission to
the Board, with particular focus on the following
matters:

1} Any change/s in accounting policies and

practices;

(2)  Major judgmental areas;

{3)  Significant adjustments resulting from

the audit;

{4}  Going concern assumptions;

(5] Compliance with accounting standards;
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{6) Compfiance with tax, legal and
regulatory requirements;
{x} Coordinate, monitor  and  facilitate
compliance with lows, rules and regulations;
{xi} Evaluate and determine the non-audit work,
if any, of the external auditor, and review
periodically the non-gudit fees paid to the
external auditor in refation to their significance
to the total annual income of the externgl
auditor and to the Company’s overall
consultancy expenses. The Audit Committee
shall disalfow any non-audit work that will
conflict with his duties s an external auditor or
may pose a threat to his independence. The
non-audit work, if allowed, should be disclosed
in the Company’s annual report;
{xii} Establisk and identify the reparting line
of the internal auditor to enable him to properly
fulfill his duties and responsibilities. He shail
functionally report directly to the Audit
Committee;
(xiii} The Audit Committee shail ensure that,
in the performance of the work of the internaf
auditor, he shall be free from interference by
outside parties;
{xiv) Pre-approve oll audit plans, scope and
frequency one (1) month before the conduct of
external audit;
{xv} Elevate to international standards the
aceounting and auditing, process, practices and
methodologies, and develop the following in
refation to this reform:
{1} A definitive timetable within which the
accounting system of the Company will be
100% International Accounting Standard
(iAS) compliant;
{2) An accountability statement that will
specifically identify officers and/or personnel
directly responsible for the accomplishment
of such task;
{xvi} Develop a transparent financial
management system to ensure the integrity of
internal  controf activities throughout the
Company through a step-by-step procedure and
policies handbook that will be used by the entire
organization;
{xvif) Supervise Management in the formulation
of rules and procedure on financial reporting and
internal  contro! in accordance with  the
guidelines provided in the Code.

Nominatio
r

Manual

The Nomination Committee shall review and
evaluate the qualificotions of all persons
nominated to the Board and other appointments
that require Board approval, and to assess the
effectiveness of the Board’s processes and
procedures in the election or replacement of
directors. In carrying out its duties, the
Nemination Committee may request the
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2}

assistance  of the  Human  Resources
Director/Manager of the Company.

Subject to the pertinent provisions of the By-laws
on the disqualification of persons engaged in
business antagonistic to that of the Company,
the Nomination Committee shall pre-screen and
shortlist all candidates nominated to become
members of the Board.

Executive
Compensat
ion

Manual

(i} Estabiish a formal and tronsparent
procedure for developing o policy an executive
rermuneration and for fixing the remuneration
packages of corporate officers and directors and
provide oversight over remuneration of senior
management and other key personnel ensuring
that compensation is consistent with the
Company’s culture, strategy and controf
environment;

(i} Designate the amount of remuneration,
which shall be in a sufficient level to attract and
retain directors and officers who are needed to
run the Company successfully, subject to
approval of the Board:

{iii} Develop a form on Full Business Interest
Disclosure as part of the pre-employment
requirements for all incoming officers, which
among others compel all officers to declare
under the penalty of perjury afl their existing
business interests or shareholdings that may
directly or indirectly confiict with their
performance of duties once hired;

{iv) Disallow any director to decide his or her
own remuneration;

{v} Provide in the Company’s annual reports
prescribed by the Commission, information and
proxy staterments a clear, concise and
understandable disclosure of compensation of its
executive officers for the previous fiscal year and
the ensuing year, consistent with the guidelines
of the Commission;

{vi) Review the existing Human Resources
Development or Personnel Handbook to
strengthen provisions on conflict of interest,
salaries and benefit policies, promotion and
career advancement directives and compliance
of personnel concerned with alf statutory
requirements that must be met periodically in
their respective posts;

fvii) in the absence of such the Personnef
Handbook, cause the development of such,
covering the same parameters of governance
stated above,

Committee Members

{a} Executive Committee
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Chairman{NED]} | lan S. Thackwray May 18, 2015 10 years
Member (NED) | Daniel N. Bach May 18, 2015 2 year
Member (ED) Eduardo A. Sahagun May 18, 2015 3 years

(b} Audit Committee

Chairman {iD} | David L. Balangue May 18, 2015 3 3 100% 1year
Member{1Dj} Simeon V. Marcelo™* | May 18, 2015 4 4 100% 2 years
Member (NED) | Daniel N, Bach** May 18, 2015 4 4 100% 2 years
Member (NED) | Tomas ). Alcantara May 18, 2015 3 2 66.7% 1 year

Member (1D} | Yasuo Kitamoto May 16, 2014 1 1 100% 1year

*The table aiso includes attendance of the above directors at meetings from January to May 16, 2015, during
which they also served as committee members having been elected on May 16, 2014.
**Previously elected an May 16, 2014

Disclose the profile or qualifications of the Audit Committee members. {as disclosed in Sec Form 20-IS)

simeon V. Marcelo, 62, graduated among the top of his class at the University of the Phillppines - College of
Low and placed 5th in the 1973 bar examination. He served as Soficitor Generol from February 2001 to
October 2003 and was Ombudsman from October 2003 to November 2005, From 2007 to 2010, Mr. Marcelo
served as Executive Secretary of the Asion Development Bank Administrative Tribunal and from 2008 to June
2014, was a member of the World Bank’s Independent Advisory Board {on good governance and anti-
corruption matters). Mr. Marcelo was also elected os the President of the Philippine Bar Association from
2008 to 2010. During its Centennial Year 2013, the University of the Philippines Alumni Association conferred
upon him the Distinguished Alumni Award in Public Service. He is the Chief Executive Officer of Cruz Marcelo &
Tenefrancia Law Offices. Mr. Marcelo was elected as independent director of the Company in 2014.

Daniel N. Bach, 52, was formerly @ member of the Board of Directors and the Company’s Senior Vice President
for Manufacturing in 2007 until his assignment as CEO of Holcim Romania in 2011. In January 2014, he took
on a new role as Holcim’s Area Manager for South East Asia. He gradugted with o Mechanical Engineering
degree and ¢ doctoral degree in Technical Sciences, both from the Swiss Federal Institute of Technology in
Zurich, Switzerland. In July 2015, Mr. Bach was appointed Area Manager for South East Asia (East).

David L. Balangue, 64, is a certified public accountant with a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce in Commerce,
major in Accounting, Magna Cum Laude, from Manuel L. Quezon University and o Master of Management
degree, with distinction, from the Kellogg Graduate School of Management. He placed second highest in the
1972 Philippine CPA Board Examinations. Mr. Balangue’s career in the accounting and quditing professions
spanned 38 years at SGV & Co., where he was Chairman from January 2004 to January 2010 and Managing
Fartner from January 2004 to February 2009, after being admitted to partnership in 1982. He is currently the
Chairman of the Philippine Center for Population and Development, the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards Council, the National Citizens Movement for Free Elections (NAMFREL) and Coalition Against
Corruption and a non-executive independent director of the following listed companies: Trans-Asia O and
Energy Development Corp., Roxas Holdings, Inc., Philippine Bank of Communications and Manulife Financial
Corp.
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Tomnas I Alcantara, 68, holds g Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from Ateneo de Manila University, a
Muasters in Business Administration degree from Columbia University, USA and ogttended the Advance
Management Program of the Harvard Business School. He is presently the Chairman and President of Alsons
Consolidated Resources, Inc., and of several power and property development companies in the Alcontara
Group. He is Chairman of the Eagle Ridge Golf & Country Club, inc. and Philweb Corporation, Mr. Alcantara
was Undersecretary for the industry & investment Group of the Department of Trade and Industry and the
Vice Chairman and Managing Head of the Board of investments from July 1986 to March 1995, He was also
Spectal Envoy of the Philippine President to APEC in 1996. He was elected Director of the Company on July 4,
2003.

Describe the Audit Committee’s responsibility relative to the external auditor.

Perform oversight functions over the Company’s internal and external auditors. it should ensure the
independence of both internal and external auditors from each other. Furthermore, the audit committee shall
make certain that both auditors are given unrestricted access to all records, properties and personnel to
enable them to perform their respective audit functions;

Prior to the commencement of the audit, discuss with the external auditor the nature, scope and expenses of
the audit scope, and ensure proper coordination if more than one audit firm is invoived in the activity to
secure proper coverage ond minimize duplication of efforts;

The extent of its responsibility in the preparation of the financial statements of the Company, with the
corresponding delineation of the responsibilities that pertain to the external auditor, should be clearly
explained;

Review the reports submitted by the internal and external quditors;

Evaluate and determine the non-audit work, if any, of the external auditor, and review periodically the non-
gudit fees paid to the external auditor in relation to their significance to the total annual income of the
externaf auditor and to the Company’s overall consultancy expenses. The Audit Committee shall disaliow any
non-gudit work that will conflict with his duties as an external auditor or may pose o threat to his
independence. The non-oudit work, if alfowed, shouid be disclosed in the Company’s annual report.

Pre-approve all audit plans, scope and frequency ane (1} month before the conduct of external qudit,

{c) Nomination Committee

Chairman{NED} | Simeon Marcela May 18, 2015 1 1 100% 1 year
Member (1D} Yasuo Kitumoto May 18, 2015 1 1 100% 4 years
Member (1D} David L. Balangue May 18, 2015 1 1 100% 1 year

{d} Executive Compensation Committee

Chairman Daniel N. Bach May 18, 2015 i 1 100% 2 years
(NED)

Member (1D} David L. Balangue May 18, 2015 1 1 100% 1 year
Member (i3} | Simeon V. Marcelo May 18, 2015 1 1 100% 2 years
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{e} Others (Specify)
Provide the same information on all other committees constituted by the Board of Directors:
There are no other Board committees.

3} Changes in Committee Members

Indicate any changes in committee membership that cccurred during the year 2015 and the reason for the
changes:

Executive No change

Audit Yasuo Kitamoto Tomas I. Alcantara and David L. Balangue were
appointed as members of the committee on May
18, 2015,

Nomination Tarmas . Alcantara Simeon V. Marcelo was appointed as member and

fan §. Thackwray chairman on May 18, 2015,

David L. Balangue was appointed as member on
May 18, 2015.

Executive Tomas I. Alcantara David L. Bolangue waos oppointed as member on

Compensation May 18, 2015,

4}  Work Done and Issues Addressed

Describe the work done by each committee and the significant issues addressed during the year.

Executive None None

Audit Reviewed and approved Audited Usuol deliberations on financial reports, audit
Financial Statement, Annual Report reports, discussion on risks
and Quarterly Reports

Nomination Screened and qualified candidates Assessment based on required qualifications
nominated for the term 2015-2016 and yearly performance

Executive Reviewed compensation of the Board | Deliberations on ensuring compensation is

Compensation and the Company competitive, performance-based and

sustainable

5) Committee Program

Provide a list of programs that each committee plans to undertake to address relevant issues in the improvement
or enforcement of effective governance for the coming year.

Executive None None
Audit Compliance policies Proper training and dissemination
Nomination Continue performing functions
Executive , .
. Continue performing functions
Compensation perf 9f

F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

1} Disclose the following:
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{a) Overall risk management philosaphy of the company;

(b) A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and
commenting on the adequacy thereof;

{¢) Period covered by the review;

{d) How often the risk management system is reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing its effectiveness;
and

(e} Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

The Company believes that excellence in the management of risk is an essential part of its competitive strategy. In
line with corporate strategy, the Board is tasked with approving the risk management and control policy, and
periodic monitoring of the internal controf and reporting systems. On the basis of the general guidelines mandated
by the Board, the Management Committee (ManCom) establishes necessary carporate policies that specify the
guidelines approved by the Board. In this context, and to perform its duties appropriately, the ManCom relies on
the essential duties carried out by the Steering Committee (SC) — Business Risk Management (BRM) whose main
responsibility includes spearheading the performance of company-wide annual risk assessment, definition of long-
term objectives, and development of strategic and business plans. The Business Development (8D) unit, under the
Finance function, of the Company facilitates such risk assessment.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Company’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
adequacy and effectiveness. The system is designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The risks associated with the Company’s activities are reviewed regularly by the Board, which assesses the
Company’s risk appetite/tolerance, and considers major risks and evaluates their impact on the Company. Policies
and procedures, which are reviewed and monitored by the Head of Internal Audit, are in place to deal with any
matters, which may be considered by the Board to present significant exposure.

The key features of the Company’s risk management process, which serve as measure of its effectiveness, include
the following:

e Each significant risk is documented, showing an overview of the risk, how the risk is managed, and any
improvement octions or corrective initiatives. Risks are categorized based on the impact to EBITDA.

e The risk profiles ensure that internal audit reviews of the adequacy, application and effectiveness of risk
management and internal controls are targeted on the key risks

®  Risk management is cascaded from corporate to business operating unit fevel. Risk assessment meetings
are held at least annually, and the standard agenda include discussion of risk and control issues, and
review and updating of risk profiles.

* Risk and control self-evaluation exercises are undertaken by each business operating unit level at least
twice a year, and updated risk profiles are prepared,

Risk Policy
{(a) Company

Give a general description of the company's risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s
covered by the system {ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind

of risk:

Market Risk Company enters into derivative financial | To reduce, where appropriate,
instruments to manage volatility refating | fluctuations in earnings and cash
to such exposures. flows associated with changes in

foreign currency and interest rate
risk.

Foreign Currency | Company may hedge certain foreign | To manage foreign currency risk

Risk currency-denominated  borrowings  or | exposures refated to its foreign
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3)

other instruments by entering into | currency-denominated loan.
derivative transactions.

interest Rate | The Company is exposed to fluctuations in | To manage the risk exposure

Risk financing costs and market value | rated to fluctuation in market
movements of its debt portfolio related to | interest rates.
chonges in market interest rates. To
manage the risk, the Company may enter
into derivative transactions, as
appropriate.

Credit Risk All third party customers who wish to | To  reduce the Company’s
trade on credit terms are subject to credit | exposure to bad debts to minimal.
verification  procedures. In  addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis,

Liquidity Risk The Company monitors the risk using a | To maintain a balonce hetween
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool | continuity  of funding and
considers the maturity of both its financial | flexibility through the use of bank
assets and projected cash flows from | credit facilities, finance leases and
operations. purchase contracts,

Operational Risk | The Company monitors the operational | To assess corporate risks {both
risk through risk profiling and self- | general country and company
evaluation exercises undertaken at least | specific risks) along with business
twice a year at busingss operating unit | segment specific risks.
level. Risks are profiled based on impact
to Operating EBITDA.

(b) Group

Give a general description of the Group’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s covered
by the system {ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind of risk:

! Same as above

{c) Minarity Shareholders

Indicate the principal risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders’ voting power.

RE:

Minimal risk in view of minority shareholders’ rights given

Control System Set Up

{a} Company

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the

company:

The Company has in place a robust internal controf system. This includes clearly defined reporting lines and
authorization procedures, a comprehensive budgeting and monthly reporting system, and written polficies
and procedures. In addition to a wide range of internal audit reports, senior management also receive
assurance from other sources including security inspections, third party reviews, company financial control
reviews, external audit reports, summaries of whistle-blowing activity, fraud reports and risk and control

self-evaluations.

Sound Internal Control System (ICS} for financial reporting also exists. Controls are in ploce at entity and
business process levels while general controls on Information Technology are likewise implemented. The
company uses an effective consolidation system which is used for both internal management reporiing,
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budgeting and planning as well as external reporting. The group hos a comprehensive budgeting process
with the budget being approved by the Board. Forecasts for the year are reported ot least quarterly. Actual
results at business unit and at corporate level are reported monthly and variances are reviewed.

Financial
Reporting Risks

The Group external auditor provides
an eplnion regarding existence of the
IS on the consolidated oand
statutory financial statements.

place a formalized internal controls
system for fts processes affecting
financial reporting. This requirement is

The Company is required to have in

triggered by Swiss legisiation that asks
the externgl ouditor to verify the
existence of the system aof internal
controls.

(b} Group

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the

company:

Same as above

1
|

{c} Committee

identify the committee or any other body of corporate governance in charge of laying down and supervising
these control mechanisms, and give details of its functions:

internal Audit

Carporate ICS - overall process, effected by the Board, management, and
other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of compliance, financial reporting, and operating objectives. It
consists of the policies and procedures adopted by the management of an
organization to assist in achieving management’s objective of ensuring, as
far as practicable, the orderly and efficient eonduct of its business, including
adherence to manggement palicies, the safeguarding of assets, the
prevention and detection of froud and error, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of relioble financial
informatiorn.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

internal Control System

Disclose the following information pertaining to the internal control system of the company:

{a) Expiain how the internal control system is defined for the company;

The Company’s ICS is an overall process, effected by the Board, management, and other personnel, designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of

* compliance,

*  financial reporting, ond
+  pperating objectives.
1t consists of all the policies and procedures adopted by the management to assist in achieving management’s
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2)

{b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

objective of ensuring, as far as practicable, the orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence
to management policies, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection of fraud and error, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information

A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal controf system and whether
they consider them effective and adequate;

The Board through its Audit Committee reviews and monitors the Company’s established systems and
processes for risk muanagement, internal control and good governance. In the review of the design
effectiveness and adequacy of internal controls particularly those processes relating to financial reporting, the
Audit Committee is assisted by the Internal Audit {IA) team, Process and Controls group and the external
auditor. Results of the review are presented to the Audit Committee every quarter.

Period covered by the review;
2015,

How often internal controls are reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the
internal control system; and

The Company’s ICS is reviewed quarterly and annuolly. As to the criteria, based on the ICS Concept Paper
developed for testing and using SAP GRC PC as a tool for monitoring and updating ICS concept, a controf
deficiency in design effectiveness exists when the design of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements
on a timely basis and therefore the control does not meet the control objective.

Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

Not Applicoble

Internal Audit

(a)

Role, Scope, and Internal Audit Function

Give a general description of the role, scope of internal audit work and other details of the internal audit
function.

it helps the The scope of tn-house Atty. Victoria T. internal Audit
organization to internal Audit Tomelden, CPA, CIA | reports
accomplish its encompasses the functionally to
objectives by examination and the Audit
bringing ¢ evafuation of the Committee and
systematic and adequacy, reports
disciplined approach | effectiveness and administratively
to evaluate and appropriateness of to the CEQ.
improve the the organization’s
effectiveness of risk | governance, risk
management, management and
control and system of internal
governance control and the
processes. quality of

performance in
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carrying out
assigned
responsibilities to
achieve the
arganization’s
stated goals and
ohjectives.

{b} Do the appointment and/or removal of the Internal Auditor or the accounting /auditing firm or corporation to
which the internal audit function is outsourced require the approval of the audit committee?

Yes. This is documented in the internal Audit Charter,

{c} Discuss the internat auditor's reporting relationship with the audit commitiee. Does the internal auditor have
direct and unfettered access to the board of directors and the audit committee and to all records, properties
and personnef?

Yes. The Internal Audit is given full and complete access to any of the organization’s records, physicol
properties and personnel refevant ta the review. The Head of internal Audit is oiso given full and free access
to top management and reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Board. This authority is embodied in
the iA’s Charter as well.

(d) Resignation, Re-assignment and Reasons

Disclose any resignation/s or re-assignment of the internal audit staff (including those employed by the third-
party auditing firm) and the reason/s for them.

Catherine S. Encinas, Lead Auditor Resigned to be with her family in Mindanao

{e) Progress against Plans, Issues, Findings and Examination Trends

State the internal audit's progress against plans, significant issues, significant flndings and examination
trends.

Save for 2 projects’, alf projects stated in the audit plan for 2015 were
completed.
None

Most of the major ohservations noted pertain to sustainability of the process
owners’ compliance with documented business process, policies and/or
procedures.

Aside from looking at compliance with key internal control procedures, audit
examination is also geared towards looking and assessing process
inefficiencies to contribute to the Company’s bottom line.

The relationship among progress, plans, issues and findings should be viewed as an internal control review
cycle which involves the following step-by-step activities:

1} Preparation of an audit plan inclusive of a timeline and milestones;

2) Conduct of examination based on the plan;

3) Evaluation of the progress in the implementation of the plan;

4) Documentation of issues and findings as a result of the examination;

5) Determination of the pervasive issues and findings {“examination trends”) based on single year

result and/or year-to-year results;

® 1 audit project was cancelled due to duplication with another group conducting similar activity and 1 project was deferred for 2016, The
cancellation and deferral was duly approved by the Audit Committee,

¢ “lssues” are compliance matters that arise from adopting different interpretations,

7 “Findings” are those with concrete basis under the company’s policies and rules.
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{f

6) Conduct of the foregoing procedures on a regular basis.

Audit Control Policies and Procedures

Disclose all internat audit controls, policies and procedures that have been established by the company and
the result of an assessment as to whether the established controls, policies and procedures have been
implemented under the column “Implementation.”

IES Key Control ELC.KCT —Audit Committee Being
This entity level control provides that the Audit Committee has delegated the implemented
assessment of the risks of management override of internal control to the internal | based on the
oudit through the Internal Audit's Charter. Internal Audit submits annual report to | resuft of ICS
Audit Committee and is informed by Internal Audit in a timely monner about testing
significant cases of management override of internal control. Internal Audit conducted.
occasionally makes inquiries of members of management not responsible for
financial reporting to seek information about any possible eoncerns about ethics
and any management override of internal controls,
ICS Key Control ELC.KC8 ~ Internal Audit Function Being
This entity level control provides that internal audit is an independent function implemented
within the organization and they are prohibited from performing operating based on the
activities. It also provides that Internal Auditors have direct access to the Board result of ICS
or Audit Committee. The internal audit function adheres to professional testing
standards. conducted.
internal Audit Charter — where the internal audit activity’s purpose, authority Being
and responsibifity are defined. It established the internal audit activity’s position | implemented
in the organization; authorizes access to records, personnel and physical based on the
properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and defines the scope of | result of ICS
internal audit activities. testing
conducted.
Internal Audit Manual - The 1A Manual enumerates IA principles, processes and | Being
methodologies/ procedures to be used/adapted by internal auditors in implemented and
conducting internal audit activity. It also includes appendices for sample reviewed
reporting purposes. periodically.

{g) Mechanisms and Safeguards

State the mechanism established by the company to safeguard the independence of the auditors, financial
analysts, investment banks and rating agencies {example, restrictions on trading in the company’s shares and
imposition of internal approval procedures for these transactions, limitation on the non-audit services that an
external auditor may provide to the company):

Not
Applicable

Internal Audif Function:
To safequard the independence of internal Audit function, the
Head of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and administratively to the CEO. Al
gudit projects including the scope to be performed by 1A will
need the approval of the Audit Committee prior to execution.
The Heod of Internal Audit is ulso given unrestricted access to
the Audit Committee of the Board and top management.
Appointment or removal of the Head Internal Audit needs
approval from the Audit Committee as well,

Applicable

Not Not
Applicable

External Auditor:
Manitoring for compliance is in place for:
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{a} Relevant provisions under Amended SRC 68

{b) Code of Ethics of Professional Accountants

(c) Terms and conditions set forth in the oudit engogement
fetter

{h) State the officers (preferably the Chairman and the CEO) who will have to attest to the company’s full
compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance. Such confirmation must state that all directors,
officers and employees of the company have been given proper instruction on their respective duties as
mandated by the Code and that internal mechanisms are in place to ensure that compliance.

Chairman, CEQ, independent Directors.

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

1) Disclose the company’s policy and activities relative to the following:

Standardized business ,
. Annual review of processes
Customers' welfare processes
Annual customer conference
Customer rewards program
Supplier/contractor selection practice Procurement Policy Review of accreditation
PR P Supplier Code of Conduct process Orientation of vendors

Continuous reforestation
Progressive rehabilitation
Use of Alternative Fuel

Environmental Policy
Quurry Rehabilitation Directive

ronm friendly value-chai s
Environmentally y value-chain Biodiversity Directive

Resources
Water Directive
! C02 reduction
. 1] te Social R felli) 1 ivities i
Community interaction Corporg i tespons:brkty Various actrwtfes: J'n adopted
{CSR} Policy communities
. ] ABCD Face to Face Training
Anti-corruption programmes and . )
rocedures Integrity Line e-Learning tool
P TPDD TPDD Tool
Safeguarding creditors' rights None None

2} Does the company have a separate corporate responsibility (CR) report/section or sustainability report/section?
Yes, the Company has a Sustainable Development function under which CSR is encompassed.
3) Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation.
{a) What are the company’s policy for its employees’ safety, health, and welfare?
Occupational Health & Safety Policy
Cardinal Rules
Directives on Fatality Prevention Elements

{b) Show data relating to health, safety and welfare of its employees.

As a Company engaged in manufacturing, the Company has an OH&S function overseeing this concern for the
Company. The Company’s cement plants are ISO certified OH&S 18001 for OH&S Management.

{c) State the company’s training and development programmes for its employees. Show the data.

The Company provides continuous training and development to its employees that include local training in
leadership, innovation and foundation courses as well as global technical trainings.
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(d) State the company’s reward/compensation policy that accounts for the performance of the company beyond
short-term financial measures

The Company has a Total Rewards System which sets aut the Company’s compensation and rewards policy.

4) What are the company’s procedures for handling complaints by employees concerning ilegal {including

corruption) and unethical behaviour? Explain how employees are protected from retaliation.

The Company has an Integrity Line under its Anti-Bribery and Corruption Directive, which specifically mondates
non-retaliation for good foith reporting of genuine concerns,

.  DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

1) Ownership Structure

{a} Holding 5% shareholding or more

Union Cement Holdings 3,906,425,509 60.55% Union Cement Holdings Corp.
Corp. {same uas record owner)
Holderfin B.V. 1,168,450,997 18.11% Holderfin B.V.

{same as record owner}
Sumitomo Osaka 594,952,725 9.22% Sumitomeo Osaka Cement Co., Lid.
Cement Co., Ltd. {same as record owner)
Cemco Holdings, Inc. 456,689,560 07.08% Cemco Holdings, Inc.

{same as record owner)

No member of the senior management holds 5% or more shareholding of the Company.

2) Does the Annual Report disclose the following:

Yes

Should the Annual Report not disclose any of the ahove, please indicate the reason for the non-
disclosure.

The Company’s Annual Report contains the disclosure requirements imposed by the SRC, its implementing
Rules and Regulations, and the issuances of the SEC.
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3) External Auditor's fee

Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co

The non-audit fees of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Company for the year 2015 are for tax advisory and due diligence
services.

4}  Medium of Communication
List down the mode/s of communication that the company is using for disseminating information.

Regular briefings for media and selected investor analysts; continuing publicity efforts; annual meetings and report
for stockholders; meetings with potential investors as requested.

5) Date of release of audited financial report:

The Company’s SEC Form 17A {Annual Report with Audited Financial Statement) was filed with the Commission
and disclosed to the PSE in February 2015,

6} Company Website

Does the company have a website disclosing up-to-date information about the following?

Yes.

Yes,

Yes.

Yes, see GI5S and annual report.

Yes, see GIS ond annual report.

Yes.

Yes.

Yes.

Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

7} Disclosure of RPT

Payment of expenses 1.00
Clinco Clinco Corporation Parent
Due from related party 28.00
Cemco Holdings, Payment of expenses 254,00
Cemco ’ Parent
Inc. Due to related party 5,392.00
Union Cement Interest Expense 40,288.00
UCHC Holdings Parent
Corparation Due to related party 5,413.00
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Short-term loans 280,000.00
interest on loan 5,809.00
Asset transfer 475, 752.00
Holcim Mining Expenses for various charges 3,727.00
HMDC Development Associate Service contract 42,082.00
Corporation Lease of land 51,486.00
Additional Investment 203,750.00
Dividends 267,813.00
Due from related party 499,801.00
Expenses from various 200
Holcim Resources charges :
HRDC and Deveio,t?ment Associate Lease of land 2,498.00
Corporation
Due from related party 12,683.00
Expenses from various
i 12,257.00
LHAI LafargeHolcim Associate charges
Aggregates, Inc.
Due from related party 12,257.00
Expensi; ;;r;c;r:suanaus 280.00
APC Properties, .
APC inc. Associate Short-term loans 52,204.00
Due from related party 52,984.00
Expen f
xpe 5&3T ;;rrogr:svarrous 207.00
Qul . Quimson Associate
Limestone, Inc. Short-term loans 77,314.00
Due from related party 77,521.00
Expensi; {::;r:suanous 201.00
scMmce Sigma Cee Mmmg Associate
COprfatIOﬂ Short-term loans 666.00
Due from related party 867.00
I.-‘xpens&:j1 j;iz;r:svarrous 13.00
LORVI Lucky One Realty Associate
Ventures, Inc. Foreshore lease 20,400.00
Due to related porty 20,387.00
Service contract 537,056.00
) . Purchases and/or expense 67.66
Holcim East Asia -
HEAB Business Service Affitiate Transf: e;" Og ft'r ement 2,683.00
Centre B.V fapility
Asset transfer 188,682.00
Due from related party 100,565.00
Holcim Services
HSEA {Asia) Ltd. Affitiate Purchases and/or expense 93.00
Thailand
Holcim Purchases and/or expense 2,047,621.00
HTSX Technology and Affiliate
Services Due to related party 425,242.00
. Holcim Trading Purchases and/or expense 458,612.00
Holcim -
Tradin Pte. Ltd,, Affiliate
g Singapore Due to related party 328,324.00
HTPL Holcim Affiliate Purchases and/or expense 36,376.00
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Technology
{Singapore) Pte. Due to related party 8,271.00
Lid.
Other Purchases and/or expense 41,700.00
Holcim Affitiate
Group Due from related party 702.00
Affifiates

k

1

When RPTs are involved, what processes are in place to address them in the manner that will safeguard the
interest of the company and in particular of its minority shareholders and other stakeholders?

The Compary ensures financial management and all related transactions must be compliant with local regulations
and corporate rules. Furthermore, transactions between Group companies are to be undertaken at arm’s length
principle to avoid tax or other legal exposures. All Group companies are subject to the performance of on external
statutory audit and internal oudit reviews according to Group standards, See discussion in B4.

RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Right to participate effectively in and vote in Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meetings

{a} Quorum

Give details on the quorum required to convene the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting as set forth in fts
By-laws.

| Majority of the entire subscribed capital stock of the Company
{ represented in person or by proxy

(b} System Used to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the system used o approve corporate acts.

A motion is made, voted on and carried during the AGM for the ratification of
corporote acts.

{c) Stockholders' Rights

List any Stockholders’ Rights concerning Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting that differ from those laid
down in the Corporation Code.

Notice of Meeting complying with the period for | Special laws and the Company’s By-laws provide

giving out notices, the contents of the notice and | for ather rights not in the Corporation Code, such

authorization requirements for the person issuing | as:

the notice * Langer notice period (15 business days)

® Transmittal to stockholders of o written
information  statement ond maonagement
report which has been reviewed by the SEC

Appraisal right

Voting - voting by proxy, cumulative voting,
creation of voting trusts

Higher voting requirement for approval of certain
corporate acts
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Dividends

May 18, 2015 tune 15, 2015 July 9, 2015

{d} Stockholders’ Participation

1.

State, if any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder participation in the Annual/Special
Stockholders’ Meeting, including the procedure on how stockholders and other parties interested may
communicate directly with the Chairman of the Board, individual directors or board committees. Include
in the discussion the steps the Board has taken to solicit and understand the views of the stockholders as
welf as procedures for putting forward proposals at stockholders’ meetings,

a. The Company duly discloses in its Information Statement (which is distributed fifteen working days
prior to the meeting date) to stockholders of items requiring stackholder approval.
The Chairman requests and takes questions from the stockholders during the meeting.

€. The Chairman answers or requests Company officers to respond to the stockholders’ questions.

State the company policy of asking shareholders to actively participate In corporate decisions regarding:
a.  Amendments to the company's constitution
b. Authorization of additional shares
¢ Transfer of all or substantially all assets, which in effect results in the sale of the company

The Company duly discioses in its Information Statement to stockholders of items requiring stockholder
approval, the vote required and voting procedure therefor.

Does the company observe a minimum of 21 business days for giving out of notices to the AGM where
items to be resolved by shareholders are taken up?

The Company’s Amended Bylaws provide that notices to stockholders for meetings shail be prepared and
mailed no less than fifteen working days prior to the meeting date.

a. Date of sending out notices: Aprif 22, 2015

b. Date of the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting:  May 18, 2015

. State, if any, questions and answers during the Annual/Special Stockholders” Meeting.

The stockholders asked regarding (i) the proposed merger between Lafarge 5. A. and Holcim Ltd. that was
subject of international news and (ii) the proposed acquisition by the Company of certain assets of Lafarge
Republic, inc. It was explained that Holcim Ltd. disclosed that in an extraordinary general meeting of its
stockholders held in early May 2015, majority of its stockholders approved the proposed merger with
Lafarge SA and the change of name from Holcim Ltd. to LafargeHolcim Ltd, among other resolutions, to
give effect to the merger. The merger is subject to the satisfactory completion of the exchange offer to the
ex-Lafarge stockholders. In the Philippines, it was explained that the Company has disclosed intent to
acquire certain assets of Lafarge Republic, Inc. This proposed acquisition remained under study as of the
time of the stackholders meeting.

Resuit of Annual/Special Stockhotders’ Meeting’s Resolutions

| Approval of the Minutes of the Annuaf Meeting held | 5,584,596,053 1
| on May 16, 2014 ;




Approval of the Annual Report and the Audited | 5,584,596,053
Financial Statements of the Company as of
December 31, 2014

Approval and ratification of all acts, contracts, | 5,584,596,053
investments ond resolutions of the Board,
Committees and Management since the last annual

meeting
Election of the following as members of the Board | 5,580,201,301 4,395,022
for the year 2015-2016:

a. Tomas i Alcantara

b. lon S Thackwray

¢ Eduardo A. Sahagun

d.  Danief N, Bach

e. Simeon V. Marcelo (independent Director)

£ Yasuo Kitamoto {Independent Director)

g. David L. Balangue {Independent Director)

Approval of the appointment of SyCip Gorres Velayo | 5,584,596,053
& Co. us External Auditor of the Company for the
year 2015

Approval of the Amendment to the Third Article of | 5,584,506,053 4,395,022
the Amended Articles af Incorporgtion {change in
principai office]) and to Article ll, Section 2 of the
Company’s Amended By laws (to reflect existing
relevant SEC issuances).

4. Date of publishing of the result of the votes taken during the most recent AGM for all resolutions:

The results of the AGM are disclosed to the Philippine Stock Exchange as soon as the meeting is
adjourned, and a copy thereof is duly filed with the Commission in a SEC Form 17-C Report.

{e} Modifications

{f)

State, if any, the modifications made in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting regulations during the most
recent year and the reason for such modification:

There are no modifications to the 2015 annual stockholders’ meeting regulations.

Stockholders’ Attendance

{i} Details of Attendance in the Annual/Special Stockholders” Meeting Held:

1. Tomasl|.
Alcantara

2. lans.
Thackwray

3. Eduardo A. May 18,
Sahagun 2015

4. Daniel N.
Bach

5. Yasuo
Kitamoto

Annual Vivg voce 0.00% 86.55% 86.55%
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&. Simeon V.
Marcelo

Special None

(il Does the company appoint an independent party {inspectors) to count and/or validate the votes at the
ASM/SSMs?

The Company’s stock and tronsfer agent, Stock Transfer Service, Inc., validates the attendance. The votes
are based on the validated attendance.
{ili} Do the company’s common shares carry one vote for one share? If not, disclose and give reasons for any
divergence to this standard. Where the company has more than one class of shares, describe the voting
rights attached to each class of shares,

The common shares carry one vote for one share. The Company has no issued and outstanding preferred
shares. The preferred shareholders shall not be entitled to vote except in those cases expressly provided
by the law.

(g} Proxy Voting Policies

State the policies followed by the company regarding proxy voting in the Annual/Special Stockhoiders’
Meeting.

Subject to the requirements of the by-laws, the exercise of that right shall
not be unduly restricted and any doubt about the validity of o proxy should
be resolved in the stockholder’s favor.

Execution and
acceptance of proxies

Notary Not required

Submission of Proxy
Several Proxies

Validity of Proxy

Proxies executed abroad
Invalidated Proxy
Validation of Proxy
Viotation of Proxy

Proxy shall be in writing and duly presented to the Corporate Secretary for
inspection and recorded at or prior to the opening of the meeting. All
proxies shall be in writing, signed by the stockholders and filed in the office
of the Corporate Secretary at least five (5) days before the meeting.

No proxy bearing a signature which is not legally acknowledged shall be
recognized at any meeting unless such signature is known and recognized
by the Secretary of the meeting.

{h} Sending of Notices

State the company’s policies and procedure on the sending of notices of Annual/Special Stockholders’
Meeting.

: The

provide that
notices to
stockholders

for meetings
shall be
prepared and
mailed ng

e The information statement and the management report under paragraph (4) of
Company’s this Rule, if applicable, shall be distributed to security holders at least fifteen (15)
Amended business days from the date of the stockholders’ meeting. [SRC Rule 20{3){c}{iv}]
Bylaws e \Written notice, stating the date, time and place of the annugl meeting shall be

sent to all stockholders of record at least two (2} weeks prior to the scheduled annual
stockholders’ meeting, unless o different period is required by the by-lows. The
distribution to stockholders of information statement (SEC Form 20-15) within the
prescribed period under this Rule shall be sufficient compliance with the notice
requirement. [SRC Rule 20{11}{a}{iii}]

e For the holding of any stockholders” meeting, the Exchange must be given a
written notice thereof at least Ten (10) trading days prior to the record date fixed by
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less than | the Issuer. The notice must include all the necessary details including the time, venue
fifteen and agenda of the meeting and the inclusive dates when the stock and transfer books
working days | shaif be closed. {PSE Revised Disclosure Rules, Section 7)

prior to the | e The Issuer shall further submit within Five (5} trading days after the record dote
meeting date | the list of stockholders who are entitled to notice and to vote ot g regular or special
pursuant  to | stockholders’ meeting. (PSE Revised Disclosure Rules, Section 7)

SRC Rule

20(3){cliv).

{iy Definitive Information Statements and Management Report

| 5,572 stockholders as of
record dote, April 18, 2015.

Starting April 22, 2015.

Starting April 22, 2015,

Hard copies were
distributed.

Hard copies were
distributed,

(i} Does the Notice of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting include the following:

Yes

The notice of annual meeting is
sent with the information
Statement containing the profiles
of directors nominated for re-
election.

Yes

The notice did not include a
dividend policy as there is no
dividend declaration made at the
time of the release of the notice.

The Company declared a cash
dividend in the amount of
Phpt.82
per share to all stockholders of
record as of Junel5, 2015,

The Company stated that it is not
requesting for a proxy.

Should any of the foregoing information be not disctosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

2) Treatment of Minority Stockholders

{(a) State the company’s policies with respect to the treatment of minority stockholders.
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1)

2)

o A director shall not be removed without cause if it wilf deny minority | These provisions

shareholders representation in the Board. in the Company’s
o The minority shareholders shall be granted the right to propose the holding of | Manual are
a meeting, and the right to propase items in the agenda, provided the items are | currently in
for legitimate business purposes, and in accordance with law, jurisprudence and | effect and are
the best practice. being

® The minority shareholders shall have access to any and all information relating | implemented.
to matters for which Management is accountable for and to those relating to
matters for which Monagement shall include such information and, if not included,
then the minority shareholders shall be allowed to propase such matters in the
agenda of the shareholders’ meeting, being within the definition of “legitimate
purposes”, and in accordance with law, jurisprudence and best practice,

(b) Do minority stockholders have a right to nominate candidates for board of directors?
Yes.
INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM

Discuss the company's external and internal communications policies and how frequently they are reviewed.
Disclose who reviews and approves major company announcements. Identify the committee with this
responsibility, if it has been assigned to a committee.

The Company has a global and country policy on media relations, but has not been updated in the last five years.
Media releases are routinely approved by the Head, Communication and Corporate Affairs, and those with major
business implications are reviewed by the CEQ and, as necessary, the Corporate Secretary/Corporate information
Officer.

Describe the company’s investor relations program including its communications strategy to promote effective
communication with its stockholders, other stakeholders and the public in general. Disclose the contact details
{e.g. telephone, fax and email) of the officer responsible for investar relations.

Major avenues for stockholder communication are the Annual Report and Annual Stockholders Meeting.
Communication with potential investors is done upon request, mostly by the CEQ. Investor analysts’ questions are
received during quarterly media briefings an the Company’s financial performance conducted by the CEO and
Head, Communication and Corporate Affoirs.

{1} Objectives Communicate business and organization performance and key
developments to primary stakeholders

{2} Principles Proactive for media; generglly conservative for potential
investors given marginal float

{3} Modes of Communications Regular briefings for media and selected investor analysts;

continuing publicity efforts; annual meetings and report for
stackholders; meetings with potential investors as requested

{4} Investors Relations Officer There is no such position. Function is shared between Corporate
Secretary/Corporate  Information  Officer and  Head,

Communication and Corporate Affairs
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3} What are the company’s rules and procedures governing the acquisition of corporate control in the capital
markets, and extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets?

Should the Company undertake such transactions, it shall comply with applicable laws and its Fair Competition
Directive.

Name of the independent party the board of directors of the company appointed to evaluate the fairness of the
transaction price.

Should the Company undertake such transactions, it shall appoint such independent parties as may be necessary
to evaluate the transaction as o whole as well as the fairness of the transaction price.

L. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any initiative undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by the company.

Holcim ‘galing Mason | The Company’s flagship program focuses on bringing dignity to Filipino masons
through skills training and competitions. The graduates of the program are certified by
@ government quthority, TESDA, as skiiled laborers, which opens up better
opportunities for them.
Various livelihood, Various adopted communities of the Company

infrastructure
educaotion projects

M. BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEO APPRAISAL

Disclose the process followed and criteria used in assessing the annual performance of the hoard and its
committees, individual director, and the CEQ/President.

Board of Directors None
Board Committees None
annual assessment during
qualification of nominees

Individual Directors qualifications under the Manua/

CEQ/President aennual performance evaluation defined yearly targets

N. INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

Discuss the internal policies on sanctions imposed for any viclation or breach of the corporate governance manual
involving directors, officers, management and employees

To strictly observe and implement the provisions of the Manual, the Board may impose other penalties in addition
to thase provided in the applicable regulations of the SEC, after notice and hearing, on the individual directors,
officers, and employees, such as censure, suspension and removal from office depending on the gravity of the
offense as well as the frequency of the violation.

The commission of a grave violation of the Manual by any member of the Board shall be sufficient cause for
removal from directorship.

Nane
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this Annual Corporate

Governance Report is signed on@ﬁlalﬁ oé thf‘ registrant by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in
NEaREgiWix Philippines on 015 .
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omas l. Alcantara
Chairman of the Board

Eduardo A. Sahagun

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Director
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Compliance Officer
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